
 

Page 1 of 4 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, MARCH 07, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of February 21, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing March 8, 2022 as International Women's Day. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics germane to City 
business.) 

Special Order of Business 

3. Public hearing on proposed FY23 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls.   
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 23, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the FY23 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls. 

4. Continuation of the public hearing on a proposal to enter into an Agreement for Private Development 
and to consider conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to McWing, L.L.C. 
 
a) Staff comments. 
 
b) Public comments. 
 
c) Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Deed Without Warranty conveying certain city-owned real 
estate to McWing, L.L.C. 

5. Public hearing on a proposal to enter into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider 
conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.  
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 25, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 

1



 

Page 2 of 4 

c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, and 
approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain city-owned real estate 
to KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. 

6. Public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost for the 2022 
CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 25, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Resolution approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of cost 
for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 

7. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to deleting all shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 25, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to deleting 
all shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District, upon its first consideration. 
(requires at least five aye votes). 

8. Public hearing on proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to increasing parking ratios in the Downtown Character District. 
 
a) Receive and file proof of publication of notice of hearing. (Notice published February 25, 2022) 
 
b) Written communications filed with the City Clerk. 
 
c) Staff comments. 
 
d) Public comments. 
 
e) Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing 
parking ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown Character District to 
one parking space per bedroom, upon its first consideration. (requires at least five aye votes) 

OR 

Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to increasing 
parking ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown Character District to 
.75 parking spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking space per unit, as recommended by 
the Planning & Zoning Commission, upon its first consideration. 

New Business 

2



 

Page 3 of 4 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 
discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

9. Receive and file a communication from the Mayor relative to the appointment of Zachary Zippe as 
Student Liaison, term ending 04/30/2022. 

10. Receive and file the City Council Work Session minutes of February 21, 2022 relative to the Public 
Safety Director Position and Public Safety Model. 

11. Receive and file the 2021 Annual Reports of the Planning & Zoning Commission, Board of 
Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing 
Appeals, Housing Commission and Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee. 

12. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of January 2022. 

13. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
b) Scoopskis, 1828 Waterloo Road, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 
c) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
d) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 
e) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
f) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 
g) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor – renewal. 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

14. Resolution approving and adopting certain revised Personnel Policies for the City of Cedar Falls. 

15. Resolution levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to mow property located at 923 
Ellen Street. 

16. Resolution approving and authorizing submission of a Peace Officer Retention Bonus Grant 
application to the State of Iowa. 

17. Resolution approving a C-2 Commercial Zoning District site plan for a storage facility to be located at 
3717 Midway Drive. 

18. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the 
Professional Service Agreement with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for an extension of the 2019 
Construction Testing Services through the 2023 construction season. 

19. Resolution receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting the low bid of Peterson 
Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $3,266,189.70, for the 2022 Street Construction Project. 

20. Resolution approving and accepting the contract and bond of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the West 
Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project. 

21. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Owner Purchase Agreements and one 
Tenant Purchase Agreement, and approving and accepting two Permanent Utility Easements and 
two Temporary Grading Easements, in conjunction with the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement 
Project.  

22. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of two Owner Purchase Agreements, and approving 
and accepting two Temporary Construction easements, in conjunction with the West 27th Street 
Reconstruction Project.  

Allow Bills and Claims 

23. Allow Bills and Claims for March 7, 2022. 

3



 

Page 4 of 4 

City Council Referrals 

City Council Updates 

Staff Updates 

Adjournment 

4



CITY HALL 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, FEBRUARY 21, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 8:07 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None.  
 

53673 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of February 7, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53674 -   The Mayor noted that item #15 on the Resolution Calendar was being removed 

from the agenda and would be considered at the March 7, 2022 meeting, and 
City Clerk Danielsen noted that Executive Session was being removed from the 
agenda. 

 
53675 - Mayor Green read a Proclamation recognizing March 2, 2022 as Read Across 

America Day. Cedar Falls Library Director Kelly Stern accepted and commented 
about a new program, Dolly Parton’s Imagination Library Project. 

 
53676 -     Rosemary Beach, 5018 Sage Road, spoke about the preservation of the Honors 

Cottage and noted the Homer Seerley House was recognized officially as the first 
2022 Most Endangered Property. She requested that UNI place the houses on 
the National Registry. 

 Mary LeGore, 2602 Cedar Heights Drive, requested consideration of the impact 
on citizens on fixed incomes regarding raising property taxes.  

53677 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 8, 
2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed maximum 
levy for affected property tax levies for FY2023. It was then moved by deBuhr 
and seconded by Schultz that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53678 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed maximum levy. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Finance & 
Business Operations Director Rodenbeck provided a brief summary of the 
proposed levy. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed levy, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the next 
order of business. 

 
53679 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Sires that Resolution #22,681, 

approving and adopting the maximum levy for affected property tax levies for 
FY2023, be adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers 
Sires, Ganfield, deBuhr, Harding, Kruse and Schultz, and Mayor Green, and 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

responses by Finance & Business Operations Director Rodenbeck and City 
Attorney Rogers, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the 
roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, 
Dunn, Schultz. Nay: Ganfield, Sires. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared 
Resolution #22,681 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53680 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

11, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposal to 
enter into a February 2022 Amendment to Development Agreement with Cedar 
Falls Municipal Utilities relative to the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 
Renewal Area. It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the 
proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. Motion 
carried unanimously. 

 
53681 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed amendment. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the proposed 
amendment. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed amendment, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the 
next order of business. 

 
53682 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,682, 

approving and authorizing execution of a February 2022 Amendment to 
Development Agreement with Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities relative to the 
Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, be adopted. Following a 
question by Councilmember Schultz, and response by Economic Development 
Coordinator Graham, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of 
the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,682 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53683 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

11, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to enter 
into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of 
certain city-owned real estate to Wayne Estates, L.L.C. It was then moved by 
Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the proof of publication of notice of hearing 
be received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53684 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed agreement. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the proposed 
agreement. There being no one else present wishing to speak about the 
proposed agreement, the Mayor declared the hearing closed and passed to the 
next order of business. 

 
53685 - It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #22,683, 

approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private Development, 

6

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

and approving and authorizing execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying certain 
city-owned real estate to Wayne Estates, L.L.C, be adopted. Following due 
consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon 
call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, 
Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor 
then declared Resolution #22,683 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53686 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

11, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on a proposal to enter 
into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider conveyance of 
certain city-owned real estate to McWing, L.L.C. It was then moved by Kruse and 
seconded by Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be 
received and placed on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53687 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed agreement. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Economic 
Development Coordinator Graham provided a brief summary of the proposed 
agreement and requested that the public hearing be continued. It was then 
moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding to continue the hearing to the March 
7, 2022 City Council meeting. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53688 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

11, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost for the 2022 Street 
Construction Project. It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding 
that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed on file. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53689 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer 
Claypool provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one 
else present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared 
the hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53690 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,684, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the 2022 Street Construction Project, be adopted. Following a question 
by Councilmember Kruse, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by Sires to 
amend the motion to remove the portion of the overlay on Hudson Road from 1st 
-12th Street. Following a comment by Public Works Director Schrage, questions 
and comments by Councilmembers Kruse, Harding, deBuhr, Schultz and Sires, 
and responses by Schrage and Civil Engineer Claypool, the motion failed 1-6, 
with deBuhr, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn and Schultz voting Nay. The Mayor 
put the question on the original motion and upon call of the roll, the following 
named Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,684 duly passed and adopted.  

7

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

 
53691 - Mayor Green announced that in accordance with the public notice of February 

11, 2022, this was the time and place for a public hearing on the proposed plans, 
specifications, form of contract, and estimate of cost for the Oak Park Boulevard 
Sanitary Sewer Repair Project It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by 
Harding that the proof of publication of notice of hearing be received and placed 
on file. Motion carried unanimously. 

 
53692 - The Mayor then asked if there were any written communications filed to the 

proposed plans, etc. Upon being advised that there were no written 
communications on file, the Mayor then called for oral comments. Civil Engineer 
Tolan provided a brief summary of the proposed project. There being no one else 
present wishing to speak about the proposed plans, etc., the Mayor declared the 
hearing closed and passed to the next order of business. 

 
53693 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Kruse that Resolution #22,685, 

approving and adopting the plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate of 
cost for the Oak Park Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Repair Project, be adopted. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion 
Carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,685 duly passed and adopted.  

 
53694 -    It was moved by Dunn and seconded by Ganfield that the rules requiring 

Ordinance #3005 be considered at three separate meetings, be suspended. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. 

 
      It was then moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that Ordinance #3005, 

amending Chapter 12, Human Relations, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
the Human Rights Commission, be passed upon its third & final consideration. 
Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll the following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: 
deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. The Mayor 
then declared Ordinance #3005 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53695 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield that the following items on 

the Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

Approve the following recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment 
of members to Boards and Commissions: 
a) Ruby Hibben, Board of Adjustment, term expiring 03/31/2026. 
b) Michael Mahncke, Historic Preservation Commission, term expiring 
03/31/2025. 

Receive and file the Work Session minutes of February 7, 2022 relative to the 
following item:  

8

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 5 - 

 

a) Downtown Zoning Changes. 

Receive and file the Committee of the Whole minutes of February 7, 2022 
relative to the following items: 
a) Board of Adjustment Interview-Ruby Hibben. 
b) FY23 Budget Presentation. 

Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to 
the certified list for the position of Public Safety Officer. 

Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Panther Lounge, 210 East 18th Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 
b) River Place Plaza, 200 East 2nd Street – Plaza, Special Class C liquor & 
outdoor service – 8-month permit with exceptions. 

Motion carried unanimously. 

53696 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Schultz that the following resolutions 
be introduced and adopted: 

 
 Resolution #22,686, levying a final assessment for costs incurred by the City to 

mow property located at 2303 Washington Street. 

 Resolution #22,687, approving and authorizing execution of a Licensed Training 
Provider Agreement with the American Red Cross relative to providing licensed 
training, materials and certifications to City staff. 

 Resolution #22,688, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Professional Services with Family Management Financial Solutions, Inc. relative 
to Community Block Grant (CDBG) funding for service agencies. 

 Resolution #22,689, receiving and filing the bids, and approving and accepting 
the low bid of Petersen Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $8,147,645.50, for the 
West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project.  

 Resolution #22,690, approving and authorizing execution of a Professional 
Service Agreement with Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC relative to the 
2022 Bridge Inspection Project.  

 Resolution #22,691, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the Mandalay Drive Slope Repair Project. 

 Resolution #22,692, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Cobalt Contracting, L.C. for the 2021 Sidewalk Assessment Project - 
Zone 4.  

 Resolution #22,693, approving the Final Statement of Expenditures for the 2021 
Sidewalk Assessment Project - Zone 4. 

 Resolution #22,694, receiving and filing, and approving the plans, specifications 
and estimate of cost for the Lake Street Trail Project. 

9

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 6 - 

 

 Resolution #22,695, receiving and filing, and setting March 7, 2022 as the date of 
public hearing on the proposed plans, specifications, form of contract & estimate 
of cost for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project.  

 Resolution #22,696, setting March 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing to 
consider entering into an Agreement for Private Development, and to consider 
conveyance of certain city-owned real estate to KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.  

 Resolution #22,697, setting March 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to increasing parking ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in 
the Downtown Character District to one parking space per bedroom. 

 Resolution #22,698, setting March 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on 
proposed amendments to Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative 
to increasing parking ratios for residential mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in 
the Downtown Character District to .75 parking space per bedroom, as 
recommended by the Planning & Zoning Commission. 

 Resolution #22,699, setting March 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on the 
proposed FY23 Budget for the City of Cedar Falls  

 Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 
motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, Schultz. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,686 through #22,699 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53697 -    It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding that Resolution #22,700, 
approving and authorizing the expenditure of funds for the purchase of dump 
truck/snow plow components for the Public Works Department, be adopted. 
Following questions by Councilmember Ganfied and responses by Public Works 
Director Schrage and Fleet Maintenance Supervisor Rawdon, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, 
Schultz. Nay: None. Motion carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution 
#22,700 duly passed and adopted. 

 
53698 -    It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that Resolution #22,701, setting 

March 7, 2022 as the date of public hearing on proposed amendments to 
Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances relative to removal of the shared 
parking requirement in the Downtown Character District, be adopted. Following a 
comment by Councilmember Kruse, it was moved by Kruse and seconded by 
Sires to postpone the public hearing to the March 21, 2022 City Council meeting. 
Following questions and comments by Councilmembers deBuhr and Ganfield, 
and responses by City Attorney Rogers, the motion failed 3-4, with Harding, 
Ganfield, Sires and Dunn voting Nay. The Mayor then put the question on the 
original motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted. Aye: Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: deBuhr, Kruse, Schultz. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolution #22,701 duly passed and adopted. 

10

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 7 - 

 

53699 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 
February 21, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn, 
Schultz. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53700 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Committee of the 

Whole a discussion on the criteria of shared parking. Following comments by 
Councilmember Kruse and Mayor Green, and response by City Attorney Rogers, 
Mayor Green ruled the motion out of order. 

  
  It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by deBuhr to refer to the Planning 

and Zoning Commission a discussion on the criteria of shared parking to restrict 
shared parking to on-site only. Following comments by Community Development 
Director Sheetz and Councilmember Dunn, the motion carried 5-2, with Harding 
and Dunn voting Nay. 

 
    It was then moved by Kruse and seconded by Shultz to refer to the Committee of 

the Whole considerations or modifications to improve safety from 6th and Main to 
6th and State Streets. Following comments and questions by Councilmembers 
Kruse, Schultz and Dunn, and Mayor Green, and responses by Public Works 
Director Schrage, the motion carried unanimously. 

 
53701 - Councilmember Ganfield endorsed the book, “Nate’s Triumph” by Nate Trainor 

about inclusivity. He also encouraged use of the Cedar Falls Public Library. 
 
53702 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that the meeting be adjourned 

at 9:44 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
  

11

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 

  

 

 
 
 

INTERNATIONAL WOMEN’S DAY 
 March 8, 2022 

 
WHEREAS, International Women’s Day was honored for the first time in 

Austria, Denmark, Germany and Switzerland in 1911; and 

WHEREAS, March 8 is celebrated worldwide as International Women’s Day to 

recognize the achievements of women and their contribution to society; and 

WHEREAS, women can celebrate significant progress in equality globally, but 

also contemplate those areas where more can be done through access to 

education, health care and paid labor, as well as legislation to ensure equal 

opportunities for women and respect for their human rights; and  

WHEREAS,  nowhere in the world can women claim to have all the same rights 

and opportunities as men, and until we all work together to secure the rights 

and full potential of women, lasting solutions to social, economic and political 

problems are unlikely to be found;  

THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of Cedar Falls, do hereby proclaim 

March 8, 2022, as International Women’s Day in the city of Cedar Falls, and 

encourage citizens to work to addresses the social, economic and political 

barriers still facing women and girls while celebrating their achievements and 

the progress made in support of women’s equality. 

Signed this 28th day of February, 2022. 

 

______________________________________                                                                                  

Mayor Robert M. Green 

  

  
12

Item 2.



   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE & BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     I N T E R O F F I C E   M E M O R A N D U M 
 

 TO: Mayor Green and City Council Members 

  FROM: Jennifer Rodenbeck, Director of Finance & Business Operations 

 DATE: March 1, 2022 

 SUBJECT: FY2023 Budget 

 
Attached are the state budget forms for the FY23 budget.  This sets the rate at $11.51. 
This rate decreased from the $11.67 rate that was originally presented to Council.  
Based on the amendments that Council discussed at the February 28th committee 
meeting, the cuts to the budget in the amount of approximately $335,000 were 
incorporated into the budget to arrive at the new proposed rate of $11.51.   
 
The public hearing for Monday night is the second hearing as required by the new state 
requirements. This hearing actually approves the FY23 budget.  The budget, as 
presented, taking into account the $11.51 rate, rollback percentages, and 
reassessment,  will cause a 3.22% increase on residential properties, a 1.14% increase 
on commercial & industrial properties, and a 4.48% decrease on multi-residential 
properties.  
 
Along with the state required forms, the revised budget document is included in the 
council packet.  Once the budget is formally approved, a final budget document will be 
published on our website.   
 
If you have any questions about the budget or the budget process, please feel free to 
contact me.  
 
 
 

13

Item 3.



Regular General levy

FISCAL YEAR JULY 1, 2022 - JUNE 30, 2023
ADOPTION OF BUDGET AND CERTIFICATION OF CITY TAXES

The City of :   CEDAR FALLS    County Name:   BLACK HAWK COUNTY
Adopted On: (entered upon adoption)     Resolution: (entered upon adoption)

The below-signed certifies that the City Council, on the date stated above, lawfully approved the named resolution adopting a budget for next fiscal year, as summarized on this
and the supporting pages.

With Gas & Electric Without Gas & Electric
Regular 2a 2,064,620,691 2b 2,060,390,605
DEBT SERVICE 3a 2,269,246,608 3b 2,265,016,522
Ag Land 4a 6,452,342

City Number: 07-046
Last Official Census: 40,713

TAXES LEVIED

Purpose Dollar
Limit

ENTER FIRE
DISTRICT RATE

BELOW

Request with
Utility

Replacement
Property

Taxes Levied Rate

8.10000 5 16,723,428 16,689,164 43 8.10000
Non-Voted Other Permissible Levies
Contract for use of Bridge 0.67500 6 0 44 0.00000
Opr & Maint publicly owned Transit 0.95000 7 456,100 455,161 45 0.22091

Rent, Ins. Maint of Civic Center Amt
Nec 8 0 46 0.00000

Opr & Maint of City owned Civic Center 0.13500 9 0 47 0.00000
Planning a Sanitary Disposal Project 0.06750 10 0 48 0.00000
Aviation Authority (under sec.330A.15) 0.27000 11 0 49 0.00000
Levee Impr. fund in special charter city 0.06750 13 0 51 0.00000

Liability, property & self insurance costs Amt
Nec 14 249,340 248,833 52 0.12077

Support of a Local Emerg.Mgmt.Comm. Amt
Nec 462 576,590 575,405 465 0.27927

Voted Other Permissible Levies
Instrumental/Vocal Music Groups 0.13500 15 35,000 34,924 53 0.01695
Memorial Building 0.81000 16 0 54 0.00000
Symphony Orchestra 0.13500 17 0 55 0.00000
Cultural & Scientific Facilities 0.27000 18 0 56 0.00000

County Bridge As
Voted 19 0 57 0.00000

Missi or Missouri River Bridge Const. 1.35000 20 0 58 0.00000
Aid to a Transit Company 0.03375 21 0 59 0.00000
Maintain Institution received by gift/devise 0.20500 22 0 60 0.00000
City Emergency Medical District 1.00000 463 0 466 0.00000
Support Public Library 0.27000 23 557,448 556,305 61 0.27000
Unified Law Enforcement 1.50000 24 0 62 0.00000
Total General Fund Regular Levies (5 thru 24) 25 18,597,906 18,559,792
Ag Land 3.00375 26 19,381 19,381 63 3.00372
Total General Fund Tax Levies (25 + 26) 27 18,617,287 18,579,173
Special Revenue Levies
Emergency (if general fund at levy limit) 0.27000 28 0 64 0.00000

Police & Fire Retirement Amt
Nec 29 1,136,090 1,133,771 0.55027

FICA & IPERS (if general fund at levy limit) Amt
Nec 30 1,593,540 1,590,271 0.77183

Other Employee Benefits Amt
Nec 31 1,473,770 1,470,748 0.71382

Total Employee Benefit Levies (29,30,31) 32 4,203,400 4,194,790 65 2.03592
Sub Total Special Revenue Levies (28+32) 33 4,203,400 4,194,790

As Req With Gas & Elec
Valuation

Without Gas &
Elec Valuation

SSMID 1 12,566,203 12,566,203 34 48,883 48,883 66 3.89004
SSMID 2 8,703,507 8,703,507 35 23,935 23,935 67 2.75004
SSMID 3 0 0 36 0 68 0.00000
SSMID 4 0 0 37 0 69 0.00000
SSMID 5 0 0 555 0 565 0.00000
SSMID 6 0 0 556 0 566 0.00000
SSMID 7 0 0 1177 0 1179 0.00000
SSMID 8 0 0 1185 0 1187 0.00000
Total Special Revenue Levies 39 4,276,218 4,267,608
Debt Service Levy 76.10(6) Amt Nec 40 1,061,750 1,059,779 70 0.46789
Capital Projects (Capital Improv. Reserve) 0.67500 41 0 71 0.00000
Total Property Taxes (27+39+40+41) 42 23,955,255 23,906,560 72 11.51171

( Signature ) (Date) ( County Auditor ) (Date) 14

Item 3.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING - CITY OF CEDAR FALLS - PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX LEVY
Fiscal Year July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year City property tax levy as follows:
Meeting Date:    2/21/2022    Meeting Time:    07:00 PM    Meeting Location:    Cedar Falls Community Center, 528 Main Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa

At the public hearing any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of the proposed tax levy. After adoption of the proposed tax levy, the City
Council will publish notice and hold a hearing on the proposed city budget.

City Website (if available)
cedarfalls.com  City Telephone Number

(319) 273-8600
Current Year Certified

Property Tax 2021 - 2022
Budget Year Effective

Property Tax 2022 - 2023
Budget Year Proposed Maximum

Property Tax 2022 - 2023
Annual
% CHG

Regular Taxable Valuation 1,964,300,512 2,064,620,691 2,064,620,691
Tax Levies:
Regular General 15,910,834 15,910,834 16,723,428
Contract for Use of Bridge 0
Opr & Maint Publicly Owned Transit 442,820 442,820 456,100
Rent, Ins. Maint. Of Non-Owned Civ. Ctr. 0
Opr & Maint of City-Owned Civic Center 0
Planning a Sanitary Disposal Project 0
Liability, Property & Self-Insurance Costs 125,020 125,020 249,340
Support of Local Emer. Mgmt. Commission 539,730 539,730 576,590
Emergency 0
Police & Fire Retirement 1,699,310 1,699,310 1,136,090
FICA & IPERS 1,506,940 1,506,940 1,593,540
Other Employee Benefits 976,150 976,150 1,473,770
Total Tax Levy 21,200,804 21,200,804 22,208,858 4.75
Tax Rate 10.79306 10.26862 10.75687

Explanation of significant increases in the budget:
Significant increases to the budget are caused by staffing costs, including negotiated salary and benefit increases.
If applicable, the above notice also available online at:
cedarfalls.com; https://www.facebook.com/citycf; https://twitter.com/CityCF; https://www.instgram.com/cedar_falls_iowa/

*Total city tax rate will also include voted general fund levy, debt service levy, and capital improvement reserve levy.
**Budget year effective property tax rate is the rate that would be assessed for these levies if the dollars requested is not changed in the coming budget year

15

Item 3.



FU
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
2 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
SP

E
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

T
IF

 S
PE

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
D

E
B

T
SE

R
V

IC
E

C
A

PI
TA

L
PR

O
JE

C
T

S
PE

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
TO

TA
L

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

PR
O

PR
IE

TA
R

Y
G

R
A

N
D

TO
TA

L
A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t F

Y
 2

02
1

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 Ju
ly

 1
1

11
,1

08
,2

37
42

,3
55

,7
91

0
63

3,
24

6
16

,9
17

,2
37

0
71

,0
14

,5
11

18
,4

26
,7

01
89

,4
41

,2
12

A
ct

ua
l R

ev
en

ue
s E

xc
ep

t B
eg

 B
al

an
ce

2
29

,7
53

,3
90

23
,0

82
,5

95
4,

03
9,

83
9

79
7,

46
9

15
,8

03
,3

31
0

73
,4

76
,6

24
13

,3
05

,3
46

86
,7

81
,9

70
A

ct
ua

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s E
xc

ep
t E

nd
 B

al
an

ce
3

29
,8

79
,3

39
18

,0
30

,4
00

4,
03

9,
83

9
85

3,
22

2
10

,4
48

,8
11

0
63

,2
51

,6
11

9,
95

0,
80

9
73

,2
02

,4
20

En
di

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 Ju
ne

 3
0

4
10

,9
82

,2
88

47
,4

07
,9

86
0

57
7,

49
3

22
,2

71
,7

57
0

81
,2

39
,5

24
21

,7
81

,2
38

10
3,

02
0,

76
2

R
e-

E
st

im
at

ed
 F

Y
 2

02
2

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

5
10

,9
82

,2
88

47
,4

07
,9

86
0

57
7,

49
3

22
,2

71
,7

57
0

81
,2

39
,5

24
21

,7
81

,2
38

10
3,

02
0,

76
2

R
e-

Es
t R

ev
en

ue
s

6
27

,2
71

,0
45

22
,4

84
,2

04
5,

98
1,

50
0

87
2,

85
0

10
,8

01
,6

59
0

67
,4

11
,2

58
12

,6
96

,6
41

80
,1

07
,8

99
R

e-
Es

t E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
7

27
,2

71
,0

45
27

,3
94

,3
78

5,
98

1,
50

0
90

4,
28

0
18

,0
82

,5
12

0
79

,6
33

,7
15

13
,7

60
,9

48
93

,3
94

,6
63

En
di

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

8
10

,9
82

,2
88

42
,4

97
,8

12
0

54
6,

06
3

14
,9

90
,9

04
0

69
,0

17
,0

67
20

,7
16

,9
31

89
,7

33
,9

98
B

ud
ge

t F
Y

 2
02

3
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
9

10
,9

82
,2

88
42

,4
97

,8
12

0
54

6,
06

3
14

,9
90

,9
04

0
69

,0
17

,0
67

20
,7

16
,9

31
89

,7
33

,9
98

R
ev

en
ue

s
10

29
,3

02
,4

30
21

,2
86

,3
80

5,
98

5,
02

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

17
,9

45
,0

20
0

76
,6

48
,0

50
12

,6
88

,3
00

89
,3

36
,3

50
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
11

29
,3

02
,4

30
26

,3
97

,6
40

5,
98

5,
02

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

30
,9

15
,4

70
0

94
,7

29
,7

60
11

,7
99

,5
90

10
6,

52
9,

35
0

En
di

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

12
10

,9
82

,2
88

37
,3

86
,5

52
0

54
6,

06
3

2,
02

0,
45

4
0

50
,9

35
,3

57
21

,6
05

,6
41

72
,5

40
,9

98

16

Item 3.



L
O

C
A

L
 E

M
C

 S
U

PP
O

R
T

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
2 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3
A

s p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 Io
w

a 
C

od
e 

Se
ct

io
n 

38
4.

12
, s

ub
se

ct
io

n 
22

, a
 c

ity
 m

ay
 le

vy
 th

e 
am

ou
nt

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 in

 su
pp

or
t o

f a
 lo

ca
l E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t C
om

m
is

si
on

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n 

to
 th

is
 in

di
vi

du
al

 le
vy

, E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

is
si

on
su

pp
or

t m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s p

ar
t o

f t
he

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
Le

vy
. I

ow
a 

C
od

e 
Se

ct
io

n 
29

C
.1

7,
 su

bs
ec

tio
n 

5 
st

at
es

 th
at

 a
ny

 su
pp

or
t f

ro
m

 c
iti

es
 o

r c
ou

nt
ie

s m
us

t b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

ly
 re

po
rte

d 
on

 ta
x 

st
at

em
en

ts
 is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 tr

ea
su

re
r. 

In
pu

t
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

Le
vy

 re
qu

es
t t

o 
be

 u
se

d 
fo

r s
up

po
rt 

of
 a

n 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

is
si

on
. T

he
 to

ta
l b

el
ow

 w
ill

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
to

ta
l a

m
ou

nt
 o

f E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

om
m

is
si

on
 su

pp
or

t p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

C
ity

.
R

eq
ue

st
 w

ith
 U

til
ity

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
Pr

op
er

ty
 T

ax
es

 L
ev

ie
d

Po
rti

on
 o

f G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
Le

vy
 U

se
d 

fo
r E

m
er

g.
 M

gm
t. 

C
om

m
.

0
Su

pp
or

t o
f a

 L
oc

al
 E

m
er

g.
M

gm
t.C

om
m

.
57

6,
59

0
57

5,
40

5
TO

TA
L 

FO
R

 F
Y

 2
02

3
57

6,
59

0
57

5,
40

5

17

Item 3.



R
E

-E
ST

IM
AT

E
D

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 P

A
G

E
 1

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
1 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

2

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S 
C

O
N

T.
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

SP
E

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

T
IF

 S
PE

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
D

E
B

T
SE

R
V

IC
E

C
A

PI
TA

L
PR

O
JE

C
T

S
PE

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
PR

O
PR

IE
TA

R
Y

R
E

-
E

ST
IM

AT
E

D
20

22
A

C
T

U
A

L
20

21

PU
B

L
IC

 S
A

FE
T

Y
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/C

rim
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
1

5,
66

6,
01

0
77

5,
30

6
6,

44
1,

31
6

6,
52

0,
18

9
Ja

il
2

0
0

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
3

53
9,

73
0

53
9,

73
0

40
5,

60
3

Fl
oo

d 
C

on
tro

l
4

0
0

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

5
3,

65
3,

60
9

79
1,

07
4

4,
44

4,
68

3
4,

03
5,

15
9

A
m

bu
la

nc
e

6
0

0
B

ui
ld

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
7

91
9,

63
2

91
9,

63
2

86
6,

74
3

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

8
0

0
A

ni
m

al
 C

on
tro

l
9

12
3,

00
0

12
3,

00
0

11
8,

65
7

O
th

er
 P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y

10
38

,0
00

38
,0

00
68

,7
11

TO
TA

L 
(li

ne
s 1

 - 
10

)
11

10
,9

39
,9

81
1,

56
6,

38
0

0
12

,5
06

,3
61

12
,0

15
,0

62
PU

B
L

IC
 W

O
R

K
S

R
oa

ds
, B

rid
ge

s, 
&

 S
id

ew
al

ks
12

18
,9

26
,5

07
18

,9
26

,5
07

10
,1

21
,8

64
Pa

rk
in

g 
- M

et
er

 a
nd

 O
ff-

St
re

et
13

30
2,

86
7

30
2,

86
7

28
2,

76
4

St
re

et
 L

ig
ht

in
g

14
0

0
Tr

af
fic

 C
on

tro
l a

nd
 S

af
et

y
15

0
0

Sn
ow

 R
em

ov
al

16
0

0
H

ig
hw

ay
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g
17

1,
59

1,
82

9
1,

59
1,

82
9

1,
40

5,
53

2
St

re
et

 C
le

an
in

g
18

0
0

A
irp

or
t (

if 
no

t E
nt

er
pr

is
e)

19
0

0
G

ar
ba

ge
 (i

f n
ot

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e)

20
0

0
O

th
er

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

21
0

0
TO

TA
L 

(li
ne

s 1
2 

- 2
1)

22
1,

59
1,

82
9

19
,2

29
,3

74
0

20
,8

21
,2

03
11

,8
10

,1
60

H
E

A
LT

H
 &

 S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

W
el

fa
re

 A
ss

is
ta

nc
e

23
0

0
C

ity
 H

os
pi

ta
l

24
32

,0
00

32
,0

00
20

3,
75

7
Pa

ym
en

ts
 to

 P
riv

at
e 

H
os

pi
ta

ls
25

0
0

H
ea

lth
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n

26
13

,0
00

13
,0

00
13

,0
00

W
at

er
, A

ir,
 a

nd
 M

os
qu

ito
 C

on
tro

l
27

0
0

C
om

m
un

ity
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
28

0
0

O
th

er
 H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

29
0

0
TO

TA
L 

(li
ne

s 2
3 

- 2
9)

30
13

,0
00

32
,0

00
0

45
,0

00
21

6,
75

7
C

U
LT

U
R

E
 &

 R
E

C
R

E
AT

IO
N

Li
br

ar
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

31
2,

09
4,

11
8

2,
09

4,
11

8
2,

12
1,

74
1

M
us

eu
m

, B
an

d 
an

d 
Th

ea
te

r
32

51
5,

65
9

7,
00

0
52

2,
65

9
48

5,
82

7
Pa

rk
s

33
1,

81
6,

84
6

17
0,

00
0

1,
98

6,
84

6
1,

58
5,

98
5

R
ec

re
at

io
n

34
2,

29
7,

37
6

22
,0

00
2,

31
9,

37
6

1,
40

0,
38

0
C

em
et

er
y

35
39

4,
81

1
39

4,
81

1
29

9,
46

2
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r, 

Zo
o,

 &
 M

ar
in

a
36

54
,3

04
54

,3
04

51
,7

96
O

th
er

 C
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 R
ec

re
at

io
n

37
75

,0
00

65
1,

46
9

72
6,

46
9

1,
11

2,
05

6
TO

TA
L 

(li
ne

s 3
1 

- 3
7)

38
7,

19
3,

81
0

90
4,

77
3

0
8,

09
8,

58
3

7,
05

7,
24

7

18

Item 3.



R
E

-E
ST

IM
AT

E
D

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 P

A
G

E
 2

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
1 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

2

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S 
C

O
N

T.
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

SP
E

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

T
IF

 S
PE

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
D

E
B

T
SE

R
V

IC
E

C
A

PI
TA

L
PR

O
JE

C
T

S
PE

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
PR

O
PR

IE
TA

R
Y

R
E

-
E

ST
IM

AT
E

D
20

22
A

C
T

U
A

L
20

21

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 &
 E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

C
om

m
un

ity
 B

ea
ut

ifi
ca

tio
n

39
49

,3
80

49
,3

80
30

4,
82

6
Ec

on
om

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

40
0

0
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 U

rb
an

 R
en

ew
al

41
2,

03
2,

16
7

2,
03

2,
16

7
1,

82
7,

60
9

Pl
an

ni
ng

 &
 Z

on
in

g
42

78
4,

20
9

78
4,

20
9

64
8,

51
9

O
th

er
 C

om
 &

 E
co

n 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

43
20

2,
65

1
20

2,
65

1
19

2,
18

9
TI

F 
R

eb
at

es
44

0
0

TO
TA

L 
(li

ne
s 3

9 
- 4

4)
45

98
6,

86
0

2,
08

1,
54

7
0

0
3,

06
8,

40
7

2,
97

3,
14

3
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

M
ay

or
, C

ou
nc

il,
 &

 C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

46
83

6,
66

3
83

6,
66

3
68

5,
38

6
C

le
rk

, T
re

as
ur

er
, &

 F
in

an
ce

 A
dm

.
47

1,
57

6,
80

3
1,

57
6,

80
3

1,
34

5,
27

7
El

ec
tio

ns
48

40
,0

00
40

,0
00

50
,2

35
Le

ga
l S

er
vi

ce
s &

 C
ity

 A
tto

rn
ey

49
39

1,
02

8
39

1,
02

8
53

7,
63

6
C

ity
 H

al
l &

 G
en

er
al

 B
ui

ld
in

gs
50

82
6,

88
2

82
6,

88
2

95
9,

88
8

To
rt 

Li
ab

ili
ty

51
12

5,
02

0
12

5,
02

0
23

4,
97

0
O

th
er

 G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t

52
99

3,
85

9
68

6,
19

5
1,

68
0,

05
4

1,
11

3,
29

8
TO

TA
L 

(li
ne

s 4
6 

- 5
2)

53
4,

79
0,

25
5

68
6,

19
5

0
0

5,
47

6,
45

0
4,

92
6,

69
0

D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

54
90

4,
28

0
90

4,
28

0
85

3,
22

2
G

ov
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s
55

9,
80

5,
54

2
9,

80
5,

54
2

10
,4

42
,8

71
TI

F 
C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s
56

8,
27

6,
97

0
8,

27
6,

97
0

0
TO

TA
L 

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

57
0

0
0

18
,0

82
,5

12
0

18
,0

82
,5

12
10

,4
42

,8
71

TO
TA

L
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l A

ct
iv

iti
es

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s  
(li

ne
s

11
+2

2+
30

+3
8+

44
+5

2+
53

+5
4)

58
25

,5
15

,7
35

24
,5

00
,2

69
0

90
4,

28
0

18
,0

82
,5

12
0

69
,0

02
,7

96
50

,2
95

,1
52

B
U

SI
N

E
SS

 T
Y

PE
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S 

 P
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

: E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

&
B

ud
ge

te
d 

IS
F

W
at

er
 U

til
ity

59
0

0
Se

w
er

 U
til

ity
60

3,
05

2,
77

5
3,

05
2,

77
5

3,
34

5,
23

2
El

ec
tri

c 
U

til
ity

61
0

0
G

as
 U

til
ity

62
0

0
A

irp
or

t
63

0
0

La
nd

fil
l/G

ar
ba

ge
64

3,
33

0,
75

5
3,

33
0,

75
5

2,
85

2,
83

4
Tr

an
si

t
65

0
0

C
ab

le
 T

V,
 In

te
rn

et
 &

 T
el

ep
ho

ne
66

0
0

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
67

0
0

St
or

m
 W

at
er

 U
til

ity
68

99
0,

34
8

99
0,

34
8

56
9,

50
6

O
th

er
 B

us
in

es
s T

yp
e 

(c
ity

 h
os

p.
, I

SF
, p

ar
ki

ng
, e

tc
.)

69
0

0
En

te
rp

ris
e 

D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
70

1,
54

9,
90

0
1,

54
9,

90
0

1,
55

5,
58

5
En

te
rp

ris
e 

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

71
3,

22
1,

33
0

3,
22

1,
33

0
0

En
te

rp
ris

e 
TI

F 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
72

0
0

TO
TA

L 
B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
TY

PE
 E

X
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
ES

 (l
in

es
 5

9+
72

)
73

12
,1

45
,1

08
12

,1
45

,1
08

8,
32

3,
15

7
TO

TA
L

 A
L

L
 E

X
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S 
(li

ne
s 5

8+
73

)
74

25
,5

15
,7

35
24

,5
00

,2
69

0
90

4,
28

0
18

,0
82

,5
12

0
12

,1
45

,1
08

81
,1

47
,9

04
58

,6
18

,3
09

R
eg

ul
ar

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
75

1,
75

5,
31

0
2,

89
4,

10
9

0
1,

61
5,

84
0

6,
26

5,
25

9
10

,5
44

,2
72

In
te

rn
al

 T
IF

 L
oa

n 
Tr

an
sf

er
s O

ut
76

5,
98

1,
50

0
0

5,
98

1,
50

0
4,

03
9,

83
9

To
ta

l A
LL

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
77

1,
75

5,
31

0
2,

89
4,

10
9

5,
98

1,
50

0
0

0
0

1,
61

5,
84

0
12

,2
46

,7
59

14
,5

84
,1

11
To

ta
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s a

nd
 O

th
er

 F
in

 U
se

s (
lin

es
 7

4+
77

)
78

27
,2

71
,0

45
27

,3
94

,3
78

5,
98

1,
50

0
90

4,
28

0
18

,0
82

,5
12

0
13

,7
60

,9
48

93
,3

94
,6

63
73

,2
02

,4
20

E
nd

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 J
un

e 
30

79
10

,9
82

,2
88

42
,4

97
,8

12
0

54
6,

06
3

14
,9

90
,9

04
0

20
,7

16
,9

31
89

,7
33

,9
98

10
3,

02
0,

76
2

19

Item 3.



R
E

-E
ST

IM
AT

E
D

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

D
E

TA
IL

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
1 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

2

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

&
 O

T
H

E
R

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
S

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
SP

E
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
T

IF
 S

PE
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

D
E

B
T

SE
R

V
IC

E
C

A
PI

TA
L

PR
O

JE
C

T
S

PE
R

M
A

N
E

N
T

PR
O

PR
IE

TA
R

Y
R

E
-

E
ST

IM
AT

E
D

20
22

A
C

T
U

A
L

20
21

Ta
xe

s L
ev

ie
d 

on
 P

ro
pe

rty
1

17
,4

03
,4

41
4,

27
1,

56
9

65
4,

48
9

22
,3

29
,4

99
23

,0
58

,8
33

Le
ss

: U
nc

ol
le

ct
ed

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
 - 

Le
vy

 Y
ea

r
2

0
0

N
et

 C
ur

re
nt

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
 (l

in
e 

1 
m

in
us

 li
ne

 2
)

3
17

,4
03

,4
41

4,
27

1,
56

9
65

4,
48

9
0

22
,3

29
,4

99
23

,0
58

,8
33

D
el

in
qu

en
t P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
es

4
0

0
TI

F 
R

ev
en

ue
s

5
5,

98
1,

50
0

5,
98

1,
50

0
3,

98
1,

27
6

O
th

er
 C

ity
 T

ax
es

:
U

til
ity

 T
ax

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t E
xc

is
e 

Ta
xe

s
6

14
2,

79
8

14
2,

79
8

10
5,

80
4

U
til

ity
 fr

an
ci

se
 ta

x 
(I

ow
a 

C
od

e 
C

ha
pt

er
 3

64
.2

)
7

0
0

Pa
rim

ut
ue

l w
ag

er
 ta

x
8

0
0

G
am

in
g 

w
ag

er
 ta

x
9

0
0

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
xe

s
10

42
,8

91
42

,8
91

29
,2

29
H

ot
el

/M
ot

el
 T

ax
es

11
39

6,
20

0
39

6,
20

0
79

2,
40

0
75

4,
25

2
O

th
er

 L
oc

al
 O

pt
io

n 
Ta

xe
s

12
7,

28
8,

79
7

7,
28

8,
79

7
6,

00
7,

69
0

Su
bt

ot
al

 - 
O

th
er

 C
ity

 T
ax

es
 (l

in
es

 6
 th

ru
 1

2)
13

58
1,

88
9

7,
68

4,
99

7
0

0
8,

26
6,

88
6

6,
89

6,
97

5
Li

ce
ns

es
 &

 P
er

m
its

14
1,

02
7,

03
0

1,
02

7,
03

0
1,

53
1,

72
2

U
se

 o
f M

on
ey

 &
 P

ro
pe

rty
15

53
,9

73
24

8,
08

8
86

,9
64

14
1,

46
8

53
0,

49
3

1,
71

0,
38

6
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l:

Fe
de

ra
l G

ra
nt

s &
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
16

1,
99

7,
90

6
1,

99
7,

90
6

2,
73

6,
34

1
R

oa
d 

U
se

 T
ax

es
17

6,
32

7,
56

8
6,

32
7,

56
8

5,
87

9,
63

1
O

th
er

 S
ta

te
 G

ra
nt

s &
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
18

88
8,

03
1

17
,3

61
1,

56
1,

37
0

2,
46

6,
76

2
1,

72
0,

17
0

Lo
ca

l G
ra

nt
s &

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

19
1,

98
7,

00
6

1,
50

0,
00

0
3,

48
7,

00
6

3,
91

7,
31

6
Su

bt
ot

al
 - 

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l (
lin

es
 1

6 
th

ru
 1

9)
20

2,
87

5,
03

7
8,

32
5,

47
4

0
17

,3
61

3,
06

1,
37

0
0

14
,2

79
,2

42
14

,2
53

,4
58

C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r F

ee
s &

 S
er

vi
ce

:
W

at
er

 U
til

ity
21

0
0

Se
w

er
 U

til
ity

22
7,

82
5,

60
4

7,
82

5,
60

4
7,

06
7,

37
1

El
ec

tri
c 

U
til

ity
23

0
0

G
as

 U
til

ity
24

0
0

Pa
rk

in
g

25
18

4,
69

7
18

4,
69

7
98

,2
18

A
irp

or
t

26
0

0
La

nd
fil

l/G
ar

ba
ge

27
3,

03
4,

29
6

3,
03

4,
29

6
2,

85
4,

97
6

H
os

pi
ta

l
28

0
0

Tr
an

si
t

29
0

0
C

ab
le

 T
V,

 In
te

rn
et

 &
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

30
51

6,
47

8
51

6,
47

8
52

1,
64

9
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

31
0

0
St

or
m

 W
at

er
 U

til
ity

32
1,

10
7,

68
4

1,
10

7,
68

4
1,

05
4,

24
9

O
th

er
 F

ee
s &

 C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r S

er
vi

ce
33

1,
91

7,
52

4
20

6,
70

6
2,

12
4,

23
0

1,
46

2,
40

8
Su

bt
ot

al
 - 

C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r 

Se
rv

ic
e 

(li
ne

s 2
1 

th
ru

 3
3)

34
1,

91
7,

52
4

90
7,

88
1

0
0

0
11

,9
67

,5
84

14
,7

92
,9

89
13

,0
58

,8
71

Sp
ec

ia
l A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
35

0
39

,9
65

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
36

12
8,

79
2

12
9,

95
5

90
,6

05
30

4,
14

9
65

3,
50

1
4,

06
3,

65
4

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

: 
R

eg
ul

ar
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

37
3,

28
3,

35
9

91
6,

24
0

20
1,

00
0

1,
58

1,
22

0
28

3,
44

0
6,

26
5,

25
9

10
,5

44
,2

72

In
te

rn
al

 T
IF

 L
oa

n 
Tr

an
sf

er
s I

n
38

5,
98

1,
50

0
5,

98
1,

50
0

4,
03

9,
83

9
Su

bt
ot

al
 A

LL
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

39
3,

28
3,

35
9

91
6,

24
0

0
20

1,
00

0
7,

56
2,

72
0

0
28

3,
44

0
12

,2
46

,7
59

14
,5

84
,1

11
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f D
eb

t (
Ex

cl
ud

in
g 

TI
F 

In
te

rn
al

 B
or

ro
w

in
g)

40
0

3,
60

2,
71

9
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f C
ap

ita
l A

ss
et

 S
al

es
41

0
0

Su
bt

ot
al

-O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

 (l
in

es
 3

6 
th

ru
 3

8)
42

3,
28

3,
35

9
91

6,
24

0
0

20
1,

00
0

7,
56

2,
72

0
0

28
3,

44
0

12
,2

46
,7

59
18

,1
86

,8
30

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s e
xc

ep
t f

or
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

  (
lin

es
 3

, 4
, 5

, 1
2,

 1
3,

14
, 1

9,
 3

3,
 3

4,
 3

5,
 &

 3
9)

43
27

,2
71

,0
45

22
,4

84
,2

04
5,

98
1,

50
0

87
2,

85
0

10
,8

01
,6

59
0

12
,6

96
,6

41
80

,1
07

,8
99

86
,7

81
,9

70

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 Ju
ly

 1
44

10
,9

82
,2

88
47

,4
07

,9
86

0
57

7,
49

3
22

,2
71

,7
57

0
21

,7
81

,2
38

10
3,

02
0,

76
2

89
,4

41
,2

12
TO

TA
L

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

&
 B

E
G

IN
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 (l
in

es
 4

1+
42

)
45

38
,2

53
,3

33
69

,8
92

,1
90

5,
98

1,
50

0
1,

45
0,

34
3

33
,0

73
,4

16
0

34
,4

77
,8

79
18

3,
12

8,
66

1
17

6,
22

3,
18

2

20

Item 3.



E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 P

A
G

E
 1

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
2 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

SP
E

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
T

IF
 S

PE
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

D
E

B
T

SE
R

V
IC

E
C

A
PI

TA
L

PR
O

JE
C

T
S

PE
R

M
A

N
E

N
T

PR
O

PR
IE

TA
R

Y
B

U
D

G
E

T
20

23
R

E
-

E
ST

IM
AT

E
D

20
22

A
C

T
U

A
L

20
21

PU
B

L
IC

 S
A

FE
T

Y
Po

lic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/C

rim
e 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n
1

6,
24

8,
55

0
1,

02
3,

79
0

7,
27

2,
34

0
6,

44
1,

31
6

6,
52

0,
18

9
Ja

il
2

0
0

0
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

3
57

6,
59

0
57

6,
59

0
53

9,
73

0
40

5,
60

3
Fl

oo
d 

C
on

tro
l

4
0

0
0

Fi
re

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

5
3,

70
5,

53
0

66
5,

07
0

4,
37

0,
60

0
4,

44
4,

68
3

4,
03

5,
15

9
A

m
bu

la
nc

e
6

0
0

0
B

ui
ld

in
g 

In
sp

ec
tio

ns
7

1,
06

6,
18

0
1,

06
6,

18
0

91
9,

63
2

86
6,

74
3

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

Se
rv

ic
es

8
0

0
0

A
ni

m
al

 C
on

tro
l

9
12

3,
00

0
12

3,
00

0
12

3,
00

0
11

8,
65

7
O

th
er

 P
ub

lic
 S

af
et

y
10

38
,0

00
38

,0
00

38
,0

00
68

,7
11

TO
TA

L 
(li

ne
s 1

 - 
10

)
11

11
,7

57
,8

50
1,

68
8,

86
0

0
13

,4
46

,7
10

12
,5

06
,3

61
12

,0
15

,0
62

PU
B

L
IC

 W
O

R
K

S
R

oa
ds

, B
rid

ge
s, 

&
 S

id
ew

al
ks

12
17

,2
91

,2
50

17
,2

91
,2

50
18

,9
26

,5
07

10
,1

21
,8

64
Pa

rk
in

g 
- M

et
er

 a
nd

 O
ff-

St
re

et
13

39
8,

64
0

39
8,

64
0

30
2,

86
7

28
2,

76
4

St
re

et
 L

ig
ht

in
g

14
0

0
0

Tr
af

fic
 C

on
tro

l a
nd

 S
af

et
y

15
0

0
0

Sn
ow

 R
em

ov
al

16
0

0
0

H
ig

hw
ay

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g

17
1,

75
9,

20
0

1,
75

9,
20

0
1,

59
1,

82
9

1,
40

5,
53

2
St

re
et

 C
le

an
in

g
18

0
0

0
A

irp
or

t
19

0
0

0
G

ar
ba

ge
 (i

f n
ot

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e)

20
0

0
0

O
th

er
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
21

0
0

0
TO

TA
L 

(li
ne

s 1
2 

- 2
1)

22
1,

75
9,

20
0

17
,6

89
,8

90
0

19
,4

49
,0

90
20

,8
21

,2
03

11
,8

10
,1

60
H

E
A

LT
H

 &
 S

O
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
W

el
fa

re
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e
23

0
0

0
C

ity
 H

os
pi

ta
l

24
15

,0
00

15
,0

00
32

,0
00

20
3,

75
7

Pa
ym

en
ts

 to
 P

riv
at

e 
H

os
pi

ta
ls

25
0

0
0

H
ea

lth
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
an

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n

26
13

,0
00

13
,0

00
13

,0
00

13
,0

00
W

at
er

, A
ir,

 a
nd

 M
os

qu
ito

 C
on

tro
l

27
0

0
0

C
om

m
un

ity
 M

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
28

0
0

0
O

th
er

 H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l S
er

vi
ce

s
29

0
0

0
TO

TA
L 

(li
ne

s 2
3 

- 2
9)

30
13

,0
00

15
,0

00
0

28
,0

00
45

,0
00

21
6,

75
7

C
U

LT
U

R
E

 &
 R

E
C

R
E

AT
IO

N
Li

br
ar

y 
Se

rv
ic

es
31

2,
31

9,
75

0
2,

31
9,

75
0

2,
09

4,
11

8
2,

12
1,

74
1

M
us

eu
m

, B
an

d 
an

d 
Th

ea
te

r
32

61
7,

04
0

25
,0

00
64

2,
04

0
52

2,
65

9
48

5,
82

7
Pa

rk
s

33
1,

84
9,

29
0

70
,0

00
1,

91
9,

29
0

1,
98

6,
84

6
1,

58
5,

98
5

R
ec

re
at

io
n

34
2,

09
7,

37
0

39
5,

00
0

2,
49

2,
37

0
2,

31
9,

37
6

1,
40

0,
38

0
C

em
et

er
y

35
39

7,
94

0
39

7,
94

0
39

4,
81

1
29

9,
46

2
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
en

te
r, 

Zo
o,

 &
 M

ar
in

a
36

94
,3

80
94

,3
80

54
,3

04
51

,7
96

O
th

er
 C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
37

75
,0

00
72

4,
33

0
79

9,
33

0
72

6,
46

9
1,

11
2,

05
6

TO
TA

L 
(li

ne
s 3

1 
- 3

7)
38

7,
35

6,
39

0
1,

30
8,

71
0

0
8,

66
5,

10
0

8,
09

8,
58

3
7,

05
7,

24
7

21

Item 3.



E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

SC
H

E
D

U
L

E
 P

A
G

E
 2

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
2 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

SP
E

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
T

IF
 S

PE
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

D
E

B
T

SE
R

V
IC

E
C

A
PI

TA
L

PR
O

JE
C

T
S

PE
R

M
A

N
E

N
T

PR
O

PR
IE

TA
R

Y
B

U
D

G
E

T
20

23
R

E
-

E
ST

IM
AT

E
D

20
22

A
C

T
U

A
L

20
21

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 &
 E

C
O

N
O

M
IC

 D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

C
om

m
un

ity
 B

ea
ut

ifi
ca

tio
n

39
72

,8
10

72
,8

10
49

,3
80

30
4,

82
6

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
40

0
0

0
H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 U

rb
an

 R
en

ew
al

41
1,

74
1,

94
0

1,
74

1,
94

0
2,

03
2,

16
7

1,
82

7,
60

9
Pl

an
ni

ng
 &

 Z
on

in
g

42
76

5,
19

0
76

5,
19

0
78

4,
20

9
64

8,
51

9
O

th
er

 C
om

 &
 E

co
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
43

40
9,

66
0

40
9,

66
0

20
2,

65
1

19
2,

18
9

TI
F 

R
eb

at
es

44
0

0
0

TO
TA

L 
(li

ne
s 3

9 
- 4

4)
45

1,
17

4,
85

0
1,

81
4,

75
0

0
0

2,
98

9,
60

0
3,

06
8,

40
7

2,
97

3,
14

3
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

M
ay

or
, C

ou
nc

il,
 &

 C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

46
90

4,
23

0
90

4,
23

0
83

6,
66

3
68

5,
38

6
C

le
rk

, T
re

as
ur

er
, &

 F
in

an
ce

 A
dm

.
47

1,
86

9,
46

0
1,

86
9,

46
0

1,
57

6,
80

3
1,

34
5,

27
7

El
ec

tio
ns

48
0

40
,0

00
50

,2
35

Le
ga

l S
er

vi
ce

s &
 C

ity
 A

tto
rn

ey
49

41
4,

81
0

41
4,

81
0

39
1,

02
8

53
7,

63
6

C
ity

 H
al

l &
 G

en
er

al
 B

ui
ld

in
gs

50
1,

00
5,

96
0

1,
00

5,
96

0
82

6,
88

2
95

9,
88

8
To

rt 
Li

ab
ili

ty
51

24
9,

34
0

24
9,

34
0

12
5,

02
0

23
4,

97
0

O
th

er
 G

en
er

al
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t
52

1,
20

5,
51

0
66

0,
89

0
1,

86
6,

40
0

1,
68

0,
05

4
1,

11
3,

29
8

TO
TA

L 
(li

ne
s 4

6 
- 5

2)
53

5,
64

9,
31

0
66

0,
89

0
0

0
6,

31
0,

20
0

5,
47

6,
45

0
4,

92
6,

69
0

D
E

B
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

54
2,

12
9,

20
0

2,
12

9,
20

0
90

4,
28

0
85

3,
22

2
G

ov
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s
55

14
,5

36
,2

60
14

,5
36

,2
60

9,
80

5,
54

2
10

,4
42

,8
71

TI
F 

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

56
15

,9
79

,2
10

15
,9

79
,2

10
8,

27
6,

97
0

0
TO

TA
L 

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

57
0

0
0

30
,5

15
,4

70
0

30
,5

15
,4

70
18

,0
82

,5
12

10
,4

42
,8

71
TO

TA
L

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t A

ct
iv

iti
es

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s  
(li

ne
s

11
+2

2+
30

+3
8+

45
+5

3+
54

+5
7)

58
27

,7
10

,6
00

23
,1

78
,1

00
0

2,
12

9,
20

0
30

,5
15

,4
70

0
83

,5
33

,3
70

69
,0

02
,7

96
50

,2
95

,1
52

B
U

SI
N

E
SS

 T
Y

PE
 A

C
T

IV
IT

IE
S

Pr
op

ri
et

ar
y:

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

&
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

IS
F

W
at

er
 U

til
ity

59
0

0
0

Se
w

er
 U

til
ity

60
3,

63
8,

38
0

3,
63

8,
38

0
3,

05
2,

77
5

3,
34

5,
23

2
El

ec
tri

c 
U

til
ity

61
0

0
0

G
as

 U
til

ity
62

0
0

0
A

irp
or

t
63

0
0

0
La

nd
fil

l/G
ar

ba
ge

64
3,

32
4,

06
0

3,
32

4,
06

0
3,

33
0,

75
5

2,
85

2,
83

4
Tr

an
si

t
65

0
0

0
C

ab
le

 T
V,

 In
te

rn
et

 &
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

66
0

0
0

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
67

0
0

0
St

or
m

 W
at

er
 U

til
ity

68
1,

76
1,

23
0

1,
76

1,
23

0
99

0,
34

8
56

9,
50

6
O

th
er

 B
us

in
es

s T
yp

e 
(c

ity
 h

os
p.

, I
SF

, p
ar

ki
ng

, e
tc

.)
69

0
0

0
En

te
rp

ris
e 

D
EB

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
70

48
1,

74
0

48
1,

74
0

1,
54

9,
90

0
1,

55
5,

58
5

En
te

rp
ris

e 
C

A
PI

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
C

TS
71

0
3,

22
1,

33
0

0
En

te
rp

ris
e 

TI
F 

C
A

PI
TA

L 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

72
0

0
0

TO
TA

L
 B

us
in

es
s T

yp
e 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s (
lin

es
 5

9 
- 7

2)
73

9,
20

5,
41

0
9,

20
5,

41
0

12
,1

45
,1

08
8,

32
3,

15
7

TO
TA

L
 A

L
L

 E
X

PE
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S 

(li
ne

s 5
8 

+ 
73

)
74

27
,7

10
,6

00
23

,1
78

,1
00

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

30
,5

15
,4

70
0

9,
20

5,
41

0
92

,7
38

,7
80

81
,1

47
,9

04
58

,6
18

,3
09

R
eg

ul
ar

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
75

1,
59

1,
83

0
3,

21
9,

54
0

40
0,

00
0

2,
59

4,
18

0
7,

80
5,

55
0

6,
26

5,
25

9
10

,5
44

,2
72

In
te

rn
al

 T
IF

 L
oa

n 
/ R

ep
ay

m
en

t T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
76

5,
98

5,
02

0
5,

98
5,

02
0

5,
98

1,
50

0
4,

03
9,

83
9

To
ta

l A
L

L
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 O
ut

77
1,

59
1,

83
0

3,
21

9,
54

0
5,

98
5,

02
0

0
40

0,
00

0
0

2,
59

4,
18

0
13

,7
90

,5
70

12
,2

46
,7

59
14

,5
84

,1
11

To
ta

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s &
 F

un
d 

Tr
an

sf
er

s O
ut

 (l
in

es
 7

4+
77

)
78

29
,3

02
,4

30
26

,3
97

,6
40

5,
98

5,
02

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

30
,9

15
,4

70
0

11
,7

99
,5

90
10

6,
52

9,
35

0
93

,3
94

,6
63

73
,2

02
,4

20
E

nd
in

g 
Fu

nd
 B

al
an

ce
 J

un
e 

30
79

10
,9

82
,2

88
37

,3
86

,5
52

0
54

6,
06

3
2,

02
0,

45
4

0
21

,6
05

,6
41

72
,5

40
,9

98
89

,7
33

,9
98

10
3,

02
0,

76
2

22

Item 3.



R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

D
E

TA
IL

C
ity

 N
am

e:
   

 C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

Fi
sc

al
 Y

ea
r J

ul
y 

1,
 2

02
2 

- J
un

e 
30

, 2
02

3

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
SP

E
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

T
IF

 S
PE

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
D

E
B

T
SE

R
V

IC
E

C
A

PI
TA

L
PR

O
JE

C
T

S
PE

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
PR

O
PR

IE
TA

R
Y

B
U

D
G

E
T

20
23

R
E

-
E

ST
IM

AT
E

D
20

22
A

C
T

U
A

L
20

21

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S 

&
 O

T
H

E
R

 F
IN

A
N

C
IN

G
 S

O
U

R
C

E
S

Ta
xe

s L
ev

ie
d 

on
 P

ro
pe

rty
1

18
,5

79
,1

73
4,

26
7,

60
8

1,
05

9,
77

9
0

23
,9

06
,5

60
22

,3
29

,4
99

23
,0

58
,8

33
Le

ss
: U

nc
ol

le
ct

ed
 P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
es

 - 
Le

vy
 Y

ea
r

2
0

0
0

N
et

 C
ur

re
nt

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
 (l

in
e 

1 
m

in
us

 li
ne

 2
)

3
18

,5
79

,1
73

4,
26

7,
60

8
1,

05
9,

77
9

0
23

,9
06

,5
60

22
,3

29
,4

99
23

,0
58

,8
33

D
el

in
qu

en
t P

ro
pe

rty
 T

ax
es

4
0

0
0

TI
F 

R
ev

en
ue

s
5

5,
98

5,
02

0
5,

98
5,

02
0

5,
98

1,
50

0
3,

98
1,

27
6

O
th

er
 C

ity
 T

ax
es

:
U

til
ity

 T
ax

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t E
xc

is
e 

Ta
xe

s
6

38
,1

14
8,

61
0

1,
97

1
0

48
,6

95
14

2,
79

8
10

5,
80

4
U

til
ity

 fr
an

ci
se

 ta
x 

(I
ow

a 
C

od
e 

C
ha

pt
er

 3
64

.2
)

7
0

0
0

Pa
rim

ut
ue

l w
ag

er
 ta

x
8

0
0

0
G

am
in

g 
w

ag
er

 ta
x

9
0

0
0

M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Ta
xe

s
10

31
,0

00
31

,0
00

42
,8

91
29

,2
29

H
ot

el
/M

ot
el

 T
ax

es
11

40
0,

00
0

40
0,

00
0

80
0,

00
0

79
2,

40
0

75
4,

25
2

O
th

er
 L

oc
al

 O
pt

io
n 

Ta
xe

s
12

7,
20

0,
00

0
7,

20
0,

00
0

7,
28

8,
79

7
6,

00
7,

69
0

Su
bt

ot
al

 - 
O

th
er

 C
ity

 T
ax

es
 (l

in
es

 6
 th

ru
 1

2)
13

46
9,

11
4

7,
60

8,
61

0
1,

97
1

0
8,

07
9,

69
5

8,
26

6,
88

6
6,

89
6,

97
5

Li
ce

ns
es

 &
 P

er
m

its
14

1,
03

1,
00

0
1,

03
1,

00
0

1,
02

7,
03

0
1,

53
1,

72
2

U
se

 o
f M

on
ey

 &
 P

ro
pe

rty
15

44
,9

00
31

2,
55

2
10

0,
00

0
17

6,
00

0
63

3,
45

2
53

0,
49

3
1,

71
0,

38
6

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l:
Fe

de
ra

l G
ra

nt
s &

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

16
1,

74
1,

94
0

0
1,

74
1,

94
0

1,
99

7,
90

6
2,

73
6,

34
1

R
oa

d 
U

se
 T

ax
es

17
5,

15
0,

19
0

5,
15

0,
19

0
6,

32
7,

56
8

5,
87

9,
63

1
O

th
er

 S
ta

te
 G

ra
nt

s &
 R

ei
m

bu
rs

em
en

ts
18

70
5,

50
0

6,
42

5,
00

0
7,

13
0,

50
0

2,
46

6,
76

2
1,

72
0,

17
0

Lo
ca

l G
ra

nt
s &

 R
ei

m
bu

rs
em

en
ts

19
2,

17
7,

39
0

1,
50

0,
00

0
3,

67
7,

39
0

3,
48

7,
00

6
3,

91
7,

31
6

Su
bt

ot
al

 - 
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l (

lin
es

 1
6 

th
ru

 1
9)

20
2,

88
2,

89
0

6,
89

2,
13

0
0

0
7,

92
5,

00
0

0
17

,7
00

,0
20

14
,2

79
,2

42
14

,2
53

,4
58

C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r F

ee
s &

 S
er

vi
ce

:
W

at
er

 U
til

ity
21

0
0

0
Se

w
er

 U
til

ity
22

7,
91

8,
00

0
7,

91
8,

00
0

7,
82

5,
60

4
7,

06
7,

37
1

El
ec

tri
c 

U
til

ity
23

0
0

0
G

as
 U

til
ity

24
0

0
0

Pa
rk

in
g

25
20

0,
00

0
20

0,
00

0
18

4,
69

7
98

,2
18

A
irp

or
t

26
0

0
0

La
nd

fil
l/G

ar
ba

ge
27

2,
96

2,
00

0
2,

96
2,

00
0

3,
03

4,
29

6
2,

85
4,

97
6

H
os

pi
ta

l
28

0
0

0
Tr

an
si

t
29

0
0

0
C

ab
le

 T
V,

 In
te

rn
et

 &
 T

el
ep

ho
ne

30
52

5,
00

0
52

5,
00

0
51

6,
47

8
52

1,
64

9
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ut
ho

rit
y

31
0

0
0

St
or

m
 W

at
er

 U
til

ity
32

1,
07

5,
00

0
1,

07
5,

00
0

1,
10

7,
68

4
1,

05
4,

24
9

O
th

er
 F

ee
s &

 C
ha

rg
es

 fo
r S

er
vi

ce
33

2,
05

0,
55

0
49

0,
00

0
2,

54
0,

55
0

2,
12

4,
23

0
1,

46
2,

40
8

Su
bt

ot
al

 - 
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r S
er

vi
ce

 (l
in

es
 2

1 
th

ru
 3

3)
34

2,
05

0,
55

0
1,

21
5,

00
0

0
0

0
11

,9
55

,0
00

15
,2

20
,5

50
14

,7
92

,9
89

13
,0

58
,8

71
Sp

ec
ia

l A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

35
0

0
39

,9
65

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
36

19
2,

98
3

15
3,

75
0

50
2,

75
0

25
5,

00
0

1,
10

4,
48

3
65

3,
50

1
4,

06
3,

65
4

O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

:
R

eg
ul

ar
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

37
4,

05
1,

82
0

83
6,

73
0

1,
06

7,
45

0
1,

54
7,

25
0

30
2,

30
0

7,
80

5,
55

0
6,

26
5,

25
9

10
,5

44
,2

72
In

te
rn

al
 T

IF
 L

oa
n 

Tr
an

sf
er

s I
n

38
5,

98
5,

02
0

5,
98

5,
02

0
5,

98
1,

50
0

4,
03

9,
83

9
Su

bt
ot

al
 A

L
L

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Tr

an
sf

er
s I

n
39

4,
05

1,
82

0
83

6,
73

0
0

1,
06

7,
45

0
7,

53
2,

27
0

0
30

2,
30

0
13

,7
90

,5
70

12
,2

46
,7

59
14

,5
84

,1
11

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 o
f D

eb
t (

Ex
cl

ud
in

g 
TI

F 
In

te
rn

al
 B

or
ro

w
in

g)
40

1,
88

5,
00

0
1,

88
5,

00
0

0
3,

60
2,

71
9

Pr
oc

ee
ds

 o
f C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
 S

al
es

41
0

0
0

Su
bt

ot
al

-O
th

er
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 S
ou

rc
es

 (l
in

es
 3

8 
th

ru
 4

0)
42

4,
05

1,
82

0
83

6,
73

0
0

1,
06

7,
45

0
9,

41
7,

27
0

0
30

2,
30

0
15

,6
75

,5
70

12
,2

46
,7

59
18

,1
86

,8
30

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s e
xc

ep
t f

or
 b

eg
in

ni
ng

 fu
nd

 b
al

an
ce

   
(li

ne
s 3

, 4
, 5

, 1
3,

 1
4,

 1
5,

20
, 3

4,
 3

5,
 3

6,
 &

 4
1)

43
29

,3
02

,4
30

21
,2

86
,3

80
5,

98
5,

02
0

2,
12

9,
20

0
17

,9
45

,0
20

0
12

,6
88

,3
00

89
,3

36
,3

50
80

,1
07

,8
99

86
,7

81
,9

70

B
eg

in
ni

ng
 F

un
d 

B
al

an
ce

 Ju
ly

 1
44

10
,9

82
,2

88
42

,4
97

,8
12

0
54

6,
06

3
14

,9
90

,9
04

0
20

,7
16

,9
31

89
,7

33
,9

98
10

3,
02

0,
76

2
89

,4
41

,2
12

TO
TA

L
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S 
&

 B
E

G
IN

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 (l

in
es

 4
2+

43
)

45
40

,2
84

,7
18

63
,7

84
,1

92
5,

98
5,

02
0

2,
67

5,
26

3
32

,9
35

,9
24

0
33

,4
05

,2
31

17
9,

07
0,

34
8

18
3,

12
8,

66
1

17
6,

22
3,

18
2

23

Item 3.



A
D

O
PT

E
D

 B
U

D
G

E
T

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y
C

ity
 N

am
e:

   
 C

ED
A

R
 F

A
LL

S
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r J
ul

y 
1,

 2
02

2 
- J

un
e 

30
, 2

02
3

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
SP

E
C

IA
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
S

T
IF

 S
PE

C
IA

L
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
D

E
B

T
SE

R
V

IC
E

C
A

PI
TA

L
PR

O
JE

C
T

S
PE

R
M

A
N

E
N

T
PR

O
PR

IE
TA

R
Y

B
U

D
G

E
T

20
23

R
E

-
E

ST
IM

AT
E

D
20

22
A

C
T

U
A

L
20

21

R
ev

en
ue

s &
 O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 S

ou
rc

es
Ta

xe
s L

ev
ie

d 
on

 P
ro

pe
rty

1
18

,5
79

,1
73

4,
26

7,
60

8
1,

05
9,

77
9

0
23

,9
06

,5
60

22
,3

29
,4

99
23

,0
58

,8
33

Le
ss

: U
nc

ol
le

ct
ed

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
-L

ev
y 

Ye
ar

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
et

 C
ur

re
nt

 P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
3

18
,5

79
,1

73
4,

26
7,

60
8

1,
05

9,
77

9
0

23
,9

06
,5

60
22

,3
29

,4
99

23
,0

58
,8

33
D

el
in

qu
en

t P
ro

pe
rty

 T
ax

es
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
TI

F 
R

ev
en

ue
s

5
5,

98
5,

02
0

5,
98

5,
02

0
5,

98
1,

50
0

3,
98

1,
27

6
O

th
er

 C
ity

 T
ax

es
6

46
9,

11
4

7,
60

8,
61

0
1,

97
1

0
8,

07
9,

69
5

8,
26

6,
88

6
6,

89
6,

97
5

Li
ce

ns
es

 &
 P

er
m

its
7

1,
03

1,
00

0
0

0
1,

03
1,

00
0

1,
02

7,
03

0
1,

53
1,

72
2

U
se

 o
f M

on
ey

 a
nd

 P
ro

pe
rty

8
44

,9
00

31
2,

55
2

0
0

10
0,

00
0

0
17

6,
00

0
63

3,
45

2
53

0,
49

3
1,

71
0,

38
6

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l
9

2,
88

2,
89

0
6,

89
2,

13
0

0
0

7,
92

5,
00

0
0

17
,7

00
,0

20
14

,2
79

,2
42

14
,2

53
,4

58
C

ha
rg

es
 fo

r F
ee

s &
 S

er
vi

ce
10

2,
05

0,
55

0
1,

21
5,

00
0

0
0

0
11

,9
55

,0
00

15
,2

20
,5

50
14

,7
92

,9
89

13
,0

58
,8

71
Sp

ec
ia

l A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

11
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

39
,9

65
M

is
ce

lla
ne

ou
s

12
19

2,
98

3
15

3,
75

0
0

50
2,

75
0

0
25

5,
00

0
1,

10
4,

48
3

65
3,

50
1

4,
06

3,
65

4
Su

b-
To

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
s

13
25

,2
50

,6
10

20
,4

49
,6

50
5,

98
5,

02
0

1,
06

1,
75

0
8,

52
7,

75
0

0
12

,3
86

,0
00

73
,6

60
,7

80
67

,8
61

,1
40

68
,5

95
,1

40
O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 S

ou
rc

es
:

To
ta

l T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 In

14
4,

05
1,

82
0

83
6,

73
0

0
1,

06
7,

45
0

7,
53

2,
27

0
0

30
2,

30
0

13
,7

90
,5

70
12

,2
46

,7
59

14
,5

84
,1

11
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f D
eb

t
15

0
0

0
0

1,
88

5,
00

0
0

1,
88

5,
00

0
0

3,
60

2,
71

9
Pr

oc
ee

ds
 o

f C
ap

ita
l A

ss
et

 S
al

es
16

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

s a
nd

 O
th

er
 S

ou
rc

es
17

29
,3

02
,4

30
21

,2
86

,3
80

5,
98

5,
02

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

17
,9

45
,0

20
0

12
,6

88
,3

00
89

,3
36

,3
50

80
,1

07
,8

99
86

,7
81

,9
70

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s &
 O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

ng
 U

se
s

Pu
bl

ic
 S

af
et

y
18

11
,7

57
,8

50
1,

68
8,

86
0

0
0

13
,4

46
,7

10
12

,5
06

,3
61

12
,0

15
,0

62
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
19

1,
75

9,
20

0
17

,6
89

,8
90

0
0

19
,4

49
,0

90
20

,8
21

,2
03

11
,8

10
,1

60
H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s

20
13

,0
00

15
,0

00
0

0
28

,0
00

45
,0

00
21

6,
75

7
C

ul
tu

re
 a

nd
 R

ec
re

at
io

n
21

7,
35

6,
39

0
1,

30
8,

71
0

0
0

8,
66

5,
10

0
8,

09
8,

58
3

7,
05

7,
24

7
C

om
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 E
co

no
m

ic
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

22
1,

17
4,

85
0

1,
81

4,
75

0
0

0
2,

98
9,

60
0

3,
06

8,
40

7
2,

97
3,

14
3

G
en

er
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t

23
5,

64
9,

31
0

66
0,

89
0

0
0

6,
31

0,
20

0
5,

47
6,

45
0

4,
92

6,
69

0
D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
24

0
0

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

90
4,

28
0

85
3,

22
2

C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s

25
0

0
0

30
,5

15
,4

70
0

30
,5

15
,4

70
18

,0
82

,5
12

10
,4

42
,8

71
To

ta
l G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
ct

iv
iti

es
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

26
27

,7
10

,6
00

23
,1

78
,1

00
0

2,
12

9,
20

0
30

,5
15

,4
70

0
83

,5
33

,3
70

69
,0

02
,7

96
50

,2
95

,1
52

B
us

in
es

s T
yp

e 
Pr

op
rie

tra
y:

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

&
 IS

F
27

9,
20

5,
41

0
9,

20
5,

41
0

12
,1

45
,1

08
8,

32
3,

15
7

To
ta

l G
ov

 &
 B

us
 T

yp
e 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
28

27
,7

10
,6

00
23

,1
78

,1
00

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

30
,5

15
,4

70
0

9,
20

5,
41

0
92

,7
38

,7
80

81
,1

47
,9

04
58

,6
18

,3
09

To
ta

l T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
29

1,
59

1,
83

0
3,

21
9,

54
0

5,
98

5,
02

0
0

40
0,

00
0

0
2,

59
4,

18
0

13
,7

90
,5

70
12

,2
46

,7
59

14
,5

84
,1

11
To

ta
l A

LL
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s/

Fu
nd

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 O

ut
30

29
,3

02
,4

30
26

,3
97

,6
40

5,
98

5,
02

0
2,

12
9,

20
0

30
,9

15
,4

70
0

11
,7

99
,5

90
10

6,
52

9,
35

0
93

,3
94

,6
63

73
,2

02
,4

20
Ex

ce
ss

 R
ev

en
ue

s &
 O

th
er

 S
ou

rc
es

 O
ve

r
31

(U
nd

er
) E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s/

Tr
an

sf
er

s O
ut

32
0

-5
,1

11
,2

60
0

0
-1

2,
97

0,
45

0
0

88
8,

71
0

-1
7,

19
3,

00
0

-1
3,

28
6,

76
4

13
,5

79
,5

50
B

eg
in

ni
ng

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce
 J

ul
y 

1
33

10
,9

82
,2

88
42

,4
97

,8
12

0
54

6,
06

3
14

,9
90

,9
04

0
20

,7
16

,9
31

89
,7

33
,9

98
10

3,
02

0,
76

2
89

,4
41

,2
12

E
nd

in
g 

Fu
nd

 B
al

an
ce

 J
un

e 
30

34
10

,9
82

,2
88

37
,3

86
,5

52
0

54
6,

06
3

2,
02

0,
45

4
0

21
,6

05
,6

41
72

,5
40

,9
98

89
,7

33
,9

98
10

3,
02

0,
76

2

24

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

1
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

20
14

 S
R

F 
Lo

an
1

6,
88

8,
10

4
N

O
N

-G
O

17
39

1
33

9,
00

0
14

2,
74

0
48

1,
74

0
48

1,
74

0
0

20
16

 G
O

 B
on

ds
2

2,
86

5,
00

0
G

O
20

01
9

27
5,

00
0

22
,6

00
29

7,
60

0
29

7,
60

0
20

18
 G

O
 B

on
ds

3
2,

86
0,

00
0

G
O

21
08

1
28

0,
00

0
84

,8
50

36
4,

85
0

36
4,

85
0

20
20

 G
O

 B
on

ds
4

3,
43

0,
00

0
G

O
21

98
6

34
0,

00
0

59
,3

00
39

9,
30

0
39

9,
30

0
20

16
 S

ew
er

 B
on

ds
5

6,
79

0,
00

0
G

O
20

01
9

60
0,

00
0

76
,3

00
67

6,
30

0
67

6,
30

0
0

20
18

 S
ew

er
 B

on
ds

6
2,

16
0,

00
0

G
O

21
08

1
21

0,
00

0
63

,9
00

27
3,

90
0

27
3,

90
0

0
20

18
 S

to
rm

w
at

er
 B

on
ds

7
92

0,
00

0
G

O
21

08
1

90
,0

00
27

,2
50

11
7,

25
0

11
7,

25
0

0
8

N
O

N
-G

O
0

0
9

-
0

0
10

-
0

0
11

-
0

0
12

-
0

0
13

-
0

0
14

-
0

0
15

-
0

0
16

-
0

0
17

-
0

0
18

-
0

0
19

-
0

0
20

-
0

0
21

-
0

0
22

-
0

0
23

-
0

0
24

-
0

0
25

-
0

0
26

-
0

0
27

-
0

0
28

-
0

0
29

-
0

0
30

-
0

0
TO

TA
LS

2,
13

4,
00

0
47

6,
94

0
2,

61
0,

94
0

0
0

1,
54

9,
19

0
1,

06
1,

75
0

25

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

2
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

31
-

0
0

32
-

0
0

33
-

0
0

34
-

0
0

35
-

0
0

36
-

0
0

37
-

0
0

38
-

0
0

39
-

0
0

40
-

0
0

41
-

0
0

42
-

0
0

43
-

0
0

44
-

0
0

45
-

0
0

46
-

0
0

47
-

0
0

48
-

0
0

49
-

0
0

50
-

0
0

51
-

0
0

52
-

0
0

53
-

0
0

54
-

0
0

55
-

0
0

56
-

0
0

57
-

0
0

58
-

0
0

59
-

0
0

60
-

0
0

TO
TA

LS
2,

13
4,

00
0

47
6,

94
0

2,
61

0,
94

0
0

0
1,

54
9,

19
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

26

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

3
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

61
-

0
0

62
-

0
0

63
-

0
0

64
-

0
0

65
-

0
0

66
-

0
0

67
-

0
0

68
-

0
0

69
-

0
0

70
-

0
0

71
-

0
0

72
-

0
0

73
-

0
0

74
-

0
0

75
-

0
0

76
-

0
0

77
-

0
0

78
-

0
0

79
-

0
0

80
-

0
0

81
-

0
0

82
-

0
0

83
-

0
0

84
-

0
0

85
-

0
0

86
-

0
0

87
-

0
0

88
-

0
0

89
-

0
0

90
-

0
0

TO
TA

LS
2,

13
4,

00
0

47
6,

94
0

2,
61

0,
94

0
0

0
1,

54
9,

19
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

27

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

4
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

91
-

0
0

92
-

0
0

93
-

0
0

94
-

0
0

95
-

0
0

96
-

0
0

97
-

0
0

98
-

0
0

99
-

0
0

10
0

-
0

0
10

1
-

0
0

10
2

-
0

0
10

3
-

0
0

10
4

-
0

0
10

5
-

0
0

10
6

-
0

0
10

7
-

0
0

10
8

-
0

0
10

9
-

0
0

11
0

-
0

0
11

1
-

0
0

11
2

-
0

0
11

3
-

0
0

11
4

-
0

0
11

5
-

0
0

11
6

-
0

0
11

7
-

0
0

11
8

-
0

0
11

9
-

0
0

12
0

-
0

0
TO

TA
LS

2,
13

4,
00

0
47

6,
94

0
2,

61
0,

94
0

0
0

1,
54

9,
19

0
1,

06
1,

75
0

28

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

5
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

12
1

-
0

0
12

2
-

0
0

12
3

-
0

0
12

4
-

0
0

12
5

-
0

0
12

6
-

0
0

12
7

-
0

0
12

8
-

0
0

12
9

-
0

0
13

0
-

0
0

13
1

-
0

0
13

2
-

0
0

13
3

-
0

0
13

4
-

0
0

13
5

-
0

0
13

6
-

0
0

13
7

-
0

0
13

8
-

0
0

13
9

-
0

0
14

0
-

0
0

14
1

-
0

0
14

2
-

0
0

14
3

-
0

0
14

4
-

0
0

14
5

-
0

0
14

6
-

0
0

14
7

-
0

0
14

8
-

0
0

14
9

-
0

0
15

0
-

0
0

TO
TA

LS
2,

13
4,

00
0

47
6,

94
0

2,
61

0,
94

0
0

0
1,

54
9,

19
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

29

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

6
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

15
1

-
0

0
15

2
-

0
0

15
3

-
0

0
15

4
-

0
0

15
5

-
0

0
15

6
-

0
0

15
7

-
0

0
15

8
-

0
0

15
9

-
0

0
16

0
-

0
0

16
1

-
0

0
16

2
-

0
0

16
3

-
0

0
16

4
-

0
0

16
5

-
0

0
16

6
-

0
0

16
7

-
0

0
16

8
-

0
0

16
9

-
0

0
17

0
-

0
0

17
1

-
0

0
17

2
-

0
0

17
3

-
0

0
17

4
-

0
0

17
5

-
0

0
17

6
-

0
0

17
7

-
0

0
17

8
-

0
0

17
9

-
0

0
18

0
-

0
0

TO
TA

LS
2,

13
4,

00
0

47
6,

94
0

2,
61

0,
94

0
0

0
1,

54
9,

19
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

30

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
LT

 D
E

B
T

7
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS

D
eb

t N
am

e
A

m
ou

nt
of

 Is
su

e
Ty

pe
 o

f
D

eb
t

O
bl

ig
at

io
n

D
eb

t
R

es
ol

ut
io

n
N

um
be

r
Pr

in
ci

pa
l

D
ue

 F
Y

In
te

re
st

D
ue

 F
Y

To
ta

l
O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y

B
on

d 
R

eg
./

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

R
ed

uc
tio

ns
 d

ue
 to

R
ef

in
an

ci
ng

 o
r 

Pr
ep

ay
m

en
t

of
 C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t

Pa
id

 fr
om

 F
un

ds
 O

T
H

E
R

T
H

A
N

 C
ur

re
nt

 Y
ea

r 
D

eb
t

Se
rv

ic
e 

Ta
xe

s

A
m

ou
nt

 P
ai

d
C

ur
re

nt
 Y

ea
r 

D
eb

t
Se

rv
ic

e 
L

ev
y

18
1

-
0

0
18

2
-

0
0

18
3

-
0

0
18

4
-

0
0

18
5

-
0

0
18

6
-

0
0

18
7

-
0

0
18

8
-

0
0

18
9

-
0

0
19

0
-

0
0

19
1

-
0

0
19

2
-

0
0

19
3

-
0

0
19

4
-

0
0

19
5

-
0

0
19

6
-

0
0

19
7

-
0

0
19

8
-

0
0

19
9

-
0

0
20

0
-

0
0

20
1

-
0

0
20

2
-

0
0

20
3

-
0

0
20

4
-

0
0

20
5

-
0

0
20

6
-

0
0

20
7

-
0

0
20

8
-

0
0

20
9

-
0

0
21

0
-

0
0

TO
TA

LS
2,

13
4,

00
0

47
6,

94
0

2,
61

0,
94

0
0

0
1,

54
9,

19
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

31

Item 3.



L
O

N
G

 T
E

R
M

 D
E

B
T

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 - 
G

R
A

N
D

 T
O

TA
L

S
G

EN
ER

A
L 

O
B

LI
G

AT
IO

N
 B

O
N

D
S,

 T
IF

 B
O

N
D

S,
 R

EV
EN

U
E 

B
O

N
D

S,
 L

O
A

N
S,

 L
EA

SE
-P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 P
AY

M
EN

TS
Pr

in
ci

pa
l D

ue
FY

 2
02

3
In

te
re

st
 D

ue
FY

 2
02

3
To

ta
l O

bl
ig

at
io

n
D

ue
 F

Y
 2

02
3

B
on

d 
R

eg
./ 

Pa
yi

ng
 A

ge
nt

Fe
es

 D
ue

 F
Y

 2
02

3
R

ed
uc

tio
ns

 d
ue

 to
 R

ef
in

an
ci

ng
 o

r
Pr

ep
ay

m
en

t o
f C

er
tif

ie
d 

D
eb

t
Pa

id
 fr

om
 S

ou
rc

es
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 B
ud

ge
t

Ye
ar

 D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

y
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d 

B
ud

ge
t Y

ea
r

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 L
ev

y
G

O
 -

TO
TA

L
1,

79
5,

00
0

33
4,

20
0

2,
12

9,
20

0
0

0
1,

06
7,

45
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

N
O

N
 G

O
 -

TO
TA

L
33

9,
00

0
14

2,
74

0
48

1,
74

0
0

0
48

1,
74

0
0

G
R

A
N

D
 -

TO
TA

L
2,

13
4,

00
0

47
6,

94
0

2,
61

0,
94

0
0

0
1,

54
9,

19
0

1,
06

1,
75

0

32

Item 3.



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING -- PROPOSED BUDGET
Fiscal Year July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

City of:   CEDAR FALLS
The City Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed Budget at:     Community Center 528 Main St. Cedar Falls, IA Meeting Date:    3/7/2022   

Meeting Time:    07:00 PM   
At the public hearing any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of , any part of the proposed budget. This notice represents a

summary of the supporting detail of revenues and expenditures on file with the City Clerk and County Auditor.
City budgets are subject to protest. If protest petition requirements are met, the State Appeal Board will hold a local hearing. For more information, consult

https://dom.iowa.gov/local-gov-appeals.

The Budget Estimate Summary of proposed receipts and expenditures is shown below. Copies of the the detailed proposed Budget may be obtained or
viewed at the offices of the Mayor, City Clerk, and at the Library.

The estimated Total tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on regular property
11.51171

The estimated tax levy rate per $1000 valuation on Agricultural land is
3.00372

At the public hearing, any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of, any part of the proposed budget.

Phone Number
(319) 273-8600  City Clerk/Finance Officer's NAME

Jennifer Rodenbeck
Budget FY  2023 Re-estimated FY  2022 Actual FY  2021

Revenues & Other Financing Sources
Taxes Levied on Property 1 23,906,560 22,329,499 23,058,833
Less: Uncollected Property Taxes-Levy Year 2 0 0 0

Net Current Property Taxes 3 23,906,560 22,329,499 23,058,833
Delinquent Property Taxes 4 0 0 0
TIF Revenues 5 5,985,020 5,981,500 3,981,276
Other City Taxes 6 8,079,695 8,266,886 6,896,975
Licenses & Permits 7 1,031,000 1,027,030 1,531,722
Use of Money and Property 8 633,452 530,493 1,710,386
Intergovernmental 9 17,700,020 14,279,242 14,253,458
Charges for Fees & Service 10 15,220,550 14,792,989 13,058,871
Special Assessments 11 0 0 39,965
Miscellaneous 12 1,104,483 653,501 4,063,654
Other Financing Sources 13 1,885,000 0 3,602,719
Transfers In 14 13,790,570 12,246,759 14,584,111
Total Revenues and Other Sources 15 89,336,350 80,107,899 86,781,970
Expenditures & Other Financing Uses
Public Safety 16 13,446,710 12,506,361 12,015,062
Public Works 17 19,449,090 20,821,203 11,810,160
Health and Social Services 18 28,000 45,000 216,757
Culture and Recreation 19 8,665,100 8,098,583 7,057,247
Community and Economic Development 20 2,989,600 3,068,407 2,973,143
General Government 21 6,310,200 5,476,450 4,926,690
Debt Service 22 2,129,200 904,280 853,222
Capital Projects 23 30,515,470 18,082,512 10,442,871
Total Government Activities Expenditures 24 83,533,370 69,002,796 50,295,152
Business Type / Enterprises 25 9,205,410 12,145,108 8,323,157
Total ALL Expenditures 26 92,738,780 81,147,904 58,618,309
Transfers Out 27 13,790,570 12,246,759 14,584,111
Total ALL Expenditures/Transfers Out 28 106,529,350 93,394,663 73,202,420
Excess Revenues & Other Sources Over   (Under) Expenditures/Transfers Out 29 -17,193,000 -13,286,764 13,579,550
Beginning Fund Balance July 1 30 89,733,998 103,020,762 89,441,212
Ending Fund Balance June 30 31 72,540,998 89,733,998 103,020,762

33

Item 3.

https://dom.iowa.gov/local-gov-appeals


34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.



36

Item 3.



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



49

Item 3.



50

Item 3.



51

Item 3.



52

Item 3.



53

Item 3.



54

Item 3.



55

Item 3.



56

Item 3.



57

Item 3.



58

Item 3.



59

Item 3.



60

Item 3.



61

Item 3.



62

Item 3.



63

Item 3.



64

Item 3.



65

Item 3.



66

Item 3.



67

Item 3.



68

Item 3.



69

Item 3.



70

Item 3.



71

Item 3.



72

Item 3.



73

Item 3.



74

Item 3.



75

Item 3.



76

Item 3.



77

Item 3.



78

Item 3.



79

Item 3.



80

Item 3.



81

Item 3.



82

Item 3.



83

Item 3.



84

Item 3.



85

Item 3.



86

Item 3.



87

Item 3.



88

Item 3.



89

Item 3.



90

Item 3.



91

Item 3.



92

Item 3.



93

Item 3.



94

Item 3.



95

Item 3.



96

Item 3.



97

Item 3.



98

Item 3.



99

Item 3.



100

Item 3.



101

Item 3.



102

Item 3.



103

Item 3.



104

Item 3.



105

Item 3.



106

Item 3.



107

Item 3.



108

Item 3.



109

Item 3.



110

Item 3.



111

Item 3.



112

Item 3.



113

Item 3.



114

Item 3.



115

Item 3.



116

Item 3.



117

Item 3.



118

Item 3.



119

Item 3.



120

Item 3.



121

Item 3.



122

Item 3.



123

Item 3.



124

Item 3.



125

Item 3.



126

Item 3.



127

Item 3.



128

Item 3.



129

Item 3.



130

Item 3.



131

Item 3.



132

Item 3.



133

Item 3.



134

Item 3.



135

Item 3.



136

Item 3.



137

Item 3.



138

Item 3.



139

Item 3.



140

Item 3.



141

Item 3.



142

Item 3.



143

Item 3.



144

Item 3.



145

Item 3.



146

Item 3.



147

Item 3.



148

Item 3.



149

Item 3.



150

Item 3.



151

Item 3.



152

Item 3.



153

Item 3.



154

Item 3.



155

Item 3.



156

Item 3.



157

Item 3.



158

Item 3.



159

Item 3.



160

Item 3.



161

Item 3.



162

Item 3.



163

Item 3.



164

Item 3.



165

Item 3.



166

Item 3.



167

Item 3.



168

Item 3.



169

Item 3.



170

Item 3.



171

Item 3.



172

Item 3.



173

Item 3.



174

Item 3.



175

Item 3.



176

Item 3.



177

Item 3.



178

Item 3.



179

Item 3.



180

Item 3.



181

Item 3.



182

Item 3.



183

Item 3.



184

Item 3.



185

Item 3.



186

Item 3.



187

Item 3.



188

Item 3.



189

Item 3.



190

Item 3.



191

Item 3.



192

Item 3.



193

Item 3.



194

Item 3.



195

Item 3.



196

Item 3.



197

Item 3.



198

Item 3.



199

Item 3.



200

Item 3.



201

Item 3.



202

Item 3.



203

Item 3.



204

Item 3.



205

Item 3.



206

Item 3.



207

Item 3.



208

Item 3.



209

Item 3.



210

Item 3.



211

Item 3.



212

Item 3.



213

Item 3.



214

Item 3.



215

Item 3.



216

Item 3.



217

Item 3.



218

Item 3.



219

Item 3.



220

Item 3.



221

Item 3.



222

Item 3.



223

Item 3.



224

Item 3.



225

Item 3.



226

Item 3.



227

Item 3.



228

Item 3.



229

Item 3.



230

Item 3.



231

Item 3.



232

Item 3.



233

Item 3.



234

Item 3.



235

Item 3.



236

Item 3.



237

Item 3.



238

Item 3.



239

Item 3.



240

Item 3.



241

Item 3.



242

Item 3.



243

Item 3.



244

Item 3.



245

Item 3.



246

Item 3.



247

Item 3.



248

Item 3.



249

Item 3.



250

Item 3.



251

Item 3.



252

Item 3.



253

Item 3.



254

Item 3.



255

Item 3.



256

Item 3.



257

Item 3.



258

Item 3.



259

Item 3.



260

Item 3.



261

Item 3.



262

Item 3.



263

Item 3.



264

Item 3.



265

Item 3.



266

Item 3.



267

Item 3.



268

Item 3.



269

Item 3.



270

Item 3.



271

Item 3.



272

Item 3.



273

Item 3.



274

Item 3.



275

Item 3.



276

Item 3.



277

Item 3.



278

Item 3.



279

Item 3.



280

Item 3.



281

Item 3.



282

Item 3.



283

Item 3.



284

Item 3.



285

Item 3.



286

Item 3.



287

Item 3.



288

Item 3.



289

Item 3.



290

Item 3.



291

Item 3.



292

Item 3.



293

Item 3.



294

Item 3.



295

Item 3.



296

Item 3.



297

Item 3.



298

Item 3.



299

Item 3.



300

Item 3.



301

Item 3.



302

Item 3.



303

Item 3.



304

Item 3.



305

Item 3.



306

Item 3.



307

Item 3.



308

Item 3.



309

Item 3.



310

Item 3.



311

Item 3.



312

Item 3.



313

Item 3.



314

Item 3.



315

Item 3.



316

Item 3.



317

Item 3.



318

Item 3.



319

Item 3.



320

Item 3.



321

Item 3.



322

Item 3.



323

Item 3.



324

Item 3.



325

Item 3.



326

Item 3.



327

Item 3.



328

Item 3.



329

Item 3.



330

Item 3.



331

Item 3.



332

Item 3.



333

Item 3.



334

Item 3.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: February 25, 2022 

SUBJECT:      McWing, L.L.C. Economic Development Project 
 
 

INTRODUCTION AND DESCRIPION OF PROJECT 
 
For the past several months, staff has been working with officials with McWing, L.L.C. 
toward the construction of four (4) new 10,000 square foot warehouse/office facilities 
(40,000 sf. total), on 3.0 acres of land along Capital Way, west of Production Drive. The 
proposed project will occur on Lot 6 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (3.0 
acres total of which approximately 2.5 acres is buildable after setback and open space 
requirement). The proposed project will have a minimum building valuation of 
$2,800,000 once all four buildings are complete, with a total project valuation including 
land of $2,996,000. 
 
Two of the four buildings will be constructed this year (2022), with the remaining two 
buildings to be constructed next year (2023). The site and buildings will be developed 
and constructed by McWing, L.L.C., and each business suite/condo unit is planned on 
being individually sold to a potential buyer.  

 
COMPANY PROFILE 

 
McWing, LLC is a building company that was founded in 2018 in Cedar Falls. Both of 
the owners of McWing, LLC are Cedar Falls residents. The company builds and sells 
products commonly referred to as storage condos, contractor bays or business suites. 
They consist of roughly 1,000 square feet per bay and offer amenities sufficient enough 
to run your small business. The company has sold out of units in their current location in 
Hudson and are looking to offer their product in Cedar Falls.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

335

Item 4.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

Land Incentive 

 

For the proposed McWing, L.L.C. project, the company would receive at no cost, Lot 6 
of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (3.0 acres total of which approximately 2.50 
acres is buildable after setback and open space requirement) in the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park. This land incentive is consistent with our general industrial economic 
incentive guidelines of providing one acre of non-restricted building area for each 
10,000 +/- square feet of new building space being constructed having a minimum $40 
per square foot valuation. Therefore, staff feels that the proposed 40,000 total square 
foot facility with a $2,800,000 minimum building valuation is consistent with prior City 
land incentives for comparable projects.  

Property Tax Rebate 

 
Typically for a project such as this, the City would consider a 5-year industrial partial 
property tax exemption, as the assessed valuation of the project will exceed 
$1,200,000. However, this project is unique in that the developer does not plan to own 
the units/property once the project is completed, as the units will be individually sold and 
a horizontal property regime will be established over the property. With a partial 
property tax exemption, the tax exemption is attached to each individual property owner, 
so once the units are sold, the exemption does not get passed on to the developer, but 
to the buyer of each unit. 
 
In order to assist with the development and holding costs of the project, the developer 
has requested that the City consider a tax rebate instead of a tax exemption. In this 
scenario, the tax rebate would be directed to the developer once the taxes are paid on 
the property, instead of each individual suite/unit owner. A tax rebate is not a unique 
incentive for the City to offer, as it is offered for professional/corporate office projects 
located in the industrial/technology park that do not qualify for the industrial partial 
property tax abatement, as well as for development/redevelopment projects within the 
downtown and college hill areas. 
 
For projects that exceed a building valuation of $1,200,000, the City would typically offer 
a 5-year partial property tax exemption, where the first year exemption would be 75% of 
the taxes, a 60% exemption in year 2, a 45% exemption in year 3, a 30% exemption in 
year 4, and a 15% exemption in year 5. Over the 5 year period, the exemption averages 
out to be 45% per year. In exchange for a tax rebate instead of the tax exemption, the 
developer has requested a tax rebate of 30% each year for 5 years, which is 15% less 
than what would be exempted through the partial property tax exemption. For the 
calculation of the taxes and exemption/rebate, we are using an assessed building value 
of $2,800,000 ($2,520,000 taxable). The breakdown in differences between the tax 
exemption and tax rebate options is found below.   
 
 

336

Item 4.



Tax Exemption Scenario 
 

Year  % Exemption  $ Abated  $ Taxes Paid  $ Total Taxes  
         

1  75%  $62,381  $20,794  $83,175 
2  60%  $49,905  $33,270  $83,175 
3  45%  $37,429  $45,746  $83,175 
4  30%  $24,952  $58,222  $83,175 
5  15%       $12,476   $70,698  $83,175 

    $187,143  $228,730    $415,875 
 
 
Tax Rebate Scenario 
 

Year  % Rebate  $ Rebated  $ Taxes Paid  $ Total Taxes  
         

1  30%  $21,234  $49,546  $70,780 
2  30%  $21,234  $49,546  $70,780 
3  30%  $21,234  $49,546  $70,780 
4  30%  $21,234  $49,546  $70,780 
5  30%       $21,234   $49,546  $70,780 

    $106,170  $247,730    $353,900 
 

Conclusion 

 
As this memorandum indicates, McWing, L.L.C. is proposing to construct four (4) new 
10,000 square foot warehouse/office facilities (40,000 sf. total), on 3.0 acres of land 
along Capital Way, west of Production Drive. The proposed new construction building 
project will have a minimum building valuation of $2,800,000 and a total Minimum 
Assessed Valuation of $2,996,000 including land. Construction would commence this 
spring with completion of all four buildings anticipated in approximately 24 months. 
 
Given the uniqueness of this project (multiple owners, condo regime), and the fact that 
the tax rebate incentive requested would save approximately $80,000 compared to the 
tax exemption, staff feels that the request is beneficial to both parties. 
 
The Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and McWing, L.L.C. has been reviewed by both parties, and is attached for your review 
and approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private 

Development and a Minimum Assessment Agreement by and between the City 

337

Item 4.



of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and McWing, L.L.C., and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Deed Without Warranty conveying title to certain real estate to 
McWing, L.L.C. 

 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed McWing, L.L.C. economic 
development project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
         
        
 
 
 

338

Item 4.



Venture Way

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

Tec
hn

ol o
gy

Pl

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Production Dr

I

Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

Ashley
Furniture

Distribution
Center

Project Location

McWing, LLC
40,000 sq. ft.
Warehouse/Office Facilities

Bossard

D. LaPorte Air King

Zuidberg

339

Item 4.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5160 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND A MINIMUM 
ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, AND MCWING, L.L.C., AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING 
EXECUTION OF A DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY CONVEYING TITLE TO 
CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO MCWING, L.L.C.. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 
(Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 
2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 
2012 (Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by 
Resolution No. 21,279 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by 
Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth 
time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, the City Council has approved and 
adopted an urban renewal plan designated as the “Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 
Urban Renewal Plan” (the “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Urban Renewal Plan be developed 
as part of the overall development area covered by said Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from McWing, L.L.C.  ("Developer"), in the 
form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") by and between the 
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and the Developer, pursuant to which, among other things, 
the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in the 
Agreement) on certain real property located within the Urban Renewal Plan as legally described 
in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (defined in the 
Agreement as the "Development Property"), consisting of the construction of four Industrial Use 
Warehouse Facilities, each containing a minimum of 10,000 square feet of finished space and 
altogether totaling at least 40,000 square feet of finished space, together with all related site 
improvements, as outlined in the proposed Development Agreement; and 
 

340

Item 4.



 2 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City provide certain financial 
incentives for the urban renewal project under the terms and following satisfaction of the 
conditions set forth in the Agreement, consisting of conveyance of title to the Development 
Property to the Developer, the Development Property being legally described as follows: 
 

Lot 6, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 
County, Iowa (Contains 3.00 acres more or less); and 

 
 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize 
cities to make loans and grants and to convey real property to developers for economic 
development purposes in furtherance of the objectives of an urban renewal project and to 
appropriate such funds, make such expenditures and convey such real property as may be 
necessary to carry out the purposes of said Chapters, and to levy taxes and assessments for 
such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City, the Developer and the 
Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa, enter into a Minimum Assessment Agreement (the 
"Minimum Assessment Agreement"), whereby the minimum actual taxable value of the 
improvements to be constructed thereon would be established at an amount not less than 
$3,696,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2035; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the Agreement is in the best 
interests of the City and the residents thereof, and that the performance by the City of its 
obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Urban 
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's 
performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities and 
objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into 
account the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to-wit: 
 

a) Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 
economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 
b) Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, or 

expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which generate 
tourism-related activities. 

 
c) Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be targeted 

toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which gains and 
benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds dispensed. 

 
d) Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of the 
state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the state 
or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate significant 
new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs in similar Iowa 
businesses being displaced shall not be considered direct jobs for the purpose of 
dispensing funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the requirements of Iowa 

Code Section 403.8 with respect to the transfer of property in an urban renewal area are 
satisfied insofar as the Development Property is being disposed of for the purpose of 

341

Item 4.



 3 

development of an industrial building (see Iowa Code Section 403.8(2)(b)), and because the 
terms of the Minimum Assessment Agreement satisfy the safe harbor contained in Iowa Code 
Section 403.8(3). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the Agreement, 
including but not limited to conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer in 
connection with the development of the Development Property under the terms set forth in the 
Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and purpose and in 
furtherance of the Urban Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the 
Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic 
development activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of chapters 403 and 15A of 
the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein. 
 
 Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, 
approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Agreement for and on behalf of 
the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, and that from and after 
the execution and delivery of the Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such 
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement 
as executed, including but not limited to execution and delivery of a  Deed Without Warranty 
conveying title to the Development Property to the Developer. 
 
 Section 3.  That the form and content of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the 
provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 
respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as 
executed. 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
 

     
 _________________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

342

Item 4.



 4 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution 

No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2022. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 

2022. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

343

Item 4.



 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT  
 
 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

AND 
 
 

MCWING, LLC 
 
 
 
 

 
 

344

Item 4.



2  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS………………………………………………..  6 

Section 1.1.  Definitions……………………………………………… 6 

 

ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES………………  8 

Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City……………  8 

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of Developer.….……..  9 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS…..  12 

Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements……………… 12 

Section 3.2 Building Permit Valuation Amount…………………….  12 

Section 3.3.  Construction Plans……………………………………… 12 

Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction……… 13 

Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion………………………………  13 

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 14 

Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use……………………………………… 14 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE………………………………………………… 15 

Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements………………………………… 15 

Section 5.2. Condemnation………………………………………….. 17 

Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment…………………………….. 17 

 

ARTICLE VI.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER 

COVENANTS……………………………………………………………….. 18 

 Section 6.1 Execution of Minimum Assessment Agreement………  18 

Section 6.2. Maintenance of Properties……………………………..  18 

Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records……………………………….  18 

Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws………………………………...  19 

Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes….……………………………….  19 

Section 6.6.   Sales Tax………………………………………………  19 

Section 6.7.   Utility Usage…………………….…………………….  19 

Section 6.8.   Annual Certification………………..………………….  20 

Section 6.9 Employment…………………………………………..  20 

Section 6.10. Opinion of Counsel……………………………………  20 

 Section 6.11. Provisions to be Included in Declaration of Horizontal 

Property Regime Related to the Development Property 

or Minimum Improvements………………………….  20 

345

Item 4.



3  

 Section 6.12 Relocation .......................................................................  21 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND 

TRANSFER………………………………………………………………….  22 

Section 7.1.  Representation As to Development……………………… 22 

Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement……………..………………………………  22 

Section 7.3.  Approvals………………………………………………  24 

Section 7.4. Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of 

  Interest in Development Property to Permitted  

  Transferees .......................................................................  24 

Section 7.5.  Prohibition Against Use as Non-Taxable or Centrally 

  Assessed Property……………………………………. ...  25 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; 

CONDITIONS………………………………………………………… 25 

Section 8.1.  Conveyance of Development Property…………………  25 

Section 8.2.   Form of Deed…………………………………………… 25 

Section 8.3.   Condition of Property; Care and Maintenance…………. 25 

Section 8.4.   Environmental Matters…………………………………. 26 

Section 8.5.   Survey and Platting…………………………………….. 26 

Section 8.6.   Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed……... 26 

Section 8.7.   Recordation of Deed……………………………………. 26 

Section 8.8.   Abstract of Title………………………………………… 26 

Section 8.9.   Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property……… 26 

Section 8.10. Failure to Commence Construction….…………….......  27 

Section 8.11. No Partial Property Tax Exemption…………………....           27 

 

ARTICLE IX.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT PROPERTY TAX 

REBATES…………………………………………………………….. 27 

Section 9.1.   Economic Development Grant – Property Tax Rebates… 27 

Section 9.2.   Additional Conditions to Payment of Economic 

  Development Grants…………………………………….. 29 

Section 9.3.   Source of Grant Funds Limited………………………… 30 

Section 9.4.   Use of Other Tax Increments…………………………… 31 

 

ARTICLE X.  INDEMNIFICATION………………………………………  31 

Section 10.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants……………..  31 

 

ARTICLE XI.  REMEDIES……………………………………………….  32 

Section 11.1.  Events of Default Defined…………….………………  32 

Section 11.2   Remedies on Default………………………………….  34 

Section 11.3  No Remedy Exclusive………………………………..  35 

346

Item 4.



4  

Section 11.4  No Implied Waiver……………………………………  35 

Section 11.5   Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses……..  35 

 

ARTICLE XII.  MISCELLANEOUS………………………………………..  36 

Section 12.1.  Conflict of Interest……………………………………  36 

Section 12.2  Non-Discrimination…………………………………… 36 

Section 12.3.  Notices………………………………………………...  36 

Section 12.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections………………………… 37 

Section 12.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed……………………… 37 

Section 12.6.  Governing Law………………………………………… 37 

Section 12.7.  Entire Agreement……………………………………… 37 

Section 12.8.  Successors and Assigns……………………………….  37 

Section 12.9.    Termination Date……………………………………… 37 

Section 12.10.  Memorandum of Agreement………..……………….. 37 

Section 12.11.  Immediate Undertaking……………………………… 37 

Section 12.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture……………………… 38 

Section 12.13.  Captions……………………………………………… 38 

Section 12.14.  Number and Gender of Words………………………  38 

Section 12.15.  Invalid Provisions……………………………………  38 

Section 12.16.  Multiple Counterparts… ……………………………  38 

Section 12.17.  Authorization………… ……………………………..  38 

Section 12.18.  Time of the Essence… ………………………………  38 

Section 12.19.  Survival…………… … ……………………………..  38 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A  Development Property…………………………………. 40 

EXHIBIT B   Minimum Improvements………………………………. 41 

EXHIBIT C  Certificate of Completion……………………………… 42 

EXHIBIT D  Minimum Assessment Agreement…………………….. 44 

EXHIBIT E  Form of Legal Opinion………………………………… 49 

EXHIBIT F  Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development... 51 

EXHIBIT G  Form of Deed…………………………………………..  54 

  

347

Item 4.



5  

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT (hereinafter called 

"Agreement"), is made on or as of the _____ day of __________________, 2022, by and 

between the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called "City"), 

established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the authorization of 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 hereinafter called "Urban 

Renewal Act"); and McWing, LLC, (hereinafter called the "Developer"),  an Iowa limited 

liability company having its principal place of business at 5020 Ironwood Dr, Cedar Falls, 

IA 50613. 

 

 WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Act, the City 

has undertaken a program for the development of an economic development area and, in 

this connection, is engaged in carrying out urban renewal project activities in an area 

known as the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or 

“Urban Renewal Area”) as set forth in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Plan, as amended (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the foregoing Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, has been 

recorded among the land records in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to acquire certain real property located in the 

foregoing Urban Renewal Plan and as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (which property as so described is hereinafter referred to as 

the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to develop the Development Property for and 

in accordance with the uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and in accordance with 

this Agreement by constructing certain Minimum Improvements (as hereafter defined) on 

the Development Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Development Property 

pursuant to this Agreement and the fulfillment generally of this Agreement, are in the vital 

and best interests of the residents of the City, and in accord with the public purposes and 

provisions of the applicable State and local laws and requirements under which the 

foregoing project has been undertaken and is being assisted, including but not limited to 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

348

Item 4.



6  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of 

the parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the others as 

follows: 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 

 

 Section 1.1.  Definitions.  In addition to other definitions set forth in this Agreement, 

all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the following 

meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

 

 Agreement means this Agreement and all Exhibits hereto, as the same may be from 

time to time modified, amended or supplemented. 

 

 Assessor's Minimum Actual Value means the minimum actual value, before 

rollback, of the Minimum Improvements and the Development Property for calculation 

and assessment of real property taxes as set forth in the Minimum Assessment Agreement.  

 

 Certificate of Completion means a certification in the form of the certificate attached 

hereto as Exhibit C and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

 

 City or Cedar Falls means the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any successor to its 

functions.   

 

 Code of Iowa means the Code of Iowa, 2021, as amended. 

 

 Construction Plans means the plans, specifications, drawings and related documents 

of the construction work to be performed by the Developer on the Development Property; 

the plans (a) shall be as detailed as the plans, specifications, drawings and related 

documents which are submitted to the building inspector of the City, and (b) shall include 

at least the following: (1) site plan; (2) foundation plan; (3) basement plans; (4) floor plan 

for each floor; (5) cross sections of each (length and width); (6) elevations (all sides); and 

(7) landscape plan. 

 

 County means the County of Black Hawk, Iowa. 

 

 Deed means the form of a Deed without Warranty substantially in the form 

contained in Exhibit G attached hereto, by which the City shall convey the Development 

Property to the Developer. 

 

 Developer means McWing, LLC.  

 

 Development Property means that portion of the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Project Plan of the City described in Exhibit A hereto. 

349

Item 4.



7  

 

 Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 11.1 of this 

Agreement. 

 

 Industrial Use Warehouse Facility means one of four 10,000 square foot warehouse 

facilities which in the aggregate comprise the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 McWing, LLC TIF Account means a separate account within the Urban Renewal 

Tax Increment Revenue Fund of the City in which there shall be deposited Tax Increments 

received by the City with respect to the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 Minimum Assessment Agreement means the Minimum Assessment Agreement 

substantially in the form of the agreement contained in Exhibit D attached hereto and 

hereby made a part of this Agreement, among the Developer, the City and the Assessor for 

the County, entered into pursuant to Article VI of this Agreement. 

 

 Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of four Industrial Use 

Warehouse Facilities, each containing a minimum of 10,000 square feet of finished space 

and altogether totaling at least 40,000 square feet of finished space, together with all 

related site improvements described in the Construction Plans, as outlined in Exhibit B 

hereto. 

 

 Mortgage means any mortgage or security agreement in which the Developer has 

granted a mortgage or other security interest in the Development Property, or any portion 

or parcel thereof, or any improvements constructed thereon. 

 

 Net Proceeds means any proceeds paid by an insurer to the Developer under a policy 

or policies of insurance required to be provided and maintained by the Developer pursuant 

to Article V of this Agreement and remaining after deducting all expenses (including fees 

and disbursements of counsel) incurred in the collection of such proceeds. 

 

 Ordinance shall mean Ordinance(s) of the City under which the taxes levied on the 

taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be divided, with a portion of said taxes 

to be paid into the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund, referred to and 

authorized by Section 403.19(2) of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 Project shall mean the construction and operation of the Minimum Improvements, as 

described in this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto. 

 

 State means the State of Iowa. 

 

 Tax Increments means the property tax increment revenues on the Minimum 

Improvements (building only) divided and made available to the City for deposit in the 

350

Item 4.



8  

McWing, LLC TIF Account of the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund, under 

the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa and the Ordinance. 

 

 Termination Date means the date of expiration of the Assessment Agreement, as 

provided in Section 12.9 of this Agreement. 

 

 Unavoidable Delays means delays resulting from acts or occurrences outside the 

reasonable control of the party claiming the delay including but not limited to storms, 

floods, fires, explosions or other casualty losses, unusual weather conditions, strikes, 

boycotts, lockouts or other labor disputes, delays in transportation or delivery of material 

or equipment, litigation commenced by third parties, or the acts of any federal, State or 

local governmental unit (other than the Party claiming the delay). 

 

 Urban Renewal Area means the area included within the boundaries of the Cedar 

Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, as amended. 

 

 Urban Renewal Plan means the Urban Renewal Plan approved in respect of the 

Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Urban Corridor Renewal Plan, described in the 

preambles hereof. 

 

 Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund means the special fund of the City 

created under the authority of Section 403.19(2) of the Code and the Ordinance, which 

fund was created in order to pay the principal of and interest on loans, monies advanced to 

or indebtedness, whether funded, refunded, assumed or otherwise, including bonds or 

other obligations issued under the authority of Chapters 15A, 403, or 384 of the Code, 

incurred by the City to finance or refinance in whole or in part projects undertaken 

pursuant to the Urban Renewal Plan for the Urban Renewal Area. 

 

   ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 

 Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City.  The City makes the 

following representations and warranties:  

 

 (a) The City is a municipal corporation and political subdivision organized under 

the provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the State and has the power 

to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

 

 (b) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the City and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the 

Developer, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally binding 

instrument of the City enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws 

relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally. 

351

Item 4.



9  

 

 (c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, 

in conflict with, nor will they result in a breach of, the terms, conditions or 

provisions of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement 

or instrument of whatever nature to which the City is now a party or by which 

it is bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

 

 (d) The City has not received any notice from any State or federal official that the 

activities of the Developer with respect to the Development Property may or 

will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation (other than those 

notices, if any, of which the Developer has previously been notified in 

writing).  The City is not currently aware of any State or federal claim filed or 

planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, State or 

federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable to the 

Development Property, and the City is not currently aware of any violation of 

any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure 

which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 

environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (e) The City will cooperate fully with the Developer in resolution of any building, 

traffic, parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the design, construction and operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise 

with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (f) The City would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement without the 

consideration being made to the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 (g) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City 

contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, 

agreements and obligations of the City, and not of any governing body 

member, officer, agent, servant or employee of the City in the individual 

capacity thereof. 

  

 (h) The Development Property is zoned “M-1-P, Planned Industrial District”.  The 

“M-1-P, Planned Industrial District” zoning classification permits by right the 

construction, equipping and operation of the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of the Developer.  The Developer 

makes the following representations and warranties: 

352

Item 4.



10  

 

(a) The Developer is a limited liability company duly organized and validly 

existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, is properly authorized to conduct 

business in the State of Iowa, and has all requisite power and authority to own 

and operate its properties, to carry on its business as now conducted and as 

presently proposed to be conducted, and to enter into and perform its 

obligations under the Agreement. 

  

(b) The Developer desires to construct four Industrial Use Warehouse Facilities 

("Minimum Improvements") on the 3.00 acre Development Property, which is 

to be acquired by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement, and which is 

more particularly described in Exhibit A.  

 

(c) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by 

the other parties hereto, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally 

binding instrument of the Developer enforceable in accordance with its terms, 

except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization 

or other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 (d) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in 

conflict with, nor will  they result in a violation or breach of, the terms, 

conditions or provisions of the certificate of organization and operating 

agreement, together with all amendments thereto, of the Developer or of any 

contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement or instrument of 

whatever nature to which the Developer is now a party or by which it or its  

properties are bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the 

foregoing. 

 

 (e) There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against or 

affecting the Developer in any court or before any arbitrator or before or by 

any governmental body in which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse 

decision which could materially adversely affect the business (present or 

prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the 

Agreement or the ability of Developer to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement. 

 

 (f) The Developer will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Urban Renewal Plan and all 

353

Item 4.



11  

local, State and federal laws and regulations, except for variances necessary to 

construct the Minimum Improvements contemplated in the Construction Plans.  

 

 (g) The Developer will use its best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, in a 

timely manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a 

timely manner, all requirements of all applicable local, State, and federal laws 

and regulations which must be obtained or met before the Minimum 

Improvements may be lawfully constructed. 

 

 (h) The construction of the Minimum Improvements will require a total 

investment of not less than Two Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars and 

no/100 Dollars ($2,800,000.00), and a valuation of Two Million Nine Hundred 

Ninety-Six Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($2,996,000.00) is reasonable for the 

Minimum Improvements and the land that together comprise the Development 

Property. 

 

 (i) The Developer has not received any notice from any local, State or federal 

official that the activities of the Developer with respect to the Development 

Property may or will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation 

(other than those notices, if any, of which the City has previously been notified 

in writing). The Developer is not currently aware of any State or federal claim 

filed or planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, 

State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable 

to the Development Property, and the Developer is not currently aware of any 

violation of any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review 

procedure which would give any person a valid claim under any State or 

federal environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (j) The Developer has equity funds and/or has commitments for financing in 

amounts sufficient to successfully complete the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements, in accordance with the Construction Plans contemplated by 

this Agreement. 

 

 (k) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic, 

parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the construction and operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise 

with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (l) The Developer expects that, barring Unavoidable Delays, the Minimum 

Improvements will be substantially completed by the 1st day of June, 2024.  

 

354

Item 4.



12  

 (m) The Developer would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement 

without the consideration being made to the Developer pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

 

 (n) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the 

Developer contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, 

promises, agreements and obligations of the Developer, and not of any 

member, officer, agent, servant or employee of the Developer in the individual 

capacity thereof. 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements. The Developer agrees that it 

will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property in 

conformance with the Construction Plans submitted to the City.  The Developer agrees 

that the scope and scale of the Minimum Improvements to be constructed shall not be 

significantly less than the scope and scale of the Minimum Improvements as detailed and 

outlined in the Construction Plans, and shall in no event require a total investment of less 

than Two Million Eight Hundred Thousand Dollars and no/100 Dollars ($2,800,000.00). 

 

 Section 3.2  Building Permit Valuation Amount.  The Developer shall apply to the 

City for a building permit, and shall pay all necessary permit fees in connection with the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property, based upon a 

building permit valuation amount (hereinafter the "Building Permit Valuation Amount") 

of a minimum of Two Million Eight Hundred Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($2,800,000.00) in total, by no later than the 1st day of June, 2023.  The Developer and the 

City acknowledge and agree that there may be more than one building permit applied for 

that together will constitute the minimum value stated herein, depending upon the phasing 

of construction of the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 Section 3.3.  Construction Plans.  The Developer shall cause Construction Plans to 

be provided for the Minimum Improvements which shall be subject to approval by the 

City as provided in this Section 3.3.  The Construction Plans shall be in conformity with 

the Urban Renewal Plan, this Agreement, and all applicable State and local laws and 

regulations, except for variances the Developer and the City agree are necessary to 

construct or operate the Minimum Improvements.  The City shall approve the 

Construction Plans in writing if: (a) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement; (b) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of the Urban Renewal Plan; (c) to the best of City's knowledge, the 

Construction Plans conform to all applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances, 

rules and regulations and City permit requirements; (d) the Construction Plans are 

adequate for purposes of this Agreement to provide for the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements and (e) no Event of Default under the terms of this Agreement has 

355

Item 4.



13  

occurred; provided, however, that any such approval of the Construction Plans pursuant to 

this Section 3.3 shall constitute approval for the purposes of this Agreement only and shall 

not be deemed to constitute approval or waiver by the City with respect to any building, 

fire, zoning or other ordinances or regulations of the City, and shall not be deemed to be 

sufficient plans to serve as the basis for the issuance of a building permit if the 

Construction Plans are not as detailed or complete as the plans otherwise required for the 

issuance of a building permit.  The site plans submitted by the Developer to the building 

official of the City for the Development Property shall be adequate to serve as the 

Construction Plans, if such site plans are approved by the building official. 

 

 Approval of the Construction Plans by the City shall not relieve the Developer of 

any obligation to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or the 

provisions of applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations, nor shall 

approval of the Construction Plans by the City be deemed to constitute a waiver of any 

Event of Default. 

 

 Approval of Construction Plans hereunder is solely for purposes of this Agreement, 

and shall not constitute approval for any other City purpose nor subject the City to any 

liability for the Minimum Improvements as constructed. 

 

 Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction.  Subject to 

Unavoidable Delays, the Developer shall cause construction of the Minimum 

Improvements to be undertaken by no later than the 1st day of June, 2022, and completed 

(i) by no later than the 1st day of June, 2024, or (ii) by such other date as the parties shall 

mutually agree upon in writing.  Time lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays shall be 

added to extend the completion date by a number of days equal to the number of days lost 

as a result of Unavoidable Delays.  However, an extension of the completion of the 

Minimum Improvements shall not affect the date upon which the Assessor's Minimum 

Actual Value shall become effective. All work with respect to the Minimum 

Improvements to be constructed or provided by the Developer on the Development 

Property shall be in conformity with the Construction Plans as submitted by the Developer 

and approved by the City.  The Developer agrees that it shall permit designated 

representatives of the City to enter upon the Development Property during the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements to inspect such construction. 

 

 Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion.  Upon written request of the Developer after 

issuance of an occupancy permit for all of the Minimum Improvements, the City will 

furnish the Developer with a Certificate of Completion in recordable form, in substantially 

the form set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto. Such Certificate of Completion shall be a 

conclusive determination of satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of 

this Agreement with respect to the obligations of the Developer to cause construction of 

the Minimum Improvements.  

 

356

Item 4.



14  

 The Certificate of Completion may be recorded in the Black Hawk County 

Recorder's office at the Developer's sole expense.  If the City shall refuse or fail to provide 

a Certificate of Completion in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3.5, the City 

shall, within twenty (20) days after written request by the Developer, provide to the 

Developer a written statement indicating in adequate detail in what respects the Developer 

has failed to complete the Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions of 

this Agreement, or is otherwise in default under the terms of this Agreement, and what 

measures or acts it will be necessary, in the opinion of the City, for the Developer to take 

or perform in order to obtain such Certificate of Completion.  

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use.   

 

(a) The Developer shall use the Development Property for any lawful use, and 

devote the Development Property to, and only to and in accordance with, the 

uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and this Agreement until the 

Termination Date. 

 

(b) The Developer shall not discriminate upon the basis of race, creed, color, sex, 

gender, sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, age, disability or national 

origin in the sale, lease, or rental or in the use or occupancy of the 

Development Property or any improvements erected or to be erected thereon, 

or any part thereof. 

 

(c) It is intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section shall be covenants running with the land and that they shall, in any 

event, and without regard to technical classification or designation, legal or 

otherwise, and except only as otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement, be binding, to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity, for 

the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable by, the City, its successors and 

assigns, as against every successor in interest to the Development Property, or 

any part thereof or any interest therein, and as against any party in possession 

or occupancy of the Development Property or any part thereof.  It is further 

intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in 

subdivisions (a) and (b) of this Section shall remain in effect only through the 

Termination Date. 

 

(d) It is intended and agreed that the City and its successors and assigns shall be 

deemed beneficiaries of the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section, both for and in its own right and also for the purposes of protecting 

the interests of the community and other parties, public or private, in whose 

favor or for whose benefit such agreements and covenants have been provided.  

357

Item 4.



15  

Such agreements and covenants shall run in favor of the City, until the 

Termination Date, during which time such agreements and covenants shall be 

in force and effect, without regard to whether the City has at any time been, 

remains, or is an owner of any land or interest therein to or in favor of which 

such agreements and covenants relate.  The City shall have the right, in the 

event of any breach of any such agreement or covenant, to exercise all the 

rights and remedies, and to maintain any actions or suits at law or in equity or 

other proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement or 

covenant, to which it or any other beneficiaries of such agreement or covenant 

may be entitled. 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE AND CONDEMNATION 

 

 Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements. 

 

 (a) The Developer will provide and maintain or cause to be maintained at all times 

during the process of constructing the Minimum Improvements (and, from 

time to time at the request of the City, furnish the City with proof of payment 

of premiums on): 

 

  (i) Builder's risk insurance, written on the so-called "Builder's Risk -- 

Completed Value Basis", in an amount equal to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the insurable value of the Minimum Improvements at the 

date of completion, and with coverage available in nonreporting form 

on the so-called "all risk" form of policy;  

 

  (ii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, 

contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations 

and contractual liability insurance), together with an Owner's 

Contractor's Policy, with limits against bodily injury and property 

damage of at least $2,000,000.  The City shall be named as an 

additional insured for the City's liability or loss arising out of or in any 

way associated with the Minimum Improvements and arising out of any 

act, error, or omission of the Developer, its members, managers, 

officers, contractors and subcontractors or anyone else for whose acts 

the City may be held responsible (with coverage to the City at least as 

broad as that which is provided to the Developer and not lessened or 

avoided by endorsement).  The policy shall contain a "severability of 

interests" clause and provide primary insurance over any other 

insurance maintained by the City.  The policy shall waive subrogation 

rights against the City and shall contain a Governmental Immunities 

endorsement in a form acceptable to the City. 

 

358

Item 4.



16  

  (iii) Worker's compensation insurance, with statutory coverage. 

 

 (b) Upon completion of construction of the Minimum Improvements and at all 

times prior to the Termination Date, the Developer shall maintain, or cause to 

be maintained, at its cost and expense  (and from time to time at the request of 

the City shall furnish proof of the payment of premiums on) insurance as 

follows: 

 

  (i) Insurance against loss and/or damage to the Minimum Improvements 

under a policy or policies covering such risks as are ordinarily insured 

against by similar businesses, including (without limiting the generality 

of the foregoing) fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious 

mischief, explosion, water damage, demolition cost, debris removal, 

and collapse in an amount not less than the full insurable replacement 

value of the Minimum Improvements, but any such policy may have a 

deductible amount of not more than $25,000.  No policy of insurance 

shall be so written that the proceeds thereof will produce less than the 

minimum coverage required by the preceding sentence, by reason of co-

insurance provisions or otherwise, without the prior consent thereto in 

writing by the City.  The term "full insurable replacement value" shall 

mean the actual replacement cost of the Minimum Improvements 

(excluding foundation and excavation costs and costs of underground 

flues, pipes, drains and other uninsurable items) and equipment, and 

shall be determined from time to time at the request of the City, but not 

more frequently than once every three years, by an insurance consultant 

or insurer selected and paid for by the Developer and approved by the 

City. 

 

  (ii) Comprehensive commercial general liability insurance, including 

liability for injuries to persons and/or property resulting from the 

operation of automobiles or other motorized vehicles on or about the 

Development Property, in the minimum amount for each occurrence 

and for each year of $2,000,000. 

 

  (iii) Such other insurance, including worker's compensation insurance 

respecting all employees of the Developer, in such amount as is 

customarily carried by like organizations engaged in like activities of 

comparable size and liability exposure. 

 

 (c) All insurance required by this Article V to be provided prior to the 

Termination Date shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance 

companies selected by the Developer which are authorized under the laws of 

the State to assume the risks covered thereby.  The Developer will deposit 

359

Item 4.



17  

annually with the City copies of policies evidencing all such insurance, or a 

certificate or certificates or binders of the respective insurers stating that such 

insurance is in force and effect.  Unless otherwise provided in this Article V, 

each policy shall contain a provision that the insurer shall not cancel or modify 

it without giving written notice to the Developer and the City at least thirty 

(30) days before the cancellation or modification becomes effective.  Not less 

than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of any policy, the Developer  shall 

furnish the City evidence satisfactory to the City that the policy has been 

renewed or replaced by another policy conforming to the provisions of this 

Article V, or that there is no necessity therefor under the terms hereof.  In lieu 

of separate policies, Developer may maintain a single policy, or blanket or 

umbrella policies, or a combination thereof, which provide the total coverage 

required herein, in which event the Developer shall deposit with the City a 

certificate or certificates of the respective insurers as to the amount of 

coverage in force upon the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (d) Developer shall notify the City immediately in the case of damage exceeding 

$25,000 in amount to, or destruction of, the Minimum Improvements or any 

portion thereof resulting from fire or other casualty.  Net Proceeds of any such 

insurance shall be paid directly to the Developer, and Developer will forthwith 

repair, reconstruct and  restore the Minimum Improvements to substantially 

the same or an improved condition or value as they existed prior to the event 

causing such damage and, to the extent necessary to accomplish such repair, 

reconstruction and restoration, the Developer will apply the Net Proceeds of 

any insurance relating to such damage received by Developer to the payment 

or reimbursement of the costs thereof.  The provisions of this paragraph shall 

apply to casualties that occur prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 (e) The Developer shall complete the repair, reconstruction and restoration of the 

Minimum Improvements, whether or not the Net Proceeds of insurance 

received by Developer for such purposes are sufficient.   

 

 Section 5.2.  Condemnation.  In the event that title to and possession of the 

Minimum Improvements or any other material part thereof shall be taken in condemnation 

or by the exercise of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or other 

person (except the City), so long as the Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect, the 

Developer or his successor shall, with reasonable promptness after such taking, notify the 

City as to the nature and extent of such taking. 

 

 Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment.  Upon receipt of any condemnation award, 

the Developer shall use the entire condemnation award to reconstruct the Minimum 

Improvements (or, in the event only a part of Minimum Improvements have been taken, 

then to reconstruct such part) upon the Development Property. 

360

Item 4.



18  

           

ARTICLE VI.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER 

COVENANTS 

 

 Section 6.1. Execution of Minimum Assessment Agreement.  The Developer shall 

agree to, and with the City shall execute, concurrently with the execution of this 

Agreement, a Minimum Assessment Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 

403.19, Code of Iowa, substantially in the form and content of Exhibit D attached hereto, 

specifying the Assessor's Minimum Actual Value for the Minimum Improvements to be 

constructed on the Development Property for calculation of real property taxes.  

Specifically, the Developer shall agree to an Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value of not 

less than Two Million Nine Hundred Ninety Six Thousand and no/100 Dollars 

($2,996,000.00) as of the completion of the Minimum Improvements, but no later than 

January 1, 2025.  Nothing in the Minimum Assessment Agreement shall limit the 

discretion of the Assessor to assign an actual value to the Minimum Improvements and 

Development Property, in excess of such Assessor's Minimum Actual Value nor prohibit 

the Developer or its successors from seeking through the exercise of legal or 

administrative remedies a reduction in such actual value for property tax purposes; 

provided, however, that the Developer or its successors shall not seek a reduction of such 

actual value below the Assessor's Minimum Actual Value in any year so long as the 

Minimum Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect.  The Minimum Assessment 

Agreement shall remain in effect until the 31st day of December, 2035 (the "Termination 

Date").  The Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be certified by the Assessor for the 

County as provided in Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, and shall be filed for record in 

the office of the County Recorder of the County, and such filing shall constitute notice to 

any subsequent encumbrancer or purchaser of the Development Property (or part thereof), 

whether voluntary or involuntary, and such Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be 

binding and enforceable in its entirety against any such subsequent purchaser or 

encumbrancer, as well as all prior lienholders and the holder of first mortgage, each of 

which shall sign a consent to the Minimum Assessment Agreement. 

 

 Section 6.2.  Maintenance of Properties.   The Developer shall maintain, preserve 

and keep the Minimum Improvements (and any part thereof) in good repair and working 

order, ordinary wear and tear excepted, and from time to time shall make all necessary 

repairs, replacements, renewals and additions, until the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records.  The Developer shall keep at all times proper 

books of record and account in which full, true and correct entries shall be made of all 

dealings and transactions of or in relation to the business and affairs of the Developer in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied throughout 

the period involved, and Developer shall provide reasonable protection against loss or 

damage to such books of record and account.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply 

for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

361

Item 4.



19  

 

 Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws.  The Developer shall comply with all laws, 

rules and regulations relating to the Minimum Improvements, other than laws, rules and 

regulations the failure to comply with which or the sanctions and penalties resulting 

therefrom, would not have a material adverse effect on the Developer’s business, property, 

operations, or condition, financial or otherwise.  The provisions of this paragraph shall 

apply for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes.  The Developer shall pay, when due, all real 

property taxes and assessments payable with respect to all and any parts of the 

Development Property acquired and owned by it.  

 

 The Developer and its successors agree that prior to the Termination Date: 

 

 (a) It will not seek any tax exemption, either presently or prospectively authorized 

under any State or federal law with respect to taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property between the date of execution of this 

Agreement and the Termination Date.  The foregoing shall not impair any 

rights to appeal the valuation set by the Black Hawk County Assessor as 

provided by law. 

 

 (b) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability or 

constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be 

applicable to the Development Property, Minimum Improvements or to the 

Developer or raise the inapplicability or constitutionality of any such tax 

statute as a defense in any proceedings, including delinquent tax proceedings. 

 

 (c) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, either presently or prospectively 

authorized under Iowa Code Chapter 403, 404, 427B, or any other local, State 

or federal law, of the taxation of real property contained on the Development 

Property between the date of execution of this Agreement and the Termination 

Date. 

 

 Section 6.6.   Sales Tax.  The Developer and its successors shall pay all sales tax 

payable with respect to the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Section 6.7.  Utility Usage.  The Developer agrees for itself and its successors and 

assigns, specifically including all commercial tenants and all other persons, firms or other 

entities operating any business on the Development Property or any portion thereof, that 

for all periods up to the Termination Date that all utility needs for the Industrial Use 

Manufacturing Facility shall be furnished from City-owned utilities, including electricity, 

natural gas, water, sanitary sewer, cable television, telephone, internet and other fiber-

362

Item 4.



20  

optic communications service including point-to-point, VLAN and last mile fiber services 

for a corporate network connection. The Developer and its successors and assigns agree to 

work with Cedar Falls Utilities to attain needed communication services (as defined 

above). Should it be mutually agreed upon by both parties that City-owned utilities are 

unable to meet the communication requirements specified, the Developer and its 

successors and assigns, as defined and described in this section, shall not, however, have 

any obligation or duty to use or take any minimum amount, and shall have no obligation 

to pay any amount in excess of the generally applicable rates for like users based upon 

actual use. 

  

 Section 6.8.  Annual Certification. To assist the City in monitoring and performance 

of Developer hereunder, a duly authorized officer of the Developer shall annually provide 

to the City: (a) proof that all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property have been 

paid for the prior fiscal year; (b) certification that employees are employed at the 

Minimum Improvements consistent with Section 6.9; and (c) certification that, to the best 

of such officer’s knowledge during the preceding twelve (12) months, the Developer  was 

not  in default in the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and 

that no Event of Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or 

both, would become an Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of 

such certificate or during such period, or if the signer is aware of any such default, event 

or Event of Default, said officer shall disclose in such statement the nature thereof, its 

period of existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with 

respect thereto.  Such statement, proof and certificate shall be provided not later than 

October 15 of each year, commencing October 15, 2024, and ending on October 15, 2034, 

both dates inclusive. 

 

 Section 6.9. Employment.  At all time prior to the Termination Date, Developer 

shall use reasonable commercial efforts to sell the Minimum Improvements to one or 

more industrial enterprise which shall employ employees in the Minimum Improvements. 

An Event of Default shall occur if no employees are employed in the Minimum 

Improvements for twelve (12) consecutive months prior to the filing of an Annual 

Certification pursuant to Section 6.8. 

 

 Section 6.10.  Opinion of Counsel.  Concurrent with execution of this Agreement, 

Developer shall cause its counsel to execute and deliver to City an Opinion of Counsel 

substantially in the form and of the content of Exhibit E attached hereto. 

  

 Section 6.11.  Provisions To Be Included In Declaration of Horizontal Property 

Regime Related to the Development Property or Minimum Improvements.  The Developer 

agrees to include provisions in its declaration of horizontal property regime related to any 

portion of the Development Property or Minimum Improvements which provide that the 

purchaser of any portion of the Development Property or Minimum Improvements shall:  

(a) acknowledge that the Development Property and Minimum Improvements are 

363

Item 4.



21  

subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the Minimum Assessment 

Agreement and such agreements are binding upon Developer’s successors and assigns, 

specifically including all purchasers of any portion of the Development Property and 

Minimum Improvements;  

(b) comply with Sections 5.1(b), 5.2, 6.2, 6.3, 6.4, 6.5, 6.6, and 6.7, and Article VII 

with respect to that portion of the Development Property or Minimum Improvements 

acquired by the purchaser;  

(c) not apply for and shall not be eligible for any tax deferral or abatement, either 

presently or prospectively authorized under Iowa Code Chapter 403, 404, 427B, or any 

other local, State or federal law, of the taxation of real property contained on the 

Development Property; and 

(d) acknowledge that the purchaser shall have no rights under this Agreement, 

including, but not limited to, any right to receive the Economic Development Grants to be 

paid under this Agreement. 

 

Should Developer breach this provision, or should any subsequent purchaser fail to 

comply with the terms set forth above, then the City shall be entitled to seek all remedies 

provided in Section 11.2 of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 6.12.  Relocation.  Developer agrees and covenants that it shall not, absent 

written consent from the City, sell or lease the Minimum Improvements or Development 

Property (or any part thereof) to any enterprise that is relocating (“Relocating”) to the City 

from another part of the County or a contiguous county during the term (the “Term”) of 

this Relocation provision (the “Relocation Provision”).  “Relocating” or “Relocation” 

means the closure or substantial reduction of an enterprise’s existing operations in one 

area of the State and the initiation of substantially the same operation in the same county 

or a contiguous county in the State.  The Term of this Relocation Provision will expire on 

the Termination Date as described in Section 12.9(a).  In general, urban renewal 

incentives cannot be used for projects that involve a Relocating enterprise (whether the 

relocating enterprise is the developer, land owner, tenant, or otherwise) unless there is a 

written agreement regarding the use of economic incentives between the city where the 

business is currently located and the city to which the business is Relocating, either 

specific to this Project or in general (i.e., a fair play or neutrality agreement), or if the City 

finds that the use of tax increments in connection with the Relocation is in the public 

interest, which means that the business has provided a written affirmation that it is 

considering moving part or all of its operations out of the State and such action would 

result in either significant employment or wage loss in Iowa.  Developer understands and 

agrees that if it sells or leases to a Relocating enterprise in violation of the Relocation 

Provision, as determined by the City in its sole discretion, such action shall be deemed an 

Event of Default under this Agreement, and, in addition to any remedies set forth in 

Section 11.2: 

 

(i) If Developer received all or a portion of the Development Property from the City 

364

Item 4.



22  

for less than the full fair market value of the Development Property (“Full Value”), then 

the Developer shall pay the City the difference between the Full Value of the 

Development Property and what the Developer actually paid the City for such property.  

At the request of the City (which request need not be in writing), the Full Value of the 

Development Property shall be established by a licensed, certified appraiser to be selected 

by the City.  Developer shall be responsible for paying any fees or costs associated with 

obtaining such appraisal. 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

 

 Section 7.1.  Representation as to Development. The Developer represents and 

agrees that the purchase and improvement of the Development Property, and the other 

undertakings pursuant to this Agreement, are, and will be used, for the purpose of 

development of the Development Property and not for speculation in land holding.  The 

Developer further acknowledges: 

 

(a) the importance of the development of the Development Property to the general 

welfare of the community; 

 

(b) the substantial financing and other public aids that have been made available 

by law and by the City for the purpose of making such development possible;  

 

(c) the fact that any act or transaction involving or resulting in a significant 

change of control of the development, is for practical purposes a transfer or 

disposition of the Development Property then owned and operated by the 

Developer, and the qualifications and identity of the Developer are of 

particular concern to the community and the City.  The Developer further 

recognizes that it is because of such qualifications and identity that the City is 

entering into this Agreement with the Developer; and 

 

(d) that upon completion of the Minimum Improvements, the Developer shall 

submit the Development Property, or portions thereof if developed in phases, 

to the Iowa Horizontal Property Regime Act in order to create and sell 

individual business units (“Commercial Condos”). 

 

 Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement.   

 

 (a) For the foregoing reasons and as security for the obligations of Developer 

under this Agreement, Developer represents and agrees that, except as 

expressly stated in Section 7.4, Developer will maintain existence as a 

company and will not wind up or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all 

of its assets or transfer, convey, or assign its interest in the Development 

365

Item 4.



23  

Property, Minimum Improvements, or this Agreement to any other party prior 

to the Termination Date unless:  (i) the transferee partnership, corporation, 

company, or individual assumes in writing all of the obligations of Developer 

under this Agreement; and (ii) the City consents thereto in writing in advance 

thereof.  The foregoing restrictions notwithstanding, Developer shall have the 

right at its sole discretion, and without prior consent of the City, to make a 

collateral assignment of its rights to receive Economic Development Grants 

hereunder to a creditor and thereby secure a credit facility undertaken in 

connection with the financing of the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements.   

  

(b) The City shall be entitled to require, except as otherwise provided in this 

Agreement, as conditions to any such approval that: 

 

(1) Any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and financial 

responsibility, as determined by the City, necessary and adequate to 

fulfill the obligations undertaken in this Agreement by the Developer 

(or, in the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the 

Development Property, such obligations to the extent that they relate 

to such part). 

 

(2) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory to the 

City and in form recordable among the land records, shall, for itself 

and its successors and assigns, and expressly for the benefit of the 

City, have expressly assumed all of the obligations of the Developer 

under this Agreement and shall have agreed to be subject to all the 

conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject (or, in 

the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the Development 

Property, such obligations, conditions, and restrictions to the extent 

that they relate to such part):  Provided, that the fact that any 

transferee of, or any other successor in interest whatsoever to, the 

Development Property, or any part thereof, shall, whatever the 

reason, not have assumed such obligations or so agreed, shall not 

(unless and only to the extent otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement or agreed to in writing by the City) relieve or exempt such 

transferee or successor of or from such obligations, conditions, or 

restrictions, or deprive or limit the City of or with respect to any 

rights or remedies or controls with respect to the Development 

Property or the construction of the Minimum Improvements; it being 

the intent of this provision, together with other provisions of this 

Agreement, that (to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity and 

excepting only in the manner and to the extent specifically provided 

otherwise in this Agreement) no transfer of, or change with respect 

366

Item 4.



24  

to, ownership in the Development Property or any part thereof, or any 

interest therein, however consummated or occurring, and whether 

voluntary or involuntary, shall operate, legally or practically, to 

deprive or limit the City of or with respect to any rights or remedies 

or controls provided in or resulting from this Agreement with respect 

to the Development Property and the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements that the City would have had, had there been no such 

transfer or change. 

 

(3) There shall be submitted to the City for review all instruments and 

other legal documents involved in effecting transfer; and if approved 

by the City, its approval shall be indicated to the Developer in 

writing. 

 

Provided, further, that in the absence of specific written agreement by the City to the 

contrary, no such transfer or approval by the City thereof shall be deemed to relieve the 

Developer, or any other party bound in any way by this Agreement or otherwise with 

respect to the construction of the Minimum Improvements, from any of its obligations 

with respect thereto. 

 

 Section 7.3.  Approvals.  Any approval of a transfer of interest in the Developer, 

this Agreement, or the Development Property required to be given by the City under this 

Article VII may be denied only in the event that the City reasonably determines that the 

ability of the Developer to perform its obligations under this Agreement and its statutory 

duty, as owner, to pay ad valorem real property taxes assessed with respect to the 

Development Property, or the overall financial security provided to the City under the 

terms of this Agreement, or the likelihood of the Minimum Improvements being 

successfully constructed and operated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, will be 

materially impaired by the action for which approval is sought. 

 

Section 7.4.  Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of Interest in 

Development Property to Permitted Transferee. Notwithstanding the provisions of 

Sections 7.2 and 7.3, the City and the Developer agree that a transfer of ownership of the 

Development Property or Minimum Improvements (a) to a newly established corporation 

or limited liability company the ownership of which consists solely of the members of 

Developer or (b) after the completion of the Minimum Improvements as part of the sale of 

a Commercial Condo to an industrial user (the “Permitted Transferee”), shall not trigger 

the provisions of Section 7.2 or Section 7.3, provided, however, that any transfer of the 

Development Property to the Permitted Transferee shall require the Permitted Transferee 

to agree in writing to be subject to all of the conditions and restrictions in the Agreement 

to which the Developer is subject (or, in the event the transfer is of or relates to only part 

of the Development Property or Minimum Improvements, such obligations, conditions, 

and restrictions to the extent that they relate to such part). Upon execution of an agreement 

367

Item 4.



25  

in writing by the Permitted Transferee that agrees to be subject to all of the conditions and 

restrictions to which the Developer is subject under this Agreement, the transfer of the 

Development Property or Minimum Improvements, or the part thereof, shall be deemed 

approved upon delivery of such written assumption agreement to the City Clerk of the 

City.  

 

Section 7.5. Prohibition Against Use as Non-Taxable or Centrally Assessed 

Property.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, during the term of this 

Agreement, Developer, or its successors or assigns, agree that the Development Property 

and Minimum Improvements cannot be transferred or sold to a non-profit entity or used 

for a purpose that would exempt the Development Property or Minimum Improvements 

from property tax liability.  Nor can the Development Property or Minimum 

Improvements be used as centrally assessed property (including but not limited to, Iowa 

Code § 428.24 to 428.29 (Public Utility Plants and Related Personal Property); Chapter 

433 (Telegraph and Telephone Company Property); Chapter 434 (Railway Property); 

Chapter 437 (Electric Transmission Lines); Chapter 437A (Property Used in the 

Production, Generation, Transmission or Delivery of Electricity or Natural Gas); and 

Chapter 438 (Pipeline Property) and any subsequent successor laws related thereto). 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; CONDITIONS 

 

 Section 8.1 Conveyance of Development Property.  Subject to hearing and 

authorization required under law, the City shall make a conveyance of title to the 

Development Property to Developer without any additional consideration other than the 

Developer’s covenants as contained in this Agreement. 

 

 Section 8.2  Form of Deed.  The City shall convey clear title to the Development 

Property to the Developer by Deed.  Such conveyance and title shall be subject to the 

conditions, covenants and restrictions contained in the Urban Renewal Plan and this 

Agreement, shall be subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances, and limited access 

provisions of record, if any, and to existing easements of record, but shall otherwise be 

free and clear of all other liens and encumbrances of record. 

 

 Section 8.3. Condition of the Property; Care And Maintenance.  As of Closing, 

Developer agrees to take the Development Property "As Is." The City makes no 

warranties or representations as to the condition of the Development Property.  The City 

and Developer acknowledge and agree that City has undertaken no investigations with 

respect to the suitability of the Development Property for Developer’s proposed uses, 

including but not limited to subsurface investigations regarding the soil conditions of the 

Development Property. Any geological or other inspection of the Development Property is 

the sole responsibility of the Developer (at its own cost). Developer waives all claims 

against the City as to the condition of the Development Property.  

 

368

Item 4.



26  

 Section 8.4. Environmental Matters. At Closing, although not required by law, the 

City may file with the County Recorder’s office a properly executed Groundwater Hazard 

Statement.  Developer takes the property "As Is" with regard to any environmental 

matters.  The City makes no warranties and representations as to the environmental 

condition of the Development Property, other than the information provided in any 

Groundwater Hazard Statement filed by the City at Closing.  Developer shall be 

responsible for securing and paying for all inspections, remediation efforts, or 

documentation required by the county board of health in order to lawfully transfer the 

Development Property to Developer.  Developer agrees to indemnify, release, defend and 

hold harmless the City for all claims, damages or costs relating to the Development 

Property that arise after the Closing Date. 

  

 Section 8.5. Survey and Platting.  Developer shall be responsible for all survey and 

platting of the Development Property.  The City authorizes Developer and/or its agents 

and contractors access to the Development Property for survey and platting purposes. 

 

 Section 8.6  Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed.  The City shall 

deliver the Deed and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on or 

before the 1st day of June, 2022, or on such other date as the parties hereto may mutually 

agree in writing (the “Closing Date”). 

 

 Section 8.7  Recordation of Deed.  The Developer shall promptly file the Deed for 

recordation among the land records in the office of the Recorder of the County.  The 

Developer shall pay all costs for so recording the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.8  Abstract of Title.  The City shall provide an abstract of title continued 

only to the date of filing of the plat.  It shall be the Developer’s responsibility to pay to 

have the abstract updated.  This abstract shall become the property of the Developer at the 

time of delivery of the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.9  Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property.  The City’s obligation 

to convey title and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on the 

Closing Date shall be subject to satisfaction of the following conditions precedent: 

 

(a) The Developer shall be in material compliance with all the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement; 

 

(b) The Developer shall have furnished the City with evidence, in a form 

reasonably satisfactory to the City (such as a letter of commitment from a 

bank or other lending institution), that the Developer has firm commitments 

for financing for the Project in an amount sufficient, together with equity 

commitments, to complete the Project in conformance with the Construction 

Plans, or the City shall have received such other evidence of the Developer’s 

369

Item 4.



27  

financial ability as in the reasonable judgment of the City is required for the 

Project; 

 

(c) Execution of a Minimum Assessment Agreement by the City, the County and 

the Developer pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Agreement; and 

 

(e) Receipt of an opinion of counsel to the Developer in the form attached hereto 

as Exhibit E.  

   

 Section 8.10 Failure to Commence Construction of Minimum Improvements.  In the 

event the Developer has not made substantial progress towards commencement of 

construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property by no later than 

September 1, 2022, and commencement of construction does not appear imminent, in the 

reasonable discretion of the City, by no later than September 1, 2022, then Developer shall 

have committed an Event of Default within the meaning of Article XI and Section 11.1 of 

this Agreement, and shall convey title to the Development Property to the City as 

provided in Section 11.2(e) of this Agreement by no later than December 1, 2022. 

 

 Section 8.11.  No Partial Property Tax Exemption.  In consideration of the covenants 

of the City as contained in this Agreement, Developer agrees that it shall not seek from the 

County or from the City, any partial or other exemption from taxation of industrial 

property as may be provided by Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls Code of 

Ordinances, and/or by Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to any portion of the 

Development Property, or the Minimum Improvements located on the Development 

Property.   

 

ARTICLE IX.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT – PROPERTY TAX REBATES 

 

 Section 9.1.  Economic Development Grant – Property Tax Rebates.  

 

(a) For and in consideration of the obligations being assumed by the Developer in this 

Agreement, the City agrees, subject to the Developer being and remaining in compliance 

with the terms of this Agreement and to the terms of this Article IX, to assume an 

obligation to make five (5) annual grant payments to the Developer up to the aggregate 

maximum set forth in Section 9.1(c).  The grants shall commence on or about May 31, 

2027, and shall end on or about May 31, 2031.  Each grant shall be equal in amount to the 

applicable percentages shown in the schedule below of the Tax Increments collected by 

the City under Iowa Code Section 403.19,  with respect to the Minimum Improvements 

only, and not with respect to the land comprising the Development Property, under the 

terms of the Ordinance (without regard to any averaging that may otherwise be utilized 

under Section 403.19 and excluding any interest that may accrue thereon prior to payment 

to the Developer) for the two (2) semi-annual installments of general property taxes 

falling due in the fiscal year within which such annual grant payment is to be made to the 

370

Item 4.



28  

Developer; but subject to limitation and adjustment as provided in this Article (such 

payments being referred to collectively in this Section 9.1 as the "Economic Development 

Grants"), according to the following schedule: 

 

Date of Payment of Grant Amount of Payment as a Percentage of Tax Increments 

Collected on the Taxable Value of the Minimum 

Improvements Only  

1.  May 31, 2027 30% 

2.  May 31, 2028 30% 

3.  May 31, 2029 30% 

4.  May 31, 2030 30% 

5.  May 31, 2031 30% 

 

(b)  Conditioned on compliance with the terms of this Agreement at the time of payment, 

the City shall make each grant payment upon receipt from Developer of a copy of the 

general property tax statement for the Development Property for the applicable fiscal year, 

and a copy of the cancelled checks or other proof of payment of taxes on the entirety of 

the Development Property deemed sufficient by the City showing timely payment of the 

two (2) semi-annual installments of general property taxes for such fiscal year, and upon 

which the annual Economic Development Grant is based. 

 

(c)  The aggregate amount of the Economic Development Grants that may be paid to the 

Developer under this Section 9.1 in no event shall exceed One Hundred Seven Thousand 

Dollars ($107,000) over the five-year period. The Developer acknowledges that each 

Economic Development Grant payment to be paid to Developer according to this Article 

IX is wholly contingent upon and shall come solely and only from incremental taxes 

received by the City under Iowa Code Section 403.19 from levies upon the Minimum 

Improvements (building value only).  The City makes no assurance that the Developer 

will receive Economic Development Grants which reach the aggregate maximum of 

$107,000. Economic Development Grants shall, at all times, be subject to suspension and 

termination, in accordance with the terms of this Article IX and Article X.  Thereafter, the 

taxes levied on the Development Property, including both the Minimum Improvements 

and the land, shall be divided and applied in accordance with the Urban Renewal Act and 

the Ordinance. 

 

(d)  In the event the Developer or any successor in interest fails to pay, in full and before 

they become delinquent, any semi-annual installment of the general property taxes on the 

Development Property (or any portion thereof) for any fiscal year, or in the event the 

Developer fails to submit proof of timely payment of any such property taxes by April 1 

following the due date of the second semi-annual installment of general property taxes for 

that fiscal year, the Developer shall forfeit the right to any grant payment from the City for 

such fiscal year and such failure shall be an Event of Default. 

 

371

Item 4.



29  

 Section 9.2.  Additional Conditions to Payment of Economic Development Grants. 

 

(a) The obligation of the City to make an Economic Development Grant to the 

Developer under Section 9.1 of this Article in any year shall further be subject to and 

conditioned upon the timely filing by the Developer of the annual statement, proof and 

certification required under Section 6.8 hereof and the City Council's approval thereof.  If 

the Developer's annual statement, proof and certification is timely filed and contains the 

information required under Section 6.8 and the City Council approves of the same, the 

City shall certify to the County prior to December 1 of that year its request for the 

available Tax Increments resulting from the assessments imposed by the County as of 

January 1 of that year, to be collected by the City as taxes are paid during the following 

fiscal year and which shall thereafter be disbursed to the Developer by May 31 of said 

following fiscal year, as shown in the schedule set forth in subsection (a) of Section 9.1, 

with respect to the payments described in Section 9.1. 

 

(b) In the event that the annual statement, proof or certificate required to be delivered 

by the Developer under Section 6.8 is not delivered to the City by October 15 of any year, 

the Developer recognizes and agrees that the City may have insufficient time to review 

and approve the same and certify its request for Tax Increments to the County and that, as 

a result, no Economic Development Grant may be made to the Developer under Section 

9.1 of this Article in respect thereof. The City covenants to act in good faith to 

appropriately review and consider any late certification on the part of the Developer, but 

the City shall not be obligated to make any certification to the County for the available 

Tax Increments or make any corresponding payment of the Economic Development Grant 

to the Developer if, in the reasonable judgment of the City, it is not able to give 

appropriate consideration (which may include, but not be limited to, specific discussion 

before the City Council at a regular City Council meeting with respect thereto) to the 

Developer's certification due to its late filing.  In the event Developer fails to timely file an 

annual statement, proof or certificate due to an Unavoidable Delay and, as a result, an 

Economic Development Grant cannot be made, the Developer may give written notice to 

the City and, if the City finds that Developer's failure is due to an Unavoidable Delay, the 

missed Economic Development Grant shall be made in the year succeeding the last 

scheduled Economic Development Grant under Section 9.1, subject to Developer's filing 

under Section 6.8 and all other provisions of this Article IX with respect to such grant. 

 

(c) In the event that any certificate filed by the Developer under Section 6.8 discloses 

the existence or prior occurrence of an Event of Default that was not cured or cannot 

reasonably be cured under the provisions of Section 11.2 (or an event that, with the 

passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would become an Event of Default that 

cannot reasonably be cured under the provisions of Section 11.2), the City shall have no 

obligation thereafter to make any further payments to the Developer in respect of the 

Economic Development Grants described in this Article IX, and may proceed to take one 

or more of the actions described in Section 11.2 hereof. 

372

Item 4.



30  

 

 Section 9.3. Source of Grant Funds Limited.  

 

 (a) The Economic Development Grants described in Section 9.1 of this Agreement 

shall be payable from and secured solely and only by amounts deposited and held in the 

McWing, LLC, TIF Account of the City.  The City hereby covenants and agrees, subject 

to this subsection, to maintain the Ordinance with respect to the Minimum Improvements 

in force during the term hereof and to apply the appropriate incremental taxes collected in 

respect of the Minimum Improvements and allocated to the McWing, LLC, TIF Account 

to pay the Economic Development Grants, as and to the extent set forth in Article IX 

hereof.  The Economic Development Grants shall not be payable in any manner by other 

tax increment revenues or by general taxation or from any other City funds. The Economic 

Development Grants shall not be payable in any manner by other tax increment revenues 

or by general taxation or from any other City funds. Any commercial and industrial 

property tax replacement monies that may be received under chapter 441.21A shall not be 

included in the calculation to determine the amount of Economic Development Grants for 

which Developer is eligible, and any monies received back under chapter 426C relating to 

the Business Property Tax Credit shall not be included in the calculation to determine the 

amount of Economic Development Grants for which Developer is eligible. 

 

 (b)  Each Economic Development Grant is subject to annual appropriation by the 

City Council each fiscal year. The City has no obligation to make any payments to 

Developer as contemplated under this Agreement until the City Council annually 

appropriates the funds necessary to make such payments. The right of non-appropriation 

reserved to the City in this Section is intended by the parties, and shall be construed at all 

times, so as to ensure that the City’s obligation to make future Economic Development 

Grants shall not constitute a legal indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any 

applicable constitutional or statutory debt limitation prior to the adoption of a budget 

which appropriates funds for the payment of that installment or amount.  In the event that 

any of the provisions of this Agreement are determined by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to create, or result in the creation of, such a legal indebtedness of the City, the 

enforcement of the said provisions shall be suspended, and this Agreement shall at all 

times be construed and applied in such a manner as will preserve the foregoing intent of 

the parties, and no event of default by the City shall be deemed to have occurred as a 

result thereof. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any 

circumstance is so suspended, the suspension shall not affect other provisions of this 

Agreement which can be given effect without the suspended provision. To this end the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

 

 (c) Notwithstanding the provisions of Article IX hereof, the City shall have no 

obligation to make an Economic Development Grant to the Developer, if at any time 

during the term hereof the City Council fails to appropriate funds; the City’s ability to 

collect Tax Increment from the Development Property terminates under Iowa Code 

373

Item 4.



31  

Chapter 403, as may be amended; or the City receives an opinion or decision from a court 

of competent jurisdiction to the effect that the use of Tax Increments resulting from the 

Minimum Improvements to fund an Economic Development Grant to the Developer, as 

contemplated under said Article IX, is not authorized or otherwise is not an appropriate 

project activity permitted to be undertaken by the City under the Urban Renewal Act or 

other applicable provisions of the Code or Iowa Constitution, as then constituted.  Upon 

occurrence of such a circumstance, the City shall promptly forward notice of the same to 

the Developer.  If the non-appropriation or circumstances or legal constraints continue for 

a period during which two (2) Economic Development Grants would otherwise have been 

paid to the Developer under the terms of Article IX, the City may terminate this 

Agreement, without penalty or other liability to the Developer, by written notice to the 

Developer. 

 

 (d)  The City makes no representation with respect to the amounts that may finally be 

paid to the Developer as the Economic Development Grants under this Article IX, and 

under no circumstances shall the City in any manner be liable to the Developer so long as 

the City timely applies the Tax Increments actually collected and held in the McWing, 

LLC, TIF Account (regardless of the amounts thereof) to the payment of the Economic 

Development Grants to the Developer, as and to the extent described in this Article. 

 

 Section 9.4. Use of Other Tax Increments. Subject to this Article IX, the City shall 

be free to use any and all tax increments collected in respect of the Minimum 

Improvements, Development Property or any other properties within the Urban Renewal 

Area, or any available Tax Increments resulting from the suspension or termination of the 

Economic Development Grants under Article IX hereof, for any purpose for which the tax 

increments may lawfully be used pursuant to the provisions of the Urban Renewal Act, 

and the City shall have no obligations to the Developer with respect to the use thereof. 

 

ARTICLE X.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 

 Section 10.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

 

 (a) The Developer releases the City and the governing body members, officers, 

agents, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, for purposes of this 

Article X, the "indemnified parties") from, covenants and agrees that the 

indemnified parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the indemnified parties against, any loss or damage to property 

or any injury to or death of any person occurring at or about or resulting from 

any defect in the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (b) Except for any willful misrepresentation, or any willful or wanton misconduct, 

or any unlawful act, or any negligent act or omission of the indemnified 

parties, Developer agrees to protect and defend the indemnified parties, now or 

374

Item 4.



32  

forever, and further agrees to hold the indemnified parties harmless, from any 

claim, demand, suit, action or other proceedings whatsoever by any person or 

entity whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from any violation of any 

agreement or condition of this Agreement by the Developer, including but not 

limited to claims for the construction, installation, ownership, and operation of 

the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (c) The indemnified parties shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the 

persons or property of the Developer or its officers, agents, servants or 

employees or any other person who may be about the Minimum Improvements 

due to any act of negligence, including a negligent failure to act, of any person, 

other than any act of negligence on the part of any such indemnified party or 

its officers, agents, servants or employees. 

 

 (d) The provisions of this Article X shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE XI.  REMEDIES 

 

 Section 11.1.  Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be "Events of 

Default" under this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is 

used in this Agreement, any one or more of the following events: 

  

 (a) Failure by the Developer to cause the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements to be commenced and completed pursuant to the terms, 

conditions and limitations of Article III of this Agreement, subject to 

Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (b) Failure by the Developer or its successors to cause the Minimum 

Improvements to be reconstructed when required pursuant to Article V of this 

Agreement. 

 

 (c) Failure by the City to cause the Development Property to be conveyed to the 

Developer pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations of Article VIII of 

this Agreement, subject to Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (d) Transfer of the Developer's ownership interest in the Development Property or 

any interest of Developer in this Agreement, or the assets of Developer in 

violation of the provisions of Article VII of this Agreement, until the 

Termination Date; 

 

 (e) Failure by the Developer or its successors until the Termination Date, to pay 

ad valorem taxes on the Development Property;  

375

Item 4.



33  

 

 (f) Failure by the Developer or its successors until the Termination Date to 

substantially observe or perform any other covenant, condition, obligation or 

agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Agreement; 

 

 (g) The holder of any Mortgage on the Development Property, or any 

improvements thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure 

proceedings as a result of any default under the applicable Mortgage 

documents; 

 

 (h) Sale or lease of the Minimum Improvements or Development Property in 

violation of the provisions of Section 6.12, Relocation, of this Agreement; 

 

 (i) The Developer shall: 

 

  (i) file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, arrangement, 

composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief 

under the United States Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended, or under 

any similar federal or state law; or 

 

  (ii) make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or 

 

  (iii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become 

due; or 

 

  (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer 

proposing adjudication as a bankrupt or reorganization under any 

present or future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state 

law shall be filed in any court and such petition or answer shall not be 

discharged or denied within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof; or a 

receiver, trustee or liquidator of the Developer or the Minimum 

Improvements, or part thereof, shall be appointed in any proceedings 

brought against the Developer and shall not be discharged within ninety 

(90) days after such appointment, or if the Developer shall consent to or 

acquiesce in such appointment; or 

 

 (j) Any obligation, representation or warranty made by any party to this 

Agreement, any Exhibit hereto, or made by any party in any written statement 

or certificate pursuant to this Agreement, shall prove to have been incorrect, 

incomplete or misleading in any material respect on or as of the date of the 

issuance or making thereof.   

 

376

Item 4.



34  

 Section 11.2.  Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 11.1 of this Agreement occurs and is continuing, any party not in default may take 

any one or more of the following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' written notice 

to the party in default, and the holder of the Mortgage, of the Event of Default, but only if 

the Event of Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) days, or if the Event of 

Default cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and the party in default does 

not provide assurances reasonably satisfactory to the party giving notice that the Event of 

Default will be cured as soon as reasonably possible: 

 

 (a) The party giving notice may suspend its performance under this Agreement 

until it receives assurances from the party in default, deemed adequate by the 

party giving notice, that the party in default will cure the default and continue 

performance under this Agreement; 

 

 (b) If Developer is in default, the City may withhold the Certificate of 

Completion;  

 

 (c) The party who is not in default may take any action, including legal, equitable 

or administrative action, which may appear necessary or desirable to recover 

damages proximately caused by the Default, or to enforce performance and 

observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant, under this Agreement;  

 

 (d) If Developer is in default, the City will have no obligation to make payment of 

Economic Development Grants to Developer subsequent to the Event of 

Default and shall be entitled to recover from Developer, and Developer shall 

repay to the City, an amount equal to the full amount of the Economic 

Development Grants previously made to Developer under Article IX hereof, 

with interest thereon at the highest rate permitted by State law.  The City may 

take any action, including any legal action it deems necessary, to recover such 

amounts from Developer; and/or 

 

 (e) In the event the Developer fails to perform any one or more of the material 

obligations described in Article III of this Agreement in a timely manner, 

Developer shall thereupon immediately convey title to the Development 

Property to the City, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject 

to restrictive covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if 

any, and to existing easements, if any.  Developer shall also establish to the 

satisfaction of City and its legal counsel that no labor has been performed and 

no materials have been furnished by any contractor, subcontractor, or any 

other person, firm or entity, in connection with any improvements made to the 

Development Property within the ninety (90) days immediately preceding the 

date of said conveyance.  Developer shall also deliver to City an abstract of 

title covering the Development Property, certified to a date subsequent to the 

377

Item 4.



35  

date of said conveyance, showing that marketable title to the Development 

Property is vested in Developer and complies with the requirements of this 

subsection.  Developer shall pay to City all general property taxes and special 

assessments, if any, due or to become due with respect to the Development 

Property, continuing until the Development Property is assessed to the City 

and is exempt from assessment for general property taxes by reason of its 

conveyance to and ownership by the City as a tax-exempt governmental body.  

Developer shall pay for all costs associated with conveyance of the 

Development Property to the City, including, but not limited to, abstracting, 

recording fees, and reasonable attorneys' fees.  In the event the Developer fails 

to comply with the terms and conditions of this subsection (e) within the thirty 

(30) day period described in Section 11.2 of this Article, then the City may 

proceed as provided in Section 11.2(c) of this Article, to obtain a decree of 

specific performance against Developer for the conveyance of the 

Development Property to the City or, in lieu thereof, at the City’s sole 

discretion, to obtain a judgment for monetary damages to compensate the City 

for the Developer’s default, plus attorneys’ fees and expenses as provided in 

Section 11.5. 

 

 Section 11.3.  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved 

to the parties is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but 

each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy 

given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.  

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall 

impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such 

right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 

expedient.   

 

 Section 11.4.  No Implied Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this 

Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, 

such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to 

waive any other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

 

 Section 11.5.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  Whenever any 

Event of Default occurs and a party not in default shall employ attorneys or incur other 

expenses for the collection of payments due or to become due or for the enforcement or 

performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of a party in default 

herein contained, the party in default agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the 

party not in default the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses as may 

be reasonably and appropriately incurred by the party not in default in connection 

therewith. 

 

 

378

Item 4.



36  

ARTICLE XII.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Section 12.1.  Conflict of Interest.  Developer agrees that, to its best knowledge and 

belief, no member, officer or employee of the City, or its designees or agents, nor any 

consultant or member of the governing body of the City, and no other public official of the 

City who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to the 

Project during his or her tenure, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making 

process or gain insider information with regard to the Project, shall have any interest, 

direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be 

performed in connection with the Project, or in any activity, or benefit therefrom, which is 

part of this Project at any time during or after such person's tenure. 

 

 Section 12.2.  Non-Discrimination.  In carrying out the construction and operation 

of the Minimum Improvements, the Developer shall not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.  The Developer 

shall insure that applicants for employment are employed, and the employees are treated 

during employment, without regard to their race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.   

 

 Section 12.3.  Notices.  Whenever this Agreement requires or permits any consent, 

approval, notice, request, proposal, or demand (collectively, "Notice") from one party to 

another, the Notice must be in writing and shall be effective upon actual receipt by the 

intended recipient, at the following addresses:    

 

DEVELOPER:  Mr. Brian Wingert 

    Member 

    McWing, LLC  

    5020 Ironwood Drive 

    Cedar Falls, IA 50613    

 

With a copy to:  Eric Johnson 

    Beecher, Field, Walker, Morris, Hoffman & Johnson, P.C. 

    620 Lafayette Street, Suite 300 

    Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

 CITY   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    City Administrator 

    220 Clay Street 

    Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

or to such other designated individual or officer or to such other address as any party shall 

have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith. Any party entitled to 

379

Item 4.



37  

receive a Notice hereunder may change the address which it previously had specified for 

receiving the same, at any time and from time to time, by delivering a written change 

notice in accordance with the above provisions to the other parties at least five (5) 

business days prior to the effective date of such change. 

 

 Section 12.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections.  Any titles of the several parts, 

Articles, and Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and shall be disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

 

 Section 12.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be merged by reason of the delivery of the Deed, and the Deed shall not 

be deemed to affect or impair the provisions and covenants of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 12.6.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. 

 

 Section 12.7.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits hereto reflect the 

entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 

and replaces all prior agreements, negotiations or discussions, whether oral or written.  

This Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent writing signed by all parties 

hereto. 

 

 Section 12.8.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is intended to and shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 

successors and assigns. 

 

 Section 12.9.  Termination Date of Minimum Assessment Agreement.  This 

Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect with respect to the 

Minimum Improvements on the termination of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as 

provided in Section 6.1 of this Agreement and in the Minimum Assessment Agreement, 

the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

 

 Section 12.10.  Memorandum of Agreement.  The parties agree to execute and 

record a Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development, in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit F, to serve as notice to the public of the existence and provisions of 

this Agreement, and the rights and interests held by the City by virtue hereof.  Developer 

shall pay all costs of recording. 

 

 Section 12.11.  Immediate Undertaking.  All parties agree to undertake immediately 

upon execution of this Agreement all of those obligations which require immediate action. 

 

380

Item 4.



38  

 Section 12.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture.  The relationship herein created 

between the parties is contractual in nature and is in no way to be construed as creating a 

partnership or joint venture between the Developer and any or all of the other parties. 

 

 Section 12.13.  Captions.  The captions, headings, and arrangements used in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not in any way affect, limit, amplify, or 

modify the terms and provisions hereof. 

 

 Section 12.14.  Number and Gender of Words.  Whenever herein the singular 

number is used, the same shall include the plural where appropriate, and words of any 

gender shall include each other where appropriate. 

   

 Section 12.15.  Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement or any 

agreement contemplated hereby is held to be illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable under 

present or future laws effective during the term of such agreement; then: (i) such provision 

shall be fully severable; (ii) such agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such 

illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of such 

agreement; and (iii) the remaining provisions of such agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision 

or by its severance from such agreement.  Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, void, 

invalid, or unenforceable provision there shall be added automatically as a part of such 

agreement a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable 

provision as may be legal, valid, and enforceable, whether or not such a substitute 

provision is specifically provided for in such agreement.   

 

 Section 12.16.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement has been executed in a 

number of identical counterparts, each of which is to be deemed an original for all 

purposes and all of which constitute collectively one agreement, but in making proof of 

this Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such 

counterpart. 

 

 Section 12.17.  Authorization.  Each party hereto represents that prior to its 

execution hereof all necessary company, governmental or other appropriate action, as 

applicable, including without limitation resolutions of their governing boards or bodies, 

has been taken to authorize the execution of this Agreement and the performance by such 

party of its respective obligations hereunder. 

 

 Section 12.18.  Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to all 

matters described in this Agreement and related documents.  

 

 Section 12.19.  Survival.  Each provision of this Agreement shall survive the 

occurrence of the other provisions of this Agreement to the extent necessary to ensure full 

performance of said surviving provision. 

381

Item 4.



39  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 

name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by its 

City Clerk, and the Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its name 

and behalf by its member, all on or as of the day first above written. 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk      

       

McWing, LLC, 

an Iowa limited liability company  

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Brian Wingert, Member 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Steve McDonald, Member 

 

DEVELOPER 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ss.  

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK, ss. 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2022, 

by Brian Wingert and Steve McDonald, Members, McWing, LLC, an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

382

Item 4.



40  

EXHIBIT A 

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 

 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or 

parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State 

of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 6, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 3.00 acres more or less). 

 

 

  

383

Item 4.



41  

EXHIBIT B 

 

MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 The Minimum Improvements shall consist of the construction of four Industrial Use 

Warehouse  Facilities, each containing a minimum of 10,000 square feet of finished space 

and altogether totaling at least 40,000 square feet of finished space, all as set forth in the 

Construction Plans and being as more particularly shown and in substantially the same 

configuration and scope as the Site Plans attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

 The Developer agrees to connect to the sanitary sewer, storm sewer, natural gas, 

electricity, water, underground telephone cable, internet and any other utilities services 

from their present locations to such location or locations on the Development Property as 

Developer deems appropriate, at its cost.  The Developer also agrees to construct any 

driveway approaches and other paving, at its cost, in accordance with City ordinances.  

 

 The Developer also agrees to perform or cause to be performed all necessary 

grading, land preparation and all necessary building improvements, landscaping, storm 

water detention, signage, and all other site improvements, in all respects in entire 

conformity with all applicable codes and ordinances of the City, all at the Developer's 

cost.  The submittal to City of plans for the construction of said improvements shall be in 

substantial conformity with the following schedule: 

 

Schedule of Performance 

 

Activity to be Completed    Completion Date 

 

Issuance of First Building Permit   June 1, 2022 

 

Substantial Completion     June 1, 2024 

 

Issuance of Occupancy Permit   June 1, 2024 
 

 

384

Item 4.



 

42  

EXHIBIT C 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter 

called "City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 

hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"); and McWing, LLC,  (hereinafter called the 

"Developer"), an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 

5020 Ironwood Drive, Cedar Falls, IA 50613; did on or about the _____ day of 

_______________, 2022, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for 

Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to develop and maintain certain real property 

located within the City and as more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 6, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 3.00 acres more or less) 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and 

restrictions with respect to the development of the Development Property, and obligated 

Developer to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined therein) in accordance 

with the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Developer performed said covenants and conditions insofar as they 

relate to the construction of said Minimum Improvements in a manner deemed by the City 

to be in conformance with the approved building plans to permit the execution and 

recording of this certification. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Agreement, this is to certify that all covenants 

and conditions of the Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer and its 

successors and assigns, to construct the Minimum Improvements have been completed 

and performed by Developer and are hereby released absolutely and forever terminated 

insofar as they apply to the land described herein.  The County Recorder of Black Hawk 

County is hereby authorized to accept for recording and to record the filing of this 

instrument, to be a conclusive determination of the satisfactory termination of the 

covenants and conditions of said Agreement with respect to the construction of the 

Minimum Improvements. 

 

385

Item 4.



 

43  

 All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect 

until termination as provided therein. 

 

 

 

 (SEAL)    THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA          ) 

                         )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK )  

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

20__, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

  

386

Item 4.



 

44  

EXHIBIT D 

 

MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT, dated as of this _________ day of 

______________, 2022, by and among the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, (the "City"), and 

McWing, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company, (the "Developer"), and the COUNTY 

ASSESSOR for the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa (the "Assessor"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, on or before the date hereof the City and Developer have entered into an 

Agreement for Private Development dated as of ______________________________, 2022 (the 

"Agreement") regarding certain real property located in the City legally described as: 

 

Lot 6 West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, 

Iowa (Contains 3.00 acres more or less) 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that pursuant to said Agreement, the Developer will 

undertake the development of the Development Property, which is within the Cedar Falls Unified 

Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 403.6(19) of the Code of Iowa, 2021, as amended, the 

City and the Developer desire to establish a minimum actual value for the facilities thereon to be 

constructed by the Developer pursuant to the Agreement (defined therein as the "Minimum 

Improvements"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Assessor have reviewed the preliminary plans and 

specifications for the Minimum Improvements which it is contemplated will be erected. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Minimum Assessment Agreement, in 

consideration of the promises, covenants and agreements made by each other, do hereby agree as 

follows: 

 

 1.   Upon substantial completion of construction of the above-referenced Minimum 

Improvements by the Developer, but no later than January 1, 2025, the minimum actual value 

which shall be fixed for assessment purposes for the Minimum Improvements to be constructed 

on the Development Property by the Developer and the land that together comprise the 

Development Property, shall be not less than Two Million Nine Hundred Ninety Six Thousand 

and no/100 Dollars ($2,996,000.00), before rollback (hereafter referred to as the "Assessor’s 

Minimum Actual Value") until termination of this Minimum Assessment Agreement.  The parties 

hereto expect that the construction of the above-referenced Minimum Improvements will be 

completed on or before January 1, 2025. 

 

 Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive the Developer's rights under Iowa Code Section 

403.6(19) to contest that portion of any actual value assignment made by the Assessor in excess 

387

Item 4.



 

45  

of the Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value established herein, or any actual value assignment made 

by the Assessor to the Minimum Improvements or to the 3.00 acres of land, which together 

comprise the Development Property.  In no event, however, shall the Developer seek to reduce 

the actual value assigned below the Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value established herein during 

the term of this Agreement. 

 

 2.   The Assessor’s Minimum Actual Value herein established shall be of no further force 

and effect and this Minimum Assessment Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2035. 

 

 3.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be promptly recorded by the Developer 

with the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa.  The Developer shall pay all costs of recording. 

 

 4.   Neither the preambles nor provisions of this Minimum Assessment Agreement are 

intended to, or shall be construed as, modifying the terms of the Agreement between the City and 

the Developer. 

 

 5.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 

the successors and assigns of the parties, and all holders of mortgages upon or security interests in 

the Development Property, including the land and the Minimum Improvements,   to secure any 

loans with respect to the Development Property, including the land and the Minimum 

Improvements. 

 

      THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

DEVELOPER: 

 

McWing, LLC 

An Iowa limited liability company  

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Brian Wingert, Member 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Steve McDonald, Member 

 

 

 

 

 
 

388

Item 4.



 

46  

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

       ) ss:   

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     __________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA    ) 

                       ) ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2022, by Brian Wingert and Steve McDonald, Members, McWing, LLC, an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

 

  

389

Item 4.



 

47  

 

CERTIFICATION OF ASSESSOR 

 

 The undersigned, having reviewed the plans and specifications for the Minimum 

Improvements to be constructed and the market value assigned to such Minimum 

Improvements, and being of the opinion that the minimum market value contained in the 

foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement appears reasonable, hereby certifies as 

follows:  The undersigned Assessor, being legally responsible for the assessment of the 

property described in the foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement, upon completion 

of Minimum Improvements to be made on it and in accordance with the Minimum 

Assessment Agreement, certifies that the actual taxable value assigned to such Minimum 

Improvements and the 3.00 acres of land on which such Minimum Improvements are to be 

constructed, which together comprise the Development Property, upon completion shall 

not be less than $2,996,000.00, before rollback, until termination of this Minimum 

Assessment Agreement pursuant to the terms hereof. 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      County Assessor for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

                       )  ss. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 Subscribed and sworn to before me by T.J. Koenigsfeld, County Assessor for Black 

Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

390

Item 4.



 

48  

Consistent with Iowa Code §403.6(19)(b), filed with this assessor certification is a copy of 

subsection 19 as follows: 

 

19. a. A municipality, upon entering into a development or redevelopment agreement pursuant to 

section 403.8, subsection 1, or as otherwise permitted in this chapter, may enter into a written 

assessment agreement with the developer of taxable property in the urban renewal area which 

establishes a minimum actual value of the land and completed improvements to be made on the 

land until a specified termination date which shall not be later than the date after which the tax 

increment will no longer be remitted to the municipality pursuant to section 403.19, subsection 2. 

The assessment agreement shall be presented to the appropriate assessor. The assessor shall 

review the plans and specifications for the improvements to be made and if the minimum actual 

value contained in the assessment agreement appears to be reasonable, the assessor shall execute 

the following certification upon the agreement: 

 

The undersigned assessor, being legally responsible for the assessment of the above described 

property upon completion of the improvements to be made on it, certifies that the actual value 

assigned to that land and improvements upon completion shall not be less than $ 2,996,000.00. 

 

b. This assessment agreement with the certification of the assessor and a copy of this subsection 

shall be filed in the office of the county recorder of the county where the property is located. 

Upon completion of the improvements, the assessor shall value the property as required by law, 

except that the actual value shall not be less than the minimum actual value contained in the 

assessment agreement. This subsection does not prohibit the assessor from assigning a higher 

actual value to the property or prohibit the owner from seeking administrative or legal remedies to 

reduce the actual value assigned except that the actual value shall not be reduced below the 

minimum actual value contained in the assessment agreement. An assessor, county auditor, board 

of review, director of revenue, or court of this state shall not reduce or order the reduction of the 

actual value below the minimum actual value in the agreement during the term of the agreement 

regardless of the actual value which may result from the incomplete construction of 

improvements, destruction or diminution by any cause, insured or uninsured, except in the case of 

acquisition or reacquisition of the property by a public entity. Recording of an assessment 

agreement complying with this subsection constitutes notice of the assessment agreement to a 

subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer of the land or any part of it, whether voluntary or 

involuntary, and is binding upon a subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer. 
 

 

391

Item 4.



 

49  

EXHIBIT E 

 

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

Attn: City Clerk 

City Hall 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

RE: Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa and McWing, LLC, an Iowa limited liability company 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 

 

 As counsel for McWing, LLC  (the "Developer"), and in connection with the 

execution and delivery of a certain Development Agreement (the "Development 

Agreement") between the Developer and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") dated 

as of ________________, 2022, we hereby render the following opinion: 

 

 We have examined the original certified copy, or copies otherwise identified to our 

satisfaction as being true copies, of the following: 

 

(a) The certificate of organization and operating agreement, together with 

all amendments thereto, of the Developer; 

 

(b) Resolutions of the members of the Developer at which action was 

taken with respect to the transactions covered by this opinion; 

 

  (c) The Development Agreement; 

 

and such other documents and records as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a 

basis for the opinions set forth herein. 

 

 Based on the pertinent law, the foregoing examination and such other inquiries as we 

have deemed appropriate, we are of the opinion that: 

 

 1. The Developer has been duly organized and is validly existing as a limited 

liability company under the laws of the State of Iowa and is authorized to do business in 

the State of Iowa.  The Developer has full power and authority to execute, deliver and 

perform in full the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement; 

and the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement have been 

duly and validly authorized by action of the members, have been executed and delivered 

392

Item 4.



 

50  

by an authorized manager of the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution 

and delivery by the City, are  in full force and effect and are  valid and legally binding 

instruments of the Developer enforceable in accordance with their  terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws relating to or 

affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 2. The execution, delivery and performance by the Developer of the 

Development Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, and the carrying out of 

the terms thereof, will not result in violation of any provision of, or in default under, the 

certificate of organization and operating agreement of the Developer or any indenture, 

mortgage, deed of trust, indebtedness, agreement, judgment, decree, order, statute, rule, 

regulation or restriction to which the Developer is a party or by which it or its property is 

bound or subject. 

 

 3. To our knowledge and after inquiry to Developer, there are no actions, suits 

or proceedings pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer in any court or 

before any arbitrator or before or by any governmental body in which there is a reasonable 

possibility of an adverse decision which could materially adversely affect the business 

(present or prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the Development 

Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, or the Developer's ability to perform 

its obligations thereunder. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

BEECHER, FIELD, WALKER, MORRIS, HOFFMAN & JOHNSON, P.C. 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 

 Eric Johnson, Attorney at Law 

       620 Lafayette Street, Suite 300 

 Waterloo, IA 50703 

 

  

393

Item 4.



 

51  

EXHIBIT F 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter 

called "City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 

hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"); and McWing, LLC,  (hereinafter called the 

"Developer"), an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 

5020 Ironwood Drive, Cedar Falls, IA 50613, did on or about the _____ day of 

______________, 2022, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for 

Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement and the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Plan (the "Plan"), to develop certain real property located within 

the City and within the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

and as more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lot 6, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk 

County, Iowa (Contains 3.00 acres more or less). 

 

(the "Development Property"), and  

 

 WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement commenced on the ___ day of 

___________, 2022, and terminates on the 31st day of December, 2035, with respect to 

the Development Property, unless otherwise terminated as set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to record a Memorandum of the Agreement referring 

to the Development Property and their respective interests therein.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 1. That the recording of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private 

Development shall serve as notice to the public that the Agreement contains provisions 

restricting conveyance, development and use of the Development Property and the 

improvements located and operated on such Development Property, and contains 

provisions dealing with the dollar amount of the minimum value of the Development 

Property for general property tax purposes, and the length of time during which said 

minimum assessed value continues in effect, as provided for in Section 403.6(19), Code of 

Iowa. 

 

 2. That all of the provisions of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments 

thereto, if any, even though not set forth herein, are by the filing of this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development made a part hereof by reference, and that anyone 

making any claim against any of said Development Property in any manner whatsoever 

394

Item 4.



 

52  

shall be fully advised as to all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto, as if the same were fully set forth herein.   

 

 3. That a copy of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if 

any, shall be maintained on file for public inspection during ordinary business hours in the 

office of the City Clerk, City Hall, Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development on the ______ day of _______________________, 

2022. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

               Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

 

McWing, LLC 

an Iowa limited liability company. 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Brian Wingert, Member 

 

By:  _________________________________________ 

        Steve McDonald, Member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

395

Item 4.



 

53  

STATE OF IOWA     ) 

       )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA    )  

      )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2022, 

by Brian Wingert and Steve McDonald, Members, McWing, LLC, an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 
 

396

Item 4.



DEED WITHOUT WARRANTY 

 

 For the consideration of One Dollar ($1.00) and other valuable consideration, the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa 

(“Grantor”), does hereby convey to McWing, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company 

(“Grantee”), the following described real estate in Black Hawk County, Iowa: 

This transfer is exempt according to Iowa Code § 428A.2(6). 
 

Lot 6, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black Hawk County, Iowa; 

subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions contained in the Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by Cedar Falls City Council Resolution No. 8196 

approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 (Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by 

Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 (Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time 

by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time 

by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time 

by Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 

on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance 

No. 2923), amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 

(Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 

2020, and further subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances and limited access provisions of 

record, if any, and to existing easements of record. 
 

            Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall be construed as in the 

singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according to the context. 

 

Dated: ___________________________. 

 

GRANTOR: 

By: ______________________________  By: _____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor                                            Jacqueline Danielsen, City Clerk 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: 

          This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of _________________, 2022, 

by Robert M. Green, as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen, as City Clerk, of the City of Cedar 

Falls, Iowa. 

 ________________________________________ 

     NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR IOWA 

 

My commission expires: __________________ 

397

Item 4.



    ADMINISTRATION 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

  

   

 

 

 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator 

 DATE: February 25, 2022 

SUBJECT:      KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. Economic Development Project 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
For the past several months, staff has been working with officials with KL Iowa 01, 
L.L.C. toward the construction of a new 51,000 square foot building for their 
manufacturing facility. The company is currently located in the industrial park at 6206 
Nordic Drive in a smaller building that they are currently leasing. The company has now 
outgrown their current location, and would like to construct and own a larger building for 
the current and future growth of the business. The proposed project will occur on Lots 9, 
10 and 11 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (4.35 acres total of which 
approximately 3.9 acres is buildable after setback and open space requirement). This 
new facility will have a minimum building valuation and permit valuation of $3,200,000 
and a total project minimum assessed valuation of $3,485,000 (including land). 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 
 

As noted in the Introduction, the proposed building will be constructed and owned by KL 
Iowa 01, L.L.C., and will consist of an approximate 51,000 square foot building to be 
located at the corner of Production Drive and Venture Way in the West Viking Road 
Industrial Park. The proposed project will have a minimum building valuation of 
$3,200,000, and a total project valuation including land of $3,450,000. KL Iowa 01, 
L.L.C. will commence construction this spring with completion anticipated within 
approximately 9-12 months.  

 

COMPANY PROFILE 
 

KCnG, “Kubica Corp Next Gen”, was founded in 2018 to advance manufacturing 
through automation in the local foundry supply chain.  KCnG has developed 
technologies and processes to improve certain manufacturing processes of 
castings.  KCnG is currently manufacturing in Cedar Falls, and plans to develop about 
500,000 sf of manufacturing space for local operations along with a separate 50,000 sf 
site for research and development.   

398

Item 5.



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES 

Land Incentive 

 

For the proposed KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. project, the company would receive at no cost, 
Lots 9, 10 and 11 of West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I (4.35 acres total of which 
approximately 3.90 acres is buildable after setback and open space requirement) in the 
West Viking Road Industrial Park. This land incentive is consistent with our general 
industrial economic incentive guidelines of providing one acre of non-restricted building 
area for each 10,000 +/- square feet of new building space being constructed having a 
minimum $40 per square foot valuation. Therefore, staff feels that the proposed 51,000 
square foot facility with a $3,200,000 minimum building valuation is consistent with prior 
City land incentives for comparable projects.  

Industrial Partial Property Tax Exemption 

 
Consistent with our ongoing local economic development incentive guidelines, the City 
of Cedar Falls typically will consider a Five-Year Partial Property Tax Exemption on 
projects having a minimum assessed valuation of $1,200,000+.  Section 8.11 of the 
Agreement for Private Development references sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the 
Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances and Chapter 427B of the Iowa Code with respect to the 
provisions of the applicable partial property tax exemption. For the proposed Wayne 
Estates, L.L.C project, the following exemption schedule is estimated using the existing 
industrial tax rate/valuation and projecting annual building property taxes of $95,057: 
 

Year  % Exemption  $ Abated  $ Amount Paid  $ Total Taxes  
         

1  75%  $71,292  $23,764  $95,057 
2  60%  $57,034  $38,023  $95,057 
3  45%  $42,775  $52,281  $95,057 
4  30%  $28,517  $66,540  $95,057 
5  15%       $14,258   $80,798  $95,057 

    $213,877  $261,406    $475,283 
 
It should be noted that following City Council consideration of the Agreement for Private 
Development, an actual Ordinance will be drafted and adopted implementing the 
proposed exemption schedule noted above. The Ordinance granting the applicable 
partial property tax exemption will be presented to City Council once construction of the 
new KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. facility has commenced. 

Conclusion 

 
As this memorandum indicates, KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. is proposing to construct a new 
51,000 square foot manufacturing/R&D facility on Lots 9, 10 and 11 of West Viking 
Road Industrial Park Phase I (4.35 acres total of which approximately 3.90 acres is 
buildable after setback and open space requirement).  The proposed new construction 
building project will have a minimum building permit valuation of $3,200,000 and a total 

399

Item 5.



Minimum Assessed Valuation of $3,485,000 including land.  Construction would 
commence this spring with completion anticipated in approximately 9-12 months. 
 
The Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 
and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. has been reviewed by both parties, and is attached for your 
review and approval. 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt and approve the following: 
 
1. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for Private 

Development and a Minimum Assessment Agreement by and between the City 
of Cedar Falls, Iowa, and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., and approving and authorizing 
execution of a Quit Claim Deed conveying title to certain real estate to KL Iowa 
01, L.L.C. 

 
If you have any questions regarding the proposed KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. economic 
development project, please feel free to let me know. 
 
xc: Ron Gaines, P.E., City Administrator 
 
         
        
 
 
 

400

Item 5.



Venture Way

Ar
bo

rs
Dr

Capital Way

Technology Pkwy

W Viking Rd

Tec
hn

olo
gy

Pl

De
ve

lop
me

nt 
Dr

Production Dr

I

Hawkeye
Corrugated

Box

Ashley
Furniture

Distribution
Center

Project Location

KL Iowa 01, LLC
51,000 sq. ft.
Manufacturing Facility

Bossard

D. LaPorte Air King

Zuidberg

401

Item 5.



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Prepared by:  Shane Graham, Economic Development Coordinator, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 268-5160 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _______ 

 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT AND A MINIMUM 
ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF CEDAR 
FALLS, IOWA, AND KL IOWA 01, L.L.C., AND APPROVING AND 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A QUIT CLAIM DEED CONVEYING TITLE TO 
CERTAIN REAL ESTATE TO KL IOWA 01, L.L.C.. 

 
 WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on November 12, 1990 
(Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 
(Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 
2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 
2012 (Ordinance No. 2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a sixth time by 
Resolution No. 21,279 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), amended a seventh time by 
Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth 
time by Resolution No. 22,205 on December 21, 2020, the City Council has approved and 
adopted an urban renewal plan designated as the “Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 
Urban Renewal Plan” (the “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable that properties within the Urban Renewal Plan be developed 
as part of the overall development area covered by said Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal from KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.  ("Developer"), in 
the form of a proposed Agreement for Private Development (the "Agreement") by and between 
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") and the Developer, pursuant to which, among other 
things, the Developer would agree to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined in 
the Agreement) on certain real property located within the Urban Renewal Plan as legally 
described in the Agreement attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (defined 
in the Agreement as the "Development Property"), consisting of the construction of an Industrial 
Use Manufacturing Facility totaling at least 40,000 square feet of finished space, together with 
all related site improvements, as outlined in the proposed Development Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City provide certain financial 
incentives for the urban renewal project under the terms and following satisfaction of the 

402

Item 5.



 2 

conditions set forth in the Agreement, consisting of conveyance of title to the Development 
Property to the Developer, the Development Property being legally described as follows: 
 

Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, Black 
Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less); and 

 
 WHEREAS, Iowa Code Chapters 15A and 403 (the "Urban Renewal Law") authorize 
cities to make loans and grants and to convey real property to developers for economic 
development purposes in furtherance of the objectives of an urban renewal project and to 
appropriate such funds, make such expenditures and convey such real property as may be 
necessary to carry out the purposes of said Chapters, and to levy taxes and assessments for 
such purposes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement further proposes that the City, the Developer and the 
Assessor of Black Hawk County, Iowa, enter into a Minimum Assessment Agreement (the 
"Minimum Assessment Agreement"), whereby the minimum actual taxable value of the 
improvements to be constructed thereon would be established at an amount not less than 
$3,485,000.00 for a period through December 31, 2034; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the Agreement is in the best 
interests of the City and the residents thereof, and that the performance by the City of its 
obligations thereunder is a public undertaking and purpose and in furtherance of the Urban 
Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the Agreement and the City's 
performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic development activities and 
objectives of the City within the meaning of Chapters 403 and 15A of the Iowa Code, taking into 
account the factors set forth in Chapter 15A, to-wit: 
 

a) Businesses that add diversity to or generate new opportunities for the Iowa 
economy should be favored over those that do not. 

 
b) Development policies in the dispensing of the funds should attract, retain, or 

expand businesses that produce exports or import substitutes or which generate 
tourism-related activities. 

 
c) Development policies in the dispensing or use of the funds should be targeted 

toward businesses that generate public gains and benefits, which gains and 
benefits are warranted in comparison to the amount of the funds dispensed. 

 
d) Development policies in dispensing the funds should not be used to attract a 

business presently located within the state to relocate to another portion of the 
state unless the business is considering in good faith to relocate outside the state 
or unless the relocation is related to an expansion which will generate significant 
new job creation.  Jobs created as a result of other jobs in similar Iowa 
businesses being displaced shall not be considered direct jobs for the purpose of 
dispensing funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council hereby finds and determines that the requirements of Iowa 

Code Section 403.8 with respect to the transfer of property in an urban renewal area are 
satisfied insofar as the Development Property is being disposed of for the purpose of 
development of an industrial building (see Iowa Code Section 403.8(2)(b)), and because the 

403

Item 5.



 3 

terms of the Minimum Assessment Agreement satisfy the safe harbor contained in Iowa Code 
Section 403.8(3). 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
 Section 1.  That the performance by the City of its obligations under the Agreement, 
including but not limited to conveyance of the Development Property to the Developer in 
connection with the development of the Development Property under the terms set forth in the 
Agreement, be and is hereby declared to be a public undertaking and purpose and in 
furtherance of the Urban Renewal Plan and the Urban Renewal Law and, further, that the 
Agreement and the City's performance thereunder is in furtherance of appropriate economic 
development activities and objectives of the City within the meaning of chapters 403 and 15A of 
the Iowa Code, taking into account the factors set forth therein. 
 
 Section 2.  That the form and content of the Agreement, the provisions of which are 
incorporated herein by reference, be and the same hereby are in all respects authorized, 
approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Agreement for and on behalf of 
the City in substantially the form and content now before this meeting, and that from and after 
the execution and delivery of the Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby 
authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such 
documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Agreement 
as executed, including but not limited to execution and delivery of a Quit Claim Deed conveying 
title to the Development Property to the Developer. 
 
 Section 3.  That the form and content of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, the 
provisions of which are incorporated herein by reference, be and the same are hereby in all 
respects authorized, approved and confirmed, and the Mayor and the City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement for and on behalf of the City in substantially the form and content now 
before this meeting, and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Minimum 
Assessment Agreement, the Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized, empowered and 
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary 
to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as 
executed. 
 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
 

     
 _________________________________________ 

      Robert M. Green, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

404

Item 5.



 4 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 
STATE OF IOWA   ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK: ) 
 
 

I, Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct typewritten copy of Resolution 

No. _____ duly and legally adopted by the City Council of said City on the _____ day of 

____________________, 2022. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto signed my name and affixed the 

official seal of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa this _____ day of ____________________, 

2022. 

   

  
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC 
City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

 
 

405

Item 5.



 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT  
 
 
 

BY AND BETWEEN 
 
 
 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
 
 

AND 
 
 

KL IOWA 01, L.L.C. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

406

Item 5.



2  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS………………………………………………..  6 

Section 1.1.  Definitions……………………………………………… 6 

 

ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES………………  8 

Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City……………  8 

Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of Developer.….……..  9 

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS…..  12 

Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements……………… 12 

Section 3.2 Building Permit Valuation Amount…………………….  12 

Section 3.3.  Construction Plans……………………………………… 12 

Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction……… 13 

Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion………………………………  13 

 

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 14 

Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use……………………………………… 14 

 

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE………………………………………………… 15 

Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements………………………………… 15 

Section 5.2. Condemnation………………………………………….. 17 

Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment…………………………….. 17 

 

ARTICLE VI.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER 

COVENANTS……………………………………………………………….. 17 

 Section 6.1 Execution of Minimum Assessment Agreement………  17 

Section 6.2. Maintenance of Properties……………………………..  18 

Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records……………………………….  18 

Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws………………………………...  18 

Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes….……………………………….  19 

Section 6.6.   Sales Tax………………………………………………  19 

Section 6.7.   Utility Usage…………………….…………………….  19 

Section 6.8.   Annual Certification………………..………………….  20 

Section 6.9 Use of Tax Increments…………………………………  20 

Section 6.10. Opinion of Counsel……………………………………  20 

 Section 6.11. Provisions To Be Included In Leases Covering Development 

   Property……………………………………………….  20 

 Section 6.12 Relocation .......................................................................  21 

407

Item 5.



3  

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND 

TRANSFER………………………………………………………………….  21 

Section 7.1.  Representation As to Development……………………… 21 

Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement……………..………………………………  22 

Section 7.3.  Approvals………………………………………………  24 

Section 7.4 Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of 

  Interest in Development Property to Permitted  

  Transferees .......................................................................  24 

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; 

CONDITIONS………………………………………………………… 24 

Section 8.1.  Conveyance of Development Property…………………  24 

Section 8.2.   Form of Deed…………………………………………… 24 

Section 8.3.   Condition of Property; Care and Maintenance…………. 25 

Section 8.4.   Environmental Matters…………………………………. 25 

Section 8.5.   Survey and Platting…………………………………….. 25 

Section 8.6.   Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed……... 25 

Section 8.7.   Recordation of Deed……………………………………. 25 

Section 8.8.   Abstract of Title………………………………………… 26 

Section 8.9.   Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property……… 26 

Section 8.10. Failure to Commence Construction….…………….......  26 

Section 8.11. Partial Property Tax Exemption…………………...…...           27 

 

ARTICLE IX.  INDEMNIFICATION………………………………………  27 

Section 9.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants………………..  27 

 

ARTICLE X.  REMEDIES………………………………………………….  28 

Section 10.1.  Events of Default Defined…………….………………  28 

Section 10.2   Remedies on Default………………………………….  29 

Section 10.3  No Remedy Exclusive………………………………..  31 

Section 10.4  No Implied Waiver……………………………………  31 

Section 10.5   Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses……..  31 

 

ARTICLE XI.  MISCELLANEOUS………………………………………..  31 

Section 11.1.  Conflict of Interest……………………………………  31 

Section 11.2  Non-Discrimination…………………………………… 32 

Section 11.3.  Notices………………………………………………...  32 

Section 11.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections………………………… 33 

Section 11.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed……………………… 33 

Section 11.6.  Governing Law………………………………………… 33 

Section 11.7.  Entire Agreement……………………………………… 33 

408

Item 5.



4  

Section 11.8.    Successors and Assigns……………………………  33 

Section 11.9.    Termination Date……………………………………… 33 

Section 11.10.  Memorandum of Agreement………..……………….. 33 

Section 11.11.  Immediate Undertaking……………………………… 33 

Section 11.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture……………………… 33 

Section 11.13.  Captions……………………………………………… 33 

Section 11.14.  Number and Gender of Words………………………  34 

Section 11.15.  Invalid Provisions……………………………………  34 

Section 11.16.  Multiple Counterparts… ……………………………  34 

Section 11.17.  Authorization………… ……………………………..  34 

Section 11.18.  Time of the Essence… ………………………………  34 

Section 11.19.  Survival…………… … ……………………………..  34 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A  Development Property…………………………………. 37 

EXHIBIT B   Minimum Improvements………………………………. 38 

EXHIBIT C  Certificate of Completion……………………………… 39 

EXHIBIT D  Minimum Assessment Agreement…………………….. 41 

EXHIBIT E  Form of Legal Opinion………………………………… 45 

EXHIBIT F  Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development... 47 

EXHIBIT G  Form of Deed…………………………………………..  50 

  

409

Item 5.



5  

AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT (hereinafter called 

"Agreement"), is made on or as of the _____ day of __________________, 2022, by and 

between the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter called "City"), 

established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the authorization of 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 hereinafter called "Urban 

Renewal Act"); and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.,  (hereinafter called the "Developer"),  an Iowa 

limited liability company having its principal place of business at 25575 Heslip Drive, 

Novi, MI 48375. 

 

 WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, in furtherance of the objectives of the Urban Renewal Act, the City 

has undertaken a program for the development of an economic development area and, in 

this connection, is engaged in carrying out urban renewal project activities in an area 

known as the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area (“Area” or 

“Urban Renewal Area”) as set forth in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor 

Urban Renewal Plan, as amended (“Plan” or “Urban Renewal Plan”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, a copy of the foregoing Urban Renewal Plan, as amended, has been 

recorded among the land records in the office of the Recorder of Black Hawk County, 

Iowa; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer desires to acquire certain real property located in the 

foregoing Urban Renewal Plan and as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached 

hereto and made a part hereof (which property as so described is hereinafter referred to as 

the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Developer is willing to develop the Development Property for and 

in accordance with the uses specified in the Urban Renewal Plan and in accordance with 

this Agreement by constructing certain Minimum Improvements (as hereafter defined) on 

the Development Property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City believes that the development of the Development Property 

pursuant to this Agreement and the fulfillment generally of this Agreement, are in the vital 

and best interests of the residents of the City, and in accord with the public purposes and 

provisions of the applicable State and local laws and requirements under which the 

foregoing project has been undertaken and is being assisted, including but not limited to 

Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa. 

 

410

Item 5.



6  

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual obligations of 

the parties hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the others as 

follows: 

 

ARTICLE I.  DEFINITIONS 

 

 Section 1.1.  Definitions.  In addition to other definitions set forth in this Agreement, 

all capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the following 

meanings unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context: 

 

 Agreement means this Agreement and all Exhibits hereto, as the same may be from 

time to time modified, amended or supplemented. 

 

 Assessment Agreement means the Minimum Assessment Agreement substantially in 

the form of the agreement contained in Exhibit D attached hereto and hereby made a part 

of this Agreement, among the Developer, the City and the Assessor for the County, 

entered into pursuant to Article VI of this Agreement. 

 

 Assessor's Minimum Actual Value means the agreed minimum actual taxable value 

of the Minimum Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property for 

calculation and assessment of real property taxes as set forth in the Assessment 

Agreement.  

 

 Certificate of Completion means a certification in the form of the certificate attached 

hereto as Exhibit C and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 

 

 City or Cedar Falls means the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, or any successor to its 

functions.   

 

 Code of Iowa means the Code of Iowa, 2021, as amended. 

 

 Commencement Date means the date of the issuance by the City of a building permit 

for the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Construction Plans means the plans, specifications, drawings and related documents 

of the construction work to be performed by the Developer on the Development Property; 

the plans (a) shall be as detailed as the plans, specifications, drawings and related 

documents which are submitted to the building inspector of the City, and (b) shall include 

at least the following: (1) site plan; (2) foundation plan; (3) basement plans; (4) floor plan 

for each floor; (5) cross sections of each (length and width); (6) elevations (all sides); and 

(7) landscape plan. 

 

 County means the County of Black Hawk, Iowa. 

411

Item 5.



7  

 

 Deed means the form of Quit Claim Deed substantially in the form contained in 

Exhibit G attached hereto, by which the City shall convey the Development Property to 

the Developer. 

 

 Developer means KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.  

 

 Development Property means that portion of the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 

Corridor Urban Renewal Project Plan of the City described in Exhibit A hereto. 

 

 Event of Default means any of the events described in Section 10.1 of this 

Agreement. 

 

 Industrial Use Manufacturing Facility means the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Minimum Improvements shall mean the construction of an Industrial Use 

Manufacturing Facility totaling at least 40,000 square feet of finished space, together with 

all related site improvements described in the Construction Plans, as outlined in Exhibit B 

hereto, including the land. 

 

 Mortgage means any mortgage or security agreement in which the Developer has 

granted a mortgage or other security interest in the Development Property, or any portion 

or parcel thereof, or any improvements constructed thereon. 

 

 Net Proceeds means any proceeds paid by an insurer to the Developer under a policy 

or policies of insurance required to be provided and maintained by the Developer pursuant 

to Article V of this Agreement and remaining after deducting all expenses (including fees 

and disbursements of counsel) incurred in the collection of such proceeds. 

 

 Ordinance shall mean Ordinance(s) of the City under which the taxes levied on the 

taxable property in the Urban Renewal Area shall be divided, with a portion of said taxes 

to be paid into the Urban Renewal Tax Increment Revenue Fund, referred to and 

authorized by Section 403.19(2) of the Code of Iowa. 

 

 Project shall mean the construction and operation of the Minimum Improvements, as 

described in this Agreement and the Exhibits hereto. 

 

 State means the State of Iowa. 

 

 Tax Increments means the property tax increment revenues on the Minimum 

Improvements and Development Property divided and made available to the City for 

deposit in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Tax Increment 

412

Item 5.



8  

Revenue Fund, under the provisions of Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa and the 

Ordinance. 

 

 Termination Date means the date of expiration of the Assessment Agreement, as 

provided in Section 11.9 of this Agreement. 

 

 Unavoidable Delays means delays resulting from acts or occurrences outside the 

reasonable control of the party claiming the delay including but not limited to storms, 

floods, fires, explosions or other casualty losses, unusual weather conditions, strikes, 

boycotts, lockouts or other labor disputes, delays in transportation or delivery of material 

or equipment, litigation commenced by third parties, or the acts of any federal, State or 

local governmental unit (other than the Party claiming the delay). 

 

 Urban Renewal Area means the area included within the boundaries of the Cedar 

Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Area, as amended. 

 

 Urban Renewal Plan means the Urban Renewal Plan approved in respect of the 

Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Urban Corridor Renewal Plan, described in the 

preambles hereof. 

 

   ARTICLE II.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 

 

 Section 2.1.  Representations and Warranties of the City.  The City makes the 

following representations and warranties:  

 

 (a) The City is a municipal corporation and political subdivision organized under 

the provisions of the Constitution and the laws of the State and has the power 

to enter into this Agreement and carry out its obligations hereunder. 

 

 (b) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the City and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by the 

Developer, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally binding 

instrument of the City enforceable in accordance with its terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws 

relating to or affecting creditors’ rights generally. 

 

 (c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, 

in conflict with, nor will they result in a breach of, the terms, conditions or 

provisions of any contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement 

or instrument of whatever nature to which the City is now a party or by which 

it is bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 

413

Item 5.



9  

 

 (d) The City has not received any notice from any State or federal official that the 

activities of the Developer with respect to the Development Property may or 

will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation (other than those 

notices, if any, of which the Developer has previously been notified in 

writing).  The City is not currently aware of any State or federal claim filed or 

planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, State or 

federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable to the 

Development Property, and the City is not currently aware of any violation of 

any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure 

which would give any person a valid claim under any State or federal 

environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (e) The City will cooperate fully with the Developer in resolution of any building, 

traffic, parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the design, construction and operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise 

with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (f) The City would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement without the 

consideration being made to the City pursuant to this Agreement. 

 

 (g) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the City 

contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, promises, 

agreements and obligations of the City, and not of any governing body 

member, officer, agent, servant or employee of the City in the individual 

capacity thereof. 

  

 (h) The Development Property is zoned “M-1-P, Planned Industrial District”.  The 

“M-1-P, Planned Industrial District” zoning classification permits by right the 

construction, equipping and operation of the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 Section 2.2.  Representations and Warranties of the Developer.  The Developer 

makes the following representations and warranties: 

 

(a) The Developer is a limited liability company duly organized and validly 

existing under the laws of the State of Iowa, is properly authorized to conduct 

business in the State of Iowa, and has all requisite power and authority to own 

and operate its properties, to carry on its business as now conducted and as 

presently proposed to be conducted, and to enter into and perform its 

obligations under the Agreement. 

  

414

Item 5.



10  

(b) The Developer desires to construct an Industrial Use Manufacturing Facility 

("Minimum Improvements") on the 4.35 acre Development Property, which is 

to be acquired by the Developer pursuant to this Agreement, and which is 

more particularly described in Exhibit A.  

 

(c) This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized, executed and delivered 

by the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by 

the other parties hereto, is in full force and effect and is a valid and legally 

binding instrument of the Developer enforceable in accordance with its terms, 

except as the same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization 

or other laws relating to or affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 (d) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with 

the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not prevented by, limited by, in 

conflict with, nor will  they result in a violation or breach of, the terms, 

conditions or provisions of the certificate of organization and operating 

agreement, together with all amendments thereto, of the Developer or of any 

contractual restriction, evidence of indebtedness, agreement or instrument of 

whatever nature to which the Developer is now a party or by which it or its  

properties are bound, nor do they constitute a default under any of the 

foregoing. 

 

 (e) There are no actions, suits or proceedings pending or threatened against or 

affecting the Developer in any court or before any arbitrator or before or by 

any governmental body in which there is a reasonable possibility of an adverse 

decision which could materially adversely affect the business (present or 

prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the 

Agreement or the ability of Developer to perform its obligations under this 

Agreement. 

 

 (f) The Developer will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed in 

accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Urban Renewal Plan and all 

local, State and federal laws and regulations, except for variances necessary to 

construct the Minimum Improvements contemplated in the Construction Plans.  

 

 (g) The Developer will use its best efforts to obtain, or cause to be obtained, in a 

timely manner, all required permits, licenses and approvals, and will meet, in a 

timely manner, all requirements of all applicable local, State, and federal laws 

and regulations which must be obtained or met before the Minimum 

Improvements may be lawfully constructed. 

 

415

Item 5.



11  

 (h) The construction of the Minimum Improvements will require a total 

investment of not less than Three Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and 

no/100 Dollars ($3,200,000.00), and a taxable valuation of Three Million Four 

Hundred Eighty Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($3,485,000.00) is 

reasonable for the Minimum Improvements and the land that together 

comprise the Development Property. 

 

 (i) The Developer has not received any notice from any local, State or federal 

official that the activities of the Developer with respect to the Development 

Property may or will be in violation of any environmental law or regulation 

(other than those notices, if any, of which the City has previously been notified 

in writing). The Developer is not currently aware of any State or federal claim 

filed or planned to be filed by any party relating to any violation of any local, 

State or federal environmental law, regulation or review procedure applicable 

to the Development Property, and the Developer is not currently aware of any 

violation of any local, State or federal environmental law, regulation or review 

procedure which would give any person a valid claim under any State or 

federal environmental statute with respect thereto. 

 

 (j) The Developer has funds sufficient to successfully complete the construction 

of the Minimum Improvements, in accordance with the Construction Plans 

contemplated by this Agreement. 

 

 (k) The Developer will cooperate fully with the City in resolution of any traffic, 

parking, trash removal or public safety problems which may arise in 

connection with the construction and operation of the Minimum 

Improvements, including but not limited to any problems which may arise 

with respect to traffic at the intersections where access drives on the 

Development Property meet roadways or streets owned by the City. 

 

 (l) The Developer expects that, barring Unavoidable Delays, the Minimum 

Improvements will be substantially completed by the 1st day of February, 

2023.  

 

 (m) The Developer would not undertake its obligations under this Agreement 

without the consideration being made to the Developer pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

 

 (n) All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the 

Developer contained herein shall be deemed to be the covenants, stipulations, 

promises, agreements and obligations of the Developer, and not of any 

member, officer, agent, servant or employee of the Developer in the individual 

capacity thereof. 

416

Item 5.



12  

 

ARTICLE III.  CONSTRUCTION OF MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 Section 3.1.  Construction of Minimum Improvements. The Developer agrees that it 

will cause the Minimum Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property in 

conformance with the Construction Plans submitted to the City.  The Developer agrees 

that the scope and scale of the Minimum Improvements to be constructed shall not be 

significantly less than the scope and scale of the Minimum Improvements as detailed and 

outlined in the Construction Plans, and shall in no event require a total investment of less 

than Three Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and no/100 Dollars ($3,200,000.00). 

 

 Section 3.2  Building Permit Valuation Amount.  The Developer shall apply to the 

City for a building permit, and shall pay all necessary permit fees in connection with the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property, based upon a 

building permit valuation amount (hereinafter the "Building Permit Valuation Amount") 

of a minimum of Three Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars and no/100 Dollars 

($3,200,000.00), by no later than the 1st day of June, 2022. 

 

 Section 3.3.  Construction Plans.  The Developer shall cause Construction Plans to 

be provided for the Minimum Improvements which shall be subject to approval by the 

City as provided in this Section 3.3.  The Construction Plans shall be in conformity with 

the Urban Renewal Plan, this Agreement, and all applicable State and local laws and 

regulations, except for variances the Developer and the City agree are necessary to 

construct or operate the Minimum Improvements.  The City shall approve the 

Construction Plans in writing if: (a) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement; (b) the Construction Plans conform to the terms and 

conditions of the Urban Renewal Plan; (c) to the best of City's knowledge, the 

Construction Plans conform to all applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances, 

rules and regulations and City permit requirements; (d) the Construction Plans are 

adequate for purposes of this Agreement to provide for the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements and (e) no Event of Default under the terms of this Agreement has 

occurred; provided, however, that any such approval of the Construction Plans pursuant to 

this Section 3.3 shall constitute approval for the purposes of this Agreement only and shall 

not be deemed to constitute approval or waiver by the City with respect to any building, 

fire, zoning or other ordinances or regulations of the City, and shall not be deemed to be 

sufficient plans to serve as the basis for the issuance of a building permit if the 

Construction Plans are not as detailed or complete as the plans otherwise required for the 

issuance of a building permit.  The site plans submitted by the Developer to the building 

official of the City for the Development Property shall be adequate to serve as the 

Construction Plans, if such site plans are approved by the building official. 

 

 Approval of the Construction Plans by the City shall not relieve the Developer of 

any obligation to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement, or the 

417

Item 5.



13  

provisions of applicable federal, State and local laws, ordinances and regulations, nor shall 

approval of the Construction Plans by the City be deemed to constitute a waiver of any 

Event of Default. 

 

 Approval of Construction Plans hereunder is solely for purposes of this Agreement, 

and shall not constitute approval for any other City purpose nor subject the City to any 

liability for the Minimum Improvements as constructed. 

 

 Section 3.4.  Commencement and Completion of Construction.  Subject to 

Unavoidable Delays, the Developer shall cause construction of the Minimum 

Improvements to be undertaken by no later than the 1st day of June, 2022, and completed 

(i) by no later than the 1st day of February, 2023, or (ii) by such other date as the parties 

shall mutually agree upon in writing.  Time lost as a result of Unavoidable Delays shall be 

added to extend the completion date by a number of days equal to the number of days lost 

as a result of Unavoidable Delays.  However, an extension of the completion of the 

Minimum Improvements shall not affect the date upon which the Assessor's Minimum 

Actual Value shall become effective.  All work with respect to the Minimum 

Improvements to be constructed or provided by the Developer on the Development 

Property shall be in conformity with the Construction Plans as submitted by the Developer 

and approved by the City.  The Developer agrees that it shall permit designated 

representatives of the City to enter upon the Development Property during the 

construction of the Minimum Improvements to inspect such construction. 

 

 Section 3.5.  Certificate of Completion.  Upon written request of the Developer after 

issuance of an occupancy permit for the Minimum Improvements, the City will furnish the 

Developer with a Certificate of Completion in recordable form, in substantially the form 

set forth in Exhibit C attached hereto. Such Certificate of Completion shall be a 

conclusive determination of satisfactory termination of the covenants and conditions of 

this Agreement with respect to the obligations of the Developer to cause construction of 

the Minimum Improvements.  

 

 The Certificate of Completion may be recorded in the Black Hawk County 

Recorder's office at the Developer's sole expense.  If the City shall refuse or fail to provide 

a Certificate of Completion in accordance with the provisions of this Section 3.5, the City 

shall, within twenty (20) days after written request by the Developer, provide to the 

Developer a written statement indicating in adequate detail in what respects the Developer 

has failed to complete the Minimum Improvements in accordance with the provisions of 

this Agreement, or is otherwise in default under the terms of this Agreement, and what 

measures or acts it will be necessary, in the opinion of the City, for the Developer to take 

or perform in order to obtain such Certificate of Completion.  

 

 

 

418

Item 5.



14  

ARTICLE IV.  RESTRICTIONS UPON USE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 Section 4.1.  Restrictions on Use.  The Developer shall: 

 

(a) Use the Development Property for any lawful use, and devote the 

Development Property to, and only to and in accordance with, the uses 

specified in the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan 

until the Termination Date; and 

 

(b) Not discriminate upon the basis of race, creed, color, sex, gender, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, age, disability or national origin in the 

sale, lease, or rental or in the use or occupancy of the Development Property or 

any improvements erected or to be erected thereon, or any part thereof. 

 

(c) It is intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section shall be covenants running with the land and that they shall, in any 

event, and without regard to technical classification or designation, legal or 

otherwise, and except only as otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement, be binding, to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity, for 

the benefit and in favor of, and enforceable by, the City, its successors and 

assigns, as against every successor in interest to the Development Property, or 

any part thereof or any interest therein, and as against any party in possession 

or occupancy of the Development Property or any part thereof.  It is further 

intended and agreed that the agreements and covenants provided in 

subdivisions (a) and (b) of this Section shall remain in effect only through the 

Termination Date. 

 

(d) It is intended and agreed that the City and its successors and assigns shall be 

deemed beneficiaries of the agreements and covenants provided in this 

Section, both for and in its own right and also for the purposes of protecting 

the interests of the community and other parties, public or private, in whose 

favor or for whose benefit such agreements and covenants have been provided.  

Such agreements and covenants shall run in favor of the City, until the 

Termination Date, during which time such agreements and covenants shall be 

in force and effect, without regard to whether the City has at any time been, 

remains, or is an owner of any land or interest therein to or in favor of which 

such agreements and covenants relate.  The City shall have the right, in the 

event of any breach of any such agreement or covenant, to exercise all the 

rights and remedies, and to maintain any actions or suits at law or in equity or 

other proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breach of agreement or 

covenant, to which it or any other beneficiaries of such agreement or covenant 

may be entitled. 

 

419

Item 5.



15  

ARTICLE V.  INSURANCE AND CONDEMNATION 

 

 Section 5.1.  Insurance Requirements. 

 

 (a) The Developer will provide and maintain or cause to be maintained at all times 

during the process of constructing the Minimum Improvements (and, from 

time to time at the request of the City, furnish the City with proof of payment 

of premiums on): 

 

  (i) Builder's risk insurance, written on the so-called "Builder's Risk -- 

Completed Value Basis", in an amount equal to one hundred percent 

(100%) of the insurable value of the Minimum Improvements at the 

date of completion, and with coverage available in nonreporting form 

on the so-called "all risk" form of policy;  

 

  (ii) Comprehensive general liability insurance (including operations, 

contingent liability, operations of subcontractors, completed operations 

and contractual liability insurance), together with an Owner's 

Contractor's Policy, with limits against bodily injury and property 

damage of at least $2,000,000.  The City shall be named as an 

additional insured for the City's liability or loss arising out of or in any 

way associated with the Minimum Improvements and arising out of any 

act, error, or omission of the Developer, its members, managers, 

officers, contractors and subcontractors or anyone else for whose acts 

the City may be held responsible (with coverage to the City at least as 

broad as that which is provided to the Developer and not lessened or 

avoided by endorsement).  The policy shall contain a "severability of 

interests" clause and provide primary insurance over any other 

insurance maintained by the City.  The policy shall waive subrogation 

rights against the City and shall contain a Governmental Immunities 

endorsement in a form acceptable to the City. 

 

  (iii) Worker's compensation insurance, with statutory coverage. 

 

 (b) Upon completion of construction of the Minimum Improvements and at all 

times prior to the Termination Date, the Developer shall maintain, or cause to 

be maintained, at its cost and expense  (and from time to time at the request of 

the City shall furnish proof of the payment of premiums on) insurance as 

follows: 

 

  (i) Insurance against loss and/or damage to the Minimum Improvements 

under a policy or policies covering such risks as are ordinarily insured 

against by similar businesses, including (without limiting the generality 

420

Item 5.



16  

of the foregoing) fire, extended coverage, vandalism and malicious 

mischief, explosion, water damage, demolition cost, debris removal, 

and collapse in an amount not less than the full insurable replacement 

value of the Minimum Improvements, but any such policy may have a 

deductible amount of not more than $25,000.  No policy of insurance 

shall be so written that the proceeds thereof will produce less than the 

minimum coverage required by the preceding sentence, by reason of co-

insurance provisions or otherwise, without the prior consent thereto in 

writing by the City.  The term "full insurable replacement value" shall 

mean the actual replacement cost of the Minimum Improvements 

(excluding foundation and excavation costs and costs of underground 

flues, pipes, drains and other uninsurable items) and equipment, and 

shall be determined from time to time at the request of the City, but not 

more frequently than once every three years, by an insurance consultant 

or insurer selected and paid for by the Developer and approved by the 

City. 

 

  (ii) Comprehensive commercial general liability insurance, including 

liability for injuries to persons and/or property resulting from the 

operation of automobiles or other motorized vehicles on or about the 

Development Property, in the minimum amount for each occurrence 

and for each year of $2,000,000. 

 

  (iii) Such other insurance, including worker's compensation insurance 

respecting all employees of the Developer, in such amount as is 

customarily carried by like organizations engaged in like activities of 

comparable size and liability exposure. 

 

 (c) All insurance required by this Article V to be provided prior to the 

Termination Date shall be taken out and maintained in responsible insurance 

companies selected by the Developer which are authorized under the laws of 

the State to assume the risks covered thereby.  The Developer will deposit 

annually with the City copies of policies evidencing all such insurance, or a 

certificate or certificates or binders of the respective insurers stating that such 

insurance is in force and effect.  Unless otherwise provided in this Article V, 

each policy shall contain a provision that the insurer shall not cancel or modify 

it without giving written notice to the Developer and the City at least thirty 

(30) days before the cancellation or modification becomes effective.  Not less 

than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration of any policy, the Developer  shall 

furnish the City evidence satisfactory to the City that the policy has been 

renewed or replaced by another policy conforming to the provisions of this 

Article V, or that there is no necessity therefor under the terms hereof.  In lieu 

of separate policies, Developer may maintain a single policy, or blanket or 

421

Item 5.



17  

umbrella policies, or a combination thereof, which provide the total coverage 

required herein, in which event the Developer shall deposit with the City a 

certificate or certificates of the respective insurers as to the amount of 

coverage in force upon the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (d) Developer agrees to notify the City immediately in the case of damage 

exceeding $25,000 in amount to, or destruction of, the Minimum 

Improvements or any portion thereof resulting from fire or other casualty.  Net 

Proceeds of any such insurance shall be paid directly to the Developer, and 

Developer will forthwith repair, reconstruct and  restore the Minimum 

Improvements to substantially the same or an improved condition or value as 

they existed prior to the event causing such damage and, to the extent 

necessary to accomplish such repair, reconstruction and restoration, the 

Developer will apply the Net Proceeds of any insurance relating to such 

damage received by Developer to the payment or reimbursement of the costs 

thereof.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply to casualties that occur 

prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 (e) The Developer shall complete the repair, reconstruction and restoration of the 

Minimum Improvements, whether or not the Net Proceeds of insurance 

received by Developer for such purposes are sufficient.   

 

 Section 5.2.  Condemnation.  In the event that title to and possession of the 

Minimum Improvements or any other material part thereof shall be taken in condemnation 

or by the exercise of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or other 

person (except the City), so long as the Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect, the 

Developer or his successor shall, with reasonable promptness after such taking, notify the 

City as to the nature and extent of such taking. 

 

 Section 5.3. Reconstruction or Payment.  Upon receipt of any Condemnation 

Award or property insurance proceeds, the Developer shall use the entire Condemnation 

Award to reconstruct the Minimum Improvements (or, in the event only a part of 

Minimum Improvements have been taken, then to reconstruct such part) upon the 

Development Property. 

           

ARTICLE VI.  MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT AND OTHER 

COVENANTS 

 

 Section 6.1. Execution of Minimum Assessment Agreement.  The Developer shall 

agree to, and with the City shall execute, concurrently with the execution of this 

Agreement, a Minimum Assessment Agreement pursuant to the provisions of Section 

403.19, Code of Iowa, substantially in the form and content of Exhibit D attached hereto, 

specifying the Assessor's Minimum Actual Value for the Minimum Improvements to be 

422

Item 5.



18  

constructed on the Development Property for calculation of real property taxes.  

Specifically, the Developer shall agree to a minimum actual taxable value for the 

Minimum Improvements and the land that together comprise the Development Property, 

which will result in a minimum actual taxable value as of January 1, 2024, of not less than 

Three Million Four Hundred Eighty Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($3,485,000.00) 

(such minimum actual taxable value at the time applicable is herein referred to as the 

"Assessor's Minimum Actual Value").  Nothing in the Minimum Assessment Agreement 

shall limit the discretion of the Assessor to assign an actual taxable value to the Minimum 

Improvements or the land, in excess of such Assessor's Minimum Actual Value nor 

prohibit the Developer or its successors from seeking through the exercise of legal or 

administrative remedies a reduction in such actual taxable value for property tax purposes; 

provided, however, that the Developer or its successors shall not seek a reduction of such 

actual taxable value below the Assessor's Minimum Actual Value in any year so long as 

the Minimum Assessment Agreement shall remain in effect.  The Minimum Assessment 

Agreement shall remain in effect until the 31st day of December, 2034 (the "Termination 

Date").  The Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be certified by the Assessor for the 

County as provided in Section 403.19 of the Code of Iowa, and shall be filed for record in 

the office of the County Recorder of the County, and such filing shall constitute notice to 

any subsequent encumbrancer or purchaser of the Development Property (or part thereof), 

whether voluntary or involuntary, and such Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be 

binding and enforceable in its entirety against any such subsequent purchaser or 

encumbrancer, as well as any prior encumbrancer consenting thereto. 

 

 Section 6.2.  Maintenance of Properties.   The Developer shall maintain, preserve 

and keep the Minimum Improvements in good repair and working order, ordinary wear 

and tear excepted, and from time to time shall make all necessary repairs, replacements, 

renewals and additions, until the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.3 Maintenance of Records.  The Developer shall keep at all times proper 

books of record and account in which full, true and correct entries shall be made of all 

dealings and transactions of or in relation to the business and affairs of the Developer in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied throughout 

the period involved, and Developer shall provide reasonable protection against loss or 

damage to such books of record and account.  The provisions of this paragraph shall apply 

for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.4. Compliance with Laws.  The Developer shall comply with all laws, 

rules and regulations relating to the Minimum Improvements, other than laws, rules and 

regulations the failure to comply with which or the sanctions and penalties resulting 

therefrom, would not have a material adverse effect on the Developer’s business, property, 

operations, or condition, financial or otherwise.  The provisions of this paragraph shall 

apply for all periods prior to the Termination Date. 

 

423

Item 5.



19  

 Section 6.5. Real Property Taxes.  The Developer shall pay, when due, all real 

property taxes and assessments payable with respect to all and any parts of the 

Development Property acquired and owned by it.  

 

 The Developer and its successors agree that prior to the Termination Date: 

 

 (a) It will not seek any tax exemption, either presently or prospectively authorized 

under any State or federal law with respect to taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property between the date of execution of this 

Agreement and the Termination Date.  The foregoing shall not impair any 

rights to appeal the valuation set by the Black Hawk County Assessor as 

provided by law. 

 

 (b) It will not seek administrative review or judicial review of the applicability or 

constitutionality of any tax statute relating to the taxation of real property 

contained on the Development Property determined by any tax official to be 

applicable to the Development Property, Minimum Improvements or to the 

Developer or raise the inapplicability or constitutionality of any such tax 

statute as a defense in any proceedings, including delinquent tax proceedings. 

 

 (c) It will not seek any tax deferral or abatement, except reimbursement, if any, 

that is specifically provided for in this Agreement, either presently or 

prospectively authorized under Iowa Code Chapter 403 or 404, or any other 

local, State or federal law, of the taxation of real property contained on the 

Development Property between the date of execution of this Agreement and 

the Termination Date. 

 

 Section 6.6.   Sales Tax.  The Developer shall pay all sales tax payable with respect 

to the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 Section 6.7.  Utility Usage.  The Developer agrees for itself and its successors and 

assigns, specifically including all commercial tenants and all other persons, firms or other 

entities operating any business on the Development Property or any portion thereof, that 

for all periods up to the Termination Date that all utility needs for the Industrial Use 

Manufacturing Facility shall be furnished from City-owned utilities, including electricity, 

natural gas, water, sanitary sewer, cable television, telephone, internet and other fiber-

optic communications service including point-to-point, VLAN and last mile fiber services 

for a corporate network connection, except for any emergency utility needs in the case of 

any unavailability or interruption of City-owned utility services, which may be secured 

from alternative sources. The Developer and its successors and assigns agree to work with 

Cedar Falls Utilities to attain needed communication services (as defined above). Should 

it be mutually agreed upon by both parties that City-owned utilities are unable to meet the 

communication requirements specified, the Developer and its successors and assigns, as 

424

Item 5.



20  

defined and described in this section, shall not, however, have any obligation or duty to 

use or take any minimum amount, and shall have no obligation to pay any amount in 

excess of the generally applicable rates for like users based upon actual use. 

  

 Section 6.8.  Annual Certification. To assist the City in monitoring and performance 

of Developer hereunder, a duly authorized officer of the Developer shall annually provide 

to the City: (a) proof that all ad valorem taxes on the Development Property have been 

paid for the prior fiscal year; and (b) certification that, to the best of such officer’s 

knowledge during the preceding twelve (12) months, the Developer  was not  in default in 

the fulfillment of any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement and that no Event of 

Default (or event which, with the lapse of time or the giving of notice, or both, would 

become an Event of Default) is occurring or has occurred as of the date of such certificate 

or during such period, or if the signer is aware of any such default, event or Event of 

Default, said officer shall disclose in such statement the nature thereof, its period of 

existence and what action, if any, has been taken or is proposed to be taken with respect 

thereto.  Such statement, proof and certificate shall be provided not later than November 1 

of each year, commencing November 1, 2024, and ending on November 1, 2033, both 

dates inclusive. 

 

 Section 6.9. Use of Tax Increments.  The City shall be free to use any and all Tax 

Increments collected in respect of the Development Property for any purpose for which 

the Tax Increments may lawfully be used pursuant to the provisions of the Urban Renewal 

Act; and the City shall have no obligations to the Developer with respect to the use of 

such increments. 

 

 Section 6.10.  Opinion of Counsel.  Concurrent with execution of this Agreement, 

Developer shall cause its counsel to execute and deliver to City an Opinion of Counsel 

substantially in the form and of the content of Exhibit E attached hereto. 

  

 Section 6.11.  Provisions To Be Included In Leases Covering Development 

Property.  The Developer agrees to include provisions in each commercial lease 

agreement the Developer enters into with any tenant that will occupy the Development 

Property or operate a business thereon, for all periods up to the Termination Date, which 

provide as follows: (a) that tenant acknowledges that the leased premises are part of the 

Development Property and are subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (b) 

that this Agreement is binding upon Developer’s successors and assigns, specifically 

including all commercial tenants; (c) that certain of the terms and conditions of this 

Agreement specifically impact the tenant’s use of and conduct of its business operations 

on the Development Property, which terms and conditions include, but are not necessarily 

limited to, Sections 4.1, 5.1(b), 6.2, 6.7, 7.2, 7.3 and 11.2; and (d) that the tenant agrees to 

operate its business and conduct its operations on the Development Property in a manner 

consistent with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

425

Item 5.



21  

 Section 6.12.  Relocation.  Developer agrees and covenants that it shall not, absent 

written consent from the City, sell or lease the Minimum Improvements or Development 

Property to any enterprise that is relocating (“Relocating”) to the City from another part of 

the County or a contiguous county during the term (the “Term”) of this Relocation 

provision (the “Relocation Provision”).  “Relocating” or “Relocation” means the closure 

or substantial reduction of an enterprise’s existing operations in one area of the State and 

the initiation of substantially the same operation in the same county or a contiguous 

county in the State.  The Term of this Relocation Provision will expire on the Termination 

Date as described in Section 11.9(a).  In general, urban renewal incentives cannot be used 

for projects that involve a Relocating enterprise (whether the relocating enterprise is the 

developer, land owner, tenant, or otherwise) unless there is a written agreement regarding 

the use of economic incentives between the city where the business is currently located 

and the city to which the business is Relocating, either specific to this Project or in general 

(i.e., a fair play or neutrality agreement), or if the City finds that the use of tax increments 

in connection with the Relocation is in the public interest, which means that the business 

has provided a written affirmation that it is considering moving part or all of its operations 

out of the State and such action would result in either significant employment or wage loss 

in Iowa.  Developer understands and agrees that if it sells or leases to a Relocating 

enterprise in violation of the Relocation Provision, as determined by the City in its sole 

discretion, such action shall be deemed an Event of Default under this Agreement, and, in 

addition to any remedies set forth in Section 10.2: 

 

(i) If Developer received all or a portion of the Development Property from the City 

for less than the full fair market value of the Development Property (“Full Value”), then 

the Developer shall pay the City the difference between the Full Value of the 

Development Property and what the Developer actually paid the City for such property.  

At the request of the City (which request need not be in writing), the Full Value of the 

Development Property shall be established by a licensed, certified appraiser to be selected 

by the City.  Developer shall be responsible for paying any fees or costs associated with 

obtaining such appraisal. 

 

ARTICLE VII.  PROHIBITIONS AGAINST ASSIGNMENT AND TRANSFER 

 

 Section 7.1.  Representation as to Development. The Developer represents and 

agrees that the purchase and improvement of the Development Property, and the other 

undertakings pursuant to this Agreement, are, and will be used, for the purpose of 

development of the Development Property and not for speculation in land holding.  The 

Developer further acknowledges: 

 

(a) the importance of the development of the Development Property to the general 

welfare of the community; 

 

426

Item 5.



22  

(b) the substantial financing and other public aids that have been made available 

by law and by the City for the purpose of making such development possible; 

and 

 

(c) the fact that any act or transaction involving or resulting in a significant 

change of control of the development, is for practical purposes a transfer or 

disposition of the Development Property then owned and operated by the 

Developer, and the qualifications and identity of the Developer are of 

particular concern to the community and the City.  The Developer further 

recognizes that it is because of such qualifications and identity that the City is 

entering into this Agreement with the Developer. 

 

 Section 7.2.  Prohibition Against Transfer of Property and Assignment of 

Agreement.  Except as otherwise expressly provided for in Section 7.4, Transfer of 

Interest in Developer or Transfer of Development Property to Permitted Transferees, for 

the foregoing reasons the Developer represents and agrees for itself, and its successors and 

assigns, that in addition to the provisions of Section 6.12 of this Agreement, prior to 

termination of the Termination Date: 

 

 (a) Except only for (i) the purpose of obtaining financing necessary to enable the 

Developer to perform its obligations with respect to making the Minimum 

Improvements under this Agreement, (ii) leases to commercial tenants for all 

or a portion of the Minimum Improvements, and (iii) any other purpose 

authorized by this Agreement, the Developer (except as so authorized) has not 

made or created, and that the Developer will not, prior to the Termination 

Date, make or create, or suffer to be made or created, any total or partial sale, 

assignment, or conveyance, or any trust or power, or transfer in any other 

mode or form of or with respect to this Agreement or the Development 

Property, or any part thereof or any interest therein, or any contract or 

agreement to do any of the same, without the prior written approval of the 

City. 

  

(b) The City shall be entitled to require, except as otherwise provided in this 

Agreement, as conditions to any such approval that: 

 

(1) Any proposed transferee shall have the qualifications and financial 

responsibility, as determined by the City, necessary and adequate to 

fulfill the obligations undertaken in this Agreement by the Developer 

(or, in the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the 

Development Property, such obligations to the extent that they relate 

to such part). 

 

427

Item 5.



23  

(2) Any proposed transferee, by instrument in writing satisfactory to the 

City and in form recordable among the land records, shall, for itself 

and its successors and assigns, and expressly for the benefit of the 

City, have expressly assumed all of the obligations of the Developer 

under this Agreement and shall have agreed to be subject to all the 

conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject (or, in 

the event the transfer is of or relates to part of the Development 

Property, such obligations, conditions, and restrictions to the extent 

that they relate to such part):  Provided, that the fact that any 

transferee of, or any other successor in interest whatsoever to, the 

Development Property, or any part thereof, shall, whatever the 

reason, not have assumed such obligations or so agreed, shall not 

(unless and only to the extent otherwise specifically provided in this 

Agreement or agreed to in writing by the City) relieve or exempt such 

transferee or successor of or from such obligations, conditions, or 

restrictions, or deprive or limit the City of or with respect to any 

rights or remedies or controls with respect to the Development 

Property or the construction of the Minimum Improvements; it being 

the intent of this provision, together with other provisions of this 

Agreement, that (to the fullest extent permitted by law and equity and 

excepting only in the manner and to the extent specifically provided 

otherwise in this Agreement) no transfer of, or change with respect 

to, ownership in the Development Property or any part thereof, or any 

interest therein, however consummated or occurring, and whether 

voluntary or involuntary, shall operate, legally or practically, to 

deprive or limit the City of or with respect to any rights or remedies 

or controls provided in or resulting from this Agreement with respect 

to the Development Property and the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements that the City would have had, had there been no such 

transfer or change. 

 

(3) Except leases to commercial tenants for all or a portion of the 

Minimum Improvements as provided in subsection (a)(ii) of this 

section, there shall be submitted to the City for review all instruments 

and other legal documents involved in effecting transfer; and if 

approved by the City, its approval shall be indicated to the Developer 

in writing. 

 

Provided, further, that in the absence of specific written agreement by the City to the 

contrary, no such transfer or approval by the City thereof shall be deemed to relieve the 

Developer, or any other party bound in any way by this Agreement or otherwise with 

respect to the construction of the Minimum Improvements, from any of its obligations 

with respect thereto. 

428

Item 5.



24  

 

 Section 7.3.  Approvals.  Any approval of a transfer of interest in the Developer, 

this Agreement, or the Development Property required to be given by the City under this 

Article VII may be denied only in the event that the City reasonably determines that the 

ability of the Developer to perform its obligations under this Agreement and its statutory 

duty, as owner, to pay ad valorem real property taxes assessed with respect to the 

Development Property, or the overall financial security provided to the City under the 

terms of this Agreement, or the likelihood of the Minimum Improvements being 

successfully constructed and operated pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, will be 

materially impaired by the action for which approval is sought. 

 

Section 7.4.  Transfer of Interest in Developer or Transfer of Interest in 

Development Property to Permitted Transferee. Notwithstanding the provisions of 

Sections 7.2 and 7.3, the City and the Developer agree that a transfer of ownership of the 

Development Property to a newly established corporation or limited liability company the 

ownership of which consists solely of the members of Developer (the “Permitted 

Transferee”), shall not trigger the provisions of Section 7.2 or Section 7.3, provided, 

however, that any transfer of the Development Property to the Permitted Transferee shall 

require the Permitted Transferee to agree in writing with the City (a) to expressly assume 

all of the obligations of the Developer under this Agreement, and (b) to agree to be subject 

to all of the conditions and restrictions to which the Developer is subject (or, in the event 

the transfer is of or relates to only part of the Development Property, such obligations, 

conditions, and restrictions to the extent that they relate to such part). Upon execution of 

an agreement in writing by the Permitted Transferee that (a) assumes all of the obligations 

of the Developer under this Agreement and (b) agrees to be subject to all of the conditions 

and restrictions to which the Developer is subject, the transfer of the Development 

Property, or the part thereof, shall be deemed approved upon delivery of such written 

assumption agreement to the City Clerk of the City.  

 

ARTICLE VIII.  CONVEYANCE OF DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY; CONDITIONS 

 

 Section 8.1  Conveyance of Development Property.  Subject to hearing and 

authorization required under law, the City shall make a conveyance of title to the 

Development Property to Developer without any additional consideration other than the 

Developer’s covenants as contained in this Agreement. 

 

 Section 8.2  Form of Deed.  The City shall convey clear title to the Development 

Property to the Developer by Quit Claim Deed (hereinafter called the “Deed”).  Such 

conveyance and title shall be subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions 

contained in the Urban Renewal Plan and this Agreement, shall be subject to restrictive 

covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing 

easements of record, but shall otherwise be free and clear of all other liens and 

encumbrances of record. 

429

Item 5.



25  

 

 Section 8.3. Condition of the Property; Care And Maintenance.  As of Closing, 

Developer agrees to take the Development Property "As Is." The City makes no 

warranties or representations as to the condition of the Development Property.  The City 

and Developer acknowledge and agree that City has undertaken no investigations with 

respect to the suitability of the Development Property for Developer’s proposed uses, 

including but not limited to subsurface investigations regarding the soil conditions of the 

Development Property. Any geological or other inspection of the Development Property is 

the sole responsibility of the Developer (at its own cost). Developer waives all claims 

against the City as to the condition of the Development Property.  

 

 Section 8.4. Environmental Matters. At Closing, although not required by law, the 

City may file with the County Recorder’s office a properly executed Groundwater Hazard 

Statement.  Developer takes the property "As Is" with regard to any environmental 

matters.  The City makes no warranties and representations as to the environmental 

condition of the Development Property, other than the information provided in any 

Groundwater Hazard Statement filed by the City at Closing.  Developer shall be 

responsible for securing and paying for all inspections, remediation efforts, or 

documentation required by the county board of health in order to lawfully transfer the 

Development Property to Developer.  Developer agrees to indemnify, release, defend and 

hold harmless the City for all claims, damages or costs relating to the Development 

Property that arise after the Closing Date.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this 

Agreement to the contrary, Developer shall have a period of 60 days form the execution of 

this Agreement to inspect the Development Property for environmental contamination or 

deficiencies, and during this period, may cancel this Agreement due to the existence of 

any such environmental contamination or deficiencies by giving to the City written notice 

of its decision to cancel this Agreement.  The City authorizes Developer and/or its agents 

and contractors access to the Development Property for purposes of its environmental 

inspection. 

  

 Section 8.5. Survey and Platting.  Developer shall be responsible for all survey and 

platting of the Development Property.  The City authorizes Developer and/or its agents 

and contractors access to the Development Property for survey and platting purposes. 

 

 Section 8.6  Time and Place for Closing and Delivery of Deed.  The City shall 

deliver the Deed and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on or 

before the 1st day of May, 2022, or on such other date as the parties hereto may mutually 

agree in writing (the “Closing Date”). 

 

 Section 8.7  Recordation of Deed.  The Developer shall promptly file the Deed for 

recordation among the land records in the office of the Recorder of the County.  The 

Developer shall pay all costs for so recording the Deed. 

 

430

Item 5.



26  

 Section 8.8  Abstract of Title.  Immediately following the execution of this 

Agreement, the City shall provide an abstract of title continued only to the date of filing of 

the plat.  It shall be the Developer’s responsibility to pay to have the abstract updated.  

Following the updating of the abstract of title by the Developer, it shall show marketable 

title in the City in conformity with Iowa law and the Title Standards of the Iowa State Bar 

Association.  The City shall make every reasonable effort to promptly perfect title.  If 

closing is delayed due to the City’s inability to provide marketable title, this Agreement 

shall continue in force and effect until either party rescinds the Agreement after giving ten 

days written notice to the other party.  The abstract shall become the property of the 

Developer at the time of delivery of the Deed. 

 

 Section 8.9  Conditions Precedent to Conveyance of Property.  The City’s obligation 

to convey title and possession of the Development Property to the Developer on the 

Closing Date shall be subject to satisfaction of the following conditions precedent: 

 

(a) The Developer shall be in material compliance with all the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement; 

 

(b) The Developer shall have furnished the City with evidence, in a form 

reasonably satisfactory to the City (such as a letter of commitment from a 

bank or other lending institution), that the Developer has firm commitments 

for financing for the Project in an amount sufficient, together with equity 

commitments, to complete the Project in conformance with the Construction 

Plans, or the City shall have received such other evidence of the Developer’s 

financial ability as in the reasonable judgment of the City is required for the 

Project; 

 

(c) Execution of a Minimum Assessment Agreement by the City, the County and 

the Developer pursuant to Section 6.1 of this Agreement; and 

 

(e) Receipt of an opinion of counsel to the Developer in the form attached hereto 

as Exhibit E.  

   

 Section 8.10 Failure to Commence Construction of Minimum Improvements.  In the 

event the Developer has not made substantial progress towards commencement of 

construction of the Minimum Improvements on the Development Property by no later than 

September 1, 2022, and commencement of construction does not appear imminent by no 

later than September 1, 2022, then Developer shall have committed an Event of Default 

within the meaning of Article X and Section 10.1 of this Agreement, and shall convey title 

to the Development Property to the City as provided in Section 10.2(d) of this Agreement 

by no later than December 1, 2022. 

 

431

Item 5.



27  

 Section 8.11.  Partial Property Tax Exemption.  Subject to Developer’s compliance 

with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City agrees that the Developer may 

apply to Black Hawk County, Iowa, and to City, for a partial exemption from taxation of 

industrial property as may be provided by the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, and by 

Chapter 427B, Code of Iowa, with respect to the actual value added by the Minimum 

Improvements. Subject to Developer’s timely application and qualification under 

Sections 21-48 through 21-57 of the Cedar Falls Code of Ordinances, and Chapter 427B, 

Code of Iowa, the partial property tax exemption shall be according to the following 

schedule:  

 

(a) For the first assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed – 75% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

(b) For the second assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed – 60% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

(c) For the third assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed – 45% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

(d) For the fourth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed – 30% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

(e) For the fifth assessment year after the Minimum Improvements are fully 

assessed – 15% exemption of the actual value added. 

 

ARTICLE IX.  INDEMNIFICATION 

 

 Section 9.1.  Release and Indemnification Covenants. 

 

 (a) The Developer releases the City and the governing body members, officers, 

agents, servants and employees thereof (hereinafter, for purposes of this 

Article IX, the "indemnified parties") from, covenants and agrees that the 

indemnified parties shall not be liable for, and agrees to indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless the indemnified parties against, any loss or damage to property 

or any injury to or death of any person occurring at or about or resulting from 

any defect in the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (b) Except for any willful misrepresentation, or any willful or wanton misconduct, 

or any unlawful act, or any negligent act or omission of the indemnified 

parties, Developer agrees to protect and defend the indemnified parties, now or 

forever, and further agrees to hold the indemnified parties harmless, from any 

claim, demand, suit, action or other proceedings whatsoever by any person or 

entity whatsoever arising or purportedly arising from any violation of any 

432

Item 5.



28  

agreement or condition of this Agreement by the Developer, including but not 

limited to claims for the construction, installation, ownership, and operation of 

the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 (c) The indemnified parties shall not be liable for any damage or injury to the 

persons or property of the Developer or its officers, agents, servants or 

employees or any other person who may be about the Minimum Improvements 

due to any act of negligence, including a negligent failure to act, of any person, 

other than any act of negligence on the part of any such indemnified party or 

its officers, agents, servants or employees. 

 

 (d) The provisions of this Article IX shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE X.  REMEDIES 

 

 Section 10.1.  Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be "Events of 

Default" under this Agreement and the term "Event of Default" shall mean, whenever it is 

used in this Agreement, any one or more of the following events: 

  

 (a) Failure by the Developer to cause the construction of the Minimum 

Improvements to be commenced and completed pursuant to the terms, 

conditions and limitations of Article III of this Agreement, subject to 

Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (b) Failure by the Developer or its successors to cause the Minimum 

Improvements to be reconstructed when required pursuant to Article III of this 

Agreement. 

 

 (c) Failure by the City to cause the Development Property to be conveyed to the 

Developer pursuant to the terms, conditions and limitations of Section 8.1 of 

this Agreement, subject to Unavoidable Delays; 

 

 (d) Transfer of the Developer's ownership interest in the Development Property or 

any interest of Developer in this Agreement, or the assets of Developer in 

violation of the provisions of Article VII of this Agreement, until the 

Termination Date; 

 

 (e) Failure by the Developer until the Termination Date, to pay ad valorem taxes 

on the Development Property;  

 

433

Item 5.



29  

 (f) Failure by the Developer until the Termination Date to substantially observe or 

perform any other covenant, condition, obligation or agreement on its part to 

be observed or performed under this Agreement; 

 

 (g) The holder of any Mortgage on the Development Property, or any 

improvements thereon, or any portion thereof, commences foreclosure 

proceedings as a result of any default under the applicable Mortgage 

documents; 

 

 (h) Sale or lease of the Minimum Improvements or Development Property in 

violation of the provisions of Section 6.12, Relocation, of this Agreement; 

 

 (i) The Developer shall: 

 

  (i) file any petition in bankruptcy or for any reorganization, arrangement, 

composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief 

under the United States Bankruptcy Act of 1978, as amended, or under 

any similar federal or state law; or 

 

  (ii) make an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or 

 

  (iii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become 

due; or 

 

  (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent; or if a petition or answer 

proposing adjudication as a bankrupt or reorganization under any 

present or future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state 

law shall be filed in any court and such petition or answer shall not be 

discharged or denied within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof; or a 

receiver, trustee or liquidator of the Developer or the Minimum 

Improvements, or part thereof, shall be appointed in any proceedings 

brought against the Developer and shall not be discharged within ninety 

(90) days after such appointment, or if the Developer shall consent to or 

acquiesce in such appointment; or 

 

 (j) Any obligation, representation or warranty made by any party to this 

Agreement, any Exhibit hereto, or made by any party in any written statement 

or certificate pursuant to this Agreement, shall prove to have been incorrect, 

incomplete or misleading in any material respect on or as of the date of the 

issuance or making thereof.   

 

 Section 10.2.  Remedies on Default.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in 

Section 10.1 of this Agreement occurs and is continuing, any party not in default may take 

434

Item 5.



30  

any one or more of the following actions after the giving of thirty (30) days' written notice 

to the party in default, and the holder of the Mortgage, of the Event of Default, but only if 

the Event of Default has not been cured within said thirty (30) days, or if the Event of 

Default cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and the party in default does 

not provide assurances reasonably satisfactory to the party giving notice that the Event of 

Default will be cured as soon as reasonably possible: 

 

 (a) The party giving notice may suspend its performance under this Agreement 

until it receives assurances from the party in default, deemed adequate by the 

party giving notice, that the party in default will cure the default and continue 

performance under this Agreement; 

 

 (b) The party who is not in default may withhold the Certificate of Completion;  

 

 (c) The party who is not in default may take any action, including legal, equitable 

or administrative action, which may appear necessary or desirable to recover 

damages proximately caused by the Default, or to enforce performance and 

observance of any obligation, agreement, or covenant, under this Agreement. 

 

 (d) In the event the Developer fails to perform any one or more of the material 

obligations described in Article III of this Agreement in a timely manner, 

Developer shall thereupon immediately convey title to the Development 

Property to the City, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, but subject 

to restrictive covenants, ordinances, and limited access provisions of record, if 

any, and to existing easements, if any.  Developer shall also establish to the 

satisfaction of City and its legal counsel that no labor has been performed and 

no materials have been furnished by any contractor, subcontractor, or any 

other person, firm or entity, in connection with any improvements made to the 

Development Property within the ninety (90) days immediately preceding the 

date of said conveyance.  Developer shall also deliver to City an abstract of 

title covering the Development Property, certified to a date subsequent to the 

date of said conveyance, showing that marketable title to the Development 

Property is vested in Developer and complies with the requirements of this 

subsection.  Developer shall pay to City all general property taxes and special 

assessments, if any, due or to become due with respect to the Development 

Property, continuing until the Development Property is assessed to the City 

and is exempt from assessment for general property taxes by reason of its 

conveyance to and ownership by the City as a tax-exempt governmental body.  

Developer shall pay for all costs associated with conveyance of the 

Development Property to the City, including, but not limited to, abstracting, 

recording fees, and reasonable attorneys' fees.  In the event the Developer fails 

to comply with the terms and conditions of this subsection (d) within the thirty 

(30) day period described in Section 10.2 of this Article, then the City may 

435

Item 5.



31  

proceed as provided in Section 10.2(c) of this Article, to obtain a decree of 

specific performance against Developer for the conveyance of the 

Development Property to the City or, in lieu thereof, at the City’s sole 

discretion, to obtain a judgment for monetary damages to compensate the City 

for the Developer’s default, plus attorneys’ fees and expenses as provided in 

Section 10.5. 

 

 Section 10.3.  No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved 

to the parties is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but 

each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy 

given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute.  

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall 

impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such 

right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed 

expedient.   

 

 Section 10.4.  No Implied Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this 

Agreement should be breached by any party and thereafter waived by any other party, 

such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to 

waive any other concurrent, previous or subsequent breach hereunder. 

 

 Section 10.5.  Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  Whenever any 

Event of Default occurs and a party not in default shall employ attorneys or incur other 

expenses for the collection of payments due or to become due or for the enforcement or 

performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of a party in default 

herein contained, the party in default agrees that it shall, on demand therefor, pay to the 

party not in default the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other expenses as may 

be reasonably and appropriately incurred by the party not in default in connection 

therewith. 

 

ARTICLE XI.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 Section 11.1.  Conflict of Interest.  Developer agrees that, to its best knowledge and 

belief, no member, officer or employee of the City, or its designees or agents, nor any 

consultant or member of the governing body of the City, and no other public official of the 

City who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with respect to the 

Project during his or her tenure, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making 

process or gain insider information with regard to the Project, shall have any interest, 

direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be 

performed in connection with the Project, or in any activity, or benefit therefrom, which is 

part of this Project at any time during or after such person's tenure. 

 

436

Item 5.



32  

 Section 11.2.  Non-Discrimination.  In carrying out the construction and operation 

of the Minimum Improvements, the Developer shall not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.  The Developer 

shall insure that applicants for employment are employed, and the employees are treated 

during employment, without regard to their race, creed, color, gender, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, age or disability.   

 

 Section 11.3.  Notices.  Whenever this Agreement requires or permits any consent, 

approval, notice, request, proposal, or demand (collectively, "Notice") from one party to 

another, the Notice must be in writing and shall be effective upon actual receipt by the 

intended recipient, at the following addresses:    

 

DEVELOPER:  Mr. Dennis Kubica 

    Member 

    KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.  

    25575 Heslip Drive 

    Novi, MI 48375    

 

With a copy to:  Kevin Bonner 

    Fennemore Craig, P.C. 

    2394 E. Camelback Rd, Suite 600 

    Phoenix, AZ 85016 

 

    Charles Augustine 

    Klatt, Augustine & Rastede, P.C. 

    531 Commercial Street, Suite 250 

    Waterloo, IA 50701 

 

 CITY   City of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

    City Administrator 

    220 Clay Street 

    Cedar Falls, IA  50613 

 

or to such other designated individual or officer or to such other address as any party shall 

have furnished to the other in writing in accordance herewith.  Any party entitled to 

receive a Notice hereunder may change the address which it previously had specified for 

receiving the same, at any time and from time to time, by delivering a written change 

notice in accordance with the above provisions to the other parties at least five (5) 

business days prior to the effective date of such change. 

 

437

Item 5.



33  

 Section 11.4.  Titles of Articles and Sections.  Any titles of the several parts, 

Articles, and Sections of this Agreement are inserted for convenience of reference only 

and shall be disregarded in construing or interpreting any of its provisions. 

 

 Section 11.5.  Provisions Not Merged With Deed.  None of the provisions of this 

Agreement shall be merged by reason of the delivery of the Deed, and the Deed shall not 

be deemed to affect or impair the provisions and covenants of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 11.6.  Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Iowa. 

 

 Section 11.7.  Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and the exhibits hereto reflect the 

entire agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof, and supersedes 

and replaces all prior agreements, negotiations or discussions, whether oral or written.  

This Agreement may not be amended except by a subsequent writing signed by all parties 

hereto. 

 

 Section 11.8.  Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement is intended to and shall 

inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties hereto and their respective 

successors and assigns. 

 

 Section 11.9.  Termination Date of Minimum Assessment Agreement.  This 

Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force or effect with respect to the 

Minimum Improvements on the termination of the Minimum Assessment Agreement, as 

provided in Section 6.1 of this Agreement and in the Minimum Assessment Agreement, 

the form of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

 

 Section 11.10.  Memorandum of Agreement.  The parties agree to execute and 

record a Memorandum of Agreement for Private Development, in substantially the form 

attached as Exhibit F, to serve as notice to the public of the existence and provisions of 

this Agreement, and the rights and interests held by the City by virtue hereof.  Developer 

shall pay all costs of recording. 

 

 Section 11.11.  Immediate Undertaking.  All parties agree to undertake immediately 

upon execution of this Agreement all of those obligations which require immediate action. 

 

 Section 11.12.  No Partnership or Joint Venture.  The relationship herein created 

between the parties is contractual in nature and is in no way to be construed as creating a 

partnership or joint venture between the Developer and any or all of the other parties. 

 

 Section 11.13.  Captions.  The captions, headings, and arrangements used in this 

Agreement are for convenience only and shall not in any way affect, limit, amplify, or 

modify the terms and provisions hereof. 

438

Item 5.



34  

 

 Section 11.14.  Number and Gender of Words.  Whenever herein the singular 

number is used, the same shall include the plural where appropriate, and words of any 

gender shall include each other where appropriate. 

   

 Section 11.15.  Invalid Provisions.  If any provision of this Agreement or any 

agreement contemplated hereby is held to be illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable under 

present or future laws effective during the term of such agreement; then: (i) such provision 

shall be fully severable; (ii) such agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such 

illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of such 

agreement; and (iii) the remaining provisions of such agreement shall remain in full force 

and effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable provision 

or by its severance from such agreement.  Furthermore, in lieu of such illegal, void, 

invalid, or unenforceable provision there shall be added automatically as a part of such 

agreement a provision as similar in terms to such illegal, void, invalid, or unenforceable 

provision as may be legal, valid, and enforceable, whether or not such a substitute 

provision is specifically provided for in such agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 

in the event any provision involving material consideration by the City for the benefit of 

the Developer shall be held illegal, void, invalid or unenforceable, then the Developer 

shall have the right to cancel this Agreement, and upon such cancellation, this Agreement, 

in its entirety, shall be rendered null and void; however, in that event, Developer shall 

proceed as described in Section 10.2(d) of this Agreement. 

 

 Section 11.16.  Multiple Counterparts.  This Agreement has been executed in a 

number of identical counterparts, each of which is to be deemed an original for all 

purposes and all of which constitute collectively one agreement, but in making proof of 

this Agreement it shall not be necessary to produce or account for more than one such 

counterpart. 

 

 Section 11.17.  Authorization.  Each party hereto represents that prior to its 

execution hereof all necessary company, governmental or other appropriate action, as 

applicable, including without limitation resolutions of their governing boards or bodies, 

has been taken to authorize the execution of this Agreement and the performance by such 

party of its respective obligations hereunder. 

 

 Section 11.18.  Time of the Essence.  Time is of the essence with respect to all 

matters described in this Agreement and related documents.  

 

 Section 11.19.  Survival.  Each provision of this Agreement shall survive the 

occurrence of the other provisions of this Agreement to the extent necessary to ensure full 

performance of said surviving provision. 

 

439

Item 5.



35  

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Agreement to be duly executed 

in its name and behalf by its Mayor and its seal to be hereunto duly affixed and attested by 

its City Clerk, and the Developer has caused this Agreement to be duly executed in its 

name and behalf by its member, all on or as of the day first above written. 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

              Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk      

       

 

 

KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., 

an Iowa limited liability company  

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Dennis Kubica, Member 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jen Kubica, Member 

 

DEVELOPER 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

440

Item 5.



36  

STATE OF IOWA            ) 

                           )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

  

This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 2022, 

by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

STATE OF _________________ ) 

                       )  ss: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2022, by Dennis Kubica and Jen Kubica, Members, KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of _______________ 

  

441

Item 5.



37  

EXHIBIT A 

 

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY 

 

 

 The Development Property is described as consisting of all that certain parcel or 

parcels of land located generally in the City of Cedar Falls, County of Black Hawk, State 

of Iowa, more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less). 

 

 

  

442

Item 5.



38  

EXHIBIT B 

 

MINIMUM IMPROVEMENTS 

 

 The Minimum Improvements shall consist of the construction of an Industrial Use 

Manufacturing Facility totaling at least 40,000 square feet of finished space, all as set 

forth in the Construction Plans and being as more particularly shown and in substantially 

the same configuration and scope as the Site Plans attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

 

 The Developer agrees to connect to the sanitary sewer, storm sewer, natural gas, 

electricity, water, underground telephone cable, internet and any other utilities services 

from their present locations to such location or locations on the Development Property as 

Developer deems appropriate, at its cost.  The Developer also agrees to construct any 

driveway approaches and other paving, at its cost, in accordance with City ordinances.  

 

 The Developer also agrees to perform or cause to be performed all necessary 

grading, land preparation and all necessary building improvements, landscaping, storm 

water detention, signage, and all other site improvements, in all respects in entire 

conformity with all applicable codes and ordinances of the City, all at the Developer's 

cost.  The submittal to City of plans for the construction of said improvements shall be in 

substantial conformity with the following schedule: 

 

Schedule of Performance 

 

Activity to be Completed    Completion Date 

 

Issuance of Building Permit   June 1, 2022 

 

Substantial Completion     February 1, 2023 

 

Issuance of Occupancy Permit   February 1, 2023 
 

 

443

Item 5.



 

39  

EXHIBIT C 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter 

called "City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 

hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"); and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.,  (hereinafter called the 

"Developer"), an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 

25575 Heslip Drive, Novi, MI 48375; did on or about the _____ day of 

_______________, 2022, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for 

Private Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement, to develop and maintain certain real property 

located within the City and as more particularly described as follows: 

 

Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less) 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Agreement incorporated and contained certain covenants and 

restrictions with respect to the development of the Development Property, and obligated 

Developer to construct certain Minimum Improvements (as defined therein) in accordance 

with the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Developer performed said covenants and conditions insofar as they 

relate to the construction of said Minimum Improvements in a manner deemed by the City 

to be in conformance with the approved building plans to permit the execution and 

recording of this certification. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the Agreement, this is to certify that all covenants 

and conditions of the Agreement with respect to the obligations of Developer and its 

successors and assigns, to construct the Minimum Improvements have been completed 

and performed by Developer and are hereby released absolutely and forever terminated 

insofar as they apply to the land described herein.  The County Recorder of Black Hawk 

County is hereby authorized to accept for recording and to record the filing of this 

instrument, to be a conclusive determination of the satisfactory termination of the 

covenants and conditions of said Agreement with respect to the construction of the 

Minimum Improvements. 

 

444

Item 5.



 

40  

 All other provisions of the Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect 

until termination as provided therein. 

 

 (SEAL)    THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

 

      By: ________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

       Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA            ) 

                           )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   )  

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     ______________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

  

445

Item 5.



 

41  

EXHIBIT D 

 

MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS MINIMUM ASSESSMENT AGREEMENT, dated as of this _________ day 

of ______________, 2022, by and among the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, (the 

"City"), and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company, (the "Developer"), 

and the COUNTY ASSESSOR for the County of Black Hawk, State of Iowa (the 

"Assessor"). 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

 WHEREAS, on or before the date hereof the City and Developer have entered into 

an Agreement for Private Development dated as of ______________________________, 

2022 (the "Agreement") regarding certain real property located in the City legally 

described as: 

 

Lots 9, 10 and 11 West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less). 

 

(the "Development Property"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is contemplated that pursuant to said Agreement, the Developer will 

undertake the development of the Development Property, which is within the Cedar Falls 

Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 403.6(19) of the Code of Iowa, 2021, as amended, 

the City and the Developer desire to establish a minimum actual taxable value for the 

facilities thereon to be constructed by the Developer pursuant to the Agreement (defined 

therein as the "Minimum Improvements"); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Assessor have reviewed the preliminary plans and 

specifications for the Minimum Improvements which it is contemplated will be erected. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties to this Minimum Assessment Agreement, in 

consideration of the promises, covenants and agreements made by each other, do hereby 

agree as follows: 

 

 1.   Upon substantial completion of construction of the above-referenced Minimum 

Improvements by the Developer, but no later than January 1, 2024, the minimum actual 

taxable value which shall be fixed for assessment purposes for the Minimum 

Improvements to be constructed on the Development Property by the Developer and the 

land that together comprise the Development Property, shall be not less than Three 

Million Four Hundred Eighty Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars ($3,485,000.00) 

446

Item 5.



 

42  

(hereafter referred to as the "Minimum Actual Value") until termination of this Minimum 

Assessment Agreement.  The parties hereto expect that the construction of the above-

referenced Minimum Improvements will be completed on or before February 1, 2023. 

 

 Nothing herein shall be deemed to waive the Developer's rights under Iowa Code 

Section 403.6(19) to contest that portion of any actual taxable value assignment made by 

the Assessor in excess of the Minimum Actual Value established herein, or any actual 

taxable value assignment made by the Assessor to the Minimum Improvements or to the 

4.35 acres of land, which together comprise the Development Property.  In no event, 

however, shall the Developer seek to reduce the actual taxable value assigned below the 

Minimum Actual Value established herein during the term of this Agreement. 

 

 2.   The Minimum Actual Value herein established shall be of no further force and 

effect and this Minimum Assessment Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 2034. 

 

 3.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall be promptly recorded by the 

Developer with the Recorder of Black Hawk County, Iowa.  The Developer shall pay all 

costs of recording. 

 

 4.   Neither the preambles nor provisions of this Minimum Assessment Agreement 

are intended to, or shall be construed as, modifying the terms of the Agreement between 

the City and the Developer. 

 

 5.   This Minimum Assessment Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be 

binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties, and all holders of mortgages upon 

or security interests in the Development Property, including the land and the Minimum 

Improvements,   to secure any loans with respect to the Development Property, including 

the land and the Minimum Improvements. 

 

 

      THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: ____________________________________ 

             Robert M. Green, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

447

Item 5.



 

43  

DEVELOPER: 

 

KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. 

An Iowa limited liability company  

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Dennis Kubica, Member 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jen Kubica, Member 

 

 

 
 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

       ) ss:   

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK   ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

 

     __________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

STATE OF _________________ ) 

                       )  ss: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 

2022, by Dennis Kubica and Jen Kubica, Members, KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

    

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of _______________ 

 

 

  

448

Item 5.



 

44  

 

CERTIFICATION OF ASSESSOR 

 

 The undersigned, having reviewed the plans and specifications for the Minimum 

Improvements to be constructed and the market value assigned to such Minimum 

Improvements, and being of the opinion that the minimum market value contained in the 

foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement appears reasonable, hereby certifies as 

follows:  The undersigned Assessor, being legally responsible for the assessment of the 

property described in the foregoing Minimum Assessment Agreement, upon completion 

of Minimum Improvements to be made on it and in accordance with the Minimum 

Assessment Agreement, certifies that the actual taxable value assigned to such Minimum 

Improvements and the 4.35 acres of land on which such Minimum Improvements are to be 

constructed, which together comprise the Development Property, upon completion shall 

not be less than $3,485,000.00, until termination of this Minimum Assessment Agreement 

pursuant to the terms hereof. 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      County Assessor for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA   ) 

                       )  ss. 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK ) 

 

 Subscribed and sworn to before me by T.J. Koenigsfeld, County Assessor for Black 

Hawk County, Iowa. 

 

      ______________________________________ 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Date 
 

 

449

Item 5.



 

45  

EXHIBIT E 

 

FORM OF LEGAL OPINION 

 

City of Cedar Falls 

Attn: City Clerk 

City Hall 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 

 

 

RE: Agreement for Private Development by and between the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., an Iowa limited liability company 

 

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa: 

 

 As counsel for KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.  (the "Developer"), and in connection with the 

execution and delivery of a certain Development Agreement (the "Development 

Agreement") between the Developer and the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the "City") dated 

as of ________________, 2022, we hereby render the following opinion: 

 

 We have examined the original certified copy, or copies otherwise identified to our 

satisfaction as being true copies, of the following: 

 

(a) The certificate of organization and operating agreement, together with 

all amendments thereto, of the Developer; 

 

(b) Resolutions of the members of the Developer at which action was 

taken with respect to the transactions covered by this opinion; 

 

  (c) The Development Agreement; 

 

and such other documents and records as we have deemed relevant and necessary as a 

basis for the opinions set forth herein. 

 

 Based on the pertinent law, the foregoing examination and such other inquiries as we 

have deemed appropriate, we are of the opinion that: 

 

 1. The Developer has been duly organized and is validly existing as a limited 

liability company under the laws of the State of Iowa and is authorized to do business in 

the State of Iowa.  The Developer has full power and authority to execute, deliver and 

perform in full the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement; 

and the Development Agreement and the Minimum Assessment Agreement have been 

duly and validly authorized by action of the members, have been executed and delivered 

450

Item 5.



 

46  

by an authorized manager of the Developer and, assuming due authorization, execution 

and delivery by the City, are  in full force and effect and are  valid and legally binding 

instruments of the Developer enforceable in accordance with their  terms, except as the 

same may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or other laws relating to or 

affecting creditors' rights generally. 

 

 2. The execution, delivery and performance by the Developer of the 

Development Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, and the carrying out of 

the terms thereof, will not result in violation of any provision of, or in default under, the 

certificate of organization and operating agreement of the Developer or any indenture, 

mortgage, deed of trust, indebtedness, agreement, judgment, decree, order, statute, rule, 

regulation or restriction to which the Developer is a party or by which it or its property is 

bound or subject. 

 

 3. To our knowledge and after inquiry to Developer, there are no actions, suits 

or proceedings pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer in any court or 

before any arbitrator or before or by any governmental body in which there is a reasonable 

possibility of an adverse decision which could materially adversely affect the business 

(present or prospective), financial position or results of operations of the Developer or 

which in any manner raises any questions affecting the validity of the Development 

Agreement, the Minimum Assessment Agreement, or the Developer's ability to perform 

its obligations thereunder. 

 

 

Very truly yours, 

 

KLATT, AUGUSTINE & RASTEDE, P.C. 

 

 

By:______________________________________ 

 Charles P. Augustine, Attorney at Law 

       531 Commercial Street, Suite 250 

 Waterloo, IA 50701 

 

  

451

Item 5.



 

47  

EXHIBIT F 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATE DEVELOPMENT 

 

 WHEREAS, the CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, a municipality (hereinafter 

called "City"), established pursuant to the Code of the State of Iowa and acting under the 

authorization of Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa, 2021 (Chapter 403 

hereinafter called "Urban Renewal Act"); and KL Iowa 01, L.L.C.,  (hereinafter called the 

"Developer"), an Iowa limited liability company having its principal place of business at 

25575 Heslip Drive, Novi, MI 48375, did on or about the _____ day of ______________, 

2022, make, execute and deliver, each to the other, an Agreement for Private 

Development (the "Agreement"), wherein and whereby Developer agreed, in accordance 

with the terms of the Agreement and the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban 

Renewal Plan (the "Plan"), to develop certain real property located within the City and 

within the Cedar Falls Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan and as more 

particularly described as follows: 

 

Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, 

Black Hawk County, Iowa (Contains 4.35 acres more or less). 

 

(the "Development Property"), and  

 

 WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement commenced on the ___ day of 

___________, 2022, and terminates on the 31st day of December, 2034, with respect to 

the Development Property, unless otherwise terminated as set forth in the Agreement; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parties desire to record a Memorandum of the Agreement referring 

to the Development Property and their respective interests therein.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 1. That the recording of this Memorandum of Agreement for Private 

Development shall serve as notice to the public that the Agreement contains provisions 

restricting conveyance, development and use of the Development Property and the 

improvements located and operated on such Development Property, and contains 

provisions dealing with the dollar amount of the minimum taxable value of the 

Development Property for general property tax purposes, and the length of time during 

which said minimum assessed value continues in effect, as provided for in Section 

403.6(19), Code of Iowa. 

 

 2. That all of the provisions of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments 

thereto, if any, even though not set forth herein, are by the filing of this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development made a part hereof by reference, and that anyone 

making any claim against any of said Development Property in any manner whatsoever 

452

Item 5.



 

48  

shall be fully advised as to all of the terms and conditions of the Agreement, and any 

amendments thereto, as if the same were fully set forth herein.   

 

 3. That a copy of the Agreement and any subsequent amendments thereto, if 

any, shall be maintained on file for public inspection during ordinary business hours in the 

office of the City Clerk, City Hall, Cedar Falls, Iowa.   

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Memorandum of 

Agreement for Private Development on the ______ day of _______________________, 

2022. 

 

 

 

(SEAL)     CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

 

      By: _________________________________ 

               Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _________________________________________ 

 Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 
 

 

 

KL Iowa 01, L.L.C. 

an Iowa limited liability company. 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Dennis Kubica, Member 

 

 

By: ________________________________________ 

 Jen Kubica, Member 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

453

Item 5.



 

49  

STATE OF IOWA    ) 

      )  ss: 

COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK  ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of ______________, 

2022, by Robert M. Green as Mayor, and Jacqueline Danielsen as City Clerk, of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa. 

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for Black Hawk County, Iowa 

 

 

 

 

 

STATE OF _________________ )  

      )  ss: 

COUNTY OF _______________ ) 

 

 This record was acknowledged before me on the _____ day of ____________, 2022, 

by Dennis Kubica and Jen Kubica, Members, KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company. 

 

     ____________________________________________ 

     Notary Public in and for the State of _______________ 

 
 

454

Item 5.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2022
IowaDocs®

Form No. 106, Quit Claim Deed
Revised February 2019

QUIT CLAIM DEED

For the consideration of One Dollar(s) and other valuable consideration, City of Cedar 
Falls, Iowa, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of Iowa, does hereby 
Quit Claim to KL Iowa 01, L.L.C., a limited liability company organized and existing under the 
laws of Iowa
 all our right, title, interest, estate, claim and demand in the following described real estate in Black 
Hawk County, Iowa:

This deed is exempt according to Iowa Code 428A.2(6).

Lots 9, 10 and 11, West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase I, City of Cedar Falls, 
Black Hawk County, Iowa; subject to the conditions, covenants and restrictions 
contained in the Unified Highway 58 Corridor Urban Renewal Plan approved by 
Cedar Falls City Council Resolution No. 8196 approved and adopted on 
November 12, 1990 (Ordinance No. 1923), amended a first time by Resolution 
No. 10,224 on November 13, 1995 (Ordinance No. 2122), amended a second time 
by Resolution No. 13,862 on November 17, 2003 (Ordinance No. 2461), amended 
a third time by Resolution No. 18,377 on December 10, 2012 (Ordinance No. 
2785), amended a fourth time by Resolution No. 19,263 on November 3, 2014, 
amended a fifth time by Resolution No. 19,963 on April 18, 2016, amended a 
sixth time by Resolution No. 21,079 on May 7, 2018 (Ordinance No. 2923), 
amended a seventh time by Resolution No. 21,368 on December 17, 2018 
(Ordinance No. 2953), and amended an eighth time by Resolution No. 22,205 on 
December 21, 2020, and further subject to restrictive covenants, ordinances, and 
limited access provisions of record, if any, and to existing easements of record.
 

Each of the undersigned hereby relinquishes all rights of dower, homestead and distributive 
share in and to the real estate.  Words and phrases herein, including acknowledgment hereof, shall 
be construed as in the singular or plural number, and as masculine or feminine gender, according 
to the context.

Dated:  __________________________.

City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, an Iowa municipal 
corporation

By ____________________________________
Robert M. Green, Mayor

455

Item 5.



©The Iowa State Bar Association 2022
IowaDocs®

Form No. 106, Quit Claim Deed
Revised February 2019

By ____________________________________
_________________, _________________

By _______________________________
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, as City Clerk, 
Grantor

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK

This record was acknowledged before me on _________________________________, 
by Robert M. Green, as Mayor, of City of Cedar Falls, Iowa a municipal corporation.

__________________________________
Signature of Notary Public

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF BLACK HAWK

This record was acknowledged before me on ___________________________, by 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, as City Clerk

_________________________________
Signature of Notary Public

456

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: February 25, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project 
  City Project Number: SA-000-3297 
  Public Hearing 
 
Submitted within for City Council approval are the Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of 
Costs and Quantities for the 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
This project consists of furnishing and installing a cured in place liner within existing 8 
and 12 inch diameter sewer lines in selected areas of the city and in accordance with 
the contract documents. The total project involves approximately 8,209 linear feet and 
185 service taps.   
 
The total estimated cost for the construction of this project is $248,119.50. The project 
will be funded by Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) and Sewer Rental 
Funds (SRF). 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving the 
Plans, Specifications, and Estimate of Costs and Quantities for the 2022 CDBG 
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. 
 
xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
  

457

Item 6.



ITEM UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY COST

1 PIPE LINING, 8 INCH L.F. $20.50 7111 $145,775.50

2 PIPE LINING, 12 INCH L.F. $28.00 1098 $30,744.00

3 BUILDING SANITARY SEWER SERVICE RECONNECTION EACH $50.00 185 $9,250.00

4 GROUTING SERVICE LATERALS EACH $310.00 185 $57,350.00

5 MOBILIZATION L.S. $5,000.00 1.0 $5,000.00

$248,119.50

2022 CDBG SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROJECT

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE 

TOTAL PROJECT ESTIMATE

CITY PROJECT NO. SA - 000 - 3297

458

Item 6.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

 DATE: February 28, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Petition from City Council to Amend parking requirements in the Downtown 
Character District (TA22-001) 

 

 
At your work session on Tuesday, January 18th, the City Council directed staff to forward to the Planning 
and Zoning Commission a petition to consider amending certain parking requirements in the recently 
adopted Downtown Character District code.  
 
Background 
 
The Downtown Character District regulations were adopted by City Council on November 1, 2021. These 
new zoning regulations are intended to implement the Imagine Downtown! Vision Plan adopted in 
November of 2019. The vision plan was the result of public workshops, a week-long community design 
charrette, and other public outreach events that took place in 2019, where community members, 
including downtown merchants, property owners, residents, and other stakeholders were invited to share 
their feedback and ideas for the future of Downtown and surrounding neighborhoods.  
 
The second phase of the project was to draft zoning regulations to encourage future development that is 
consistent with the adopted Vision.  The draft code was presented to the public in February, 2021. The 
Commission considered the new code at four special work sessions and held 3 public hearings to 
consider public comments and suggestions for changes to the code.  The Commission discussed all 
proposed changes to the draft and made decisions on each one before forwarding a final draft to the City 
Council for consideration in May 2021.  The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommended draft was 
reviewed at three City Council Committee of the Whole meetings and two work sessions before a public 
hearing was scheduled. After discussion at three readings, the new code was adopted on November 1, 
2021.   
 
Council Petition # 1 – Eliminate shared parking requirements 
 
Under the new code, for a new development project that contains apartments or upper floor commercial 
uses, a certain number of shared parking spaces must be provided. These spaces must be made 
available for the public to use during at least 12 hours a day. For the remaining hours these spaces may 
be reserved for the tenants of the building. The property owner has the flexibility to determine the hours 
when they are available for shared use and can sign them accordingly. The shared parking requirement 
is one tool to provide some additional parking spaces for public use to alleviate parking congestion 
downtown during peak times when the spaces might otherwise be sitting vacant.   
 
 

459

Item 7.



 
 

However, a number of concerns have been expressed about the shared parking requirements, including 
concerns about requiring property owners to make their private property available for public use and 
about how the shared spaces will be managed and monitored over time. A majority of the City Council 
expressed concerns that the potential downsides outweigh the potential benefits of this requirement and 
requested that the Commission consider eliminating the shared parking requirements from the zoning 
code. They note that property owners would still have the option to voluntarily share their parking with the 
public.  
 
The petition was introduced to the Planning and Zoning Commission at their meeting on January 26, 
2022.  At a public hearing on February 9th, the Commission discussed the Council’s petition; and, on a 3-
4 vote, disapproved the City Council’s petition to delete the shared parking requirements.  
 
Council Petition # 2 – Increase the amount of parking required for residential uses in multi-unit 
and mixed use buildings 
 
Based on the recommendations of the parking study conducted by WGI in late 2018, along with 
stakeholder interviews during the Visioning process, the consultants drafting the Downtown Character 
District Code (Ferrell Madden), included a reduction in the parking requirements for residential within 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings from 1 space per bedroom to 0.5 spaces per bedroom (along with 
0.25 spaces per bedroom for shared parking).  
 
A majority of the City Council expressed concerns about lowering the parking requirements for residential 
uses in multi-unit and mixed use buildings downtown and petitioned the Commission to consider re-
establishing the previous requirement of one parking space per bedroom.  
 
The petition was introduced to the Planning and Zoning Commission at their meeting on January 26, 
2022 and a public hearing was set.  At a public hearing on February 9th, a motion to approve the 
Council’s petition failed for a lack of a second to the motion, and therefore is considered disapproved by 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on a 4-3 
vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to increase the 
parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom, but not less than 1 space per unit. There was general agreement that there should be no less 
than 1 space per unit to ensure that buildings containing all or a majority of units that are studios or one-
bedrooms provide at least one parking space per unit. A majority were supportive of an increase to 0.75 
spaces per bedroom.     
 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION ACTIONS: In summary, at their February 9th meeting, 
Planning and Zoning Commission held public hearings regarding the aforementioned Council petitions to 
amend the zoning ordinance. At the close of each hearing, the Commission took the following actions:  
 

Hearing #1: On Council’s petition to eliminate all shared parking requirements within City Code 
Section 26-196. Character District Parking, including all references to locational standards and 
time of day standards for shared parking, the Commission disapproved the petition on a 3-4 vote.   
 
Hearing #2: On Council’s petition to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in 
mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 1 space per bedroom within City Code Section 26-196. 
Character District Parking, the Commission disapproved the petition. The petition failed for a lack 
of a second to the motion.  
 
As an alternative, the Planning and Zoning Commission on a separate motion recommended, on 
a 4-3 vote, approval of an amendment to City Code Section 26-196, Character District Parking to 

460

Item 7.



 
 

increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 
spaces per bedroom, but not less than 1 space per unit.    

 
Note: Per City Code Section 26-4(c), if a petition to amend the zoning ordinance is disapproved by the 
Planning and Zoning Commission, the amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable 
vote of at least two-thirds of the members of City Council.   

 
AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
To avoid confusion, there will be two items on the Council agenda for the March 7th meeting:  
 

1. A public hearing on an ordinance to delete all requirements and standards related to 
shared parking within the Downtown Character District regulations. (requires 2/3 majority 
of Council to approve) 
 

2. A public hearing on: 
 

a. An ordinance to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use 
and multi-unit buildings to one parking space per bedroom within the Downtown 
Character District (requires 2/3 majority of Council to approve); and 
 

b. An ordinance to increase the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use 
and multi-unit buildings to 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than one parking 
space per unit (requires simple majority of Council to approve). 

 
Note: Once the public hearing is closed, the Council can discuss both options and decide 
on the better approach. If neither option garners enough votes to pass, then the 
ordinance will remain unchanged.   

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION DISCUSSION AND HEARINGS 
Discussion 
1/26/2022 

The first item of business was a zoning text amendment to amend CD-DT to eliminate 
shared parking requirements. Chair Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard 
provided background information. She explained that City Council has petitioned the 
Commission to consider amending the parking requirements in the Downtown Character 
District by deleting the requirements for shared parking and to increase the minimum 
parking requirement for multi-unit residential development to one space per bedroom 
and ensuring that there is at least one parking space per unit.  
 
Ms. Howard provided a summary of the Downtown Visioning and Code update project 
for the new Planning and Zoning Commissioners who were not on the Commission 
during the public review process for the project.  She displayed a rendering of the 
boundary of the Downtown Character District and discussed the previous zoning within 
the boundaries. She detailed the public review process that had taken place at the 
Planning and Zoning Commission before the Commission made their recommendation 
to the City Council in May of last year. Ms. Howard briefly described the two types of 
parking in the Central Business District, public and private. She discussed each and 
explained that the current issue is whether there should be parking requirements on 
private property in the downtown area. She explained why cities are moving away from 
focusing on zoning requirements for parking and more toward public shared parking 
solutions. She described the distinction between short-term and long-term parking 
needs, reasons why cities rely on public parking, particularly for short-term customer 

461

Item 7.



 
 

parking, and the unintended consequences of high parking requirements. Ms. Howard 
discussed the parking study that was done in 2018 and how those results affected the 
zoning standards proposed in the new zoning code.  She noted that while other public 
parking options were being discussed to address downtown parking needs, such as 
construction of a public parking ramp, she explained that the focus of this meeting is on 
the zoning code, and discussed the previous private parking requirements as well as the 
new code requirements. She also discussed the definition of shared parking. Staff 
recommends discussion of Council’s request to eliminate shared parking requirements 
in the zoning Code and to increase the residential parking requirement back to one 
space per bedroom for new mixed-use and multi-unit buildings. It is recommended to set 
a public hearing date for February 9. 
 
Mr. Larson made a motion to schedule a public hearing for February 9 for both items on 
the agenda. Ms. Lynch seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Holst asked about existing conditions for parking and how this will affect properties 
that are already established and previous requirements were met. Ms. Howard 
explained that it would only affect owners who are looking to make a change. 
 
Mr. Larson asked for clarification on what would trigger new development as to when the 
shared parking requirement would be applicable. Ms. Howard stated that the only 
shared parking requirement is for new multi-family units, or for new upper floor 
commercial space that is greater than 5,000 square feet.  
 
Mr. Larson asked how it will be decided what area of a parking lot is shared parking. Ms. 
Howard explained how the numbers are figured and how the spaces would be specified 
as available to the public. It was again clarified that these rules would not apply to 
existing properties.  
 
Mr. Leeper asked for an example of how parking would be if requirements were 
increased to one space per bedroom. Ms. Howard gave River Place as an example and 
presented the results from the parking study, which showed the percentage that was 
unused.  
 
Ms. Grybovych asked about examples of how this has worked for other cities that have 
proposed lower parking requirements. Ms. Howard discussed findings from other 
communities and how they compare to Cedar Falls.  
 
Ms. Crisman asked for clarification on whether private parking was just in lots or if it 
would include private garages. Ms. Howard stated that shared parking would only apply 
to new multi-unit or mixed use buildings.  Depending on how the parking is provided, it 
could be inside the building or be in surface lots. The owner would choose the best 
location for the shared parking spaces and would sign it for the hours it is available to 
the public.  
 
Mr. Holst stated that he feels that going back to the way things were would cause the 
situation to digress and not allow for growth. It was recommended that documents and 
information from the previous studies, presentations and meetings be forwarded to the 
newest Commission members to give them some background on the information 
shared.  
 
The motion to set a public hearing date for February 9th was approved unanimously with 
9 ayes (Crisman, Grybovych, Hartley, Holst, Larson, Leeper, Lynch, Moser and Saul), 
and 0 nays. 

462

Item 7.



 
 

 
 
Public Hearings 
2/9/2022  

The first item of business was a public hearing on a Zoning Text Amendment to 
eliminate shared parking requirements in the Downtown Character District. Chair Leeper 
introduced the item and Ms. Howard provided background information on the petition 
from Council.  

 
Ms. Howard displayed the location of the Downtown Character District and noted that 
the details of the ordinance had been presented at the last meeting.   She noted that if 
there were any questions about the current regulations in the Downtown Character 
District, the slides from the last meeting were available for viewing.   
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi, 3831 Convair Lane, indicated that he was a spokesperson for a group 
of owners of property downtown. He feels there needs to be more specificity in the 
shared parking requirements to exempt certain businesses or to specify which 
businesses can afford to share their parking and which cannot. He gave the example of 
restaurants and how due to their hours they would not be able to shared their parking. 
He noted examples of potential issues and possible solutions.  
 
Mr. Holst asked for clarification on the current requirements for shared parking. Ms. 
Howard clarified that the shared parking requirements only apply to new buildings with 
residential uses and upper floor commercial. There is no shared parking requirement for 
existing businesses or for ground floor commercial, including restaurants. Mr. Holst 
stated that parking has been a big concern for him throughout this project. However, he 
feels that a lot of time has been spent on review of this new code and that we should try 
things the way they are now set up before changing it.  
 
Mr. Larson agreed and feels a great deal of work, research and math considered in 
coming up with the numbers. Those can be changed without scrapping the whole code 
that everyone has put so much work into. He feels that trying it the way it is and 
adjusting as needed is the best plan. He believes that a great deal of time and effort has 
gone into the current code and it would be arbitrary to change the position on the 
numbers that were considered so seriously before. 

 
 Mr. Leeper stated that he doesn’t feel that the shared parking requirement is not very 

significant. He likes the idea of making the effort to fix the problem, but feels the shared 
parking is only meant to be a very small part of the overall approach to parking, so 
would be open to deleting it. Mr. Holst stated that he feels the need to forge ahead and 
at least give it a try to see how it works. The idea behind it is beneficial to the overall 
health of downtown and a lot of time and work has been put into researching all the 
information that was used to create the code. 

 
 Ms. Saul stated that she feels that if a developer wants to build downtown and is a good 

steward they will voluntarily do the sharing. She doesn’t believe forcing the issue is 
necessary. She agreed with concerns about enforcement.  

 
 Mr. Hartley stated that he believes that some additional definition should be added, 

particularly with regard to underground and outdoor parking lots.  
 
 Ms. Saul made a motion to eliminate shared parking requirements. Ms. Grybovych 

seconded the motion. The motion was denied with 3 ayes (Grybovych, Leeper and 
Saul), and 4 nays (Crisman, Hartley, Holst and Larson). 

463

Item 7.



 
 

 
 Mr. Leeper asked if this can be brought back for consideration down the road to see 

how it is working. Ms. Howard stated that it can. 
 

The next item for public hearing was a zoning text amendment to CD-DT to increase 
parking requirements for residential uses in multi-unit and mixed use buildings. Chair 
Leeper introduced the item and Ms. Howard stated that the request from City Council is 
to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use or multi-
unit buildings to one space per bedroom. 
 
When asked, Ms. Howard noted that the Commission may discuss and vote to forward 
any alternative proposals for changes to the parking requirements by a separate motion.  
 
Eashaan Vajpeyi asked for clarification on the requirements on the parking ratios. He 
discussed a map that was brought up that shows Halloween weekend in 2018 showing 
one surface residential parking lot that is only 52% full. He asked if anyone checked how 
occupied the building was. He feels that the accuracy of the numbers would need to 
include the building occupancy at the time to show the real parking ratio. He feels that 
there should be at least a minimum one spot per bedroom as he believes that more 
people have cars than are being counted. He feels that the ratio of spots and occupancy 
is very important. 
 
Daryl Kruse, 2725 Minnetonka Drive, spoke regarding the parking study noting that, of 
the residents that live downtown, 35% do not have an assigned parking spot. Most park 
on the street or in a parking lot, consuming spots for customers. He also stated that the 
seating capacity for all the bars and restaurants downtown is very close to 4,000. If they 
are half full and everyone comes two per car, there are 1,000 cars that need to park. 
The parking study shows approximately 680 parking spots on the street. If new buildings 
are built without one spot per bedroom, parking will be very limited. He also had an 
issue with the difference in parking requirements for rentals from downtown and the rest 
of the town. He feels that one spot per bedroom should be the minimum. 
  
Mr. Holst asked for clarification regarding the parking for studio apartments. Ms. Howard 
stated that a studio apartment would be considered one bedroom and would currently 
require 0.5 spots per resident and 0.25 for shared parking.  
 
Ms. Saul made a motion to change the code to one parking space per residential unit. 
Mr. Larson seconded the motion.  
 
Mr. Hartley said that changing the code to require at least one space per unit is a good 
idea, but the reality is that no one knows what the “magic” number regarding how many 
spaces per bedroom is until this is put into practice.  
 
Mr. Leeper feels that requiring additional parking is a hindrance to development 
downtown and the environment that is attracting people downtown. People don’t come 
downtown for the parking. He asked for clarification on the parking study that was done 
and Ms. Howard stated that parking was counted different days and different times of 
day to get a feel for the overall parking situation. Mr. Leeper stated that this seems to be 
a good case study. Ms. Saul interjected that shared parking is also being required. Mr. 
Holst stated that that small of a change isn’t going to have that big of an impact either 
way.  
 
Mr. Larson withdrew his second to the motion that was made to increase parking to one 
space per residential unit. The motion was removed from the table.  

464

Item 7.



 
 

 
There was further discussion regarding an alternate motion. Mr. Holst stated that he 
feels that if the requirement is increased to one space, it should include the shared 
parking requirement. He noted that he is not in favor of increasing to 1 space per 
bedroom and then have the additional 0.25 space in shared parking requirement, which 
would make it higher than it was before the new code was adopted.  Mr. Larson noted 
that a lot of time was spent on the numbers and feels that it was well researched. This is 
just referring to new development and isn’t going to affect a great amount of parking.  
 
Saul made a motion to increase the parking requirement for residential in multi-unit and 
mixed-use buildings to 0.75 per bedroom, but no less than one space per dwelling unit. 
Mr. Holst seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Larson stated that this is substantially over-parked compared to the current 
condition and reiterated that he feels that a great deal of objective thought, meetings 
and research went into the current requirement. Ms. Crisman agreed.  
 
Ms. Saul feels that the increase is a good compromise as consultants are making these 
kinds of recommendations all over the country, but Cedar Falls may not be like all those 
other locations.  
 
The motion was approved with 4 ayes (Hartley, Holst, Leeper and Saul), and 3 
nays (Crisman, Grybovych and Larson) 

 
 

465

Item 7.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE DELETING ALL REFERENCES TO AND REQUIREMENTS 
AND STANDARDS FOR SHARED PARKING WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN 
CHARACTER DISTRICT (CD-DT) BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUBSECTIONS 
AND PARAGRAPHS WITHIN SECTION 26-191, INTRODUCTION AND 
DEFINITIONS, AND SECTION 26-196, CHARACTER DISTRICT PARKING 
AND LOADING, OF DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, 
DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 

WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 
2021, define and establish shared parking requirements for certain residential uses and 
upper floor commercial uses; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider deleting all said shared parking requirements and standards; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission considered said petition at a public 
hearing and recommends disapproval; and  

 
WHEREAS, with disapproval by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the amendments 

noted herein shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of at least two-thirds of 
all the members of the City Council.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 

 

Section 1: The definition of “Shared Parking” within Subsection H, Definitions, of Section 26-191 

Introduction and Definitions, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and 

District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, 

Iowa, is hereby deleted.  

 

Section 2: Paragraphs 1. 2, and 3, of Subsection C, General Urban, General Urban 2, and 

Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196, Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

are hereby deleted, and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  

 

1. Existing buildings as of November 1, 2021 that front on Main Street between 1st Street and 

6th Street are exempt from these minimum parking requirements, regardless of use or re-use.  

2. There is no minimum parking requirement for non-residential uses.   

3. Minimum Required Parking 

a. When calculating required parking, the following rules shall apply:  

(i) any partial space 0.5 or above is rounded to the next whole number; 

(ii) studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of calculating 

466

Item 7.



required parking  

b. Residential uses in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings: 0.5 spaces per bedroom.  

c. Residential uses in single-unit attached and detached, multi-unit rowhouse, and two-unit 

configurations:  

 (i) Owner-occupied: 1 space per unit 

 (ii) Renter-occupied: 1 space per unit + one space per bedroom for each bedroom above 

2. 

 
Section 3:  Paragraph 4. Minimum Shared Parking, of Subsection C. General Urban, General 

Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196 

Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted in its entirety.  

 

Section 4: Subparagraphs 5c. and 5d, of Subsection C. General Urban, General Urban 2, and 

Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196 Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, 

are hereby deleted in their entirety. 

 

Section 5: Subsection D, Neighborhood Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 

26-196, Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article 

III, Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City 

of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted, and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

 

D. Neighborhood Frontages  

1. Minimum Required Parking:  

a. Residential uses in multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom.  

b. Residential uses in single-unit attached and detached, multi-unit rowhouse, two-unit, 

and cottage court configurations:  

 (i). Owner-occupied: 1 space per unit 

 (ii). Renter-occupied: 1 space per unit + one space per bedroom for each bedroom 

above 2. 

c. Minimum required parking for non-residential uses is 1 space per 300 square feet.  

2. When calculating required parking, the following rules shall apply:  

a. any partial space 0.5 or above is rounded to the next whole number; 

b. studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the purposes of calculating 

required parking; 

c. Off-site parking is not permitted for any required parking in Neighborhood Frontages.  

 

Section 6: Subsection E. Special Parking Standards, of Section 26-196, Character District Parking 

and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District Regulations, 

of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

deleted in its entirety.  
 
INTRODUCED:        

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:      

467

Item 7.



PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 
____________________________ 

       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  
 

468

Item 7.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE THE PARKING REQUIREMENT FOR 
RESIDENTIAL USES IN MIXED-USE AND MULTI-UNIT BUILDINGS TO ONE 
PARKING SPACE PER BEDROOM WITHIN THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER 
DISTRICT (CD-DT) BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUBSECTIONS AND 
PARAGRAPHS WITHIN SECTION 26-196, CHARACTER DISTRICT PARKING 
AND LOADING, WITHIN DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, 
DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF 
THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 

2021, establish parking requirements for residential uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and 
multi-unit buildings to one space per bedroom; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
February 9, 2022, the motion to approve the Council’s petition failed due to lack of a second to 
the motion and therefore is considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, with disapproval by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the amendments 

noted herein shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of at least two-thirds of all 
the members of the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subparagraph b. of Paragraph 3, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection C, General 

Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-

196, Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  

 

b. Residential uses in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings: 1 space per bedroom. Note: 

studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of calculating required 

parking.  

 

Section 2: Subparagraph a. of paragraph 1, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection D, 

Neighborhood Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196, Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 

hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

 

469

Item 8.



a. Residential uses in multi-unit buildings: 1 space per bedroom. Note: studio/efficiency units 

shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of calculating required parking; 

 
 
INTRODUCED:    March 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:       

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

470

Item 8.



Prepared by: Karen Howard, P&CS Manager, City of Cedar Falls, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, Iowa (319) 273-8600 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE THE PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR 
RESIDENTIAL USES IN MIXED-USE AND MULTI-UNIT BUILDINGS WITHIN 
THE DOWNTOWN CHARACTER DISTRICT (CD-DT) TO 0.75 SPACES PER 
BEDROOM, BUT NOT LESS THAN ONE PARKING SPACE PER DWELLING 
UNIT, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SUBSECTIONS AND PARAGRAPHS WITHIN 
SECTION 26-196, CHARACTER DISTRICT PARKING AND LOADING, WITHIN 
DIVISION 2, SPECIFIC DISTRICTS, OF ARTICLE III, DISTRICTS AND DISTRICT 
REGULATIONS, OF CHAPTER 26, ZONING, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA  

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Character District zoning regulations, adopted November 1, 

2021, establish parking requirements for residential uses; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has petitioned the Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning 

Commission to consider increasing the parking requirement for residential uses in mixed-use and 
multi-unit buildings to one space per bedroom; and 
 

WHEREAS, at the public hearing at the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting on 
February 9, 2022, the motion to approve the Council’s petition failed due to lack of a second to 
the motion and therefore is considered disapproved by the Planning and Zoning Commission; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, as an alternative to City Council’s petition, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

recommended approval of an amendment to increase the parking requirement for residential 
uses in mixed-use and multi-unit buildings in the Downtown Character District to 0.75 spaces per 
bedroom, but not less than 1 space per dwelling unit.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, THAT: 
 

Section 1: Subparagraph b. of Paragraph 3, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection C, General 

Urban, General Urban 2, and Storefront Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-

196, Character District Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, 

Districts and District Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof:  

 

b. Residential uses in mixed-use or multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less 

than 1 space per dwelling unit. Note: studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for 

the purpose of calculating required parking.  

 

Section 2: Subparagraph a. of paragraph 1, Minimum Reserved Parking, of Subsection D, 

Neighborhood Frontages – Minimum Parking Requirements, of Section 26-196, Character District 

Parking and Loading, within Division 2, Specific Districts, of Article III, Districts and District 

Regulations, of Chapter 26, Zoning, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is 

hereby deleted and the following substituted in lieu thereof: 

 

471

Item 8.



a. Residential uses in multi-unit buildings: 0.75 spaces per bedroom, but not less than 1 space 

per dwelling unit. Note: studio/efficiency units shall count as one bedroom for the purpose of 

calculating required parking. 

 
 
INTRODUCED:    March 7, 2022   

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION:     

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATION:     

ADOPTED:       

 
 

____________________________ 
       Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk  

472

Item 8.



 MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN  
  
 CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA   
 220 CLAY STREET 
 CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 PHONE 319-273-8600 
 FAX 319-268-5126 

 www.cedarfalls.com 
 
 

  

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: March 7, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Appointment of City Council Student Liaison 

 REF: (a) Cedar Falls City Council Resolution #20,502 Appointing a Student Liaison to 

the City Council for an Indefinite Term dated April 17, 2017 

 

1. In accordance with the requirements of reference (a), I hereby appoint Mr. Zachary Zippe as 

the Student Liaison to the City Council for a term beginning upon council approval and 

ending April 30, 2022. 

 

2. Typically, this appointment is made in April for a term beginning May 1; due to the 

significant challenges posed by the Coronavirus Pandemic, the Northern Iowa Student 

Government was delayed in recommending a student for appointment to the position. 

 

3. I have interviewed Mr. Zippe to discuss the Council’s expectations for the role of the 

Student Liaison; from this conversation I am satisfied that he meets the qualifications 

required by the City Council in reference (a).  

 

xc:  City Clerk   

 Northern Iowa Student Government 

 
# 

 
 
 
 
 
 

473

Item 9.



CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
Cedar Falls Council Chambers 

February 21, 2022 
 
The City Council held a special work session at City Hall at 5:10 p.m. on February 21, 
2022, with the following persons in attendance:  Mayor Rob Green, Gil Schultz, Susan 
deBuhr, Daryl Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Dave Sires, and Kelly Dunn.  
Staff members attended from all City Departments.  Members of the community 
attended the meeting and teleconferenced in. 
 
Mayor Green introduced the only item on the agenda, Public Safety Director Position 
and Public Safety (PS) Model.  He noted there would be no public input for this meeting.  
Mayor Green stated Council is looking for consensus on next steps for the Public Safety 
Director position opening:  advertise for the position to be filled; appoint an interim 
Public Safety Director; or eliminate the position.  Mayor Green also stated Council is 
looking for consensus on what, if any, additional information is needed to make further 
decisions.  Mayor Green asked if Councilmembers wished to see the presentation put 
together by Public Safety on the current model or move to discussion; Council would 
like the presentation.  Mayor Green introduced Police Chief Craig Berte, Fire Chief John 
Bostwick, and Public Safety Director Jeff Olson. 
 
Chief Berte gave an overview of response to Police and Fire calls, including self-
initiated activity and emergency medical response.  He stated that research has been 
done on several other cities’ models to see how they operate; he stated that there are 
many other cross-trained professions, including military, and that 2/3 of firefighters in 
the U.S. are volunteer or paid-on-call with a different main occupation.  He stated the 
Public Safety model has:  2 divisions, budgets, and chiefs; staffing between fire stations 
and police; nearly all staff are cross-trained; police carry fire gear and respond to fire 
calls; the model increases the number of firefighters at a scene and also provides 
additional staff at police scenes.  He stated what has not changed with the transition to 
the Public Safety model.  Chief Berte shared an organizational chart of Public Safety 
staff:  fire, police, and shared services.  He reviewed the state and City of Cedar Falls 
requirements for firefighters and stated there are standard training requirements and an 
order but no official timeline.  Chief Bostwick detailed specific fire station staffing and 
stated that each year in January the Public Safety Officers (PSOs) get to choose where 
they want to be for the coming year.  Councilmember Schultz asked if that choice 
affects fire and police staffing, and is seniority a factor; Chief Berte responded 
placement after choice is based on seniority and union agreement and there are a small 
number who don’t get the assignment or shift assignment requested, and there are 
some positions that are designated, not chosen.  Councilmember Sires asked how 
many fire fighter II personnel; Director Olson responded 22, and gave numbers for other 
certifications.  Mayor Green asked how many supervisors have been through fire 
school, and is there a difference in pay; Director Olson stated 7 have, 1 is waiting on 
test results, and there is no pay difference.  Chief Berte stated firefighters have, past 
initial training, ongoing annual trainings and listed some.  Chief Berte stated before the 
PS model, fire had minimum staffing of 6, now the average response is 12; officers on 

474

Item 10.



police shift respond to calls first and can assist before fire arrives; 3 police vehicles are 
equipped with Compressed Air Foam (CAF) systems which have a place for use on 
small, exterior fires but are not a replacement for regular fire suppression.  
Councilmember Schultz asked if the CAF system can be operated outside the PS 
model; Chief Berte responded yes, and almost all staff were trained on it prior to moving 
to the PS model.  Councilmember Ganfield asked if the minimum number of fire station 
staffing was ever more than 6; Chief Bostwick stated it was 11 when he came on 40 
years ago, so more people, with varying assignments:  2 off, 1 fire dispatcher, 3 
assigned to the ambulance, 3 at station 2, and 2 assigned to the main fire truck.  
Councilmember Dunn stated fire calls are down about 40% nationwide and Chief 
Bostwick agreed.  Chief Berte referenced slides regarding 2019 fire calls and 
responses.  Chief Berte spoke about the approximate cost of providing the same level 
of response with separate police and fire departments, estimating an additional 21 fire 
fighters and 9 police officers at about $3,000,000 annually; Councilmember Ganfield 
requested more specific numbers including salary and benefits; Councilmember Sires 
asked for clarification on starting pay for PSOs; Councilmember Schultz asked for the 
national average; Chief Berte provided starting wage through maximum salary, and 
noted he did not know the national average but the City is more concerned with 
comparable Iowa cities.  Chief Berte provided some examples of call responses; 
Councilmember Sires asked about Waterloo Police involvement in the stand-off; Chief 
Berte responded there were 6 or 7 officers from Waterloo with a Bearcat armored 
vehicle and drones, Cedar Falls utilized those assets from Waterloo.  Director Olson 
stated that the teamwork in Black Hawk County, Waterloo, and Cedar Falls is great; 
Waterloo has equipment Cedar Falls doesn’t; it’s not a staffing issue usually when 
requesting help, it’s asking for additional outside resources Cedar Falls doesn’t have 
and it’s also a cost-saving measure.  Councilmember Sires asked about the 28E 
agreement with Janesville; Director Olson responded.  Mayor Green requested 
clarification on the role of the PSO who rode to the hospital with the victim and how they 
are identified (as police or fire) and what is required identification; Chief Berte stated in 
that case, the first responder was identified as a fire fighter; Director Olson stated 
properly identifying oneself as an officer is necessary for information gathered to 
provide in court.  Councilmember Schultz asked how to separate the role when acting in 
one capacity but there’s a need to switch to the other; Director Olson stated fire trucks 
have storage for police gear (and it was earlier stated that fire gear is carried in police 
vehicles).  Chief Berte spoke about a shooting in Cedar Falls stating there was initial 
police response, a Fire PSO rode in the ambulance, Fire PSO(s) provided medical 
treatment at the scene then assisted with crime scene investigation; that meant more 
responders at the site than with a traditional model.  He stated Public Safety was able to 
provide additional officers to assist Waterloo during social justice protests and there is a 
larger pool for patrolling the Hill and Downtown where previously additional help was 
outsourced from the Sheriff’s office.  Chief Berte provided advantages and 
disadvantages of the PS model; he shared the ratings from Insurance Service 
Organization (ISO) for Fire.  Councilmember Schultz asked about the cost of outfitting 
PSOs for both police and fire, and if gear can be reused; Chief Berte responded, 
referencing the slide for hiring more staff to separate departments, and state fire gear is 

475

Item 10.



reusable up to 10 years.  Chief Berte talked about the Cedar Falls Public Safety Special 
Report released in 2021 and the 7 main goals it holds. 
 
Mayor Green opened for Council discussion.  Councilmember deBuhr asked about staff 
morale; Chief Berte stated morale is phenomenal; the Mayor asked if there was data; 
Chief Berte responded no, just a general sense; Chief Bostwick agreed; Councilmember 
Schultz asked about recent grievances, and Chiefs Berte and Bostwick stated none 
recently, and Chief Berte added that issues are addressed early, and often facilitated 
with Union leadership.  Councilmember Dunn asked:  what evidence, if any is there that 
the model is not working and Director Olson responded he can’t think of any; what can 
be done to improve current delivery of public safety, and Director Olson responded 
there is review areas with room for improvement, some trainings could be improved, 
shift staffing, and turn-over; are these issues unique to Cedar Falls or part of the current 
culture, and Director Olson responded it’s not unique to Cedar Falls, but the department 
is significantly low currently; is the model sustainable, and Director Olson responded 
absolutely.  Mayor Green asked about PSOs who stated under oath they didn’t want to 
switch to the PSO model, and attitudes about it; Director Olson stated people become 
PSOs for a number of reasons, including pay, and there can be varying levels of 
participation in the system.  Councilmember Harding asked if Council had concerns on 
any actionable items; he questioned the budget and if an outside entity should look at it; 
asked about an anonymous work survey to see if staff wants changes; asked about 
data on other cities’ training and requirements; asked about outside hiring and 
promotional practices.  Councilmember Dunn stated at goal setting there was 
discussion of a staff survey; there was agreement that it is important.  Councilmember 
Sires questioned the 30 additional employees and financial requirement of that to split 
departments back to separate, can it not be done with current staff; Chief Berte 
responded the additional staff number is to stop cross training but keep the response 
numbers achieved currently.  Councilmember Schultz asked about standard physical 
fitness testing; Chief Bostwick stated air consumption and competence drills are 
conducted and applicants are required to complete the Cooper test, rated on an age 
and gender scale; Councilmember Schultz asked about carrying someone out of a fire; 
Chief Bostwick stated they work as a team, 2 people, and that’s industry-wide.  Chief 
Berte provided additional information about the Cooper test and the CPAT and what 
tests other cities use; he stated that after the entrance physical, officers cannot be 
required to continue to pass physicals legally but they can be offered and some places 
offer incentives if passed and training if not; and Cedar Falls encourages physical 
fitness; Councilmember Harding asked for additional information about what other cities 
do versus Cedar Falls to provide to constituents and Director Olson stated that could be 
done.  Councilmember Schultz asked how the City decided to use the Cooper test; 
Chief Bostwick stated the Cooper test is only one hurdle before becoming a PSO, 
there’s also a written test, interview, field training, fire training, etc.  Councilmember 
Kruse stated the 7 main goals have 66 sub-goals that cover everything Council wants to 
discover about the progress of the PS model and stated he is comfortable moving 
ahead and in 6 months gauging the progress of those goals.  Councilmember Harding 
asked about a cost analysis/ benefit of not making everyone cross train; Chief Berte 
responded the only way to get the number of responders to fire is cross-training, and 

476

Item 10.



you know that cross-trained officers are able to help, you don’t need to figure out who’s 
had cross-training and can be sent.  Mayor Green asked if there are those who don’t 
want to be cross-trained but are; Chief Berte stated it is a concern, of current staff (74) 
about 20 are from pre-PS model and all but 2 fire and 2 police personnel are cross-
trained but to advance they would need to be.  Councilmember Harding stated it’s 
important to get consensus on if Council wants to look into offering the option of not 
cross-training or continue the current model.  Councilmember Ganfield questioned if 
review should be internal or external and stated he wanted to re-implement career 
firefighters.  Councilmember Dunn questioned what concern prompted a need for third-
party review, and who that entity would be; Mayor Green stated he has information on 
consulting firms; she stated at goal setting it was discussed to use the Special Report to 
check in and to implement the employee survey; she asked if the department leaders 
have said the current model isn’t working.  Councilmember Kruse stated his support of 
the current model and that the Special Report lays out topics of concern to continue 
evaluating the model.  Councilmember Ganfield stated Council needs results from the 
climate survey, stated concerns with PS budget, and reiterated external review on 
merits and demerits of this system and others.  Councilmember deBuhr stated support 
of using the goals from the Special Report. 
 
Mayor Green asked for consensus to move forward with the current model and use the 
Special Report; consensus reached.  Mayor Green asked for consensus for third-party 
evaluation effecting no change right now; Councilmember deBuhr asked if that would 
replace the survey; Finance and Business Operations Director Jennifer Rodenbeck 
stated the survey is slated to be initiated (lay groundwork) July 1 for fiscal year 2023; 
Councilmember Dunn stated she would support third-party review if the survey results 
indicated significant unhappiness with the current system but not before; 
Councilmember Kruse stated the seven goals cover currently discussed concerns 
unless Council wants to add any.  Mayor Green asked about the Public Safety Director 
position and Director Olson’s upcoming retirement; does Council give consensus to 
appoint an interim director while Council works out the issues; consensus reached.  
There was brief discussion of what other options might be and Director Olson gave a 
brief description of his position; it was determined to hold a follow-up meeting to discuss 
that role moving forward. 
 
There being no further discussion, Mayor Green adjourned the meeting at 7:56 p.m. 
 
 
Minutes by Katie Terhune, Administrative Assistant 

477

Item 10.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

 
 
  

   

 

 

 
 
  
  
 
     TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

FROM: Karen Howard, AICP, Planning & Community Services Manager 

DATE: February 28, 2022 

 RE: Annual Reports of Boards and Commissions for 2021 

 

 
Attached you will find summaries of agenda items in 2021 for the Planning and Zoning 

Commission, Board of Adjustment, Historic Preservation Commission, Group Rental 

Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals, the Housing Commission, and the Cedar Falls 

Bicycle/Pedestrian Committee.  

 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

The Planning and Zoning Commission reviews and makes recommendations to the City Council 

on all types of land use matters within the community. The Commission is comprised of nine 

members approved by the Mayor and appointed by the City Council. The Planning and Zoning 

Commission reviews numerous requests each year, including requests for rezoning, subdivision 

plats, site plans for development projects, Downtown and College Hill façade reviews, and street 

vacations. The Commission also reviews and makes recommendations regarding changes to 

the Comprehensive Plan and zoning code amendments. As the Commission meets twice each 

month, requests for Commission review are likewise accepted twice per month. Planning & 

Community Services Division staff develops staff reports and recommendations for the 

Commission and coordinates the Planning and Zoning Commission agendas and meetings. 

 

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Commission continued to meet both in-person and via 

videoconference to consider a broad range of rezonings, site plans, and subdivision requests. 

This year the Commission was focused on several large-scale community projects, the College 

Hill Vision Plan and consideration of a new zoning code for the Downtown Character District. 

The Commission approved the College Hill Vision Plan in March and considered the new 

Downtown code at four special work sessions and three formal public meetings, where they 

considered requests for amendments before forwarding their recommended draft to the City 

Council in May. Other projects included approval of rezonings to update and expand the 

Pinnacle Prairie Mixed Use development and for the Creekside Condominium project, which 

consists of six new multi-unit buildings along Cedar Heights Drive. New subdivision plats were 

478

Item 11.



approved for West Fork Crossings and for the expansion of Autumn Ridge and Arbors 

subdivisions.  A preliminary plat was also approved for the expansion of the City’s West Viking 

Road Industrial Park. The Commission reviewed a number of site plans for new development in 

the HWY-1 zoning district, including a small retail center and a new Aldi’s grocery store on 

Brandilynn Boulevard, and a Scooter’s Coffee shop in Viking Plaza. A preliminary and final plat 

and site plan was approved for a new urgent care clinic on Prairie Parkway, which is currently 

under construction. 

 

In addition to the 2021 Planning & Zoning Commission Annual Report and attendance record, a 

summary of the land use permits that were issued during the year is attached. Despite the 

pandemic, the number of permits issued each year has continued to increase.  

 

Board of Adjustment 

The Board of Adjustment is empowered by State law to consider variances and special 

exceptions from the terms of the City Zoning Ordinance. The Board is asked to carefully 

consider the evidence presented at the hearing and weigh whether there is sound justification to 

allow deviation from the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. This is an autonomous body with quasi-

judicial powers, whose members are approved by the Mayor and appointed by the City Council. 

Decisions by the Board can be appealed to District Court. The 7-member Board considers each 

request for a variance or special exception on its own merits. Requests for variances are rare, 

but many of those received relate to development in the floodplain so the careful scrutiny by the 

Board of Adjustment is helpful in allowing reasonable use of flood-prone properties, while 

ensuring that the goals of flood protection and community safety are met.  Planning & 

Community Services Division staff prepares staff reports and recommendations to the Board 

and coordinates Board of Adjustment agendas and meetings.  

 

The Board held three meetings during 2021: one to discuss the possibility for future review of 

conditional use permits; one to consider a variance for a side yard setback; and a meeting to 

discuss four variances for a property located in the Floodway District on Cottage Row Road.  

 

Historic Preservation Commission 

The Historic Preservation Commission was established by the City Council in 2011. The 

Commission reviews policies and programs of the city related to historic preservation.  Their 

primary objectives are to maintain an inventory of historic resources of Cedar Falls, to educate 

the public on matters related to the history of Cedar Falls, and to be a voice for historic 

preservation. 

 

The Commission held eleven meetings in 2021. The Commission completed two educational 

events: Cedar Heights Neighborhood presentation and walking/biking tour; and a “scavenger 

hunt” using photos of historic buildings on the UNI campus. The Commission was also 

instrumental in obtaining a grant for restoration of the historic Sessions headstone in the 

Fairview Cemetery.  

 

479

Item 11.



Group Rental Committee/Board of Rental Housing Appeals 

The Group Rental Committee was created to consider whether new rental applications 

requesting higher levels of occupancy (3, 4, or 5 individuals aged 18 years or older) are 

appropriate to the property and neighborhood in which the property is located. The Group 

Rental Committee is comprised of the Planning & Community Services Manager, the Building 

Official, and the Fire Chief. The Committee meets on a regular basis when applications for new 

single-unit dwelling or duplex rentals are received or when rentals are changing ownership. The 

Board of Rental Housing Appeals was created to review all appeals from the decisions of the 

Group Rental Committee and other appeals related to rental properties. The Board is comprised 

of seven citizens approved by the Mayor and appointed by the City Council. The Board meets 

as needed. A complete copy of the 2021 Annual Report of Activities for both the Group Rental 

Committee and the Board of Rental Housing Appeals is attached for your review. 

 

Housing Commission 

The Cedar Falls Housing Commission is comprised of seven members approved by the Mayor 

and appointed by the City Council. The Commission acts as an advisory board to the City 

Council. Their role is to consider special projects for meeting the housing needs of low-income 

families, elderly and handicapped persons. They review projects and programs funded through 

the federal Community Development Block Grant awarded to Cedar Falls from the U.S. 

Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  They also hear matters related to the 

City’s Housing Choice Voucher Program, which is a rental assistance program also funded with 

federal funds. Details of the Housing Commission activities in 2021 are listed in the attached 

summary report. 

 

Cedar Falls Bike/Pedestrian Committee 

This Advisory Committee is a fifteen member volunteer group that meets monthly. The 

Committee’s mission is to improve the quality of life in Cedar Falls through increased 

opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable means of transportation and physical 

activity. The Committee has focused on the essential elements, five categories known as the 

“Five E’s”, being Engineering, Education, Encouragement, Enforcement, and Evaluation. The 

2021 Annual Report of Activities is attached for your review. 

 

 

480

Item 11.



 

 1 

CEDAR FALLS PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
Annual Summary 

2021 
 
 

January 13, 2021 
 
1. Final Plat for Arbors Fourth Addition (Case #FP20-005) ......................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Final Plat for Pinnacle Prairie Commercial South Phase III, Second Addition (Case #FP20-003) 
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
3. Site Plan for Pinnacle Prairie Senior Living Facility (Case #SP20-011) .................. APPROVED. 
 
 

January 27, 2021 
 
1. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Review-704-706 W. 28th Street (Case #DR20-008).............  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

February 10, 2021 
 
1. Presentation of the draft Imagine College Hill! Vision Plan ........................ DISCUSSION ONLY. 
 
2. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Review, 704-706 W 28th Street (Case #DR20-008) .............  
 Bedroom Additions ........................................................................................................ DENIED. 
 Driveway ....................................................................................................................... TABLED. 
 
 

February 17, 2021 
 

1. Special Meeting - Presentation of the draft Downtown Character District Zoning Code 
 

February 24, 2021 
 
1. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Review, 704-706 W 28th Street (Driveway Only; Case 

#DR20-008) ........................................................................ REMOVED FROM OLD BUSINESS. 
 
2. CBD Overlay Site Plan, 7th & Main (Case #SP20-012) ....... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
3. Central Business District Overlay Design Review, 4th & Main (Case #DR21-001) ......................   
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
4. Land Use Map Amendment & Rezoning from M-1 to HWY-1, 7009 Nordic Drive (Case #RZ21-

002) ...................................................................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 

481

Item 11.



 

 2 

February 24, 2021 
 

1. Special Work Session – Commission review of Downtown Character District Code 
 

March 3, 2021 
 

1. Special Work Session – Commission review of Downtown Character District Code 
 
 

March 10, 2021 
 

1. CBD Overlay Site Plan, 7th & Main (Case #SP20-012) ................. DEFERRED BY APPLICANT. 
 
2. Land Use Map Amendment & Rezoning from M-1 to HWY-1 (Case #RZ21-002) ........................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
3. Imagine College Hill - Vision Plan ........................................ CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

MARCH 10, 2021 
 
1. Special Work Session – Commission review of Downtown Character District Code 
 

MARCH 17, 2021 
 
1. Special Work Session – Commission review of Downtown Character District Code 
 

March 24, 2021 
 
1. CBD Overlay Site Plan, 7th & Main (Case #SP20-012) ................. DEFERRED BY APPLICANT. 
 
2. Land Use Map Amendment & Rezoning from M-1 to HWY-1 (Case #RZ21-002) ........................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
3. Central Business District Overlay Design Review (Case #DR21-002) .................... APPROVED. 
 
4. Rezoning from A-1 Agricultural District and R-1 Residential District to MU Mixed Use 

Residential District (RZ21-001), and to update the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan to include new 
area. ..................................................................................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

   
5. Imagine College Hill! Vision Plan – Public Hearing ................................................. APPROVED. 
 
6. Downtown Character District – Rezoning and Zoning Code Text Amendments  ..........................  
  INITIAL FORMAL DISCUSSION – SET PUBLIC HEARING DATE FOR TEXT AMENDMENTS. 
 
 
 
 

482

Item 11.



 

 3 

April 14, 2021 
 
1. CBD Overlay Site Plan, 7th & Main (Case #SP20-012) ................. DEFERRED BY APPLICANT 
 
2. Land Use Map Amendment & Rezoning from M-1 to HWY-1 (Case #RZ21-002) ........................  
  ............................................................................................................................. WITHDRAWN. 
 
3. Rezoning from A-1 Agricultural District and R-1 Residential District to MU Mixed Use 

Residential District (RZ21-001), and to update the Pinnacle Prairie Master Plan to include new 
area. ........................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 

 
4. Downtown Character District - Zoning Code Text Amendments   ................................................ . 
  ................................................................................................. PUBLIC HEARING CONTINUED  
 
5. Central Business District Overlay Design Review, Wheatpasting (Case #DR21-003) .................  
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
6. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay Review, 704-706 W. 28th Street (Case #DR21-005) .............  
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
 
7. Minor Subdivision Plat – Lot 2 of Blain’s Corner 2nd Addition (Case #MP21-001) ......................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
8. Hwy-1 Site Plan – Aldi’s (Case #SP21-005) ......................... CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

April 28, 2021 
 
1. CBD Overlay Site Plan, 7th & Main (Case #SP20-012) ................ DEFERRED BY APPLICANT. 
 
2. Minor Subdivision Plat – Lot 2 of Blain’s Corner 2nd Addition (Case #MP21-001) ......................   
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
3. Hwy-1 Site Plan – Aldi’s (Case #SP21-005) ............................................................ APPROVED. 
 
4. Downtown Character District – Rezoning & Zoning Code Text Amendments   ............................   
  .............................................................. PUBLIC HEARING CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
5. Rezoning of property in the proposed Downtown Character District (Case #RZ21-004) ..............    
  ........................................................................................................... SET DATE OF HEARING. 
 
6. HWY-1 Site Plan – Scooter’s Coffee, 315 Viking Plaza Drive (Case #SP20-012) .. APPROVED. 
 
7. Central Business District Overlay Design Review – Taylor Vet Clinic, 315 State Street (Case 

#DR20-004) ............................................................................................................. APPROVED. 
 
 

483

Item 11.



 

 4 

May 12, 2021 
 
1. Amendment of Master plan for Autumn Ridge Development (10th Addition) .......... APPROVED. 
 
2. Preliminary Plat and Final Plat for Autumn Ridge 10th Addition .............................. APPROVED. 
 
3. Zoning Code Text Amendments – Downtown Character District Regulations  ........ APPROVED. 
 
4. Rezoning of property in the proposed Downtown Character District (Case #RZ21-004) ..............   
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
 

May 26, 2021 
 

1. Easement Vacation, 422 Main Street (Case #VAC20-001) ..........................................................  
 ........................................................................... APPROVED, SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS. 

 
2. College Hill Neighborhood Overlay – Design Review for Projecting Sign, 2125 College Street, 

Suite E (Case #DR21-006) ...................................................................................... APPROVED. 
 
 
 

June 9, 2021 
 
1. Preliminary Plat, 5909 Prairie Parkway (Case #PP21-001) ..........................................................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Final Plat, 5909 Prairie Parkway (Case #FP21-001) ............ CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
3. Site Plan, 5909 Prairie Parkway (Case #SP21-006) ............ CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 

 
June 23, 2021 

 
1. Preliminary Plat, 5909 Prairie Parkway (Case #PP21-001) ..................................... APPROVED. 
 
2. Final Plat, 5909 Prairie Parkway (Case #FP21-001) ............................................... APPROVED. 
 
3. Site Plan Review, 5909 Prairie Parkway (Case #SP21-006) ................................... APPROVED. 
 
4. Site Plan Review, 703 Brandilynn Blvd. (Case #SP21-007) .................................... APPROVED. 
 
5. Land Use Map Amendment (LU21-001) from Medium Density Residential to Community 

Commercial; and Rezoning (RZ20-009) from A-1: Agricultural District, C-2: Commercial 
District, and S-1: Shopping Center District to PC-2: Planned Commercial District – Thunder 
Ridge Development .............................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 

 
 

484

Item 11.



 

 5 

July 14, 2021 – MEETING CANCELLED 
 
 

July 28, 2021 
 

1. Land Use Map Amendment (LU21-001) from Medium Density Residential to Community 
Commercial; and Rezoning (RZ20-009) from A-1: Agricultural District, C-2: Commercial 
District, and S-1: Shopping Center District to PC-2: Planned Commercial District – Thunder 
Ridge Development ........................................................................ DEFERRED BY APPLICANT 

 
2. College Hill Site Plan Review for property at 2415 Franklin Street (Case #DR21-007) ................   
  ............................................................................................................................... .APPROVED. 

 
 

August 11, 2021 
 

1. Land Use Map Amendment (LU21-001) from Medium Density Residential to Community 
Commercial; and Rezoning (RZ20-009) from A-1: Agricultural District, C-2: Commercial 
District, and S-1: Shopping Center District to PC-2: Planned Commercial District – Thunder 
Ridge Development ....................................................................... DEFERRED BY APPLICANT. 

 
2. Minor Plat for property at 2520 & 2522 Hiawatha Road (Case # MP21-003) .......... APPROVED. 
 
3. Rezoning from R-4 Multiple Residence District to C-2 Commercial District – 515 & 523 W. 2nd 

(RZ21-006) ................................................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING DATE. 
 
 

August 25, 2021 
 
1. Land Use Map Amendment (LU21-001) from Medium Density Residential to Community 

Commercial; and Rezoning (RZ20-009) from A-1: Agricultural District, C-2: Commercial 
District, and S-1: Shopping Center District to PC-2: Planned Commercial District – Thunder 
Ridge Development .................................................................... SET PUBLIC HEARING DATE. 

 
2. Rezoning from R-4 Multiple Residence District to C-2 Commercial District - 515 & 523 W. 2nd 

(RZ21-006)PUBLIC HEARING CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING AT APPLICANT’S REQUEST. 
 
3. MU District Site Plan (SP21-011) – Bluebell Health Plaza OBGYN Addition .......... APPROVED. 
 
4. Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning from C-1 Commercial District to R-P Planned 

Residence District – Creekside Condos (LU21-001 and RZ21-005) ..... SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
 

September 8, 2021 
 

1. Land Use Map Amendment (LU21-001) from Medium Density Residential to Community 
Commercial; and Rezoning (RZ20-009) from A-1: Agricultural District, C-2: Commercial 

485

Item 11.



 

 6 

District, and S-1: Shopping Center District to PC-2: Planned Commercial District – Thunder 
Ridge Development ..................... APPROVED, SUBJECT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT. 

 
2. Rezoning from R-4 Multiple Residence District to C-2 Commercial District - 515 & 523 W. 2nd 

(RZ21-006) .................................................................................................................... DENIED. 
 
3. Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning from C-1 Commercial District to R-P Planned 

Residence District – Creekside Condos (LU21-001 and RZ21-005) ....................... APPROVED. 
 
4. CBD Overlay Design Review (DR21-008) – 215 Main Street .................................. APPROVED. 
 
5. Minor Plat (MP21-004) – Lots 18, 19, and 20 of Sands Addition (Boe Minor Plat) .. APPROVED. 
 
6. Rezoning from R-1 Residence District and C-2 Commercial District to C-2 Commercial District 

– Direct Appliance (RZ21-007)  ............................................................. SET PUBLIC HEARING. 
 
 

September 22, 2021 
 
1. Rezoning from R-1 Residence District and C-2 Commercial District to C-2 Commercial District 

Direct Appliance (RZ21-007)  .................................................................................. APPROVED. 
 
 
 

October 13, 2021 
 
1. MU District Site Plan Review – Greenhill Village Car Wash (SP21-012)  ................ APPROVED. 
 
2. Preliminary Plat – West Fork Crossing (PP21-003).............. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
  

October 27, 2021 
 
1. Preliminary & Final Plat – Creekside Luxury Condos (PP21-005 & FP21-002) ............................  
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
2. Petition to Renew the Downtown Self Supporting Municipal Improvement District (SSMID)  
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
3. Preliminary Plat – West Fork Crossing (PP21-003)................................................. APPROVED. 
 
4. Planned Residential District Site Plan – Creekside Luxury Condos (SP21-010) ..........................   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

November 10, 2021 
 
1. Preliminary & Final Plat – Creekside Luxury Condos (PP21-005 & FP21-002) ....... APPROVED. 

486

Item 11.



 

 7 

 
2. Planned Residential District Site Plan – Creekside Luxury Condos (SP21-010) ..... APPROVED. 
 
 

November 23, 2021 – MEETING CANCELLED 
 
 

December 8, 2021 
 
1. College Hill Design Review for Kwik Trip Remodel at 2019 College St. (DR21-009) ...................  
  .......................................... APPROVED WITH NO LED LIGHTS ON EXTERIOR OF CANOPY. 
 
2. Preliminary Plat for Cedar Falls West Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase V (PP21-007) ............   
  ............................................................................................. CONTINUED TO NEXT MEETING. 
 
 

December 22, 2021 
 
1. Preliminary Plat for Cedar Falls West Viking Road Industrial Park, Phase V (PP21-007) ............  
  ................................................................................................................................ APPROVED. 
 
2. Amendment to Site Plan for River Place Plaza (SP21-017) .................................... APPROVED. 

487

Item 11.



2021 Planning & Zoning Commission Attendance 
 
Chair:  Brad Leeper 
Vice Chair: Kyle Larson 
 

 1/13 1/27 2/10 2/17 2/24 2/24 3/3 3/10 3/10 3/17 3/24 4/14 4/28 5/12 5/26 6/9 6/23 
Mid-year 

tally 
7/14 7/28 8/11 8/25 9/8 9/22 10/13 10/27 11/10 11/23 12/8 12/22 

Total 
Ratio 

% 
Attend 

Crisman NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA --- 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

 C
A

N
C

E
L

L
E

D
 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X 

M
E
E
T
I
N
G
 

C
A
N
C
E
L
L
E
D 

X X 3/3 100% 

Grybovych 
Hafermann 

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA --- NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X X X 3/3 100% 

Hartley X X X X X X O X X X O X X O X X X 14/17 O O O X X X O X X X 20/27 74% 

Holst O X X X X X X O O X X X X O O X X 12/17 X X X O X X X X O X 20/27 74% 

Larson O X X X X X X X X X X X X X X O X 15/17 X X X X X X X X X O 24/27 89% 

Leeper X X X O X X X X X O X X X X X A X 14/17 X X X X O O X X X O 21/26 81% 

Lynch X X X X X X X X X O X X X X X X O 15/17 O X X X X X X X X X 22/27 81% 

Moser NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA --- NA NA NA NA NA NA NA X X X 3/3 100% 

Prideaux X X O X S S S S S O X X X X X X X 10/17 X O X X X R R R R R 14/17 82% 

Saul X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X 17/17 X X O X X X X X O X 25/27 93% 

Schrad X X X X X X X O X X X X X O X X X 15/17 X X O X X O X R R R 20/24 83% 

Sears X X O X X X X X X O X X O X X X X 14/17 X O X X R R R R R R 17/21 81% 

 
X – Indicates Present 
O – Not Present 

NA – Not Appointed 
R – Resign 
A – Abstain 
S – Sick 

 
Red denotes special meetings/work sessions 488

Item 11.



PERMIT CATEGORY TOTAL MONTH 2021 2020

Sign 147 January 47 29

Single Family Dwelling 78 February 42 18

Residential Addition 22 March 99 41

Deck 111 April 140 70

Fence 103 May 97 104

Detached Structure 55 June 112 103

Duplex/Condo 5 July 87 93

Com./Ind./Pub. Building 9 August 84 96

Com./Ind./Pub. Addition 4 September 87 93

Townhouse 9 October 64 60

Multi-Family 0 November 51 40

Driveway/Parking Lot 106 December 50 50

Home Occupation 1 Total 960 797

Demolition 8

Land Use (shed<120sq.ft) 25

Swimming Pool 10

Poultry 10

Remodel 243

Floodplain Permits 14

Total 960

LAND USE PERMITS ISSUED IN THE 2021 CALENDAR YEAR BY THE

PLANNING DIVISION FOR THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

2021 

2020 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160
J
a
n
u
a

ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

A
p
ri
l

M
a

y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u

s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100110120130140150160170180190200210220230240250260

Sign

Single Family Dwelling

Residential Addition

Deck

Fence

Detached Structure

Duplex/Condo

Com./Ind./Pub. Building

Com./Ind./Pub. Addition

Townhouse

Multi-Family

Driveway/Parking Lot

Home Occupation

Demolition

Land Use (shed<120sq.ft)

Swimming Pool

Poultry

Remodel

Floodplain Permits

3a. 2021 permit summary  2/23/2022
489

Item 11.



3a. 2021 permit summary  2/23/2022
490

Item 11.



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
Annual Summary 

2021 
 
January 7, 2021 – Special Meeting 
 

1. The Board held election of officers for the 2021 calendar year.  
 

2. A discussion was held on the process for conditional use to allow the repurposing of 
obsolete institutional buildings. 

 
February 16, 2021  
 

Request by Mathew Ackerson for 1810 Timberledge Drive for a variance to allow a 
allow an encroachment of nine (9) feet, six (6) inches into the required 20 foot side 
yard width.                                                                                           APPROVED 

 
March 16, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
April 20, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
May 18, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
June 15, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
July 20, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
August 17, 2021– NO MEETING 
 
September 21, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
October 19, 2021 – NO MEETING 
 
November 16, 2021 – NO MEETING   
 
December 21, 2021  
 

Request by Jason Krosch and DesiRae Donlan for 1722 Cottage Row Road for a 
total of four variances to allow: 1) a residential use in the Floodway Overlay District; 
2) a new building or structure to be built in the Floodway Overlay District; 3) a 
structure to be used for human habitation; and, 4) a reduction of the rear yard for a 
residence from 30 feet to 10 feet. MOTIONS TO APPROVE ALL VARIANCES 
FAILED 

 
 
 
 

491

Item 11.



 
 
 
Chair: Mike Mangin 
Vice Chair: Jennifer Rasmussen 
 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2021THROUGH DECEMBER 2021 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

2
1
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
1
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
2

1
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
2

1
 

M
a

y
 2

0
2

1
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
1
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

1
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
1
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
2

1
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
2

1
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
1
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0
2

1
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Beach X X / / / / / / / / / O 2/3 67% 

Lang X X / / / / / / / / / X 3/3 100% 

Mangin X X / / / / / / / / / X 3/3 100% 

Miller X X / / / / / / / / / X 3/3 100% 

Rasmussen X X / / / / / / / / / X 3/3 100% 

Sorensen X X / / / / / / / / / X 3/3 100% 

Weeg X X / * * * * * * * * * 2/2 100% 

*Weeg resigned in March 
 
X =  Present 

O =  Not Present 

/       =  No Meeting 

492

Item 11.



CEDAR FALLS HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
2021 Annual Summary.  

 
January 12, 2021 

 Commission discussed updates on 16th Brick Street  

 Commission discussed potential education projects for the year including 
organizing scavenger hunt concentrating on properties on College Hill or 
UNI campus or with churches. 

 Commission discussed plan book house design and public attendees 
offered some insights about the book. 
  

February 09, 2021 

 Commission discussed updates on 16th Brick Street.  

 Commission decided to develop scavenger hunt concentrating on UNI 
campus focused on two aspects: public art and buildings. 

 Commission discussed updates to annual CLG report 2020 and added 
key information to complete the report. 

 
March, 2021 
No meeting due to lack of a quorum. 
 
April 13, 2021 

 Commission and public attendees shared information about 16th Brick 
Street. 

 Commission shared updates on Scavenger Hunt project  

 Commission discussed Cedar Heights Neighborhood in-person tour  

 City staff shared the resources received from a donor about “The City 
Beautiful” book and shared some pieces of historical information.  

 Public attendees shared concerned about fallen Sessions headstone, a 
Civil War Era grave marker in Fairview Cemetery and asked commission 
to look into a grant to restore it as it marks a family of historical 
significance.   
 

May 11, 2021 

 Commission discussed arrangements for the “History of Cedar Heights 
Tour” event. Commission to give a presentation in the park and then 
encourage self-guided biking/walking using the trail map prepared.  

 Commission learned about Fortepan Iowa, an organization that is 
collecting, compiling and sharing historical images from the past, texts, 
articles and graphics of communities throughout Iowa and organizing them 
in a historical timeline.  

 Commission shared findings on available grants that can be applied for to 
restore the fallen Session’s headstone at Fairview Cemetery and also 
discussed possible quotes received from vendors to restore the same. 

 

493

Item 11.



June 08, 2021 

 Commission discussed Cedar Heights architectural tour.  

 Commission to apply for a Community Foundation grant to restore 
Sessions headstone in Fairview Cemetery. Cost of restoration is 
estimated to be $880. Item will be forwarded to City Council for approval 
prior to submitting the grant application. 

 Public attendees shared information about recently purchase of Session’s 
house on Main Street and stated their plans to restore the house. Also, 
public attendees mentioned that the house will be allowing visitors during 
Sturgis Festival. 

 Commission shared their experience from recently attended Preserve 
Iowa Summit. 

 
July 13, 2021 

 Commission discussed Cedar Heights Walking/Biking tour and discussed 
changes to poster invites. 

 Commission updated that the grant application for restoring Sessions 
headstone is submitted and the results are expected by end of the month. 

 Commission and public attendees shared information about Fortepan 
Iowa Project. Director of Fortepan Iowa, Bettina Fabos, shared insights 
about the development of program and explained a few features of the 
Fortepan Iowa website. 

 
August 10, 2021 

 Commission discussed final updates on “Cedar Heights Walking and 
Biking tour” and finalized that the event will be happening next month in 
Pfeiffer’s Spring Park. 

 Commission provided updates on missing information on preparing 
Scavenger Hunt sheet and will be looking into explaining the event to 
College Hill Partnership meeting to get more support. 

 City staff shared that the grant application submitted for restoring 
“Session’s headstone” has been approved and Commission to solicit 
quotes from vendors to restore it.  

 
September 14, 2021 

 City staff shared that the “Cedar Heights” event was successful and well 
attended. Much praise was received for the event.  

 Commission shared updates from College Hill Partnership Meeting and 
discussed timeline of holding the “Scavenger Hunt” event. 

 Commission discussed property at 415 Walnut Street and Odd Fellow’s 
house which are at risk and newly identified historically significant 
buildings or sites. 
 

October 12, 2021 

 Commission discussed updates on Scavenger Hunt event. 

 City Staff noted that the Session’s Headstone will soon be restored.  

494

Item 11.



 
November 09, 2021  

 City staff discussed the final updates on UNI Scavenger Hunt sheet.  

 Commission along with public attendees expressed their concerns about 
possible demolition of two historic buildings (Honors Cottage and Alumni 
House) on UNI campus. Commission discussed possible options to 
prevent demolition. Staff noted that any action must be approved by the 
City Council.  

 City staff updated that the work on restoration of “Session’s headstone” is 
likely to be completed in the upcoming week and organizing a photo-op. 

 
December 14, 2021 

 Commission discussed findings and updates on preservation of Honors 
Cottage and Alumni House on UNI campus.  

 City staff updated commission that the scavenger hunt event is ongoing. 

 Commission discussed new project ideas for the upcoming year including 
conducting historic house tours, and may be also do a presentation on 
recognizing historical houses in neighborhoods. 

 City staff updated commission members that the work on restoration of 
“Sessions headstone” is completed and it will be featured in the upcoming 
Currents magazine.  

 
Chair: Julie Etheredge  
Vice Chair: Nathan Arndt  
 

 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 2021 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

1
9
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

1
9
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
1

9
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
1

9
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1

9
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
9
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

9
 

 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

1
9
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
1

9
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
1

9
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

1
9
 

D
e
c

. 
2

0
1

9
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a
ti

o
 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Nathan Arndt X X 

 

N
o
 M

e
e
ti
n

g
 

O O X O X X O X O 6/11 54% 

Sally Timmer X X X X X X X X X X X 11/11 100% 

Julie Etheredge X X O O O O X X X X X 7/11 63% 

Michael 
Mahncke  

X X X X O X 
 

X X O X X 9/11 81% 

Brian Hayes X O X X X X 
 

X O O X O 7/11 63% 

X =  Present 
O =  Not Present  

495

Item 11.



CEDAR FALLS BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS 
2021 Annual Summary 

 
Following is a summary of the activity of the Board of Rental Housing Appeals (BRHA) 
including some indication of if those cases were officially considered by the Group Rental 
Committee (GRC). Note that the Group Rental Committee is not authorized to grant higher 
occupancy in change of ownership cases where the lot does not meet minimum size 
standards but will often inform staff’s recommendations to the BRHA. Staff provides 
analysis and recommendation to the BRHA based on the characteristics of the site and 
carrying capacity of the property. The occupancy listed in the table is the number approved 
by the BRHA: 

    

Date 
Discussed/Approved 

Address Owner 
Requested 
Occupancy 

Approved 
for GRC BRHA 

2510 Tremont Street Dan and Lori Berregaard 4 4 appealed 3/22/2021 

812 Melrose Drive Andrew and Jessica Schoof 4 4 appealed 5/3/2021 

1318 W 5th Street Jay Handsaker 4 3 appealed 6/21/2021 

915 Clay Street Josh Hanson 4 4 appealed 11/1/2021 

1209 Main Street Phil Tentinger 4 4 appealed 11/1/2021 

 
The Board of Rental Housing Appeals is comprised of the following members: 

Chair: Dan Berregaard 
Vice Chair: Pending Election 
Member: Cindy Wiles 
Member: Mary Jane McCollum 
Member: Bruce Wingert 
Member: Kim Kranz 
Member: Pending Appointment 
Member: Pending Appointment 

 
Below is a summary of attendance: 
 

 
BOARD OF RENTAL HOUSING APPEALS 

ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 2021 

 

J
a

n
. 

 2
0

2
1
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
1
 

M
a

r.
 

2
2

 

2
0

2
1
 

A
p

r.
  

2
0

2
1
 

M
a

y
. 

0
3

 

2
0

2
1
 

J
u

n
e

 

2
1

 

2
0

2
1
 

J
u

ly
 

 2
0

2
1
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
1
 

S
e

p
. 
 

 2
0

2
1
 

O
c

t.
 

2
0

2
1
 

N
o

v
. 

0
1

 

2
0

2
1
 

D
e
c

. 

 2
0

2
1
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a
ti

o
 

%
 

A
tt

e
n

d
. 

Cindy Wiles 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

X 

N
o
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
 

4/4 100% 

Kim Kranz  X X X X 4/4 100% 

Mary Jane 
McCollum 

X X X X 4/4 100% 

496

Item 11.



Dan 
Berregaard  

X X X 6 3/4 75% 

Bruce Wingert  X R O X 2/3 66% 

Chris Martin 
(resigned) 

X X N/A N/A 2/2 100% 

Vacant Seat N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 
X = Present 
O = Not Present 
R = Recused due to conflict  
N/A  =  Member was no longer serving on Board  

 

497

Item 11.



 

 1 

CEDAR FALLS HOUSING COMMISSION 
Annual Summary 

2021 
 
 

January 12, 2021 
 
1. Section 8 Status Report ......................................................................................... DISCUSSION  
 
2. CDBG-CV2 – CARES ACT funds through the State of Iowa .................................... APPROVED 
 
 
February 9, 2021 – No Meeting 
 
March 9, 2021 – No Meeting 
 
April 13, 2021 – No Meeting 
 
May 11, 2021- Meeting held without a quorum since only discussion items on agenda 
 
1. CDBG Annual Action Plan (FFY21) ……………………… .......................................... . DISCUSSION 

 
2. Review of HOME projects ...............................  …………………………….….....……..  DISCUSSION 
       
3. Section 8 Status Report ……………………………....................................................... DISCUSSION 

 
4. Summary of CDBG and CARES Act Funds ................................................................. DISCUSSION 

 
 
June 9, 2021  
 
1. CDBG Annual Action Plan (FFY21) ……………………… .............................................. APPROVED 

 
July 13, 2021 - No Meeting 
 
August 10, 2021  
 
1. CDBG CARES Act (CDBG-CV1) qualifying rehabilitation projects ................................ APPROVED 
 
September 14, 2021 
 
1. FFY 2021 CAPER ................................  ………………………….……………………..DISCUSSION 
 
2. FFY 2021 CDBG Service Awards ......................................  …………………….……...APPROVED 

 
3. Rental Rehabilitation Program .....................................................  ……………………..APPROVED 
 

498

Item 11.



 

 2 

4. HOME Projects ............................................................................................................ DISCUSSION  
 
 
October 12, 2021 

 
1. FFY 2021 CAPER .................................................................................................... APPROVED 
 
2. Amend Contract with Eastside Ministerial Alliance ................................................... APPROVED 
 
3. CDBG FFY 2021 process update ........................................................................... DISCUSSION 
 
4. CARES-CV funds update ....................................................................................... DISCUSSION 

 
November 9, 2021 
 
1. Updated Administrative Plan for Housing Choice Voucher Program .......................... APPROVED 
 
2. Section 8 Status Report  ...................................................... ……………………….... DISCUSSION 
 

 
December 14, 2021- No Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

499

Item 11.



 

 3 

Chair:  Gary Winterhof 
Vice Chair Helen Pearce  
 
 

HOUSING COMMISSION 
ATTENDANCE JANUARY 2021 THROUGH DECEMBER 2021 

 

J
a

n
. 

2
0

2
1
 

F
e

b
. 

2
0

2
1
 

M
a

r.
 2

0
2

1
 

A
p

r.
 2

0
2

1
 

M
a

y
 2

0
2

1
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

2
1
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
2

1
 

A
u

g
. 

2
0

2
1
 

S
e

p
t.

 2
0
2

1
 

O
c

t.
 2

0
2

1
 

N
o

v
. 

2
0

2
1
 

D
e

c
. 

2
0
2

1
 

T
o

ta
l 

R
a

ti
o

 

%
 A

tt
e

n
d

. 

Frazier O 

N
o

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

N
o

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

 N
o

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
  

O O 

N
o

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

O O O O 

N
o

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 

0/7 0% 

Heston X X X X X X X 7/7 100% 

Pearce X X X O X X X 6/7 86% 

Phalen X O X X X X X 6/7 86% 

Pieters X O R R R R R 1/2 50% 

Timmerman O O O X O O O 1/7 14% 

Winterhof X X X X X X X 7/7 100% 

X =  Present 
O =  Not Present 
R =  Resigned 

500

Item 11.



 

 

Public 

     

ANNUAL REPORT for the year January through December 2021 
Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

2021 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

Luann Alemao 

Lisa Brodersen 

Russ Clark 

Kim Cross 

John DeGroote 

Matt Dunning 

Joe Hackenmiller 

Nancy Hamilton 

Bob Lentz 

Mike McCallum 

Andrew Shroll: Chair 

Roger White: Vice-Chair 

Chris Sevy: Cedar Falls City Liaison 

Matt Tolan: Cedar Falls Engineering Liaison 

Zach Ladage: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Austin Lechtenberg: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Codie Leseman: INRCOG Liaison 

MEETING SCHEDULE: Normal monthly meetings are held at the Cedar Falls City Hall 

Duke Young Conference Room on the first Tuesday of each month from 5:15 to 6:30 

pm. 

MISSION STATEMENT: The Committee’s Mission is to improve the quality of life in 

Cedar Falls through increased opportunity for safe walking and bicycling as viable 

means of transportation and physical activity. 

  

501

Item 11.



 

Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2021 Annual Report 

Public 

ANNUAL REPORT ON GOALS 

GOALS REALIZED IN 2021 

1. Approved Bicycle Network Plan Update 

2. Gained public input on Bicycle Network Plan Update (meetings and questionnaire) 

3. Formal request made to become a commission 

4. Council adopted bicycle and pedestrian plans for Main St reconstruction 

5. Urged council to maintain a strong Complete Streets policy 

6. Utility Parkway at Waterloo Road – painted crosswalk  

7. Viking Road pedestrian crossing – interim improvements to crossing signal 

8. National Bike Month – live discussion on Cedar Falls social media page 

9. Successfully supported George Wyth State Park trail restoration efforts with grant 
statements – grants received for 1,000 ft of trail repair and 1.5 miles of 
reconstruction 

GOALS FOR 2022 

1. Council adoption of Bicycle Network Plan Update 

2. Complete the process of becoming a commission 

3. Formalize process of reviewing and approving snow removal plans 

4. Collaborate with INRGOC, Cedar Falls Tourism, and Cedar Trails Partnership on 
interactive map 

5. Advise design standards for bicycle parking racks 

6. Apply for renewal of Bicycle Friendly Community status and investigate obtaining 
Silver status 

7. Outline a process for addressing community concerns, using steps taken for CFU 
intersection as a model 

8. Substantive in-person activities focusing on the “Five E’s” for creating safe and 
useable accommodations for bicyclists and pedestrians: 

ENGINEERING – Creating safe and convenient places to walk, ride and park 

EDUCATION – Giving people of all ages and abilities the skills and confidence to 
ride and walk 

ENCOURAGEMENT – Creating a strong bike and pedestrian culture that 
welcomes and celebrates both modes of transportation 

ENFORCEMENT – Ensuring safe roads and sidewalks for all users 

EVALUATION – Planning for bicycling and walking as safe, viable transportation 
options  

502

Item 11.



 

Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2021 Annual Report 

Public 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS FOR CITY and STATUS 

1. Elevate the Cedar Falls Bicycle / Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee to a standing committee similar to current boards 
and commissions 

Pending 
Council action 

2. Adopt revised Bicycle Network Plan Pending 
Council action 

3. Amend Bicycle Ordinance based on committee 
recommendations 

Pending 
Council action 

4. Adopt clearly stated policy that bicycles “May Use Full Lane” 
without sharrow 

No action in 
2021 

5. Monitor pedestrian/motor vehicle and bicycle/motor vehicle 
collision and injury statistics 

No action in 
2021 

6. Provide funds for designation of staff to serve as 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Program Manager(s) 

No action in 
2021 

7. Mark the entire Cedar Falls Bicycle Network with signage and 
paint where appropriate 

Maintenance 
only in 2021 

8. Assess intersections and continuity of pedestrian and bicycle 
routes, integrating needs into long-term plan 

In Progress 

9. Adopt snow removal recommendations for specified trails Some trails 
cleared 

 
Specific locations: 
 

1. Root damage trail repair Pending City action 

2. Add Grand Boulevard trail segment where road is 
discontinuous 

No action in 2021 

3. Waterloo Rd/Utility Pkwy intersection improvements First step complete 
(crosswalk painting) 

4. Viking Road crossing improvements First step complete 
(lighting) 

5. Cedar Heights Drive bike paved shoulders south of Viking Rd Not funded 

 

503

Item 11.



 

Cedar Falls Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 2021 Annual Report 

Public 

LONG-TERM GOALS 

1. Increase continuity and safety of bicycle routes for transportation 

2. Increase walkability and pedestrian friendliness in Cedar Falls 

3. Implement recommendations captured in Metropolitan Pedestrian Master Plan  

4. Encourage the city to apply for and secure grant funds for bicycle and pedestrian 

intersection and connectivity improvements 

5. Obtain Silver Bicycle Friendly Community status for Cedar Falls 

6. Update neighborhood design standards to include bicycle and pedestrian 

accommodations and “walkable community” zoning practices 

 
2022 COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

Lisa Brodersen 

Andrea Christopher 

John DeGroote 

Matt Dunning 

Andrew Shroll 

Roger White 

Jack Yates 

 

Chris Sevy: Cedar Falls City Liaison 

Matt Tolan: Cedar Falls Engineering Liaison 

Zach Ladage: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Austin Lechtenberg: Cedar Falls Public Safety 

Kyle Durant: INRCOG Liaison 

Aldina Dautović: INRCOG Liaison 

 

 

504

Item 11.



505

Item 12.



506

Item 12.



507

Item 12.



508

Item 12.



509

Item 12.



510

Item 12.



511

Item 12.



512

Item 12.



513

Item 12.



514

Item 12.



515

Item 12.



516

Item 12.



517

Item 12.



518

Item 12.



519

Item 12.



520

Item 12.



521

Item 12.



522

Item 12.



523

Item 12.



524

Item 12.



525

Item 12.



526

Item 12.



527

Item 12.



528

Item 12.



529

Item 12.



530

Item 12.



531

Item 12.



532

Item 12.



533

Item 12.



534

Item 12.



535

Item 12.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Jeff Olson, Public Safety Services Director 

Craig Berte, Police Chief 

Date:  February 28, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Pheasant Ridge Golf Course, 3205 West 12th Street, Class B beer & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

b) Scoopskis, 1828 Waterloo Road, Class B beer & outdoor service - renewal. 

c) Chilitos Mexican Bar and Grill, 1704 West 1st Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

d) Deringer’s Public Parlor, 314 ½ Main Street, Class C liquor – renewal. 

e) The Stuffed Olive and Roxxy, 314-316 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service - renewal. 

f) Happy's Wine & Spirits, 5925 University Avenue, Class E liquor - renewal. 

g) Prime Mart, 2728 Center Street, Class E liquor – renewal. 

 

536

Item 13.



1 

 

   DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS 
 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 
220 CLAY STREET 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
PHONE 319-273-8600 
FAX 319-268-5126 

     M E M O R A N D U M 
Legal Services Division 

 TO: Mayor Green, City Council 

 FROM: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney; Bailey Schindel, HR Manager 

 DATE: February 28, 2022 

      SUBJECT: Personnel Policy Changes 
 
 

Attached to this Memorandum please find proposed changes to Personnel Policies 309, Severance Pay; 

503, Holidays; 506 Vacations; and 704 Leaves of Absence.  Also attached  is a proposed new Personnel 

Policy 221, Telework, and associated Telework Agreement form.  This memorandum will serve to 

generally explain the proposed changes.  Reference to the policies themselves is recommended for 

review of specific language.  The changes are presented in red line form for ease of review. 

 

Personnel Policy 309, Severance Pay. 

 

This change simply clarifies that earned but unused severance benefits shall be paid to the employee or 

former employee’s estate in the case of death. 

 

Personnel Policy 503, Holidays. 

 

The first proposed change relates to the Christmas holiday.  Clarification is made regarding various 

scenarios surrounding December 24 and December 25.  Currently employees already receive two days 

off for the Christmas holiday four years out of every seven.  This change would result in two days off for 

the Christmas holiday every year, meaning an extra day off over current policy three years out of seven.  

This change also simplifies for employees which days are paid holidays around Christmas time. 

 

The other change clarifies the limit to the number of consecutive days off an employee may take when 

combining holidays with other paid benefit days, such as vacation.  This question had come up recently 

and the policy was not clear.  The maximum combined days off work when combining holidays with other 

paid benefit days would be 16 consecutive calendar days for non-shift employees, 21 consecutive 

calendar days for 6-3 shift employees, and 22 consecutive calendar days for 24 hour shift employees. 

 

Personnel Policy 506, Vacations. 

 

The proposed change clarifies that vacation requests for more than two consecutive work weeks must be 

approved by the Department Director.  The obvious corollary is that vacation requests of less than two 

consecutive work weeks need only have supervisor approval. 

 

Personnel Policy 704, Leaves of Absence. 

 

While it may appear that the proposed changes are extensive, actually the changes are meant to better 

conform the language of the policy to current FMLA law, and also to eliminate the Appendix to the policy 

537

Item 14.



2 

 

that purported to be a recitation of FMLA law.  FMLA law does change from time to time and the 

Appendix had not been updated to keep pace with those changes.  There is no legal requirement for this 

recitation so it was decided to eliminate the Appendix.  Obviously the City is still bound by current FMLA 

law whether or not it is recited in the policy. 

 

Most of the balance of the changes reflects reorganization of the policy format for ease of understanding. 

 

There are a few substantive changes, however, and those are explained as follows.               

 

 Defines the minimum length of FMLA leave as 15 minutes.  The law requires that the 

minimum increment of FMLA leave must match the lowest increment for any other type of 

leave, which is 15 minutes.  

 Clarifies the policy to reflect that fringe benefits continue to accrue during paid leave, but if 

unpaid leave exceeds thirty consecutive calendar days, fringe benefits do not accrue during 

the leave.  Also, if the employee is on an intermittent leave or a reduced work schedule of 

less than 32 hours per week, accrual of fringe benefits will be prorated.  

 Eliminates the requirement of six months of employment before bereavement leave may be 

taken.  This requirement was felt to be unnecessarily callous. 

 Clarifies current practice of when a holiday will be designated as FMLA leave.      

 
Personnel Policy 221, Telework. 

 
This new policy was created in response to the pandemic when many City employees were working from 

home as well as to recognize that in certain circumstances, remote work may be a viable option for City 

employees.  Remote work on a long term basis is something that current City employees have inquired 

about as have prospective employees.  This option, with appropriate controls in place, is thought to help 

attract and retain employees without sacrificing productivity. 

 

The highlights of the proposed new policy include maintaining absolute discretion by management in 

approving telework arrangements; completion of an agreement (also attached), violation of which could 

result in discipline up to and including termination of employment; dealing with necessary City equipment 

for telework; mandating security; and providing for termination of the arrangement. 

 

Staff recommends approval of these Personnel policy changes. 

 

Please feel free to contact either one of us if you have any questions.  

538

Item 14.



309:     SEVERANCE PAY 

 

Policy: 
 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide severance pay to qualifying 

terminating employees in accordance with the following guidelines: 

 

Comment: 

 

(1) Employees hired on or before July 1, 1983, have the sick leave severance program 

they elected in writing and filed with the Financial Services Division.  Non-union employees 

hired on or before July 1, 1983, have the option to elect the formula set forth in Comment #2 by 

filing a written election with the Financial Services Division no later than June 30, 2004. 

 

(2) Full-time employees hired after July 1, 1983, and before July 1, 1989, will be paid 

for unused sick leave remaining as of their termination date using the following formula: 

 

 0 – 720 hours remaining:  No severance pay 

 

 More than 720 hours but equal to or less than 1440 hours remaining:  100% 

payment for the hours remaining over 720 hours up to a maximum of 1440 

hours 

 

 More than 1440 hours remaining:  50% payment for the remaining hours 

 

 Examples:  400 hours remaining equals No severance pay 

 

1200 hours remaining equals 480 hours of severance pay:  

(1200 - 720 = 480 x 100% = 480) 

 

2000 hours remaining equals 1000 hours of severance pay:  

(50% x 2000 = 1000) 

 

(3) A “day” of unused sick leave for 8-hour work day employees is equal to 8 hours for 

purposes of this policy. 

 

(4) A “day” of unused sick leave for less than 8-hour work day employees is equal to 

the hours normally worked for purposes of this policy. 

 

(5)    A “day” of unused sick leave for more than 8 hour work day employees is equal to 

8 hours for purposes of this policy.  This would include eligible 24 hour shift employees. 

 

(6) Employees hired after July 1, 1989 are not eligible for any sick leave severance 

benefits to be paid to them in cash.  However, effective July 1, 2004, employees hired after     

July 1, 1989 who are non-union, and who have given timely written notice of resignation or 

retirement in accordance with 213: Termination of Employment and 214: Retirement, shall 

539

Item 14.



309:     SEVERANCE PAY 
 
 

 

 

2 

be eligible to use any sick leave accruals remaining after application of the formula set forth in 

Comment #2 for future medical insurance premiums for the employee and, if eligible, the 

employee’s spouse and/or children.  For purposes of this policy the term “medical insurance” 

shall include group health and prescription coverage, but not dental, vision, or any other 

coverage.  Also for purposes of this policy, initial and continued eligibility for payment of future 

medical insurance premiums for the employee’s spouse and children is determined in the same 

way as eligibility for coverage is determined according to the terms of the City’s group medical 

insurance policy in effect at the time eligibility is being determined.  Any payments for medical 

insurance premiums shall be made in accordance with any IRS publications and regulations in 

effect at the time of the employee’s severance.  Any payments or reimbursements shall be made 

in accordance with the Accounting Policies and Procedures of the Financial Services Division.  

 

(7) Part-time employees shall be eligible for sick leave severance calculated in 

accordance with the formula set forth in Paragraph 2 above, but such eligible part-time 

employees shall be paid for remaining sick leave in a lump sum cash payment, and not payment 

for medical insurance premiums. 

 

(8) Any sick leave casual day that was earned within one year of termination shall be 

forfeited upon termination.  Employees are not eligible for any sick leave casual day benefits 

effective July 1, 2004.  

 

(9) Employees who have completed the probationary period shall receive their 

accrued vacation time benefits on the basis of the number of days accrued on a pro-rata basis of 

time worked during the fiscal year.  However, new employees will not receive accrued vacation 

benefits if they leave City employment prior to their one-year anniversary. (See 506: Vacations)  

 

(10) Employees who have completed the probationary period shall receive any accrued 

floating holiday pay on the basis of the number of days accrued on a pro-rata basis of time 

worked during the fiscal year. 

 

(11) Non-exempt employees shall receive compensation for any unused, accrued 

compensatory time. 

 

(12) Any benefit time off which is used in excess of that which is earned or accrued at 

the time of termination shall be paid back to the City by deduction from the final paycheck or 

will be billed to the terminating employee and shall be paid back to the City no later than 10 days 

from receipt of final paycheck. 

 

(13) All severance benefits of an eligible employee or former employee that have been 

earned but not used at the time of the employee or former employee’s death shall be paidwho 

dies while employed with the City, will be paid to the employee's spouse, or if so directed by the 

employee in writing to the Financial Services Division, to the employee's estate. 

 

(14) Employees may elect to split their severance payment between two tax years or 

540

Item 14.



 

 3 

have it held in escrow for payment of benefits as allowed by Federal law and in accordance with 

any plans which may be implemented by the City. 

 

(15) Benefit plan termination options will be discussed with the Financial Services 

Division during the employee’s pre-departure meeting. 

 

(16) Employees may receive a severance estimate once per calendar year upon request 

to the Financial Services Division. 
 

(17) Employees whose status changes from part-time to full-time shall be credited with 

the sick days earned while part-time.  Employees whose status changes from full-time to part-

time shall be paid in a lump sum under the formula in Paragraph 2 above if eligible, and such 

payment shall include sick days earned while working full-time.  Employees whose status 

changes from union member to non-union member shall be credited with sick days earned while 

a union member. 
 

(18) Employees shall be required to show reasonable proof of medical insurance as 

required by the Financial Services Division in order to be reimbursed. 

 

 
Amended  3/22/04 

 6/1/15 

 7/18/16 

 3/1/19 

 1/6/20 

541

Item 14.



503:     HOLIDAYS 

 

Policy: 
 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to designate and observe certain days each year 

as holidays. Eligible employees will be given a day off with pay for each holiday observed. 

 

Comment: 

 

(1) The schedule of holidays the City will observe during each calendar year will be: 

 

 (a) New Year's Day; 

 

 (b) Good Friday; 

 

 (c) Memorial Day; 

 

 (d) Independence Day (July 4); 

 

 (e) Labor Day; 

 

 (f) Thanksgiving Day; 

 

 (g) Friday after Thanksgiving Day; 

 

 (h) Christmas Day; 

 

 (i) When Christmas Day falls on a Saturday, December 24 and December 26 will 

be observed as holidays.  When Christmas Day falls on a Sunday, December 

23 and December 26 will be observed as holidays.  When Christmas Day falls 

on a Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday, Christmas Eve (December 24) 

will also be observed as a holiday.  When Christmas Day falls on a Monday, 

December 22Thursday the following Friday (December 26) will also be 

observed as a holiday, and; 

 

 (j) Three (3) Floating Holidays (see Comment #9 for eligibility, pro-rating and 

usage). 

 

(2)    Full-time employees are eligible to receive their regular rate of pay for each holiday. 

Part-time employees working on a consistent year-round basis are eligible to receive holiday pay 

only for holidays outlined in Comments (1) (a) through (i) above.  Holiday pay for these part-time 

employees will be paid on a pro rata basis, based upon the number of normal hours worked in a 

pay period. Part-time, non-union employees shall also receive three (3) floating holidays. Part-

time, non-union employees’ floating holiday benefits will be paid on a pro rata basis based upon 

the number of hours actually worked in the prior year computed as of the fiscal year.    Part-time 

employees on lay-off are not eligible to receive holiday pay.  Positions listed within the "Special 

542

Item 14.



503:     HOLIDAYS 

 

 

 

 

2 

Purpose & Seasonal Salary Schedule" and "Workshops/Sessions/Events Pay Plan" are not eligible 

for holiday pay benefits.  In addition, as defined by policy 211: Temporary and Part-time 

Employees, temporary and seasonal employees are not eligible for pro-rated holiday pay. 

 

(3) To receive holiday pay, an eligible employee must be at work, or on an authorized 

absence, on the workdays immediately preceding and immediately following the day on which 

the holiday is observed.  If an eligible employee is absent on one or both days because of illness 

or injury, the City reserves the right to verify the reason for the absence before approving holiday 

pay.  (See 205: Medical Procedures) 

 

 (4) A holiday that occurs on a Saturday or Sunday generally will be observed by the 

City on either the preceding Friday or following Monday. 

 

(5) The City recognizes that some employees may wish to observe, as periods of 

worship or commemoration, certain days which are not included in the City's regular holiday 

schedule.  Accordingly, employees who would like to take a day off for such reasons may be 

permitted to do so if the employee's absence from work will not result in an undue hardship on 

the conduct of the City's business and if the employee's supervisor approves.  Employees may 

use accumulated days of paid absence or "floating" holidays on such occasions, or they may take 

such time off as an unpaid, excused absence. 

 

(6) The City may schedule work on an observed holiday as it deems necessary.  

Normally, work on an observed holiday will be paid as if it were a regularly scheduled day.  

Employees scheduled to work on a holiday will be given the option of receiving pay for the 

hours worked for the day plus their holiday pay, or employees may take another "floating" 

holiday equivalent to the hours worked, with the prior approval of their supervisor, at another 

time during the same fiscal year.  See 307: Overtime Policy for holiday rates paid to employees 

not scheduled to work but called in to work on a holiday. 

 

(7)    Non-union police and public safety management shift employees assigned to 6-3 

shifts will not observe the holidays outlined in Comments (1) (a) through (1) (j).  Instead, these 

employees will observe the same number of holidays as "floating" holidays.  However, the total 

number of such “floating” holidays shall not exceed eleven (11) in any fiscal year (90.75 hours). 

 

(8)    Non-union fire and public safety management shift employees assigned to 24 

hour shifts will not observe the holidays outlined in Comments (1) (a) through (1) (j).  Instead, 

these employees will observe seven (7) holidays per fiscal year as "floating" holidays (168 

hours). 

 

(9)    If a non-union public safety management shift employee is reassigned to a different 

shift, entitlement to holidays is recalculated at the time of shift reassignment.  Such employee’s 

entitlement to holidays for the remainder of the fiscal year after reassignment is based upon the 

ratio that the number of holiday hours not taken prior to reassignment bears to the total number 

543

Item 14.



503:     HOLIDAYS 

 

 

 

 

3 

of holiday hours available in the fiscal year prior to reassignment.   This ratio is applied to the 

total number of holiday hours available in the same fiscal year in the new assignment.  If 

reassigned to non-shift, named holiday hours remaining in the fiscal year after reassignment 

shall be deducted from the total remaining holiday hours.  For example, if a non-union public 

safety management shift employee was assigned to a 6-3 shift and used 33 floating holiday 

hours, and then was reassigned to a 24 hour shift, such employee would have 106.9 hours of 

floating holiday remaining during the same fiscal year (90.75 - 33 = 57.75/90.75 = .636 x 168 

hours = 106.9 hours after rounding).  The same employee reassigned to non-shift on December 

1 would have 24 floating holiday hours remaining, plus the remaining named holiday hours 

during the same fiscal year (90.75 – 33 = 57.75/90.75 = .636 x 88 = 55.968, less 32 named 

holiday hours remaining in the fiscal year = 24 hours after rounding).  For those non-union 

public safety management shift employees assigned to non-shift, total named holidays in a fiscal 

year may be as many as nine (9), depending upon the year as set forth in 1 (a) – (i) above.  For 

purposes of this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift employees” 

includes battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police lieutenants, public safety 

supervisor captains and public safety supervisor lieutenants. 

  

(10)    Floating holidays may be taken by eligible employees any time after six (6) 

months of employment and after receiving approval of the division manager.   Floating holidays 

are pro-rated for eligible employees hired after the fiscal year begins. Eligible employees must 

take floating holidays on or after the date the fiscal year begins through the last day of the same 

fiscal year.   

Carryover of floating holidays will not be permitted unless otherwise specified by 

union contract or if an employee is hired during the second half of the fiscal year and the 

employee will not meet the six (6) month employment requirement.  In the latter case, the 

employee will be allowed to take their pro-rated floating holiday after he/she becomes eligible 

to take them, but must take them on or before the last day of the fiscal year in which they 

become eligible to take the pro-rated holiday.  If hired during the month of December, floating 

holiday hours may be carried over if approved by the Department Director. 
 

(11) Veteran’s Day is not a City observed holiday: City will comply with Iowa Code 

91A.5A as follows: 
 

(a) Certain qualified veterans, if they otherwise would have been required to work 

on November 11, may be granted time off for that day unless it would impact 

public health or safety or would cause the City to experience significant 

economic or operational disruption.  Such time off shall be without pay, but the 

qualified veteran may use paid benefit time other than sick leave to cover such 

absence. 
 

(b) The qualified veteran must provide written notice to the veteran’s supervisor of 

intent to take time off work at least 30 days prior to Veteran’s Day.  If 

requested, the veteran must provide to the City a federal certificate of release or 

discharge from active duty, or similar documentation for determining the 

544

Item 14.



503:     HOLIDAYS 

 

 

 

 

4 

veteran’s eligibility.  
 

(c) The City shall notify the requesting veteran at least 10 days prior to Veteran’s 

Day whether or not the requested time off work will be granted. 

       (12)  Employees may not take holidays or combine holidays with other benefit time, or with 

scheduled days off, which results in more than sixteen (16) consecutive calendar days off from 

work for non-shift employees, more than twenty-two (22) consecutive calendar days off for 24 

hour shift employees, or more than twenty-one (21) consecutive calendar days off for 6-3 shift 

employees, unless otherwise approved by the Department Director, or unless for an approved 

leave of absence.  

 

 
 Amended 7/1/06 

 1/1/08 

 1/23/12 

 3/1/19 

 1/6/20 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

545

Item 14.



506: VACATIONS 

 

Policy: 
 

It is the Policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant annual vacations with pay to full-time and 

part-time, non-union employees, excluding seasonal and special purpose employees, according 

to the guidelines below. The provisions of any applicable collective bargaining agreement shall 

apply in place of the guidelines below. 

 

Comment: 

 

(1) Definitions. For purposes of this Policy the following terms shall be given the 

meanings ascribed to them as follows: 

 

(a) “accrue” means to accumulate but not yet earn. Vacation accrues based 

upon the ratio that the number of days since date of hire or the most recent anniversary date bears 

to the total number of days of vacation to be earned on the next anniversary date, calculated on a 

daily basis. 

 

(b) “earn” means to have available for use all accumulated vacation time. 

Vacation time is earned on the first anniversary after the date of hire, and on each anniversary 

date thereafter as provided in the guidelines below. 

 

(2) Vacation Time Earned: Unless otherwise specified by Union contract, all full-

time employees and part-time, non-union employees (other than seasonal and special purpose 

employees) will be granted vacations with pay on the following basis: 

 

   Completion of one year of service   Two work weeks 

   Completion of six years service   Three work weeks 

   Completion of twelve years service   Four work weeks 

   Completion of eighteen years service  Five work weeks 

 

   The number of weeks of vacation and the availability of those weeks may vary 

from the schedule above if other arrangements are made as a condition of employment as 

approved by the Department Director (or City Administrator if a director position). For 

employees with any other arrangements made as a condition of employment, the schedule above 

shall be adjusted so that an additional work week of vacation shall be added to the vacation 

already granted at the completion of six years, twelve years and eighteen years of service, up to a 

maximum of five total weeks of vacation. If a new employee leaves City employment for any 

reason and prior to the employee’s one-year anniversary date, any vacation time taken by the 

employee shall be paid back to the City in the form of a deduction from the employee’s final 

paycheck. New employees who leave City employment prior to their one-year anniversary shall 

also not receive any accrued vacation benefits on their final paycheck.  

 

   Part-time, non-union employees’ vacation benefits will be earned on a pro rata 

basis based upon the number of hours actually worked in the prior year computed as of their 

546

Item 14.



506:     VACATIONS 

 

 

 2 

anniversary date. This calculation is as follows: actual hours worked/2080 hours per year. 

However, the maximum hours worked in the above calculation is 1508 even if the actual hours 

worked exceeds that amount. 

 

   Part-time, non-union employees whose status changes to full-time, non-union 

status shall be granted credit for all years of service in their part-time non-union positions for 

purposes of computing vacation time entitlement. Years of service as a part-time, union 

employee or special purpose/seasonal employee shall not be credited for purposes of computing 

vacation time entitlement.  

 

(3) Vacation Time Payment: Vacation time earned will be figured on the basis of 

the employment year and shall include the total straight paid time the employee has worked for 

the City since the date of last employment anniversary. Unless otherwise specified in a Union 

contract, when an employee has completed the probationary period and has passed the 

employee’s one year anniversary date, but employment with the City is terminated for any 

reason, said employee shall be compensated for earned but unused vacation time as well as 

accrued vacation time on the basis of the number of vacation days accrued. Military duty will be 

figured as working time for calculating vacation accrual. (See 707: Military Leave.) Employees 

may not use accrued, but unearned, vacation time prior to their anniversary date except when 

special circumstances warrant and as approved by the Division Manager and Department 

Director (or City Administrator if a director position). The City’s Risk Management committee 

may also approve the use of accrued, but unearned vacation time.  

 

(4) Non-union public safety management employees:  
 

 (a) Non-union public safety management shift employees assigned to a 6-3 

shift shall accrue and earn vacation as follows: 

 

  Completion of one year of service 2 work weeks (99 hours) 

  Completion of six years of service  3 work weeks (148.5 hours) 

  Completion of twelve years of service 4 work weeks (198 hours) 

  Completion of eighteen years of service 5 work weeks (247.5 hours) 

 

 

  (b) Non-union public safety management shift employees assigned to a 24 

hour shift shall accrue and earn vacation as follows: 

 

  Completion of one year of service 6 tour days (144 hours) 

  Completion of seven years of service 9 tour days (216 hours) 

  Completion of twelve years of service 12 tour days (288 hours) 

  Completion of twenty years of service 15 tour days (360 hours) 

 

  (c) If a non-union public safety management shift employee is reassigned to a 

547

Item 14.



506:     VACATIONS 

 

 

 3 

different shift, entitlement to vacation is recalculated at the time of shift reassignment. Such 

employee’s entitlement to vacation for the remainder of the year after reassignment is based 

upon the ratio that the hours of vacation remaining prior to reassignment bear to the total number 

of vacation hours available prior to reassignment. That ratio is applied to the total number of 

vacation hours available for the entire year in the new assignment. For example, a non-union 

public safety management shift employee assigned to a 6-3 shift who is in his or her 4
th

 year of 

service and who has used 20 hours of vacation and is reassigned to a 24 hour shift is entitled to 

108.9 additional hours of vacation for the remainder of the year (99 – 24 = 75/99 = .756 x 144 = 

108.9 hours after rounding). For purposes of this policy in the event of reassignment, entitlement 

to vacation shall not be reduced, even if years of completion of service would suggest fewer 

weeks in the employee’s current shift.  

 

(5) Vacation Requests: Employees will request vacation periods giving a first and 

second choice. Division Managers or Department Directors will respect wishes of the employees 

insofar as needs of the City and service will permit. Division seniority shall govern in the choice 

of vacation periods, provided such choice has been exercised between January 1
st
 and March 30

th
 

annually.  Vacations requests  shall be limited to one-week increments for more than two 

consecutive work weeks must beunless otherwise approved by the Department Director.  For 

purposes of this policy a “work week” is considered to be three (3) scheduled work days for 24 

hour shift employees, five (5) scheduled work days for non-shift employees, and six (6) 

scheduled work days for 6-3 shift employees,  

 

(6) Vacation Accumulation: Vacation time shall not accumulate from year to year 

and annual leave must be used by the end of the employment year following the anniversary date 

on which it was earned, unless the application for vacation has been refused or the extension is 

approved as provided in Comment (7). 

 

(7) Vacation Carryover Guidelines: Any carryover of vacation shall be 

administered as follows: 

 

(a) City Administrator, Directors, Managers, Police Captains, and Fire 

Battalion Chiefs: City Administrator, Department Directors, Division 

Managers, Public Safety Supervisor Captains, Police Captains, and Fire 

Battalion Chiefs may carryover one full year of earned vacation, for one 

year past the employee’s anniversary date. If the vacation is unused 

following the end of the one-year period, the vacation will be voided. 

Under unusual circumstances, such as certain serious medical conditions, 

and with the prior approval of the City’s Risk Management Committee, 

extensions beyond those set forth in this subsection (b) may be allowed. 

  

(b) All Other Employees: An employee may carryover up to five (5) work 

days or one workweek (49.5 hours if a 6-3 shift; 72 hours if a 24 hour 

shift) of vacation past the employee’s anniversary date. If vacation is 

548

Item 14.



506:     VACATIONS 

 

 

 4 

unused following the end of the three-month carry-over period, the 

vacation will be voided. Under unusual circumstances, such as certain 

serious medical conditions, and with the prior approval of the City’s Risk 

Management Committee, extensions beyond those set forth in this 

subsection (b) may be allowed. 

 

(8) Maximum Paid Vacation Periods. Regardless of availability of earned vacation 

time, tThe maximum paid vacation leave an employee maycan take at any one time cannot 

exceed five (5) times the number of workdays in the employee’s work week, regardless of 

Department Director approval.  This limitation shall not apply to a retiring employee (See 214: 

Retirement), or to an employee on an approved leave of absence. 

 

(9) Minimum Vacation Requirements. Vacations for periods of less than one-half 

(1/2) hour or as established by department policy, shall not be granted. 

 

(9)(10) Use of Other Benefit Time.  Employees may not combine vacation with other 

benefit time such as regular holidays, floating holidays, government days or compensatory time, 

or with scheduled days off, which results in more than sixteen (16) consecutive calendar days off 

from work for non-shift employees, more than twenty-two (22) consecutive calendar days off for 

24 hour shift employees, or more than twenty-one (21) consecutive calendar days off for 6-3 

shift employees, unless otherwise approved by the Department Director, or unless for an 

approved leave of absence.   

 

(10)(11) Approval of Vacation. All vacation requests are subject to approval.  Requests 

for vacation days shall be submitted in writing to the Department Director or Division Manager 

and approved at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the beginning of the vacation unless mutual 

agreement has been reached between the employee and the Department Director. 

 

 
Amended  1/1/05, 7/1/06, 1/1/08, 11/25/13, 6/1/15, 7/18/16, 3/1/19, 1/6/20, 7/6/20 

549

Item 14.



704: LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

Policy: 
 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to grant employees extended leaves of absence under 

certain circumstances. Except as stated below, employees will not receive compensation during a 

leave of absence.  

 

Comment:  
 

(1) (1) Family and Medical Leave: The City will comply with the provisions of the 

federal Family and Medical Leave Act (hereinafter referred to as "FMLA"). The Appendix to 

this policy outlines the FMLA's requirements, including the rights and obligations of employees, 

notification requirements, and the City's obligations. 

 

General Provisions: 

In accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act, the City will grant unpaid family and 

medical leave to eligible employees for up to twelve (12) weeks per twelve (12) month period for 

any one or more of the following reasons: 

 

a. The birth of a child or placement of a child with the employee for adoption or foster care. 

Birth and bonding must be taken as a continuous block of leave unless the Director allows 

intermittent leave. For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care, birth of a child, 

or to care for such child after birth, or placement of a child with the employee for adoption 

or foster care; or 

 

  

b. To care for a spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health conditionIn order to 

care for an immediate family member (spouse, child or parent) of the employee if 

such immediate family member has a serious health condition; or 

 

c. For a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the 

essential functions of their jobThe employee’s own serious health condition that 

makes the employee unable to perform the functions of his/her position. 

 

c.d. For any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that a spouse, son, daughter, or 

parent is a military member on covered active duty or call to covered active duty 

status. 

 

Military Family Leave Entitlements: 

Qualifying Exigency - Eligible employees with a spouse, child, or parent on covered active duty 

or call to covered active duty status may use their 12-week entitlement to address certain 

qualifying exigencies. Qualifying exigencies may include attending certain military events, 

arranging for alternative childcare, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, attending 

certain counseling sessions, and attending post-deployment reintegration briefings.  

 

550

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

2 

Service Member Caregiver – FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that permits 

eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered service member during a 

single 12-month period. A covered service member is: (1) a current member of the Armed 

Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who  is undergoing medical 

treatment, recuperation or therapy; is otherwise in outpatient status; or is otherwise on the 

temporary disability returned list, for a serious injury or illness*; or (2) a veteran who was 

discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable at any other time during the 

five-year period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave to care for the  

 

covered veteran, and who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious 

injury or illness.* 

 

*The FMLA definitions of “serious injury or illness” for current service members and veterans 

are distinct from the FMLA definition of “serious health conditions”. 

An eligible employee may also take up to 26 workweeks of leave during a "single 12-month 

period" to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness, when the employee 

is the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of kin of the servicemember. The single 12-month 

period for leave to care for a covered servicemember (both current servicemembers and veterans) 

with a serious injury or illness begins on the first day you take leave for this reason and ends 12 

months later, regardless of the 12- month period established by your employer for other types of 

FMLA leave. You are entitled to a combined total of 26 workweeks of leave for any FMLA-

qualifying reason during the “single 12-month period.” (Up to 12 of the 26 weeks may be for an 

FMLA-qualifying reason other than to care for a covered servicemember.) 

 

Eligibility: 

 To be eligible for family/medical leaveFMLA leave, an employee must be employed by the City 

for have at least 12 months of service and have worked at least 1,250 hours for the City over the 

previous twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the leave. The 12 months of 

employment do not have to be consecutive. Employees applying for and granted a family leave 

ofFMLA absence leave are required to meet notification and documentation requirements as 

outlined further in this policy. Failure to meet these requirements may result in the denial or 

revocation of a family leaveFMLA leave. 
 

Definitions: 

a. “Twelve 12-Month Period” will be calculated as the “rolling” twelve (12) month 

period measured backward from the date an employee uses any FMLA leave. 

 

b. “Spouse” includes all individuals in legal marriages as defined or recognized in a 

state where the individual was married (“place of celebration”), and includes 

individuals in same-sex and common law marriages. A spouse also includes a 

husband or wife in a marriage that was validly entered into outside of the United 

States if it could have been entered into in at least one state. If both spouses work for 

the City, and are both eligible for FMLA leave, you and yourboth spouses will be 

limited to a combined total of twelve (12) weeks of FMLA leave in a twelve (12) 

month period for anyone or all of the following reasons: birth of a child child and 

bonding with the newborn childor to care for the child  immediately after birth; 

551

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 3 

placement of a child with you the employee for adoption or foster care and bonding 

with newly-placed child, or to care for the child after placement; or to care for youra 

parent with a serious health condition. This limitation does not apply in cases of leave 

to care for the serious health condition of your the employee’s spouse or child, or 

because of your the employee’s own serious health condition.  

 

 Eligible spouses who work for the same employer are also limited to a combined total 

of 26 workweeks of leave in a single 12-month period to care for a covered 

servicemember with a serious injury or illness (commonly referred to as “military 

caregiver leave”) if each spouse is a parent, spouse, son or daughter, or next of kin of 

the servicemember. When spouses take military caregiver leave as well as other 

FMLA leave in the same leave year, each spouse is subject to the combined 

limitations for the reasons for leave listed above. 

 

c. “Child” means a child either under 18 years of age, or 18 years of age or older who is 

incapable of self-care because of a mental or physical disability. An employee’s 

“child” is one for whom the employee has day-to-day responsibility for care and 

includes a biological, adopted, foster, or stepchild, a legal ward, or a child of a person 

standing in loco parentis. The age limitation does not apply to employees applying for 

a FMLA military related leave. 

 

d. “Serious Health Condition” means an illness, injury, impairment or a physical or 

mental condition that involves: 

 

1. conditions requiring an overnight stay in a hospital or other medical care 

facilityInpatient (overnight) care in a medical care facility; or 

 

2. conditions that incapacitate you or your family member (for example, unable 

to work or attend school) for more than three consecutive days and have 

ongoing medical treatment (either multiple appointments with a health care 

provider, or a single appointment and follow-up care such as prescription 

medication)Continuing treatment by a health care provider for a condition that 

either prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee’s 

job, or prevents the qualified family member from participating in work, 

school, or regular daily activities. Subject to certain conditions, the continuing 

treatment requirement may be met by a period of incapacity of more than 

three consecutive calendar days combined with at least two visits to a health 

care provider  or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment; or  

 

3. chronic conditions that cause occasional periods when you or your family 

member are incapacitated and require treatment by a health care provider at 

least twice a yearIncapacity (as defined above) due to a chronic condition that 

requires periodic (at least twice per year) visits to a healthcare provider for 

treatment; or 

 

4. pregnancy (including prenatal medical appointments, incapacity due to 

552

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

4 

morning sickness, and medically required bed rest)Incapacity (as defined 

above) due to pregnancy. 

 

Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment. 
 

Intermittent or Reduced Leave: 

An employee may take leave intermittently (a few days or a few hours at a timeminimum of 15 

minute increments) or on a reduced leave schedule when medically necessary to care for an 

immediate family member with a serious health condition or because of a serious health 

condition of the employee. “Medically necessary” means that there must be a medical need for 

the leave and the leave can best be accomplished through an intermittent or reduced leave 

schedule. The employee may be required to transfer temporarily to a position with equivalent 

pay and benefits that better accommodates recurring periods of leave. The employee must make 

a reasonable effort to schedule treatment(s) so as not to unduly disrupt the City’s operations. If 

an employee requests reduced or intermittent leave, once the intermittent or reduced leave has 

been completed, the employee must be transferred back to the same position that the employee 

held prior to taking the FMLA leave or to an equivalent position. An employee may take leave 

intermittently or on a reduced leave schedule for birth or placement for adoption or foster care of 

a child only with the supervisor’s director’s approvalconsent. Leave due to qualifying exigencies 

may also be taken on an intermittent basis. 

 

Employee Notice Requirement: 

An employee is generally required to give thirty (30) days’ notice in the event of a foreseeable 

leave. When 30 days’ notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as 

practicable and generally must comply with the City’s normal call-in procedures. Employees 

must provide sufficient information for the employer to determine if the leave may qualify for 

FMLA protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information 

may include that the employee is unable to perform job functions, the family member is unable 

to perform daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care 

provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military family leave. Employees also must 

inform the employer if the requested leave is for a reason for FMLA leave that was previously 

taken or certified. Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic 

recertification supporting the need for leave.     

 

An “Application for Family or Medical Leave Leave of Absence Request” form should be 

obtained from the Financial ServicesHuman Resources Division, completed by the employee, 

signed by his/her supervisor and Department Director, and returned to the Financial 

ServicesHuman Resources Division for processing and forwarding of additional forms that may 

be required to complete as explained below.   

 

Response to Employees: 

As a FMLA covered employer, the City will provide employees with a Notice of Eligibility and 

Rights & Responsibilities form within five business days of receiving a leave request or 

becoming aware of the need for FMLA leave.  The City’s response will establish whether the 

employee is eligible for FMLA leave and will notify the employee of their rights and 

responsibilities under the FMLA.  

553

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 5 

 

Medical and Military Certifications and Designation  

The City may require certification in support of the leave from a healthcare provider no later than 

fifteen (15) calendar days after applicable Department of Labor form(s) are provided for the 

employee’s own or a qualified family member’s serious health condition. Upon receipt, the 

employee will be notified by Human Resources whether the leave will be designated as FMLA 

leave and the amount of leave that will be deducted from the employee’s FMLA entitlement.  

Military related leave requests require completion of the applicable Department of Labor form 

available from and returned to Human Resources staff. 

 

For an employee’s own medical leave, the City may require a second or third opinion at the 

City’s expense as well as periodic reports on the employee’s status. 
 

If the employee has not returned medical certification within 15 calendar days as stated on the 

Notice of Eligibility and Rights & Responsibilities, the City is not aware of extenuating 

circumstances, and the City is unable to determine if the need for leave qualifies for FMLA, the 

City will notify the employee in writing that the FMLA leave request has been denied, using the 

Designation Notice. 

 

When an employee is on leave and information received by Financial Services staffHuman 

Resources deems it to meet FMLA criteria, the City may shall designate the leave as FMLA 

without receiving a FMLA leave request from the employee and without requiring the 

completion of the applicable medical certification form.  Where applicable, Eemployees who are 

on any approved leave of absence, whether work related or not, who also qualify for FMLA 

leave shall be required to use FMLA leave concurrently with such other leave of absence. 

 

Return To to Work Authorization 

The employee must request FMLA leave, and the City may require the request be supported by a 

completed doctor’s/practitioner’s certification no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after 

applicable Department of Labor form(s) are provided for their own or a qualified family 

member’s serious health condition. When an employee is on leave and information received by 

Financial Services staff deems it to meet FMLA criteria, the City may designate the leave as 

FMLA without receiving a FMLA leave request from the employee and without requiring the 

completion of the applicable medical certification form. When applicable, forms are available 

from and must be returned to Financial Services Division staff for review and processing. 

Military related leave requests require completion of the applicable Department of Labor form 

available from and returned to Financial Services staff. 

 

For an employee’s own medical leave, the City may require a second or third opinion at the 

City’s expense, periodic reports on the employee’s status, and a fitness-for-duty report. A release 

to duty from the employee’s health care provider must be provided to the Financial 

ServicesHuman Resources Division prior to returning to work. If a fitness-for-duty appointment 

is deemed necessary by the City based on position duties, the employee will be asked to have a 

fitness-for-duty examination by a health care provider selected by the City, at the City’s expense.  

 

Response To Employees: 

554

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

6 

As a FMLA covered employer, the City will inform employees requesting leave whether they are 

eligible under FMLA. If they are, the notice will specify any additional information required as 

well as the employees’ rights and responsibilities. If they are not eligible, the employer will 

provide reason for the ineligibility. The City will also inform employees if leave will be 

designated as FMLA-protected and the amount of leave counted against the employee’s leave 

entitlement. If the City determines the leave is not FMLA-protected, the employer will notify the 

employee.   

 

Effect on Benefits: 

Taking FMLA leave will not result in loss of any employee benefits accrued prior to the date on 

which the leave began. Vacation, seniority and other accrued benefits will continue tonot accrue 

during an unpaid FMLA leave unless such leave exceeds thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, 

in which case no benefits shall accrue during the entire leave. Accrual of benefits for employees 

on intermittent leave or on a reduced work schedule may be calculated on a pro-rata basis in 

proportion to their work schedule.  No proration of benefit accruals shall occur if employees 

maintain full-time work status (at least 32 hours per week) or the equivalent of full-time work 

status is covered with the use of earned benefits.  

 

Continuation of Health Insurance: 

An employee on family/medical leaveFMLA leave may remain a participant in the City’s health 

insurance plan throughout the duration of the leave, as if actively employed. S/heThe employee 

will be required to pay the same cost of coverage as if actively at work. Employee contributions 

will be required either through payroll deduction or by direct payment to the City. The employee 

will be informed of the amount and method of payment at the beginning of the leave. Loss of 

insurance coverage may result if the premium amount is paid more than thirty (30) days late. The 

City will provide written notice to the employee that the payment has not been received and 

allow at least 15 days after the date of the letter before coverage stops. If the employee misses a 

premium payment and the City pays the employee’s contribution, the employee will be required 

to reimburse the City for the delinquent payment upon return from the leave. If an employee 

does not return to work, the City may require reimbursement for the share of the premiums it 

paid during the FMLA leave.    

 

Return to Work: 

An employee returning from FMLA leave taken under this provision is entitled to return to the 

position held when the leave began, if that position is vacant. If the position is not vacant, the 

employee must be returned to an equivalent position with equivalent benefits, pay and other 

conditions. Employees are required to provide at least 72 hours advance notice of their return to 

work after such leave, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and by the 

Financial ServicesHuman Resources Division. 

 

FMLA and other leaves of absence:  
Employees who are on any approved leave of absence, whether work related or not, who also 

qualify for FMLA leave shall be required to use FMLA leave concurrently with such other leave 

of absence. 

 

(2) Other Leaves of Absences: Employees generally are eligible for leaves of absence if they 

555

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 7 

have completed at least twelve 12 months of service, or as specified by law. The granting and 

duration of each leave of absence and the compensation received by the employee, if any, during 

the leave of absence will be determined by the City in conjunction with applicable federal and 

state law and in accordance with the City’s best interest.  

 

Requests for a leave of absence or any extension of a leave shallshould  generally be submitted 

in writing to the employee's Department Director thirty30 days prior to commencement of the 

leave period, or as soon as is practicable. The final decision concerning the request will be made 

by the Department Director, after consultation with the Finance & Business OperationsHuman 

Resources DivisionDepartment. All employees on approved leave are expected to report any 

change of status in their need for a leave or their intention to return to work to their Department 

Director. 

 

The following types of leaves will be considered: 

 

(a) Extended Family and Medical Leave (Non-FMLA). In cases where an employee is 

not eligible for FMLA leave and the employee’s leave duration would typically 

qualify for FMLA, the employee may be granted a leave of absence.   

 

Approval for such leave must be granted by the Department Director or by the City’s 

Risk Management Committee if the leave exceeds two (2) consecutive weeks.  The 

length of any such leave will be governed by individual circumstances, but in most 

cases such extended leave should not exceed 12 weeks in any 12 month period. At 

least 72 hours’ notice is required in advance of the employee’s return to work date, 

unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s Department Director and by the 

Human Resources Division. 

  

(a)(b) Pregnancy not covered under FMLA: Pregnant employees who are not 

eligible for FMLA leave shall be granted a leave of absence for the period that the 

employee is disabled because of the pregnancy, childbirth or other related medical 

conditions, or for eight weeks as provided by Iowa law, whichever is less.     

   

(b)(c) Other sick leave not covered under FMLA: See Policy 706: Sick Leave 

 

(c)(d) Personal Leave of Absence: Employees may be granted a leave of absence 

to attend to personal matters in cases in which the City determines that an extended 

period of time away from the job will be in the best interests of the employee and the 

City. 

 

(e) Military Leave of Absence: A military leave of absence will be granted if an 

employee is absent in order to serve in the uniformed services of the United States 

for a period of up to five years (not including certain involuntary extensions of 

service). Employees who perform and return from service in the Armed Forces, the 

Military Reserves, the National Guard, or certain Public Health Service positions 

will retain certain legislated rights with respect to reinstatement, seniority, layoffs, 

compensation, and length of service pay increases as required by applicable federal 

556

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

8 

or state law. Employees will be protected against a loss of income as a result of 

participation in annual encampment or training duty in the U.S. Military Reserves or 

the National Guard. In these circumstances, the City will continue to pay an 

employee their normal straight-time pay on the job, as required and set forth in state 

law. (See Policy 707: Military Leave) 

  

(ef) Educational Leave of Absence: Employees who want to continue their education in 

preparation for added responsibilities with the City may be granted an educational 

leave of absence, if in accordance with the City’s best interest and at the discretion 

of managementthe employee’s Department Director. 

 

(fg) Public Office Leave of Absence:  Employees who are candidates for municipal, 

county, state, or federal office shall be granted leave upon request for the period 

from 30 days or less prior to a contested primary, special or general election, until 

the day after the election.  Employees who are elected or appointed to public office 

shall be granted leave for such public office upon request.  Public office leaves of 

absence shall be without pay. 

 

(gh) Bereavement Leave:  Full-time and permanent part-time employees may be allowed 

up to five (5) working days absence with pay in case of the death of a member of the 

employee’s immediate family.  For the purpose of this policy "immediate family" 

includes the employee's spouse, brother, sister, father, mother, children, step parent, 

step children, step brother, step sister, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, 

daughter-in-law, and any person residing in the employee's household. 

 

In the event of the death of a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparent or grandchild 

of the employee or the employee’s spouse, the employee is allowed up to three (3) 

working days absence with pay. 

 

Bereavement leave absences are intended to include all travel.  However, in 

circumstances involving unusually long traveling distances, department directors 

may extend bereavement absences up to three (3) additional days with pay. 

 

To qualify for bereavement leave pay, an employee must be employed with the City 

for six (6) months preceding the first day of bereavement leave, and be eligible to 

receive regular earnings immediately preceding and following the bereavement 

period. 

 

A Division Manager may approve bereavement leave for employees with less than 

six months of tenure. 

 

 Bereavement leave shall not be taken in less than one day increments. 

 

For permanent part-time employees, a regular scheduled day off work may not be 

used in combination with bereavement leave to extend consecutive days off to more 

than five (5) days. 

557

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 9 

 

Non-union public safety management shift employees shall be allowed bereavement 

leave as set forth in this policy regardless of the shift to which they are assigned.  For 

purposes of this policy for such employees, the term “working days” means one 

calendar day regardless of the number of hours scheduled.  Transfer of such 

employees while on bereavement leave shall not affect entitlement to such leave.  

For purposes of this policy the term “non-union public safety management shift 

employees” includes battalion chiefs, fire captains, police captains, police 

lieutenants, public safety supervisor captains and public safety supervisor 

lieutenants.   

 

(i) Workers’ Compensation: Employees who are injured in the course of their 

employment with the City shall receive benefits and leave in accordance with Iowa 

Code Chapter 85 or as allowed under Risk Management Policy 2012-009. 

 

(j) Police/Fire Disability Leave: Eligible public safety department personnel may be 

granted leave for duty related conditions in accordance with Iowa Code Chapter 411. 

 

(3) Requests for a leave of absence or any extension of a leave should be submitted in writing to 

the employee's Department Director thirty days prior to commencement of the leave period, 

or as soon as is practicable. The final decision concerning the request will be made by the 

Department Director, after consultation with the Finance & Business Operations 

Department. All employees on approved leave are expected to report any change of status in 

their need for a leave or their intention to return to work to their Department Director.  

 

(43) Employees who are on an approved leave of absence may not perform work for any other 

employer during that leave, except when the leave is for military, public service, or 

otherwise as permitted by law.  

 

(4)  Use of paid benefit time and other benefits while on leave: 

 

a. Every employee on a sick leave, Non-FMLA leave, or family care leave of absence 

FMLA leave who is not maintaining full-time work status or who is not covering 

absences with earned benefit time up to at least full-time work status equivalent will 

be required to use all floating holidays, vacation, compensatory time, sick 

leave/casual days, and sick days while on leave. Earned benefit time shall be used 

until exhausted. Use of accrued, but unearned vacation may then be used when 

special circumstances warrant and as approved. (See 506: Vacations) If all benefit 

time has been exhausted, and the employee is not covered by FMLA, the employee 

may be subject to termination of employment. 

 

1. Emergency response exception: Employees who require a medical 

absence for an injury arising out of service as a volunteer fire fighter 

or emergency medical responder during a period of an emergency 

response may choose to take the medical leave as unpaid up to a 

maximum of twelve (12) weeks; and shall not be required to use 

558

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

10 

accrued paid leave (sick, vacation or comp time) for medical absence 

as a result of the injury.  After twelve (12) weeks of unpaid leave the 

employee shall be required to take paid benefit time as defined in this 

section.  The employee shall still be required to follow all other 

policies and rules of the City related to medical leave and FMLA 

leave.   

 

b. Employees who are covered by the City's long term disability or workers' 

compensation insurance, and are therefore already receiving compensation, maymay 

supplement their pay  not use any other paid leaveup to 100% of their normal wages.   

 

c. Every employee on a personal or educational leave of absence will be required to use 

all compensatory time, floating holidays and vacation days while on leave. Earned 

benefit time shall be used until exhausted prior to the use of accrued, but unearned 

vacation. 

 

c.d. Employees who are candidates for public office must use earned paid benefit time 

during the public service leave of absence. Employees who are elected or appointed 

to a position entitling them to a public service leave of absence may, if they choose, 

use earned paid benefit time during the leave. If earned paid benefit time is exhausted 

during a public office leave of absence, or if eligible employees choose not to use 

paid benefit time, the leave or remainder of the leave shall be without pay.   

 

d.e. The City will provide health insurance and other benefits to employees on leave as 

required by law. No paid benefit time shall accrue during periods of unpaid leave and 

approved paid leave, unless otherwise specified by union contract.  

 

e.f. Holidays pay (named and floating holidays) will be designated as FMLA leave when 

a holiday falls during a week in which an employee is taking the full week of FMLA 

leave or in cases when an employee takes less than a full week but they are expected 

or were scheduled to work the holiday. included for purposes of calculating FMLA 

leave time, unless prohibited by law. 

 

f.g. Policies related to required use and carry over of paid benefit time shall apply when 

employees are on leaves of absence. 

 

g.h.Availability of paid benefit time is no guarantee of continued employment. 

  

(6) Employees returning from a leave of absence will be reinstated to their same job or to an 

equivalent job with equivalent status and pay, if required by law. However, in order to be 

reinstated to their same job or equivalent job, employees must return to work within 12 

weeks after the expiration of an approved sick leave or FMLA leave, or for employees who 

do not qualify for FMLA leave, within 12 weeks of their first absence. This time may be 

extended upon recommendation of the Department Director and approval by the City 

Administrator for good cause, such as availability of additional earned sick leave. 

Employees who have taken personal, educational or public service leave cannot be 

559

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 11 

guaranteed employment upon expiration of leave. Employees returning from a sick leave 

may be required to provide certification of their ability to perform the essential functions of 

their job, with or without reasonable accommodation and may be required to complete a 

fitness-for-duty examination or evaluation with the City’s physicianmedical provider. 

Employees are required to provide at least 72 hours advance notice of their return to work 

after such leaves, unless this requirement is waived by the employee’s supervisor and by 

the Financial ServicesHuman Resources Division.  Employees returning from a military 

leave must also comply with all of the reinstatement requirements specified by federal law. 

If the same job or one of equivalent status and pay is not available as a result of a reduction 

in force, the employee will be treated in the same manner as though s/he were not on leave 

at the time of the reduction in force. 

  

(7) Employees who are unable to report for work because of arrest and incarceration will be 

placed on a special personal leave of absence. If the employee is unable to secure bail, the 

leave of absence will continue until final disposition of the charges. If the employee is 

freed on bail, a decision whether to allow the resumption of active employment pending 

disposition of the charges will be made by the employee's Department Director and the 

Director of Finance & Business Operations. They will determine whether reinstatement 

would be consistent with the City's needs and requirements. Likewise, when an employee 

is convicted of a crime, the employee's Department Director and the Director of Finance & 

Business Operations will determine if it is in the best interests of the City to allow 

resumption to active employment or termination. 

 

 (8) If an employee fails to return to work at the conclusion of an approved leave of absence, 

including any extension of the leave, the employee will be considered to have voluntarily 

terminated employment. 

 

(9) Application forms are provided at the end of this policy for use with leaves of absence 

longer than two consecutive weeks, other than FMLA leave which requires an application 

form regardless of the length of such leave. These forms also may be obtained from the 

Financial Services Division. Application forms, other than for FMLA leave, must be 

completed by the employee and returned to the Financial Services Division at least seven 

(7) calendar days prior to commencement of a leave, absent unusual circumstances. 

 

 

Resource: Dept of Labor - dol.gov/agencies/whd/fmla 

 
Amended  1/1/05, 7/1/06, 1/1/09, 4/09, 1/23/12, 2/13/12, 11/12/12, 11/25/13, 6/1/15, 3/1/19, 1/6/20, 7/6/20,  

  11/2/20

560

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

12 

 APPENDIX: 
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

UNDER THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT 

 

Basic Leave Entitlement  
FMLA requires covered employers to provide up to 12 weeks of unpaid, job-protected leave to 

eligible employees for the following reasons: 

For incapacity due to pregnancy, prenatal medical care or child birth; 

To care for the employee’s child after birth, or placement for adoption or foster care; 

To care for the employee’s spouse, son,  daughter  or parent, who has a serious health condition; 

or 

For a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform the employee’s job. 

 
Military Family Leave Entitlements  

Eligible employees whose spouse, son, daughter or parent is on covered active duty or call to covered active 

duty status may use their 12-week leave entitlement to address certain qualifying exigencies.  Qualifying 

exigencies may include attending certain military events, arranging for alternative childcare, addressing 

certain financial and legal arrangements, attending certain counseling sessions, and attending post-

deployment reintegration briefings. 

 

FMLA also includes a special leave entitlement that permits eligible employees to take up to 26 weeks of leave to 

care for a covered servicemember during a single 12-month period.  A covered servicemember is: (1) a current 

member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is undergoing medical 

treatment, recuperation or therapy, is otherwise in outpatient status, or is otherwise on a temporary disability retired 

list, for  a serious injury or illness*; or (2) a veteran who was discharged or released under conditions other than 

dishonorable at any time during the five-year period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes FMLA leave  

to care for the covered veteran, and who is   undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy for a serious 

injury or illness.* 

 

*The FMLA definition of “serious injury or illness” for current servicemembers and veterans are distinct from the 

FMLA definition of “serious health condition”. 

 

Benefits and Protections  
During FMLA leave, the employer must maintain the employee’s health coverage under any “group health plan” on 

the same terms as if the employee had continued to work.  Upon return from FMLA leave, most employees must be 

restored to their original or equivalent positions with equivalent pay, benefits, and other employment terms.  

 

Use of FMLA leave cannot result in the loss of any employment benefit that accrued prior to the start of an 

employee’s leave.  

 

Eligibility Requirements   
Employees are eligible if they have worked for a covered employer for at least 12 months, have  1,250 hours of 

service in  the previous 12 months, and if at least 50 employees are employed by the employer within 75 miles. 

 

Definition of Serious Health Condition  
A serious health condition is an illness, injury, impairment, or physical or mental condition that involves either an 

overnight stay in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment by a health care provider for a condition that either 

prevents the employee from performing the functions of the employee’s job, or prevents the qualified family 

member from participating in school or other daily activities.  

 

Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of incapacity of more 

than three consecutive calendar days combined with at least two visits to a health care provider or one visit and a 

regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, or incapacity due to a chronic condition.  Other 

561

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 13 

conditions may meet the definition of continuing treatment.  

 

Use of Leave  
An employee does not need to use this leave entitlement in one block.  Leave can be taken intermittently or on a 

reduced leave schedule when medically necessary.  Employees must make reasonable efforts to schedule leave for 

planned medical treatment so as not to unduly disrupt the employer’s operations.  Leave due to qualifying 

exigencies may also be taken on an intermittent basis.  

 

Substitution of Paid Leave for Unpaid Leave  
Employees may choose or employers may require use of accrued paid leave while taking FMLA leave.  In order to 

use paid leave for FMLA leave, employees must comply with the employer’s normal paid leave policies.  

 

Employee Responsibilities  
Employees must provide 30 days advance notice of the need to take FMLA leave when the need is foreseeable.  

When 30 days notice is not possible, the employee must provide notice as soon as practicable and generally must 

comply with an employer’s normal call-in procedures.  

 

Employees must provide sufficient information for the employer to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA 

protection and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave.  Sufficient information may include that the 

employee is unable to perform job functions, the family member is unable to perform daily activities, the need for 

hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or circumstances supporting the need for military 

family leave.  Employees also must inform the employer if the requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA 

leave was previously taken or certified. Employees also may be required to provide a certification and periodic 

recertification supporting the need for leave.   

 

Employer Responsibilities  
Covered employers must inform employees requesting leave whether they are eligible under FMLA. If they are, the 

notice must specify any additional information required as well as the employees’ rights and responsibilities.  If they 

are not eligible, the employer must provide a reason for the ineligibility. 

 

Covered employers must inform employees if leave will be designated as FMLA-protected and the amount of leave 

counted against the employee’s leave entitlement.  If the employer determines that the leave is not FMLA-protected, 

the employer must notify the employee.  

 

Unlawful Acts by Employers  
FMLA makes it unlawful for any employer to:  

 

• Interfere with, restrain, or deny the exercise of any right provided under FMLA; 

• Discharge or discriminate against any person for opposing any practice made unlawful by FMLA or for 

involvement in any proceeding under or relating to FMLA. 

 

Enforcement  
An employee may file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Labor or may bring a private lawsuit against an 

employer.   

 

FMLA does not affect any Federal or State law prohibiting discrimination, or supersede any State or local law or 

collective bargaining agreement which provides greater family or medical leave rights.  

 

 

FMLA section 109 (29 U.S.C. § 2619) requires FMLA covered employers to post the text of this notice.  

Regulations 29 C.F.R. § 825.300(a) may require additional disclosures.  

 

Other Provisions: 
 

562

Item 14.



704:     LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

 

 

14 

Salaried executive, administrative, and professional employees of the City who meet the Fair 

Labor Standards Act ("FLSA") criteria for exemption from minimum wage and overtime do not 

lose their FLSA-exempt status by using any unpaid FMLA leave.  This special exception to the 

"salary basis" requirements for the FLSA's exemptions extends only to eligible employees' use of 

leave required by the FMLA. 
 

Further Information: For more information, employees may contact the Financial Services 

Division. 

 

563

Item 14.



221:     REMOTE WORK 

 

Policy: 
 

It is the policy of the City of Cedar Falls to provide remote work arrangements to employees 

when it is mutually beneficial to both the City and the employee.  The City recognizes that 

offering flexible work arrangements can increase productivity, reduce turnover, and improve 

employee morale. Remote work is defined as any work arrangement that allows an employee to 

work outside of the employee’s primary worksite at an alternate location, on a regular basis, at 

least one day a week, pursuant to an approved Remote Work Agreement.  Employees must be 

able to carry out the same duties, assignments, and other work obligations at their alternate 

location as they do when working on the City’s premises.  Employees must be available to attend 

scheduled meetings and participate in other required office activities as needed.   

 

Comment: 

 

(1) Approval of a remote work arrangement shall be made on a case-by-case basis.  The 

nature of the work performed, the employee’s past work performance, as well as the 

remote work location must be taken into consideration by the supervisor to determine 

remote work feasibility before entering into a Remote Work Agreement. The state or 

locality in which an employee chooses to reside may be a factor in determining if remote 

work will be approved.  Remote work is not an entitlement nor is it a City-wide benefit.   

(2) Remote work is not a substitute for child or other dependent care. Remote workers shall 

make or maintain regular childcare, adult care, or similar personal arrangements to permit 

concentration on work assignments during agreed upon work hours. 

(3) Employees requesting a remote work arrangement shall complete and sign the Remote 

Work Agreement prior to commencing remote work.  All remote work agreements are 

subject to approval by the Department Director. 

(4) On a case-by-case basis, the City will determine, with information supplied by the 

employee and the supervisor, the appropriate equipment needs (including hardware, 

software, modems, phone and data lines and other office equipment) for each remote 

work arrangement. Equipment supplied by the City will be maintained by the City. 

Equipment supplied by the employee, if deemed appropriate by the City, will be 

maintained by the employee. The City accepts no responsibility for damage or repairs to 

employee-owned equipment. Equipment supplied by the City is to be used for business 

purposes only. Upon termination of employment, all City property will be returned to the 

City, unless other arrangements have been made. 

(5) The remote working employee shall establish an appropriate work environment within 

his or her alternate location.  Consistent with the City's expectations of information 

security for employees working at the office, remote working employees are expected to 

ensure the protection of City information and to maintain the security of confidential 

information accessible from the employee’s alternate location. Steps include the use of 

locked file cabinets and desks, regular password maintenance, and any other measures 

appropriate for the job and the environment. 

564

Item 14.



 
 

 
PPM 7/96 

  

2 

(6) Occasional out-of-office work arrangements for two work weeks or less may be allowed 

on a case-by-case basis if approved by an employee's department director. A formal 

Remote Work Agreement is not required for these occasional remote work arrangements. 

(7) Voluntary remote work agreements may be discontinued, without cause, at any time, at 

the request of either the employee or the City. When practicable, either the City or the 

employee should provide a two week notice of termination of the agreement. When 

remote work is an expected condition of employment, the remote work agreement may 

only be discontinued at the option of the City.  

 

 

 
Adopted   

Amended   

565

Item 14.



Remote Work Agreement 

Before completing this form, the employee requesting a remote work arrangement must review the 
Remote Work Policy. The nature of the work performed,   as the employee’s past work performance, and 
the remote work location must be assessed by the supervisor to determine remote work feasibility before 
entering into a remote work agreement. All remote work agreements are subject to approval by the 
Department Director. Remote work is neither an entitlement nor an organization-wide benefit.   

This document is intended to ensure that both the supervisor and the employee have a clear, shared 
understanding of the employee’s remote work arrangement. Each remote work arrangement is unique 
depending on the needs of the position, supervisor, and employee.  

 
A. EMPLOYEE INFORMATION 

Employee Name: Click here to enter text. 

Job Title: Click here to enter text. 

Department: Click here to enter text. 

Supervisor: Click here to enter text. 

Location where remote work will be performed: Click here to enter text. 

Remote work arrangement effective dates: Click here to enter text. - Click here to enter text. 

 
B. POSITION SUMMARY 

The general expectation for a remote work arrangement is that the employee will effectively accomplish 
the employee’s regular job duties, regardless of work location. If there are telework-specific job duties 
and/or expectations, specify them in the box below, or enter N/A.  
 

 

 
 
C. TELEWORK DETAILS 

Remote Work Schedule (days/hours): Click here to enter text. 

Equipment owned by the employee that will be 
used at the alternate worksite: 

Click here to enter text. 

Equipment owned by the City that will be used at 
the alternate worksite: 

Click here to enter text. 

If the employee supervises others, how will the 
employee meet & maintain the employee’s 
supervisory responsibilities while working remotely: 

Click here to enter text. 

Identify any distractions from the employee’s work 
at the alternate worksite.  How will the employee 
manage these distractions to maintain productivity 
and quality while working remotely? 

Click here to enter text. 

Other conditions of the remote work agreement (if 
applicable):  

Click here to enter text. 

 

566

Item 14.



 

D. ACKNOWLEGEMENTS AND APPROVALS 

Voluntary remote work agreements may be discontinued, without cause, at any time, at the request of 

either the employee or the City. When practicable, either the City or the employee should provide a two 

week notice of termination of the agreement. When remote work is an expected condition of employment, 

the remote work agreement may only be discontinued at the option of the City.  

 

This completed agreement will be retained by Human Resources in the employee’s personnel file.  

 

The undersigned hereby enter into this agreement with a full understanding and acceptance of the terms 
and conditions herein specified. Employee agrees to properly track all hours worked and in accordance 
with Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) guidelines.   
 

 ____________________________________________   __________________________  
Employee       Date 
 

 ____________________________________________   __________________________  
Employee’s Supervisor      Date 
 

 ____________________________________________   __________________________  
Department Director      Date 
 

 ____________________________________________   __________________________  
Human Resources Manager     Date 
  
 

 
 

Last Updated: 06/2021 

 

567

Item 14.



568

Item 15.



569

Item 15.



570

Item 15.



571

Item 15.



572

Item 15.



573

Item 15.



574

Item 15.



575

Item 15.



576

Item 15.



577

Item 15.



578

Item 15.



579

Item 15.



580

Item 15.



581

Item 15.



582

Item 15.



583

Item 15.



584

Item 15.



585

Item 15.



586

Item 15.



587

Item 15.



588

Item 15.



589

Item 15.



590

Item 15.



   CEDAR FALLS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 
  4600 S. MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Craig Berte, Chief of Police 

Date:  February 25, 2022 

Re: State of Iowa Peace Officer Retention Bonus Grant 

The City of Cedar Falls was recently contacted by the State of Iowa providing information 
and instructions for participation in a Peace Officer Retention Bonus Grant.  In her 2022 
Condition of the State Address, Governor Kim Reynolds announced plans to award Iowa 
law enforcement and corrections officers a $1,000 retention bonus from the federal America 
Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds.  This grant is being administered by the Department of 
Administrative Services for the State of Iowa and the peace officer verification process is 
being completed by the Iowa Law Enforcement Academy.  This bonus is paid directly to 
qualifying officers by the State of Iowa.  There is no cost to the City of Cedar Falls for 
participation in this grant program. 
 
I recommend approval of the grant.  

591

Item 16.



592

Item 16.



593

Item 16.



594

Item 16.



595

Item 16.



596

Item 16.



597

Item 16.



598

Item 16.



599

Item 16.



600

Item 16.



601

Item 16.



602

Item 16.



603

Item 16.



604

Item 16.



605

Item 16.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

   

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO:  Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Michelle Pezley, Planner III 
  Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 

 DATE: February 24, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Commercial Site Plan – 3717 Midway Drive (Case # SP22-001) 
  

 
REQUEST: 
 

Site plan approval for mini-storage units in C-2 Zoning District 
 

PETITIONER: 
 

Gordie Sorensen, Sorensen Real Estate Partners, Inc. (purchase agreement) 
 

LOCATION: 
 

3717 Midway Drive; South of University Avenue; East of the City Limits.   

 

 
PROPOSAL 
The applicant proposes to convert a car 
wash into mini-storage and construct an 
addition on the western side of the existing 
building.  The proposed 30 mini-storage 
units would be accessible from the front door 
facing Midway Drive from the interior of the 
building.  The addition also consists of a 
personal shop for the property owner.  The 
site plan illustrates the location of the 
existing building, addition, and existing 
parking spaces for the use.  The proposed 
layout of the site sits on 0.37 acres.    
  
The property abuts the Cedar Falls City 
Limits.  O’Reilly Automotive is located to the 
north.  Five Seasons mobile home park is 
located to the south and the parking lot for 
228 Spaces Apartments west of the 
property.  The car wash and the surrounding 
properties are within the C2 District. 

606

Item 17.



BACKGROUND 
The car wash was built in 1990.  The City Council approved the second access drive in 
1996.  The applicant has an agreement to purchase the property from the existing 
owner. 
 
The existing site 
consists of a car 
wash with one-
way traffic 
circulation, as a 
vehicle will travel 
through the car 
wash bays and 
then out to the 
street through a 
one-way 10-foot 
exit drive.  The 
applicant 
indicated that the 
existing building 
is15.5 feet from the north property boundary, which is not wide enough width to provide 
two-way traffic to the rear of the lot.  The applicant proposes the rear to be for personal 
use only.   
 
 
 ANALYSIS 
Following is a review of the zoning ordinance requirements for the proposed 
development: 
 
1) Use: The C-2 District allows mini-storage upon site plan review and approval by the 

Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council of the City.  The use must 
conform to the standards of the comprehensive plan, recognized principles of civic 
design, land use planning, and landscaping architecture.   
 

2) Setbacks:  The minimum principal building setbacks within the C-2 District are 25 
feet from the front and10 feet from the rear.  No side setbacks are required, except 
when abutting a residential district the minimum side setback is 10 feet. The 
existing building is within the C-2 and the surrounding properties are also within the 
C-2 District.   

 
The applicant proposes the new addition to be 18 feet from the north (side) 
property line; two and a half feet from the south (side) property line, and 
approximately 56 feet from the rear (west)property line. The existing building is 
approximately 34 feet from the front (east) lot line.  
 

Menards 

607

Item 17.



The parking lot is required to be set back 5 feet from abutting properties; however, 
the applicant plans to use the existing non-conforming parking lot in the front of the 
building, which does not have a setback along the southern property line.       

 
Building setbacks are satisfied. The parking lot setbacks are nonconforming, 
but pre-existing. 
 

 
3) Parking: The code requires a miniwarehouse (over 2,000 square feet) to have one 

parking space for every ten units plus two parking spaces located at or near the 
project office for use by prospective customers.  30 units are proposed; therefore, 
five parking spaces are required.  The code also has spacing requirements 
between each building; however, the spacing requirements for a miniwarehouse 
will not be required as the applicant proposes one large building.    
 
The parking meets the zoning standards with minimum stall dimensions of 9’ x 19’ 
as shown in the site plan.  The amount and dimension of the parking stalls and 
drives are met. 

 

4)  Landscaping: C-2 Zoning District does not have specific standards for landscaping; 
however, parking lots are required to provide perimeter screening and street trees.  

 
Currently, there are two trees on the property in the rear of the lot and landscape 
buffers with grass along the northern property lines. The applicant proposes to keep 
the existing non-conforming parking lot as is.  The landscaping plan shows a row of 

608

Item 17.



Sea Green Juniper bushes along the northern property line and two Red Sunset 
Maple trees in the right-of-way.  The landscaping plan meets the landscape 
screening and street tree requirements to the extent possible given the 
existing nonconformities.  

 
4) Lighting: The C-2 District regulations do not have specific lighting design guidelines. 

However, all site plans require a review of the lighting to consider potential nuisance 
issues and incompatibilities. The applicant proposes to use the existing lighting 
located on the front facade of the building to light the parking lot. Lighting is 
acceptable. 
 

5) Building Elevations:  As shown on the elevations, the car wash stalls will be 
enclosed with coordinating stone.  The applicant proposes an additional gable in the 

front to tie the board and batten siding proposed with the new addition. Elevations 
are acceptable.   

  
6)  Trash Enclosure:  The applicant has advised that mini-storage facilities typically do 

not have a trash receptacle on site, as it tends to attract unauthorized dumping.  
Customers will not be allowed to leave any refuse; anything they bring on to the 
property must be stored in their unit or removed from the site.  The property owner 
or manager will remove the trash from the site as needed.  A trash enclosure is 
not required.  

 
7) Signage: Separate sign permits will be required for all signage prior to installation. 

To prevent customers from driving or parking behind the building, the applicant will 
place a sign near the northeast corner of the building next to the private drive 
indicating that the drive is for private use only, no customer access is allowed.  
Signage will be reviewed according C-2 Zone standards when a sign permit is 
submitted.   
 

8) Storm Water Management:  The existing site is completely paved and the new 
addition is under 5,000 square feet; therefore, SWPPP is not required.  The existing 
drainage of the site flows into a private drainage pipe that is located at the southwest 

609

Item 17.



corner of the property. The Engineering Division has determined that no additional 
detention is required. The site plan shows that they will add riprap and a grassy area 
to slow down and improve the stormwater drainage.  Criterion is met, subject to 
final engineering review prior to issuance of a building permit.  

 
TECHNICAL COMMENTS 
 

Cedar Falls Utilities (CFU) has reviewed the site plan for the 3717 Midway Drive 
Storage Units.  Water, electric, gas, and communication utility services are available in 
accordance with the service policies of CFU. Water, Electric, and Communication 
services enter the existing building from the west side where the addition is being 
proposed.  These services will need to be relocated at the developer’s cost. 
 
Any other minor technical issues will be addressed at the time of a building plan review. 
 
A courtesy notice to surrounding property owners was mailed on February 15, 2022. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
The proposed commercial site plan is consistent with the City Standards and City Code.   
Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of SP22-001, a commercial 
site plan for property located at 3717 Midway Drive in the C-2 Commercial District, 
subject to:   

1) Any comments or direction specified by the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. 

2) Conformance with all staff recommendations and technical requirements.  

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
Introduction 
Discussion and 
recommendation  
  
 

 Chair Leeman introduced the item and Ms. Pezley provided the background of 
the existing carwash and explained the proposal for the ministorage units.  Staff 
recommended approval of the item 
 

Mr. Sorensen introduced himself to the Commission and explained his 
proposal and was available for any questions.  Commissioner Saul moved 

to approve the commercial site plan and Commissioner Lynch second the 
motion.  Commissioner Hartley thought the addition to the building will be a 
great improvement.  The motion was approved unanimously with 6 ayes 
(Crisman, Hartley, Leeper, Lynch, Moser, and Saul), and 0 nays. 
 
 

 
Attachments: Location Map 
  Complete Site Plan Set 
  Floor Plan and Building Elevations 
 
 

610

Item 17.



Midway Mall

Goodwill
Center

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

 Tr
ail

University Ave Trail

â

â

â

â

â

â

â

Midway Dr

Sc
en

ic D
r

N Zircon Ln

Crossway Dr

Richland Dr

Opal Ln

Ga
rne

t R
d

Em
era

ld 
Rd

Zir
co

n L
n

Jade Rd

Sapphire Rd

Peridot Rd

Ter
rac

e D
r

Five Seasons Blvd

Orchard Dr

Ce
da

r H
eig

hts
 Dr

University Ave

C-2

C-1

RP

Cedar Falls Planning and Zoning Commission
February 23, 2022

Site Plan Review for Mini-Storage units
3717 Midway Drive (SP22-001)

Waterloo
Regional
Airport

Falls
Access

Cedar Falls

University Ave
Rainbow Dr

Orchard Dr

E Dunkerton Rd

W 18th St

Hu
ds

on
Rd

W Ridgeway Ave

S M
ain

 St

C ente rS t

Ma
in

St

E Greenhill Rd

W 12th St

W 1st St

E V ikin

g Rd
W Viking Rd

Un
ion

 Rd

W 27th St

Lincoln St

NUnion Rd E Lone Tree Rd

Le
ver

see
Rd

E 1st St
®¬57

®¬58

®¬27 £¤63£¤20

£¤218

^
Location

Map

611

Item 17.



X

XXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XSAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

G G

G
G

G

SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN
S89°25'42"E 177.20'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

N
00

°0
5'

20
"W

 9
0.

00
'

M
ID

W
A

Y
 D

R
IV

E

40
' R

ea
r S

et
ba

ck

25
' F

ro
nt

 S
et

ba
ck

925

926

927

926

92
7

927

92
7

928

929

929

928

927

926

925

92
6

92
7

928

929

929

928

-1.3%

0 20'10'

NORTH IOWA
ONE CALL
800 /  292-8989

TOLL FREE

CALL - BEFORE - YOU - DIG

 LEGEND

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
BLACK HAWK COUNTY

PLANS FOR THE PROPOSED BUILDING
AND SITE PLAN CONSTRUCTION

PREPARED BY VJ ENGINEERING
FEBRUARY, 2022

VICINITY MAP

UTILITY STATEMENT
THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN HAVE BEEN LOCATED FROM FIELD SURVEY INFORMATION AND
EXISTING DRAWINGS. THE SURVEYOR MAKES NO GUARANTEE THAT THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN
COMPRISE ALL SUCH UTILITIES IN THE AREA, EITHER IN SERVICE OR ABANDONED. THE SURVEYOR FURTHER
DOES NOT WARRANT THAT THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE IN THE EXACT LOCATION INDICATED ALTHOUGH HE
DOES DECLARE THAT THEY ARE LOCATED AS ACCURATELY AS POSSIBLE FROM INFORMATION AVAILABLE.

THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE SANITARY SEWER, STORM SEWER, AND WATER SYSTEMS SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS WITHIN THE CITY
OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, AND THE STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGNS AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS),

SITE LOCATION

INDEX OF SHEETS
SHEET. NO. SHEET NAME REVISION DATE

1 COVER SHEET

2 GENERAL NOTES

3 ESTIMATE REFERENCE AND QUANTITIES

4 EXISTING CONDITIONS & REMOVALS PLAN

5 CIVIL SITE & GRADING PLAN

6 SITE DETAILS

7 STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

1-8

ALL SHEETS IN THIS INDEX

CURRENT OWNER
JC ENTERPRISES INC

PETITIONER
SORENSEN REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, INC.
1322 MAIN STREET, CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, 50613
319-269-1164

PROJECT SITE ADDRESS
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613

CURRENT ZONING
C-2 - COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

EXISTING BUILDING = 2,220 SF
PROPOSED BUILDING ADDITION = 3,500 SF
TOTAL = 5,720 SF

PROPOSED BUILDING

ADDITION

PRELIMINARY

L
IC

EN
SE

D
PR

OFESS

ENG
I N

EER

IONAL

Pages or sheets covered by this seal:

DATE

the laws of the State of Iowa.
and that I am a duly licensed Professional Engineer under
prepared by me or under my direct personal supervision
I hereby certify that this engineering document was

I OWA

Licensed

My license renewal date is December 31, 2022

DANIEL M. ARENDS, P.E.
License number 22647

22647
Daniel M.
Arends

EXISTING

BUILDING

612

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.02.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.08.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
//

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
000

AutoCAD SHX Text
000

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING UTILITY POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED GRADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY CORNER SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY CORNER FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION CORNER FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSION OF SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONTOURS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 100.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
 000.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TELEPHONE PED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GAS VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
 000.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SILT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHU

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING OVERHEAD UTIL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FO

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FIBER OPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING COMMUNICATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT BOUNDARY



GENERAL NOTES
SCOPE OF PROJECT
THIS PROJECT CONSISTS OF A BUILDING ADDITION AND REVISED PARKING AREA.

STORM WATER RUNOFF WILL BE HANDLED BY AN EXISTING STORM NETWORK SOUTHWEST OF THE PAVED AREA AT THE REAR OF THE LOT.
EARTHWORK WILL CONSIST OF REMOVAL AND COMMON EXCAVATION/FILL  BELOW  GRADE AT THE PROPOSED BUILDING AND PARKING LOT.

ALL CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS), 2022

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING TRAFFIC CONTROL AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.  ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL SHALL BE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH "THE MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES."

NOTE THAT EXISTING WATER, GAS, TELEPHONE AND OTHER UTILITIES AND SERVICES FROM THESE UTILITIES MAY EXIST ADJACENT TO THE WORK
AREA AND THAT SPECIAL PRECAUTIONS MUST BE USED WHEN WORKING AROUND SAID UTILITY. STATE LAW REQUIRES THAT THE IOWA ONE-CALL
UTILITY LOCATION SYSTEM BE CALLED PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION.

        TELEPHONE NUMBER:  1-800-292-8989 OR 811

THE ENGINEER (VJ ENGINEERING) MAY FURNISH THE REQUIRED STAKES AND BENCHMARKS FOR THIS WORK. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN ALL
STAKES AND REPORT ANY DAMAGE TO THE ENGINEER. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL GRADES LINES, LEVELS AND DIMENSIONS AS
SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS, AND HE SHALL REPORT ANY ERRORS OR INCONSISTENCIES TO THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO COMMENCING WORK.
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ENGINEER AT LEAST 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THE NEED FOR SURVEY STAKES. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR PRESERVING SURVEY STAKES AND MARKS, AND IF ANY SURVEY STAKES OR MARKS ARE CARELESSLY OR WILLFULLY
DESTROYED OR DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR, HE SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE  MISTAKES THAT MAY BE CAUSED BY THEIR LOSS OR
DISTURBANCE, AND BE CHARGED FOR THE COST OF REPLACING THEM.

ALL CONTRACTORS SHALL CONDUCT THEIR OPERATIONS IN A MANNER THAT CONTROLS POLLUTANTS, MINIMIZES EROSION, AND PREVENTS
SEDIMENTS FROM ENTERING WATERS OF THE STATE AND LEAVING THE PROJECT SITE.

RESTORE ALL SURFACES DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION RELATED ACTIVITIES TO A CONDITION AT LEAST EQUAL TO THAT IN WHICH THEY
WERE FOUND BEFORE WORK COMMENCED.  USE SUITABLE MATERIALS AND METHODS FOR RESTORATION.

IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROVIDE APPROVED WASTE AREAS OF DISPOSAL SITES FOR EXCESS MATERIAL
(EXCAVATED MATERIAL OR BROKEN CONCRETE) WHICH IS NOT DESIRABLE TO BE INCORPORATED INTO THE WORK INVOLVED ON THIS PROJECT.
NO PAYMENT FOR OVERHAUL WILL BE ALLOWED FOR MATERIAL HAULED TO THESE SITES. NO MATERIAL SHALL BE PLACED WITHIN THE
RIGHT-OF-WAY, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY STATED IN THE PLANS OR APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER. WASTE AREA OR DISPOSAL SITE SHALL BE
APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

CONTRACTOR TO FURNISH REST ROOM FACILITIES FOR THE CONTRACTOR'S EMPLOYEES. THIS WILL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO OTHER
WORK.

REMOVAL OF ANY ITEMS NECESSITATING REMOVAL IN ORDER TO CONTINUE WORK SHALL BE CONSIDERED AS INCIDENTAL WORK.  THE COST OF
SUCH REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL SHALL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO AND INCLUDED IN THE CONTRACT PRICE FOR APPLICABLE ITEMS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES BEFORE STARTING TRENCH CUTTING OPERATIONS. EXCAVATION SHALL BE
PERFORMED BY HAND DIGGING AROUND UTILITIES TO LOCATE AND PREVENT RUPTURE OR BREAKING OF LINES. COST OF REPAIRING ANY
DAMAGES TO EXISTING UTILITIES SHALL BE PAID BY THE CONTRACTOR WITHOUT EXPENSE TO THE CITY OR ENGINEER. THE OWNER RESERVES
THE RIGHT TO REPAIR ANY EXISTING UTILITY DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR, AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT DISTURB DESIRABLE WALKS OR GRASS AREAS AND DESIRABLE TREES OUTSIDE THE CONSTRUCTION LIMITS. THE
CONTRACTOR WILL BE ALLOTTED AN AREA FOR STORAGE OF MATERIAL AND EQUIPMENT.  THIS AREA IS SHOWN ON THE PLANS AND IS SUBJECT
TO APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER. EXCESS MATERIAL TO BE STORED AT AN APPROVED OFF SITE LOCATION DUE TO THE RESTRICTIONS OF THE
SITES AREA.

ALL PROPOSED CONTOURS AND SPOT ELEVATIONS REPRESENT TOP OF FINISH GRADE.

APPLY MOISTURE TO CONSTRUCTION AREA AS REQUIRED TO MINIMIZE DUST.

PERMANENT SEEDING SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS SECTION 9010.  INSTALL PERMANENT SEEDING IN ALL
DISTURBED, NON-HARD SURFACED AREAS, INCLUDING PUBLIC ROW, THIS CONSTRUCTION SEASON IF POSSIBLE.  IF
PERMANENT SEEDING CAN'T BE INSTALLED THIS YEAR, IT SHALL BE INSTALLED THE FOLLOWING CONSTRUCTION SEASON.

EXISTING STREET SIGNS, TRAFFIC SIGNS AND PRIVATE SIGNS AFFECTED BY THE CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE SALVAGED AND
REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR.  STREET AND TRAFFIC SIGNS AND POSTS NOT REUSED ON THE PROJECT SHALL BE STOCKPILED
FOR CITY PICKUP.  SIGNS TO BE REUSED, INCLUDING ALL PRIVATE SIGNS AND DESIGNATED PUBLIC SIGNS, SHALL BE REINSTALLED
BY THE CONTRACTOR.  THIS WORK WILL NOT BE PAID SEPARATELY BUT WILL BE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL TO THE PROJECT.

CARE SHALL BE TAKEN DURING SITE EXCAVATION AND GRADING OPERATIONS TO MINIMIZE DISTURBANCE ON THE BEARING SOILS.
HEAVY EQUIPMENT TRAFFIC DIRECTLY ON BEARING SURFACES SHOULD BE AVOIDED IN SATURATED SOILS.

ALL BACKFILL AND COMPACTION OF TRENCHES SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUDAS STANDARD SPECIFICATION SECTION
3010.

ALL FILL MATERIALS SHALL BE PLACED AND COMPACTED IN LIFTS NOT EXCEEDING 8 INCHES IN LOOSE THICKNESS.  ALL FILL
MATERIAL PLACED IN PAVEMENT AREAS, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE FILL BELOW THE M & D LAYER, SHALL BE COMPACTED  TO
95% OF THE SOIL'S MAXIMUM STANDARD PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D-698).  ALL FILL MATERIAL PLACED BELOW THE M & D
LAYER SHALL BE TYPE A COMPACTION. OUTSIDE FILL MATERIAL SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE AREA DIRECTLY BELOW THE ROADWAY,
OTHER AREAS SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER.

UPON COMPLETION OF FILL OPERATIONS, CARE SHALL BE TAKEN TO MINIMIZE SUBGRADE DISTURBANCE AND MAINTAIN THE
SUBGRADE MOISTURE CONTENT PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF THE PAVEMENT.  IF THE SUBGRADE SHOULD BECOME SATURATED,
DESICCATED OR DISTURBED, THE AFFECTED MATERIAL SHALL BE REMOVED AND REPLACED, OR THESE MATERIALS SHALL BE
SCARIFIED, MOISTURE CONDITIONED AS NECESSARY, AND RECOMPACTED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF THE PAVEMENT.

SILT FENCE SHALL BE PLACED SO THAT STORM WATER RUN-OFF DOES NOT CREATE EROSION ON ADJACENT PROPERTIES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER IN THE EVENT THAT FIELD CHANGES IN DESIGN ARE REQUIRED.  CONTRACTOR SHALL
KEEP TRACK OF SUCH CHANGES SO THAT RECORD DOCUMENTS CAN BE COMPLETED UPON COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION.

CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR MAKING SURE THAT TRUCKS TRAVELING TO AND FROM THE PROJECT SITE ARE IN GOOD
WORKING ORDER AND DO NOT DROP OR TRACK MATERIAL BEING HAULED FROM THE SITE INTO THE STREET.

ALL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY FOR THIS PROJECT MUST BE COMPLETED WITHIN THE PROPERTY LIMITS. NO PART OF
CONSTRUCTION CAN ENCROACH ON ADJACENT PROPERTIES.

RIP RAP AND EROSION CONTROL IS INCIDENTAL TO BASIN CONSTRUCTION.

613

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150



614

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.02.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTIMATE REFERENCE AND QUANTITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150



B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

BB

B

B

B B

B

B

X

XXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XSAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

SAN SAN SAN SAN

SAN

G G

G
G

G

SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN

W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

S89°25'42"E 177.20'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

N
00

°0
5'

20
"W

 9
0.

00
'

CROSSWAY DRIVE

Existing Building - 2,220 SF

M
ID

W
A

Y
 D

R
IV

E

Remove Existing Bollard
Typical (18 EA.)

Remove 614 Sq. Yd.
PCC Pavement

Remove Existing
Vacuum (2 EA.)

Remove Existing
Vacuum (2 EA.)

Remove Existing Light
Pole Base (1 EA.)

Remove Existing Light
Pole Base (1 EA.)

Remove Existing
Sign (2 EA.)

Remove 62 LF Existing Curb & Gutter

929

928

927

926

925

92
4

92
6

92
7

924

925

926

927

92
4

92
5

92
6

92
7

92
892

9

926

927

927

928

928

928

929

929

929

40
' R

ea
r S

et
ba

ck

25
' F

ro
nt

 S
et

ba
ck

Sanitary Manhole
Rim: 925.02'
Fl: 916.55'

Storm Intake
Rim: 924.35'
8" Fl (Out) : 920.19'

Sanitary Manhole
Rim: 923.78'
8" Fl: 915.15'

Storm Intake
Rim: 923.33'
8" Fl: 917.73'

Storm Manhole
Rim: 923.21'

8" Fl (In): 916.83'
12" Fl (Out): 916.83'

Protect Existing
Curb and Gutter

Protect Existing Utility
Service (Typ.)

Protect Existing Utility
Service (Typ.)

Remove 18 Sq. Yd.
PCC Pavement

R
em

ov
e 

26
 L

F
Ex

is
tin

g 
C

ur
b

& 
G

ut
te

r

Remove 5 LF Existing
Curb & Gutter and
Concrete Flume to
Property Line Protect Existing Fence (Typ.)

Property Line (typ.)

IACE FIVE SEASONS MHP LLC

(C-2 ZONING)

LANE7 SPE LLC

(C-2 ZONING)

O REILLY AUTOMOTIVE  INC.

(C-2 ZONING)

Existing Concrete

to Remain
Existing Concrete

to Remain

0 20'10'

NORTH

615

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.02.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS AND DEMOLITION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150



X

XXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XSAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

SAN SAN SAN SAN

SAN

G G

G
G

G

SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN

W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

S89°25'42"E 177.20'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

N
00

°0
5'

20
"W

 9
0.

00
'

2' CURB CUT

Storm Intake
Rim: 924.35'
8" Fl (Out) : 920.19'

Sanitary Manhole
Rim: 923.78'
8" Fl: 915.15'

Storm Intake
Rim: 923.33'
8" Fl: 917.73'

Storm Manhole
Rim: 923.21'

8" Fl (In): 916.83'
12" Fl (Out): 916.83'

CROSSWAY DRIVE

M
ID

W
A

Y
 D

R
IV

E

924

925

926

927

928

929

929

928

92
8

92
7

927

927

926

92
6

92
5

92
4

92
3

925

926

927

926

925

924

925

926

927

92
7

92
6

-7.2%

-4.4%

-2.8%

0.
1%

-1
.4

%

-1
.6

%
-0

.8
%

-0
.2

%

0.1%

15.0' CURB
& GUTTER

MATCH EXISTING
925.77

MATCH EXISTING
926.56

MATCH EXISTING
927.03

MATCH EXISTING
927.56

MATCH EXISTING
927.20

-3.2%

-2.6%

-3.6%

-1.4%

-1
.9

%

-3.8%

-2
.3%

-2
.8%

-2
.2

%

-2.1%

-5.1%

-6.2%

-6.2%

-2.4%

-7.
4%

927.20

927.20

MATCH EXISTING
927.20

MATCH EXISTING
925.52

MATCH EXISTING
925.29

MATCH EXISTING
925.09

MATCH EXISTING
925.08

Sanitary Manhole
Rim: 925.02'
Fl: 916.55'

MATCH EXISTING
925.40

-3.4%

CLASS "D" REVETMENT
CHANNEL TO OUTLET

(SHAPE TO DRAIN)

-3
.9

%

-1.3%

-0.4%

-1.0%

-0.9%

Property Line (typ.)

9.
0'

(ty
p.

)

19.0' (typ.)

24
.4

' E
X.

 C
U

R
B 

C
U

T

32
.0

' E
X.

 C
U

R
B 

C
U

T

-12.0%

-11.9%

17' CURB & GUTTER

GRASS DRAINAGE
SWALE

0 20'10'

NORTH

PROPOSED BUILDING

ADDITION - 3,500 Sq. Ft.

FFE = 927.20 EXISTING

 BUILDING

TABLE 2: PLANTING SCHEDULE
QTY ID DESCRIPTION SIZE ROOT SPACING NOTES

SHRUBS

22 SJ Sea Green Juniper
JUNIPERUS CHINENSIS 'SEA GREEN' 5 GAL CONT SEE PLAN

36" MIN. HEIGHT.
NURSERY MATCHED,
QUALITY SPECIMEN

OVERSTORY STREET TREES

2 MRS Maple, Red Sunset 1.5" CAL BB SEE PLAN
 45' MATURE HEIGHT.
NURSERY MATCHED,
QUALITY SPECIMEN

SITE PLAN - LANDSCAPE LEGEND

PROPOSED SHADE/ORNAMENTAL TREE

PROPOSED SCREENING BUSH

MRS - (1)

MRS - (1)

SJ - (TYP)
(22 EA)

PARKING REQUIREMENTS -

PROPOSED BUILDING SPACE (MINI-WAREHOUSE) = 5,720 SF

PARKING SPACES REQUIRED = 5
(ONE PARKING SPACE FOR EVERY TEN STORAGE UNITS, STALLS OR LOCKERS EQUALLY DISTRIBUTED
THROUGHOUT THE STORAGE AREA, PLUS TWO PARKING SPACES LOCATED AT OR NEAR THE PROJECT OFFICE
FOR USE BY PROSPECTIVE CUSTOMERS.)

NOTE: THE REAR LOT OF THE BUILDING AND NORTH ACCESS SHALL BE FOR PRIVATE USE AND EMERGENCY
ACCESS ONLY.  AREA SHALL NOT BE USED FOR CUSTOMER PARKING OR COMMERCIAL STORAGE OF ANY KIND.

6" PCC

(TYP.)

14
.1

'
PR

IV
AT

E
D

R
IV

E

15.0'

616

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.02.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.02.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIVIL SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150



6" PCC

6" MODIFIED SUBBASE

COMPACTED SUBGRADE

6" PCC SECTION1
7 SCALE - NTS

41
2"

71
2"

R 3"

R 
3"

Form
Grade

Elev.

6" STANDARD CURB2
7 SCALE - NTS

Slope as
per plans

617

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150



X

XXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

XSAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

SAN SAN SAN SAN

SAN

G G

G
G

G

SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN SAN

W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

S89°25'42"E 177.20'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

S89°52'25"E 173.46'

S0
2°

25
'3

9"
E 

91
.4

7'

N
00

°0
5'

20
"W

 9
0.

00
'

Sanitary Manhole
Rim: 925.02'
Fl: 916.55'

Storm Intake
Rim: 924.35'
8" Fl (Out) : 920.19'

Sanitary Manhole
Rim: 923.78'
8" Fl: 915.15'

Storm Intake
Rim: 923.33'
8" Fl: 917.73'

Storm Manhole
Rim: 923.21'

8" Fl (In): 916.83'
12" Fl (Out): 916.83'

CROSSWAY DRIVE

M
ID

W
A

Y
 D

R
IV

E

924

925

926

927

924

925

926

927

928

929

929

928

92
8

92
7

927

926

926

92
5

92
4

92
3

92
6

92
7

92
6

0 20'10'

NORTH

PROPOSED BUILDING

ADDITION - 3,500 Sq. Ft.

FFE = 927.20

INLET PROTECTION

INLET PROTECTION

INLET PROTECTION

CONCRETE WASHOUT

PORTABLE RESTROOM

94 LF SILT FENCE
(OR STRAW WATTLE)

105 LF SILT FENCE
(OR STRAW WATTLE)

93 LF SILT FENCE
(OR STRAW WATTLE)

14 LF SILT FENCE
(OR STRAW WATTLE)

EXISTING

BUILDING

SITE STABILIZATION: DISTURBED AREAS THAT HAVE
CEASED TEMPORARILY OR PERMANENTLY WHERE WORK
WILL NOT RESUME FOR A PERIOD EXCEEDING 14
CALENDAR DAYS SHALL BE STABILIZED IMMEDIATELY. ALL
AREAS WHERE WORK IS COMPLETED SHALL BE FINAL
STABILIZED UPON COMPLETION OF WORK.

SITE STABILIZATION STAGING: ESTABLISH ALL SWPPP
PROTECTION INCLUDING INTAKE PROTECTION AND
STABILIZED ENTRANCE PRIOR TO DISTURBING ANY AREA.
ENTRANCE SHALL BE KEPT CLEAN BY SWEEPING AS
NECESSARY.ESTABLISH ANY STAGING AREA NOT ON
EXISTING HARD SURFACE PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.
ALL SWPPP PROTECTION INCLUDING SILT FENCE AND
INTAKE PROTECTION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SUDAS AND REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL WORK IS FINISHED
AND PERMANENT SITE STABILIZATION IS FINALIZED.

CONCRETE WASHOUT AND ANY OTHER NON STORM
WATER WASTE SHALL BE COLLECTED AND DISPOSED OF
PROPERLY.

SWPPP NOTES:
PROJECT CONSISTS OF PAVEMENT, STORMWATER
MANAGEMENT, AND A BUILDING ADDITION ON AN
EXISTING DEVELOPED SITE.

SITE AREA = APPROX. 0.36 ACRES (15,898 Sq. Ft.)
DISTURBED AREA = 0.14 AREAS (5,837 Sq. Ft.)

STORM WATER POLLUTI0N PREVENTION CONTROLS TO
BE DRAWN ON THE SITE MAP BY THE SITE SWPPP
MANAGER AS THEY ARE IMPLEMENTED IF SWPPP PLAN IS
MODIFIED:

-CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCES
-CONSTRUCTION PARKING AND DRIVEWAYS
-EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL STORAGE
-HAZARDOUS MATERIAL STORAGE
-JOB TRAILER -SOIL/TOPSOIL STOCKPILES
-SNOW STOCKPILES
-SANITARY FACILITIES
-GARBAGE/RECYCLING FACILITIES

SITE MAP SHALL BE UPDATED AS CONDITIONS AND/OR
CONTROL LOCATIONS CHANGE.

CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST/UPDATE
SWPPP AS SITE CONDITIONS CHANGE
AND UPDATE PLAN AS NEEDED.

618

Item 17.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Scale

AutoCAD SHX Text
Reviewed

AutoCAD SHX Text
Date

AutoCAD SHX Text
Revisions

AutoCAD SHX Text
Drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
VJ Engineering 1501 Technology Parkway  Cedar Falls, Iowa  -  319-266-5829

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2022.01.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
DMA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SJC

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIDWAY STORAGE BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3717 MIDWAY DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

AutoCAD SHX Text
21-8150



619

Item 17.



620

Item 17.



621

Item 17.



622

Item 17.



623

Item 17.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 

 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Ben Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD 
 
 DATE: February 28, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement, Terracon Consultants, Inc.   
  2019 Construction Testing Services 
  Supplemental Agreement No. 2 
  City Project No. EN-000-3190 
 
Please find attached Supplemental Agreement No. 2 to the Professional Services 
Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Terracon Consultants, Inc. for 2019 
Construction Testing Services. This agreement extends the 2019 contract an additional 
two years through the construction season 2023.   
 
The enclosed agreement provides for construction and geotechnical testing services for 
ongoing construction projects and allows for other professional testing services which 
may be required on an “as needed” basis.  
  
The Department of Public Works requests your consideration and approval of this 
Supplemental Agreement No. 2 with Terracon Consultants, Inc. for the additional two 
years of construction testing services. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 

David Wicke, City Engineer 

624

Item 18.



625

Item 18.



626

Item 18.



627

Item 18.



628

Item 18.



629

Item 18.



630

Item 18.



631

Item 18.



632

Item 18.



633

Item 18.



634

Item 18.



635

Item 18.



636

Item 18.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

––  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Benjamin Claypool, Civil Engineer II, PhD, EI 
 
 DATE: March 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 2022 Street Construction Project 
  City Project Number: RC-000-3230 
  Bid Opening 
   

On Friday, February 25, 2022 at 2:00 p.m., bids were received and opened for the 2022 
Street Construction Project. A total of two (2) bids were received, with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. the low bidder: 
 

 Base Bid 

Engineering Estimate $3,180,122.90 

Peterson Contractors, Inc.  $3,266,189.70 

Owen Contracting, Inc.  $3,279,382.25 

 
The Engineer's Estimate for this project was $3,180,122.90. Peterson Contractors, Inc. 
of Reinbeck, Iowa submitted the low bid in the amount of $3,266,189.70. Attached is a 
bid tabulation for your reference. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends acceptance of 
the lowest bid from Peterson Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $3,266,189.70. On 
March 21, 2022, the Contract, Bonds, and Insurance Certificate will be submitted for 
City Council approval. 
 
Xc: Chase Schrage, Public Works Director 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer   
 
 

637

Item 19.



TABULATION OF BIDS

2022 Street Construction Project

City of Cedar Falls - Project Number RC-000-3230

BASE BID

ITEM ITEM CODE DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 2010-108-D-3 OFF-SITE TOPSOIL C.Y. 673 $25.00 16,825.00$        $30.00 $20,190.00 $25.00 $16,825.00
2 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION, CLASS 10, ROADWAY, WASTE C.Y. 2560 $15.00 38,400.00$        $14.00 $35,840.00 $14.00 $35,840.00
3 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION , CLASS 12, BOULDERS C.Y. 10 $30.00 300.00$             $30.00 $300.00 $30.00 $300.00
4 2010-108-F-0 BELOW GRADE EXCAVATION (CORE OUT) C.Y. 256 $12.50 3,200.00$          $14.00 $3,584.00 $14.00 $3,584.00
5 2010-108-G-0 SUBGRADE PREPARATION STA. 18 $250.00 4,500.00$          $300.00 $5,400.00 $300.00 $5,400.00
6 2010-108-H-0 SUBGRADE TREATMENT, GEOGRID TENSAR TX-160 S.Y. 4607 $7.50 34,552.50$        $8.50 $39,159.50 $8.50 $39,159.50
7 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 6 IN. S.Y. 14 $10.00 140.00$             $30.00 $420.00 $30.00 $420.00
8 2010-108-I-0 SUBBASE, MODIFIED, 12 IN. S.Y. 7951 $18.00 143,118.00$      $17.00 $135,167.00 $20.00 $159,020.00
9 3010-108-D-0 REPLACEMENT OF UNSUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL TONS 2253 $28.50 64,210.50$        $31.00 $69,843.00 $31.00 $69,843.00

10 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. HDPE L.F. 651 $60.00 39,060.00$        $64.00 $41,664.00 $64.00 $41,664.00
11 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 15 IN. RCP, 2000D L.F. 218 $75.00 16,350.00$        $88.00 $19,184.00 $88.00 $19,184.00
12 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 24 IN. HDPE  L.F. 676 $66.00 44,616.00$        $82.00 $55,432.00 $82.00 $55,432.00
13 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 30 IN. HDPE  L.F. 345 $95.00 32,775.00$        $100.00 $34,500.00 $100.00 $34,500.00
14 4020-108-A-1 STORM SEWER, TRENCHED, 36 IN. HDPE  L.F. 329 $100.00 32,900.00$        $125.00 $41,125.00 $125.00 $41,125.00
15 4020-211 SPECIAL PIPE CONNECTIONS, SW-211 EACH 2 $500.00 1,000.00$          $500.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
16 4020-108-D-1 REMOVAL STORM SEWER PIPE LESS THAN OR EQUAL TO 36 IN. L.F. 2798 $10.00 27,980.00$        $8.00 $22,384.00 $8.00 $22,384.00
17 4040-108-A-0 SUBDRAIN, PERFORATED, 6 IN. L.F. 1623 $12.00 19,476.00$        $15.00 $24,345.00 $15.00 $24,345.00
18 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, OUTLET, 6 IN. C.M.P. EACH 18 $275.00 4,950.00$          $300.00 $5,400.00 $300.00 $5,400.00
19 4040-108-D-0 SUBDRAIN, SUMP PUMP TAP EACH 39 $350.00 13,650.00$        $275.00 $10,725.00 $275.00 $10,725.00
20 4040-108-A-0 FIELD TILE, 4 IN. TO 8 IN., FIELD REPAIR L.F. 20 $20.00 400.00$             $20.00 $400.00 $20.00 $400.00
21 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 4" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 25 $70.00 1,750.00$          $105.00 $2,625.00 $105.00 $2,625.00
22 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 6" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 20 $75.00 1,500.00$          $80.00 $1,600.00 $80.00 $1,600.00
23 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 8" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 2303 $80.00 184,240.00$      $85.00 $195,755.00 $85.00 $195,755.00
24 5010-108-A-1 WATER MAIN, TRENCHED, 12" SJ DIP (POLYETHYLENE WRAPPED) L.F. 100 $90.00 9,000.00$          $121.00 $12,100.00 $121.00 $12,100.00
25 5010-108-C-2 FITTINGS, DUCTILE IRON LBS. 3521 $12.00 42,252.00$        $11.50 $40,491.50 $11.50 $40,491.50
26 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE SHORTSIDE, 3/4" EACH 15 $1,900.00 28,500.00$        $2,200.00 $33,000.00 $2,200.00 $33,000.00
27 5010-108-D-0 SERVICE, LONGSIDE, 3/4" EACH 19 $2,750.00 52,250.00$        $2,800.00 $53,200.00 $2,800.00 $53,200.00
28 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 4" EACH 11 $150.00 1,650.00$          $175.00 $1,925.00 $175.00 $1,925.00
29 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 6" EACH 11 $175.00 1,925.00$          $175.00 $1,925.00 $175.00 $1,925.00
30 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 8" EACH 18 $185.00 3,330.00$          $200.00 $3,600.00 $200.00 $3,600.00
31 5010-XX-1 MECHANICAL JOINT RESTRAINT, 12" EACH 12 $200.00 2,400.00$          $275.00 $3,300.00 $275.00 $3,300.00
32 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 4" EACH 1 $160.00 160.00$             $225.00 $225.00 $225.00 $225.00
33 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 6" EACH 2 $170.00 340.00$             $250.00 $500.00 $250.00 $500.00
34 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 8" EACH 18 $180.00 3,240.00$          $275.00 $4,950.00 $275.00 $4,950.00
35 5010-XX-2 JOINT RESTRAINT GASKET, 12" EACH 5 $190.00 950.00$             $350.00 $1,750.00 $350.00 $1,750.00
36 5010-XX-3 6" NITRILE GASKETS EACH 4 $160.00 640.00$             $200.00 $800.00 $200.00 $800.00
37 5010-XX-3 8" NITRILE GASKETS EACH 94 $170.00 15,980.00$        $225.00 $21,150.00 $225.00 $21,150.00
38 5010-XX-3 12" NITRILE GASKETS EACH 2 $180.00 360.00$             $250.00 $500.00 $250.00 $500.00
39 5020-108-A-0 VALVE, 8" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 5 $2,500.00 12,500.00$        $2,800.00 $14,000.00 $2,800.00 $14,000.00
40 5020-108-A-0 VALVE, 12" MJ GATE W/ BOX EACH 2 $2,750.00 5,500.00$          $4,300.00 $8,600.00 $4,300.00 $8,600.00
41 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY EACH 5 $5,500.00 27,500.00$        $6,700.00 $33,500.00 $6,700.00 $33,500.00
42 5020-108-E-0 VALVE BOX ADJUSTMENT EACH 2 $600.00 1,200.00$          $650.00 $1,300.00 $650.00 $1,300.00
43 5020-108-C-0 FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY REMOVAL EACH 3 $1,300.00 3,900.00$          $1,350.00 $4,050.00 $1,350.00 $4,050.00
44 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, STORM SEWER, SW-401, 48" DIA. EACH 6 $4,250.00 25,500.00$        $4,600.00 $27,600.00 $4,600.00 $27,600.00
45 6010-108-A-0 MANHOLE, SANITARY SEWER, SW-301, 48" DIA. EACH 6 $6,500.00 39,000.00$        $6,850.00 $41,100.00 $6,850.00 $41,100.00
46 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-507 EACH 1 $5,500.00 5,500.00$          $6,300.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00 $6,300.00
47 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-509 EACH 2 $7,000.00 14,000.00$        $7,700.00 $15,400.00 $7,700.00 $15,400.00
48 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-510 EACH 1 $7,500.00 7,500.00$          $9,300.00 $9,300.00 $9,300.00 $9,300.00
49 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE B EACH 3 $3,500.00 10,500.00$        $6,300.00 $18,900.00 $6,300.00 $18,900.00
50 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, TYPE D EACH 18 $6,000.00 108,000.00$      $7,700.00 $138,600.00 $7,700.00 $138,600.00
51 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SINGLE FLAT  EACH 1 $5,000.00 5,000.00$          $5,800.00 $5,800.00 $5,800.00 $5,800.00
52 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, DOUBLE FLAT  EACH 1 $5,800.00 5,800.00$          $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
53 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-507 TOP & INSERT EACH 14 $3,000.00 42,000.00$        $2,300.00 $32,200.00 $2,400.00 $33,600.00
54 6010-108-B-0 INTAKE, SW-509 TOP & INSERT EACH 2 $3,250.00 6,500.00$          $2,700.00 $5,400.00 $2,800.00 $5,600.00
55 6010-108-E-0 MANHOLE, ADJUSTMENT, MINOR EACH 6.25 $1,600.00 10,000.00$        $1,600.00 $10,000.00 $1,575.00 $9,843.75
56 6010-108-F-0 MANHOLE ADJUSTMENT, MAJOR (MR. MANHOLE) EACH 13 $2,500.00 32,500.00$        $2,800.00 $36,400.00 $2,800.00 $36,400.00
57 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF STORM MANHOLES AND INTAKES EACH 21 $750.00 15,750.00$        $600.00 $12,600.00 $600.00 $12,600.00
58 6010-108-H-0 REMOVAL OF SANITARY MANHOLES EACH 6 $1,500.00 9,000.00$          $850.00 $5,100.00 $850.00 $5,100.00
59 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 7 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 2590 $48.00 124,320.00$      $51.00 $132,090.00 $49.30 $127,687.00
60 7010-108-A-0 PAVEMENT, STAND. OR SLIP-FORM, P.C.C., 8 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 4520 $53.00 239,560.00$      $52.00 $235,040.00 $49.70 $224,644.00
61 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 5.5 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 30 $75.00 2,250.00$          $95.00 $2,850.00 $90.00 $2,700.00
62 7010-108-E-0 CURB, PCC 7 IN. 2.0 FT WIDTH, TYPE "C" CLASS III L.F. 105 $30.50 3,202.50$          $48.00 $5,040.00 $44.60 $4,683.00
63 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), SURF., 1/2", PG58-28S TON 2078 $140.00 290,920.00$      $132.00 $274,296.00 $130.50 $271,179.00
64 7020-108-A-0 HMA, (ST), BASE, 3/4", PG58-28S TON 2078 $140.00 290,920.00$      $130.00 $270,140.00 $129.10 $268,269.80
65 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY S.Y. 607 $10.00 6,070.00$          $9.00 $5,463.00 $9.00 $5,463.00
66 7030-108-A-0 REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK S.Y. 382 $10.00 3,820.00$          $9.00 $3,438.00 $9.00 $3,438.00
67 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 4 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 287 $50.00 14,350.00$        $55.00 $15,785.00 $66.50 $19,085.50
68 7030-108-E-0 SIDEWALK, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 90 $55.00 4,950.00$          $80.00 $7,200.00 $130.00 $11,700.00
69 7030-108-G-0 DETECTABLE WARNINGS S.F. 230 $51.00 11,730.00$        $52.00 $11,960.00 $45.00 $10,350.00
70 7030-108-H-0 DRIVEWAY, P.C.C., 6 IN., CLASS "C" S.Y. 607 $55.00 33,385.00$        $58.00 $35,206.00 $56.25 $34,143.75
71 7030-108-H-2 GRANULAR SURFACING, 1-INCH ROADSTONE TONS 20 $30.00 600.00$             $36.50 $730.00 $36.50 $730.00
72 7040-108-A-0 PATCH, P.C.C., FULL DEPTH, "M" MIX S.Y. 24 $300.00 7,200.00$          $250.00 $6,000.00 $300.00 $7,200.00
73 7040-108-C-0 PATCH, PARTIAL DEPTH? HMA (ST) SURFACE, 1/2", PG58-28S TONS 10 $250.00 2,500.00$          $250.00 $2,500.00 $225.00 $2,250.00
74 7040-108-G-0 MILLING S.Y. 1363 $35.00 47,705.00$        $36.00 $49,068.00 $38.50 $52,475.50
75 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, PCC S.Y. 7110 $8.00 56,880.00$        $7.50 $53,325.00 $8.25 $58,657.50
76 7040-108-H-0 PAVEMENT REMOVAL, ACC S.Y. 7110 $8.00 56,880.00$        $6.50 $46,215.00 $7.25 $51,547.50
77 7040-108-I-0 CURB AND GUTTER REMOVAL L.F. 135 $10.00 1,350.00$          $10.00 $1,350.00 $10.00 $1,350.00
78 8020-108-B-0 PAINTED PAVEMENT MARKINGS, SOLVENT/WATERBORNE STA. 124 $100.00 12,400.00$        $80.00 $9,920.00 $75.00 $9,300.00
79 8020-108-G-0 PAINTED SYMBOLS AND LEGENDS EACH 22 $75.00 1,650.00$          $75.00 $1,650.00 $66.00 $1,452.00
80 8020-XX-1 STREET SIGNS (SIGNS, POST, & RECIEVER) EACH 22 $275.00 6,050.00$          $325.00 $7,150.00 $290.00 $6,380.00
81 8030-108-A-0 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL L.S. 1 $50,000.00 50,000.00$        $63,500.00 $63,500.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00
82 9010-108-B-0 SEEDING, FERTILIZING AND MULCHING FOR HYDRAULIC SEEDING S.F. 1936 $0.40 774.40$             $0.65 $1,258.40 $0.50 $968.00
83 9020-108-A-0 SOD S.F. 34351 $1.00 34,351.00$        $0.80 $27,480.80 $0.85 $29,198.35
84 9040-108-A-2 STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP), LS 1 $15,000.00 15,000.00$        $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00
85 9040-108-D-1A WATTLES, 9IN. STRAW L.F. 3554 $2.00 7,108.00$          $2.25 $7,996.50 $2.00 $7,108.00
86 9040-108-D-2A WATTLES, MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL L.F. 3554 $0.50 1,777.00$          $0.50 $1,777.00 $0.40 $1,421.60
87 9040-108-T-1 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, INSTALLATION EACH 50 $150.00 7,500.00$          $150.00 $7,500.00 $135.00 $6,750.00
88 9040-108-T-2 INLET PROTECTION DEVICE, MAINTENANCE EACH 50 $50.00 2,500.00$          $50.00 $2,500.00 $35.00 $1,750.00
89 11020-108-A-0 MOBILIZATION L.S. 1 $350,000.00 350,000.00$      $368,000.00 $368,000.00 $380,000.00 $380,000.00
90 11050-108-A-0 CONCRETE WASHOUT LS 1 $10,000.00 10,000.00$        $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
91 11050-108-A-0 SAW AND SEAL JOINTS LF 25440 $6.50 165,360.00$      $7.30 $185,712.00 $8.00 $203,520.00
92 2010-108-E-0 EXCAVATION AND DISPOSAL OF CONTAMINATED SOIL CY 216 $190.00 41,040.00$        $90.00 $19,440.00 $90.00 $19,440.00

TOTAL BASE BID: 3,180,122.90$   3,266,189.70$   3,279,382.25$   
BID SECURITY: 10% 10%

Bid Security x x

x x

x xNon-Collusion Affidavit

Bidder Status Form

February 22, 2021 at 

2:00 PM
ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE Peterson Contractors Inc. Owen Contracting, Inc.

1 2

638

Item 19.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council  
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V 
  City Project Number: SU-364-3189 
  Contract Documents 
 
Attached for your approval are the Form of Contract; the Performance, Payment, and 
Maintenance Bonds; Certificates of Insurance; and Form of Proposal with Peterson 
Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V 
Project.  
 
This project consists of mass grading of 200-acre industrial park expansion site and 
constructing infrastructure associated with the first phase of the industrial park 
expansion site. The respective infrastructure includes 20,075 SY PCC, 7,338 LF storm 
sewer, 4,385 LF sanitary sewer, 5,125 LF water main, and other associated items.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approving and 
executing the contract with Peterson Contractors, Inc. for the construction of the West 
Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V Project. 
 
If you have any questions or comments feel free to contact me.  
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, City Engineer 
  
  

 
 
 

639

Item 20.



640

Item 20.



641

Item 20.



642

Item 20.



643

Item 20.



644

Item 20.



645

Item 20.



646

Item 20.



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $

PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

2/24/2022

22322

Peterson Contractors, Inc.
Reinbeck Motors Company, Inc.
PO Box A/104 Blackhawk St
Reinbeck, IA 50669

20079
37885
16535

A 2,000,000

X X CGD7459902 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 100,000

Blnkt Contractual 10,000

XCU Coverage 2,000,000

4,000,000

4,000,000

2,000,000A

X X CAS7459903 7/1/2021 7/1/2022

1,000,000B

X X 42-XSF-100514-05 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 1,000,000

C

X CWD7459901 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 1,000,000
N 1,000,000

1,000,000

D Leased / Rented Equi CPP9267064-10 7/1/2021 Leased/Rented Equipm 5,000,000

D Cargo CPP9267064-10 7/1/2021 7/1/2022 Cargo 2,500,000

RE: J9657 W. Viking Industrial Park, City of Cedar Falls
City of Cedar Falls is additonal insured. Waiver of subrogation applies in favor of the City of Cedar Falls.

City of Cedar Falls
220 Clay Street
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

PETECON-02 UHRAM1

LSB Financial Services
302 Main St
Cedar Falls, IA 50613

Amy Uhrmacher

amy.uhrmacher@mylsb.com

Greenwich Insurance Company
National Fire & Marine
XL Specialty Insurance Company
Zurich American Ins Co

X

7/1/2022

X
X

X
X

X

X

X X

X

X

X

647

Item 20.



MANUS © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 1 of 2 

All rights reserved. May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

ENDORSEMENT #031

This endorsement, effective 12:01 a.m., July 1, 202 , forms a part of Policy No.  CGD7459902 issued to 

PETERSON CONTRACTORS, INC. 

by Greenwich Insurance Company 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES ENDORSEMENT 

CITY OF DES MOINES, IOWA 
CITY OF CEDAR RAPIDS, IOWA 

CITY OF CORALVILLE, IOWA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY OF DUBUQUE, IOWA 

This endorsement modifies Insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

Under the terms of this Endorsement, Jurisdiction shall mean any municipal corporation, as 
defined in Chapter 670 of the Iowa Code, with respect to all work and services performed by the 
named insured for any such Jurisdiction as identified on any Certificate of Insurance issued as 
proof of insurance as required by the Urban Standard Specifications for Public Improvements. 

1. Cancellation and Material Change

Thirty (3) days Advance Written Notice of Cancellation, Non-Renewal, Reduction in
insurance coverage and/or limits, and ten (10) days written notice of non-payment of
premium shall be sent to the Jurisdiction at the office and attention of the Certificate
Holder.  This endorsement supersedes the Standard Cancellation Statement on
Certifications of Insurance to which this endorsement is attached.

2. Additional Insured

The Jurisdiction, including all its elected and appointed officials, all its employees and
volunteers, all its boards, commissions and authorities and their board members,
employees, and volunteers, and all its officers, agents, and consultants, are named as
Additional Insureds with respect to insured autos and arising out of the contractor’s work
and services performed for the Jurisdiction.  This coverage shall be primary to the
Additional Insureds, and not contributing with any other insurance or similar protection

City of Iowa City, Iowa

648

Item 20.



MANUS © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 1 of 2 

All rights reserved. May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

available to the Additional Insureds, whether other available coverage be primary, 
contributing, or excess. 

3. Government Immunities 

A. Nonwaiver of Governmental Immunity.  The insurance carrier expressly agrees 
and states that the purchase of this policy and including the jurisdiction as an 
Additional Insured does not waive any of the defenses of governmental immunity 
available to the Jurisdiction under Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 

B. Claims Coverage.  The insurance carrier further agrees that this policy of 
insurance shall cover only those claims not subject to the defense of 
governmental immunity under the Code of Iowa Section 670.4 as it now exists 
and as it may be amended from time to time. 

C. Assertion of Governmental Immunity.  The Jurisdiction shall be responsible for 
asserting any defense of governmental immunity, and may do so at any time and 
shall do so upon the timely written request of the insurance carrier.  Nothing 
contained in this endorsement shall prevent the carrier from asserting the 
defense of governmental immunity on behalf of the Jurisdiction. 

D. Non-Denial of Coverage.  The insurance carrier shall not deny coverage or deny 
any of the rights and benefits accruing to the Jurisdiction under this policy for 
reasons of governmental immunity unless and until a court of competent 
jurisdiction has ruled in favor of the defense(s) or governmental immunity 
asserted by the Jurisdiction. 

E. No Other Change in Policy.  The insurance carrier and the Jurisdiction agree that 
the above preservation of governmental immunities shall not otherwise change or 
alter the coverage available under this policy. 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged. 

649

Item 20.



WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY WC 00 03 13

(Ed. 4-84)

WAIVER OF OUR RIGHT TO RECOVER FROM OTHERS ENDORSEMENT

We have the right to recover our payments from anyone liable for an injury covered by this policy. We will not enforce
our right against the person or organization named in the Schedule. (This agreement applies only to the extent that
you perform work under a written contract that requires you to obtain this agreement from us.)

This agreement shall not operate directly or indirectly to benefit anyone not named in the Schedule.

Schedule

WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN AGREEMENT SIGNED PRIOR TO LOSS.

This endorsement changes the policy to which it is attached and is  effective on the date issued unless otherwise stated.

(The information below is required only when this endorsement is issued subsequent to preparation of the policy.)

Endorsement Effective July 1, 202 Policy No. CWD7459901 Endorsement No.

Insured PETERSON CONTRACTORS, INC.

Insurance Company  Countersigned by
XL Specialty Insurance Company

WC 00 03 13
(Ed. 4-84)

¬  1983 National  Counci l  on Compensation Insurance.
650

Item 20.



POLICY NUMBER: CGD7459902 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24 04 12 19

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US (WAIVER OF SUBROGATION)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES
POLLUTION LIABILITY LIMITED COVERAGE PART DESIGNATED SITES
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY DESIGNATED TANKS

SCHEDULE

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of
Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us of
Section IV – Conditions:
We waive any right of recovery against the person(s)
or organization(s) shown in the Schedule above
because of payments we make under this Coverage
Part. Such waiver by us applies only to the extent that
the insured has waived its right of recovery against
such person(s) or organization(s) prior to loss. This
endorsement applies only to the person(s) or
organization(s) shown in the Schedule above.

CG 24 04 12 19 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2018 Page 1 of 1

Name Of Person(s) Or Organization(s):

WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT EXECUTED PRIOR TO LOSS (EXCEPT 
WHERE NOT PERMITTED BY LAW).

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

651

Item 20.



POLICY NUMBER: CAS7459903 COMMERCIAL AUTO
CA 04 44 10 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US (WAIVER OF SUBROGATION)

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

AUTO DEALERS COVERAGE FORM
BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM
MOTOR CARRIER COVERAGE FORM

With respect to coverage provided by this endorsement, the provisions of the Coverage Form apply unless
modified by the endorsement.

This endorsement changes the policy effective on the inception date of the policy unless another date is indicated
below.

Named Insured: PETERSON CONTRACTORS, INC.

Endorsement Effective Date: July 1, 202

SCHEDULE

The Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against
Others To Us condition does not apply to the
person(s) or organization(s) shown in the Schedule,
but only to the extent that subrogation is waived prior
to the "accident" or the "loss" under a contract with
that person or organization.

CA 04 44 10 13 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2011 Page 1 of 1

Name(s) Of Person(s) Or Organization(s):
WHERE REQUIRED BY WRITTEN CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT EXECUTED PRIOR TO LOSS (EXCEPT
WHERE NOT PERMITTED BY LAW).

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

652

Item 20.



XIL 2010-1001 (Ed. 0413) © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 1 of 2 
All rights reserved.  May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

ENDORSEMENT #02 

    This endorsement, effective 12:01 a.m., July 1, 202 , forms a part of Policy 

No. CGD7459902 issued to PETERSON CONTRACTORS, INC. 

by Greenwich Insurance Company 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR CONTRACTORS – SCHEDULED PERSON OR 
ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

Name of Person or Organization:

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION THAT YOU ARE REQUIRED IN A WRITTEN CONTRACT OR 
WRITTEN AGREEMENT TO INCLUDE AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED PROVIDED THE "BODILY 
INJURY" OR "PROPERTY DAMAGE" OCCURS SUBSEQUENT TO THE EXECUTION OF THE 
WRITTEN CONTRACT OR WRITTEN AGREEMENT BUT ONLY WHEN THE CONTRACT DEMAND 
SPECIFIES ISO 2001 EDITION FORMS OR EQUIVALENT 

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the 
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.) 

A. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an insured the person or organization
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of your ongoing operations
performed for that insured.

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these additional insureds, the following exclusion is
added:

2. Exclusions

This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" occurring after:

(1) All work, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with
such work, on the project (other than service, maintenance or repairs) to be
performed by or on behalf of the additional insured(s) at the site of the covered
operations has been completed; or

653

Item 20.



XIL 2010-1001 (Ed. 0413) © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 2 of 2 
All rights reserved.  May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

(2) That portion of "your work" out of which the injury or damage arises has been put
to its intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or
subcontractor engaged in performing operations for a principal as a part of the
same project.

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

654

Item 20.



XIL 2037-1001 (Ed. 0413) © 2013, XL America, Inc. Page 1 of 1 
All rights reserved.  May not be copied without permission. 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its permission 

ENDORSEMENT #0  

    This endorsement, effective 12:01 a.m., July 1, 202 , forms a part of Policy 

No. CGD7459902 issued to PETERSON CONTRACTORS, INC. 

by Greenwich Insurance Company 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED – OWNERS, LESSEES OR CONTRACTORS – 

COMPLETED OPERATIONS 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

Name of Person or Organization:

ANY PERSON OR ORGANIZATION THAT YOU ARE REQUIRED IN A WRITTEN CONTRACT OR 
WRITTEN AGREEMENT TO INCLUDE AS AN ADDITIONAL INSURED PROVIDED THE "BODILY 
INJURY" OR "PROPERTY DAMAGE" OCCURS SUBSEQUENT TO THE EXECUTION OF THE 
WRITTEN CONTRACT OR WRITTEN AGREEMENT BUT ONLY WHEN THE CONTRACT DEMAND 
SPECIFIES ISO 2001 EDITION FORMS OR EQUIVALENT 

Location and Description of Completed Operations:

VARIOUS AS REQUIRED PER WRITTEN CONTRACT. 

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the 
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.) 

Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an insured the person or organization shown in 
the Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of "your work" at the location designated and 
described in the schedule of this endorsement performed for that insured and included in the "products-
completed operations hazard". 

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 

655

Item 20.



656

Item 20.



CEDAR FALLS WEST VIKING ROAD INDUSTRIAL PARK PHASE V (#8022849)

Owner: Cedar Falls IA, City of

Solicitor: Snyder & Associates, Inc.

02/11/2022 02:00 PM CST

Line Item Item Code Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension

1 2010-C Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

2 2010-D-1 Topsoil, On-site CY 224000 $4.00 $896,000.00 $3.95 $884,800.00 $4.98 $1,115,520.00 $5.00 $1,120,000.00 $5.00 $1,120,000.00

3 2010-E Excavation, Class 10 CY 962200 $2.50 $2,405,500.00 $2.34 $2,251,548.00 $3.46 $3,329,212.00 $3.65 $3,512,030.00 $3.60 $3,463,920.00

4 2010-E Excavation, Class 10, Unsuitable or Unstable CY 400 $12.50 $5,000.00 $57.00 $22,800.00 $71.45 $28,580.00 $75.00 $30,000.00 $20.00 $8,000.00

5 2010-G Subgrade Preparation, 24" SY 23715 $4.00 $94,860.00 $1.55 $36,758.25 $3.53 $83,713.95 $3.75 $88,931.25 $9.00 $213,435.00

6 2010-I Subbase, Modified, 12" SY 23715 $11.00 $260,865.00 $13.85 $328,452.75 $15.87 $376,357.05 $17.50 $415,012.50 $33.20 $787,338.00

7 2010-999-A Temporary Granular Access Road SY 4622 $30.00 $138,660.00 $15.00 $69,330.00 $20.00 $92,440.00 $25.00 $115,550.00 $23.40 $108,154.80

8 2010-L Compaction Testing LS 1 $17,500.00 $17,500.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $29,500.00 $29,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

9 3010-C Trench Foundation TON 186 $35.00 $6,510.00 $31.00 $5,766.00 $45.00 $8,370.00 $45.00 $8,370.00 $28.90 $5,375.40

10 3010-D Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Material CY 325 $25.00 $8,125.00 $40.00 $13,000.00 $40.00 $13,000.00 $40.00 $13,000.00 $48.00 $15,600.00

11 3010-F Trench Compaction Testing LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

12 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC SDR 26, 12" LF 3604 $75.00 $270,300.00 $90.00 $324,360.00 $100.00 $360,400.00 $100.00 $360,400.00 $95.80 $345,263.20

13 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC SDR 26, 15" LF 251 $90.00 $22,590.00 $108.00 $27,108.00 $145.00 $36,395.00 $145.00 $36,395.00 $172.00 $43,172.00

14 4010-A-1 Sanitary Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, PVC SDR 26, 21" LF 530 $110.00 $58,300.00 $147.00 $77,910.00 $200.00 $106,000.00 $200.00 $106,000.00 $197.50 $104,675.00

15 4010-C-1 Sanitary Sewer Force Main, Trenched, PVC, 1.5" LF 905 $40.00 $36,200.00 $24.00 $21,720.00 $15.00 $13,575.00 $15.00 $13,575.00 $34.50 $31,222.50

16 4010-E Sanitary Sewer Service Stub, PVC SDR 23.5, 6" LF 771 $55.00 $42,405.00 $60.00 $46,260.00 $75.00 $57,825.00 $75.00 $57,825.00 $58.60 $45,180.60

17 4010-H Removal of Sanitary Sewer, All Types and Sizes LF 150 $35.00 $5,250.00 $12.00 $1,800.00 $35.00 $5,250.00 $35.00 $5,250.00 $14.70 $2,205.00

18 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 15" LF 1433 $62.00 $88,846.00 $55.50 $79,531.50 $55.50 $79,531.50 $55.50 $79,531.50 $55.10 $78,958.30

19 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 18" LF 611 $67.00 $40,937.00 $52.50 $32,077.50 $56.50 $34,521.50 $56.50 $34,521.50 $52.40 $32,016.40

20 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 24" LF 2016 $85.00 $171,360.00 $68.00 $137,088.00 $75.00 $151,200.00 $75.00 $151,200.00 $67.60 $136,281.60

21 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 30" LF 855 $120.00 $102,600.00 $84.00 $71,820.00 $100.00 $85,500.00 $100.00 $85,500.00 $83.70 $71,563.50

22 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 36" LF 1495 $145.00 $216,775.00 $114.00 $170,430.00 $127.50 $190,612.50 $127.50 $190,612.50 $113.00 $168,935.00

23 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 42" LF 733 $180.00 $131,940.00 $142.00 $104,086.00 $185.00 $135,605.00 $185.00 $135,605.00 $141.50 $103,719.50

24 4020-A-1 Storm Sewer, Trenched, RCP, 48" LF 195 $200.00 $39,000.00 $188.00 $36,660.00 $235.00 $45,825.00 $235.00 $45,825.00 $187.00 $36,465.00

25 4020-D Removal of Storm Sewer, All Types and Sizes LF 200 $25.00 $5,000.00 $37.00 $7,400.00 $15.00 $3,000.00 $15.00 $3,000.00 $36.90 $7,380.00

26 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 15" EA 3 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,250.00 $3,750.00 $2,100.00 $6,300.00 $2,100.00 $6,300.00 $1,203.00 $3,609.00

27 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 18" EA 4 $1,750.00 $7,000.00 $1,300.00 $5,200.00 $2,300.00 $9,200.00 $2,300.00 $9,200.00 $1,259.00 $5,036.00

28 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 24" EA 9 $2,500.00 $22,500.00 $1,325.00 $11,925.00 $2,800.00 $25,200.00 $2,800.00 $25,200.00 $1,296.00 $11,664.00

29 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 30" EA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,650.00 $1,650.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $1,633.00 $1,633.00

30 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 36" EA 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $4,100.00 $4,100.00 $4,100.00 $4,100.00 $2,088.00 $2,088.00

31 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 42" EA 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,400.00 $2,400.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,388.00 $2,388.00

32 4030-B Pipe Apron, RCP, 48" EA 2 $6,000.00 $12,000.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $1,273.00 $2,546.00

33 4040-A Subdrain, Type 1, 6" LF 10085 $7.00 $70,595.00 $13.25 $133,626.25 $16.50 $166,402.50 $16.50 $166,402.50 $15.50 $156,317.50

34 4040-C Subdrain Cleanout, Type A-1, 6" EA 24 $500.00 $12,000.00 $970.00 $23,280.00 $1,250.00 $30,000.00 $1,250.00 $30,000.00 $712.50 $17,100.00

35 4040-D Subdrain Outlets and Connections, CMP, 6" EA 84 $300.00 $25,200.00 $235.00 $19,740.00 $285.00 $23,940.00 $285.00 $23,940.00 $114.00 $9,576.00

36 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched, 1" LF 920 $35.00 $32,200.00 $24.55 $22,586.00 $15.00 $13,800.00 $15.00 $13,800.00 $25.30 $23,276.00

37 5010-A-1 Water Main, Trenched,  DIP, 12" (w/ Nitrile Gaskets) LF 5125 $80.00 $410,000.00 $86.25 $442,031.25 $100.00 $512,500.00 $100.00 $512,500.00 $93.60 $479,700.00

38 5010-D Water Service Stub, DIP, 8" EA 6 $2,000.00 $12,000.00 $6,650.00 $39,900.00 $12,000.00 $72,000.00 $12,000.00 $72,000.00 $7,094.00 $42,564.00

39 5020-A Valve, Gate, 12" EA 10 $2,500.00 $25,000.00 $4,000.00 $40,000.00 $3,400.00 $34,000.00 $3,400.00 $34,000.00 $3,003.00 $30,030.00

40 5020-C Fire Hydrant Assembly EA 21 $5,000.00 $105,000.00 $6,400.00 $134,400.00 $6,500.00 $136,500.00 $6,500.00 $136,500.00 $4,929.00 $103,509.00

41 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 48" EA 8 $4,000.00 $32,000.00 $8,800.00 $70,400.00 $7,500.00 $60,000.00 $7,500.00 $60,000.00 $6,438.00 $51,504.00

42 6010-A Manhole, SW-301, 60" EA 5 $6,500.00 $32,500.00 $17,800.00 $89,000.00 $14,250.00 $71,250.00 $14,250.00 $71,250.00 $11,498.00 $57,490.00

43 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 48" EA 4 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $4,000.00 $16,000.00 $3,982.00 $15,928.00

44 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 60" EA 1 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $7,950.00 $7,950.00 $9,250.00 $9,250.00 $9,250.00 $9,250.00 $7,919.00 $7,919.00

45 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 72" EA 5 $7,000.00 $35,000.00 $7,500.00 $37,500.00 $8,500.00 $42,500.00 $8,500.00 $42,500.00 $7,481.00 $37,405.00

46 6010-A Manhole, SW-401, 84" EA 1 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $11,428.00 $11,428.00

47 6010-B Intake, SW-501 EA 6 $4,000.00 $24,000.00 $3,900.00 $23,400.00 $3,400.00 $20,400.00 $3,400.00 $20,400.00 $3,871.00 $23,226.00

48 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 48" EA 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,950.00 $4,950.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $4,929.00 $4,929.00

49 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 60" EA 2 $6,500.00 $13,000.00 $7,100.00 $14,200.00 $7,400.00 $14,800.00 $7,400.00 $14,800.00 $7,050.00 $14,100.00

50 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 84" EA 1 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $9,200.00 $9,200.00 $9,700.00 $9,700.00 $9,700.00 $9,700.00 $9,182.00 $9,182.00

51 6010-B Intake, SW-502, 96" EA 4 $11,000.00 $44,000.00 $13,650.00 $54,600.00 $16,500.00 $66,000.00 $16,500.00 $66,000.00 $13,634.00 $54,536.00

52 6010-B Intake, SW-505 EA 16 $7,000.00 $112,000.00 $5,000.00 $80,000.00 $5,600.00 $89,600.00 $5,600.00 $89,600.00 $4,989.00 $79,824.00

53 6010-B Intake, SW-506 EA 6 $8,000.00 $48,000.00 $8,200.00 $49,200.00 $8,500.00 $51,000.00 $8,500.00 $51,000.00 $8,170.00 $49,020.00

54 6010-B Intake, SW-507 EA 1 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,550.00 $4,550.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,517.00 $4,517.00

55 6010-B Intake, SW-508 EA 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $4,800.00 $4,800.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $4,745.00 $4,745.00

56 6010-B Intake, SW-509 EA 2 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $5,300.00 $10,600.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $7,500.00 $15,000.00 $5,255.00 $10,510.00

57 6010-B Intake, SW-510 EA 2 $9,500.00 $19,000.00 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $5,445.00 $10,890.00

58 6010-B Intake, SW-512, 24" DIA EA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00 $1,774.00 $1,774.00

59 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 3' x 3' EA 2 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $5,150.00 $10,300.00 $5,350.00 $10,700.00 $5,350.00 $10,700.00 $5,142.00 $10,284.00

60 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 4' x 4' EA 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $4,367.00 $4,367.00

61 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 5' x 5' EA 1 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $8,250.00 $6,972.00 $6,972.00

62 6010-B Intake, SW-513, 6' x 6' EA 4 $8,500.00 $34,000.00 $8,450.00 $33,800.00 $9,250.00 $37,000.00 $9,250.00 $37,000.00 $8,409.00 $33,636.00

63 6010-G Connection to Existing Intake EA 1 $500.00 $500.00 $850.00 $850.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $849.00 $849.00

64 6010-C-2 External Drop Connection EA 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $6,390.00 $6,390.00

65 SP-6010-I Grinder Pump Station LS 1 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $105,000.00 $105,000.00 $110,000.00 $110,000.00 $110,000.00 $110,000.00 $136,000.00 $136,000.00

66 7010-A Pavement, PCC, 9", W/ CD Baskets SY 20075 $50.00 $1,003,750.00 $48.25 $968,618.75 $52.25 $1,048,918.75 $53.25 $1,068,993.75 $47.70 $957,577.50

67 7020-B Pavement, HMA, 6" SY 110 $65.00 $7,150.00 $75.00 $8,250.00 $71.60 $7,876.00 $75.00 $8,250.00 $71.60 $7,876.00

68 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 4" SY 841 $55.00 $46,255.00 $43.50 $36,583.50 $52.00 $43,732.00 $65.00 $54,665.00 $41.00 $34,481.00

69 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 5" SY 225 $60.00 $13,500.00 $37.00 $8,325.00 $55.00 $12,375.00 $68.50 $15,412.50 $34.50 $7,762.50

70 7030-E Sidewalk, PCC, 6" SY 110 $70.00 $7,700.00 $82.50 $9,075.00 $60.00 $6,600.00 $73.50 $8,085.00 $80.00 $8,800.00

71 7030-G Detectable Warnings SF 180 $50.00 $9,000.00 $42.00 $7,560.00 $40.00 $7,200.00 $42.00 $7,560.00 $42.00 $7,560.00

72 7030-H-1 Driveway, Paved, PCC, 7" SY 68 $68.00 $4,624.00 $58.00 $3,944.00 $70.00 $4,760.00 $90.50 $6,154.00 $58.00 $3,944.00

73 7030-H-2 Driveway, Granular SY 1074 $15.00 $16,110.00 $7.25 $7,786.50 $7.50 $8,055.00 $10.00 $10,740.00 $10.00 $10,740.00

74 7040-H Pavement Removal, PCC SY 184 $25.00 $4,600.00 $7.75 $1,426.00 $12.00 $2,208.00 $20.00 $3,680.00 $30.00 $5,520.00

75 7040-H Pavement Removal, Sealcoat SY 107 $15.00 $1,605.00 $6.75 $722.25 $11.50 $1,230.50 $11.50 $1,230.50 $20.00 $2,140.00

76 8020-B Painted Pavement Markings, Solvent/Waterborne STA 52 $100.00 $5,200.00 $80.00 $4,160.00 $80.00 $4,160.00 $83.50 $4,342.00 $80.00 $4,160.00

77 8030-A Temporary Traffic Control LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $11,500.00 $11,500.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00

78 SP-8940-A Sign Panels SF 127 $20.00 $2,540.00 $24.00 $3,048.00 $24.00 $3,048.00 $25.00 $3,175.00 $24.00 $3,048.00

79 SP-8940-B Sign Posts LF 198 $35.00 $6,930.00 $14.00 $2,772.00 $14.00 $2,772.00 $14.50 $2,871.00 $14.00 $2,772.00

80 9010-B Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Turf Seed ACRE 6 $3,000.00 $18,000.00 $2,050.00 $12,300.00 $1,700.00 $10,200.00 $2,100.00 $12,600.00 $2,050.00 $12,300.00

81 9010-B Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Native Seed ACRE 22 $2,500.00 $55,000.00 $3,575.00 $78,650.00 $3,300.00 $72,600.00 $3,700.00 $81,400.00 $3,575.00 $78,650.00

82 9010-B Seeding, Seeding, Fertilizing, and Mulching, Erosion Control Mix ACRE 164 $2,000.00 $328,000.00 $1,050.00 $172,200.00 $1,240.00 $203,360.00 $1,100.00 $180,400.00 $1,050.00 $172,200.00

83 9030-C Landscaping LS 1 $175,000.00 $175,000.00 $175,000.00 $175,000.00 $157,000.00 $157,000.00 $160,000.00 $160,000.00 $175,000.00 $175,000.00

84 9040-A-2 SWPPP Management LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $34,200.00 $34,200.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

85 9040-D-1 Filter Sock, 8" LF 10000 $3.00 $30,000.00 $2.25 $22,500.00 $2.25 $22,500.00 $2.35 $23,500.00 $2.25 $22,500.00

86 9040-D-2 Filter Sock, Removal LF 10000 $1.00 $10,000.00 $0.25 $2,500.00 $0.25 $2,500.00 $0.25 $2,500.00 $0.25 $2,500.00

87 9040-E-0 Temporary RECP, Type 2.C SY 36000 $2.00 $72,000.00 $0.75 $27,000.00 $1.05 $37,800.00 $0.75 $27,000.00 $0.75 $27,000.00

88 9040-J-0 Rip Rap, Class E TON 245 $70.00 $17,150.00 $44.00 $10,780.00 $56.00 $13,720.00 $50.00 $12,250.00 $58.00 $14,210.00

89 9040-N-1 Silt Fence or Silt Fence Ditch Check LF 40000 $1.00 $40,000.00 $1.40 $56,000.00 $1.50 $60,000.00 $1.40 $56,000.00 $1.38 $55,200.00

90 9040-N-3 Silt Fence or Silt Fence Ditch Check, Removal of Device LF 40000 $1.00 $40,000.00 $0.01 $400.00 $0.05 $2,000.00 $0.01 $400.00 $0.01 $400.00

91 9040-Q-2 Erosion Control Mulching ACRE 6 $2,250.00 $13,500.00 $2,150.00 $12,900.00 $1,300.00 $7,800.00 $2,200.00 $13,200.00 $2,150.00 $12,900.00

92 9040-T-1 Inlet Protection Device EA 45 $150.00 $6,750.00 $150.00 $6,750.00 $90.00 $4,050.00 $160.00 $7,200.00 $150.00 $6,750.00

93 11,020-A Mobilization LS 1 $350,000.00 $350,000.00 $125,000.00 $125,000.00 $440,000.00 $440,000.00 $275,000.00 $275,000.00 $810,000.00 $810,000.00

Totals:

Engineer Estimate Peterson Contractors Inc Steger Const Inc Pirc-Tobin Construction Inc C.J. Moyna & Sons, LLC

$8,714,882.00 $8,147,645.50 $10,398,091.25 $10,481,235.50 $10,992,313.30

657

Item 20.



658

Item 20.



659

Item 20.



660

Item 20.



661

Item 20.



662

Item 20.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement 
  City Project No. BR-106-3215   
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 

 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning to remove and replace the existing 2 span slab 
bridge at Olive Street with a twin box culvert. The existing bridge will be replaced with a 
box culvert extending from the existing College Street Culvert to the east side of Olive 
Street, downstream channel improvements will be incorporated, sidewalk improvements 
for walkability to the College Hill corridor, and placement of a new road above the 
culvert. The project will include improvements to the water main, storm sewer and 
sanitary sewer. Right-of-Way acquired for the project will be used for culvert alignment 
and stream channel restorations. The project will require the acquisition of right-of-way, 

temporary and permanent easements from four (4) properties. The owners of the following 
properties have accepted our offer: 
 
Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

Karen B. Mukai, Trustee 
Teru Mukai and Karen B. Mukai Revocable Trust 

2009 Olive Street Temporary Easement 
Permanent Easement 

Oak Tree Properties, LLC 2010 Olive Street Temporary Easement 
Permanent Easement 

 
Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use General Obligation and Tax Increment Financing for the design and right-of-
way portion of this project. The City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with 
AECOM Technical Services, Inc., of Waterloo, Iowa, on January 6th, 2020 for property 
acquisition and design services. Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital 
Improvements Program in FY22 and FY23 under item number 80. If approved, the City Attorney 
will prepare the necessary closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for 
these parcels. 
  

663

Item 21.



The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City Council 
state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor 
to execute the agreement for the Olive Street Box Culvert Replacement Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

664

Item 21.



LEGEND

JUNE 2020

ROW EXHIBIT

CULVERT REPLACEMENT

OLIVE STREET BOX 

CITY PROJECT NUMBER: BR-106-3215

AECOM PROJECT NUMBER: 60623997
CITY OF CEDAR FALLSpermanent easement

TEMPORARY EASEMENT

TEMP. EASEMENT LINES

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINES

CF102

City Of Cedar Falls

CF101

2017-2019 Olive St

CV Commercial LLC

CF104

2016 Olive St

Geisler, Michael B

City Of Cedar Falls

City Of Cedar Falls

CF103

2010 Olive St

Cunningham, Eugene

Cunningham, Mark

2005 Olive St

Contract Buyer Eilers, Dwayne II

Mukai, Karen B Trust

Mukai, Teru Trust

2009 Olive St

Contract Buyer Eilers, Dwayne II

Mukai, Karen B Trust

Mukai, Teru Trust

Existing Easement

Existing Easement

O

FEET

20

665

Item 21.



666

Item 21.



667

Item 21.



668

Item 21.



669

Item 21.



670

Item 21.



671

Item 21.



672

Item 21.



673

Item 21.



674

Item 21.



675

Item 21.



676

Item 21.



677

Item 21.



678

Item 21.



679

Item 21.



680

Item 21.



681

Item 21.



682

Item 21.



683

Item 21.



684

Item 21.



685

Item 21.



686

Item 21.



687

Item 21.



688

Item 21.



689

Item 21.



690

Item 21.



691

Item 21.



692

Item 21.



693

Item 21.



694

Item 21.



695

Item 21.



696

Item 21.



697

Item 21.



698

Item 21.



699

Item 21.



700

Item 21.



701

Item 21.



702

Item 21.



703

Item 21.



704

Item 21.



705

Item 21.



706

Item 21.



707

Item 21.



708

Item 21.



709

Item 21.



710

Item 21.



711

Item 21.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Matthew Tolan, EI, Civil Engineer II 
 
 DATE: March 1, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: West 27th Street Reconstruction Project   
  City Project Number: RC-000-3240 
  Property Acquisitions & Temporary Easements 

 
The City of Cedar Falls is planning the reconstruction of W. 27th Street west of Hudson Road to 
the west end of the new Cedar Falls High School. The proposed roadway reconstruction is 
planned to be constructed starting in FY 2022.  The project will include improvements to the 
water main, storm sewer, sidewalks, and other miscellaneous roadway items. Also included as 
part of the project, is the construction of three (3) new roundabouts at the intersections of 
Greenhill Road and the two drive entrances to the school. The project will require the acquisition 
of temporary and permanent easements from nine (9) properties to complete construction. The 
owners of the following properties have accepted our offer: 

 
Parcel No. Owner Address/Parcel ID Acquisition Type 

01 The Rasmusson Co. 9814-22-201-007 Fee Title 
Temporary Easement 

08 Tailwind Cedar Falls, LLC 8914-23-101-027 Fee Title 
Temporary Easement 

Attached is a map that identifies the location of these properties. 
 
The City will use Street Construction Funds for the design and right-of-way portion of this 
project. The City entered into a Professional Services Agreement with AECOM Technical 
Services, Inc., of Waterloo, Iowa, on July 6th, 2020 for property acquisition and design services. 
Funds for this project are identified in the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY21, 
FY22 and FY23 under item number 138. If approved, the City Attorney will prepare the 
necessary closing documents and staff will complete the acquisition process for these parcels. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends that the City Council 
state their support in the form of a resolution approving the acquisitions and authorize the Mayor 
to execute the agreement for the W. 27th Street Reconstruction Project. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 

712

Item 22.



Temporary Easement and Right-of-Way Acquisition

University of Northern Iowa

West 27th Street Reconstruction

& Cedar Falls High School

West 27th Street

H
u

d
s

o
n

 
R

o
a

d

LEGEND

G
r
e

e
n

h
i
l
l
 
R

o
a

d

P
 
E

 
C

e
n

t
e

r
 
 
D

r
i
v

e

West 27th Street

G
r
e

e
n

h
i
l
l
 
R

o
a

d

G
r
e

e
n

h
i
l
l
 
R

o
a

d

P
 
E

 
C

e
n

t
e

r
 
 
D

r
i
v

e

All easements and acquisitions shall be to the

City of Cedar Falls unless otherwise noted.

CEDAR FALLS

HIGH SCHOOL

CEDAR FALLS

HIGH SCHOOL

CEDAR FALLS

HIGH SCHOOL

CEDAR FALLS

HIGH SCHOOL

713

Item 22.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
P:\60637669\900-CAD-GIS\03-SKETCHES\60637669-RIGHT-OF-WAY-EXHIBIT.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/27/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
60637669

AutoCAD SHX Text
May 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT EASEMENT



714

Item 22.



715

Item 22.



716

Item 22.



717

Item 22.



718

Item 22.



719

Item 22.



720

Item 22.



721

Item 22.



722

Item 22.



723

Item 22.



724

Item 22.



725

Item 22.



726

Item 22.



727

Item 22.



728

Item 22.



729

Item 22.



730

Item 22.



731

Item 22.



732

Item 22.



733

Item 22.



734

Item 22.



735

Item 22.



736

Item 22.



737

Item 22.



738

Item 22.



739

Item 22.



740

Item 23.



741

Item 23.



742

Item 23.



743

Item 23.



744

Item 23.



745

Item 23.



746

Item 23.



747

Item 23.



748

Item 23.



749

Item 23.



750

Item 23.



751

Item 23.



752

Item 23.



753

Item 23.



754

Item 23.



755

Item 23.



756

Item 23.



757

Item 23.



758

Item 23.



759

Item 23.



760

Item 23.



761

Item 23.



762

Item 23.



763

Item 23.



764

Item 23.



765

Item 23.



766

Item 23.



767

Item 23.



768

Item 23.



769

Item 23.



770

Item 23.



771

Item 23.



772

Item 23.



773

Item 23.



774

Item 23.



775

Item 23.



776

Item 23.



777

Item 23.



778

Item 23.



779

Item 23.



780

Item 23.



781

Item 23.



782

Item 23.



783

Item 23.



784

Item 23.



785

Item 23.



786

Item 23.



787

Item 23.



788

Item 23.



789

Item 23.



790

Item 23.



791

Item 23.



792

Item 23.



793

Item 23.



794

Item 23.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of February 21, 2022
	220221MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-International Women's Day
	2022-03-08_InternationalWomensDay2022

	Item 3.	PH-FY23 Budget-FINAL
	budget hearing council  2.mem
	2. FY23 Budget
	1 - FY23 Budget
	2 - FY23 Budget
	3 - FY23 Budget
	4 - FY23 Budget
	5 - FY23 Budget
	6 - FY23 Budget
	7 - FY23 Budget
	8 - FY23 Budget
	9 - FY23 Budget
	10 - FY23 Budget
	11 - FY23 Budget

	Item 4.	PH-DA & Conveyance-McWing, LLC
	1_CC Memo for McWing, LLC Public Hearing 03-07-22
	2_McWing, LLC Site Map
	3_Authorizing Resolution - McWing, LLC 02-22-22
	4_EXECUTION VERSION Agreement for Private Development - McWing, LLC
	5_Deed Without Warranty - McWing, LLC

	Item 5.	PH-DA & Conveyance-KL Iowa 01, LLC
	1_CC Memo for KL Iowa 01, LLC Public Hearing 03-07-22
	2_KL Iowa 01, LLC Site Map
	3_Authorizing Resolution for KL Iowa 01, LLC
	4_EXECUTION VERSION Agreement for Private Development - KL Iowa 01 LLC
	5_Quit Claim Deed - KL Iowa 01, LLC

	Item 6.	PH-2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project
	1. Memo PH - 2022 CDBG Sanitary Sewer Rehab
	2. EOC - 2022 CDBG Sanitary Rehab ESTIMATE

	Item 7.	PH-Shared Pkng-CD DT
	1 - Memo.CC. public hearing date changes to parking req CD-DT
	2 - Ordinance.parking amd CD-DT.TA22-001.shared parking

	Item 8.	PH-Parking Ratio CD-DT
	Ord-Pkng 1 per bed CD-DT
	Ord-Pkng .75 per bed CD-DT

	Item 9.	Student Liaison-Zachary Zippe
	2022-03-07_NISG _StudentLiaison_Appoint

	Item 10.	Work Session Minutes - 02/21/22
	02-21-22 Work Session Minutes

	Item 11.	P&CS Annual Report of Boards and Commissions
	1. Annual Report Council memo for 2021
	2. P  Z Annual Summary 2021
	2a. P  Z Attendance Chart 2021 (2)
	3. 2021 permit summary
	4. BOA Annual Report 2021
	5. HPC Annual Summary 2021
	6. Board of Rental Housing Appeals 2021
	7.  Housing Commission Annual Report 2021
	8. Bike and Ped Annual Report 2021

	Item 12.	Departmental Monthly Report
	01 - January 2022 Monthly Report

	Item 13.	Liquor Beer 3-7-22
	Liquor Beer 3-7-21

	Item 14.	Personnel Policies
	1. Memo (revised) to Mayor Council Personnel policy changesdocx
	2. 309 Severance Pay February 2022 changes
	3. 503 (revised) Holidays February 2022 changess
	4.  506 Vacations February 2022 changes
	5.  704 Leaves of Absence February 2022 changes Revised
	6.  221 Remote Work Feb 2022
	7.  Remote Work Agreement Feb 2022

	Item 15.	923 Ellen St. - Assessment
	923 Ellen St.-Assessment

	Item 16.	Peace Officer Grant
	1-Peace officer retention bonus grant request memo (Feb2022)
	2-PO Grant

	Item 17.	C-2 Site Plan – 3717 Midway Drive (Case # SP22-001)
	1_staff report to cc
	2. ZoningLocationMap
	3 Midway Storage Set 2021.02.11
	4 Midway Storage Blueprint

	Item 18.	Supp. Agreement No. 2 - Terracon Construction Testing Services
	1. Memo - SA#2 Terracon Construction Testing Services
	2. PSA - SA No. 2 Terracon
	3. City of Cedar Falls Supplemental Proposal

	Item 19.	Low Bid-2022 Street Construction Project
	1. Memo Low Bid - 2022 Street Construction
	2. Bid Tab

	Item 20.	Contracts-West Viking Road Industrial Park Phase V
	1. Memo Contracts - West Viking Road Industrial Park
	2. Form of Contract
	3. Performance Payment and Maintenance Bond
	4. Certificate of Insurance
	6. Bid Tabulation
	5. Form of Proposal 2.11.2022

	Item 21.	Olive St Culvert Easements
	1. ROW Memo - Olive Box
	2. ROW Figure
	3. 2009 Olive Box ROW
	4. 2010 Olive Box ROW

	Item 22.	W 27th St Easements
	1. ROW Memo - West 27th Street Reconstruction
	2. W 27th RIGHT-OF-WAY-EXHIBIT-OVERALL
	3. Parcel 01 - W. 27th Street Roadway
	4. Parcel 08 - W. 27th Street Roadway

	Item 23.	Bills
	1 Daily Invoices 030722
	2 Council Invoices 030722

	Bottom

